~ Misappropriation of funds by theft or falsification of records related to such
. funds.

- “Temporary borrowing” of funds by unauthorized 10U s (or Eappmg)

- Using worthless checks as part of a fund in substitution for cash.

- Obtaining reimbursement or knowingly making payments from petty cash or
other funds for unautherized expenditures.

- Altering (raising) amounts on petty cash tags or other payment papers fer
personal gain.

- Forging endorsements or approving signatures on any payment paper.

- Entering falsified and untruthful information on time cards for the purpose of
gatning unearned pay or concealing absences.

- Making false statements on perscn& expense accounts.

- Knowingly processing or approvmg false or inflated invoices for payments to
outside vendors.

- Establishing or maintaining any “off the books” bank accounts or unrecorded
funds for the purpose of making any unauthorized or questionable payments.

TOOLS MATERIALS, SUPPLIES, AND EQUIPMENT

6. All Airport maLenal tools, and equipment purchased or rented by the Alrport shall be
vsed exclusively for Airport business and operations; and shall not be taken, loaned, or
personally used by employess.

Specific violations include, but are not limited to:

- Theft or borrowing of Alrport tools and equiprnent. ' o
- Use of Airport tools, equipment, materials, fuel, or Airport labor on employees’
or other parties’ personal property; e.g., automobiles, radios, television sets,

private construction, etc. '

. Flagrant and willful abuse of Airport property, including vandalism.

- Improper and unautherized disposal of Alirport property, mciuding salvage,
scrap, or obsolete 1tems. '

- Unauthorized possesmcn or removal of Airport property from the Airport’s
premises pursuant to Executive Directive 99-03 effective May 3, 1999.

- Use of Airport vehicles, owned or rented, for other than authorized Airport use
or allowing wnauthorized persons to drive or ride in the vehicle (except in
emergency situations).

- Unauthorized purchases on Airport credit cards.

- Offering aid or information to outsiders or other employees to be used for the
purpose of misappropriating Airport property.

- Unauthorized use of Airport data processing resources, including computers and
software pursuant to Executive Directive 03-03 effective August 6, 2005.

.- Release of proprietary information about the Airport’s computer programs and
. systems. and those licensed to the Airport for its exclusive use.
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AIRPORT ACCOUNTS, REPORTS, AND RECORDS

7

Alrport accounts, reports, end records should be prepared as accurately and completely

as possible and should not be released-io cutside parties indiscriminately. Any reports,-

information, etc., shall only be released with the consent of the responsibie
management employee involved, pursuant to Executive Dlrectwe 02-04 effective
September 23, 2002.

Specific violations include, but are not limited to:

-~ Release of original or reproduced copies of Auport records without proper
approval,

- Supplying oozztra::uors suppliers’, or employees’ names, addresses, or other
data to outside solicitors.

- Wiitfully destroying or altering Alrport recerds..

- Faisification of education, skills, experience, or other pertinent data shown on
initial or subsequent:personnel records relied on for hiring or subsequent

| prOmoticn.

- Making false entries in the Airport’s accounting forms, records, or books of
account and misleading reporting thereon.

- Preparation of operating, personnel, or other reports and studies Wthh are
intentionally false, incomplete, or misleading. '

- Willful, unauthorized destruction, or alteration of Airport computer programs
and data.

Employees shall factualty report time worked and not worked, pursuant to Execuhve
Directive 03-12 efiective September 26, 2003.

Employces viclating this Executive Directive will be subject to disciplinary action up to
and including dismissal and may also be subject to legal action. In addition,
supervisors who knowingly allow others to violate this Executive Directive will be
subject to disciplinary actmﬁ up toc and including dismissal and may also be subject to

- legal action.
John L. Martin
Airport Director
Issue Drate: - Januan" 29. 2004
Effective Date: - January 29, 2004

- Related Executive Directives:

03-12-

03-03

02-04
00-02
19563

Dsily Time Sheets, effective Septembe:r 26, 2003

Use of Airport Telephones, t,}e:ctromc Equlpment, and other Equipment Devices and Materxals
effective Angust 6, 2003, ‘

Document Control, effective September 23, 2002

Standards for Employee Conduct, effective February 2, 2000

Unauthorized Possession and Removal of Airport Property, effective May 3, 1999 -
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTIVE

7- 03 ' Standards fdr Ethical Conduct

STATEMENT OF POLICY
1. It is the policy of the Airport that empiéyees ﬁhall conduct their business

activities with honesty, fairness and integrity by following fundarmental
ethical standards, ‘

APPLICABILITY

2. This Executive Directive applies to all Airport employees.

RESPONSIBILITY

3. Deputy Directors and Managers are responsible for ensuring compliance with
this directive. All employees are accountable for compliance with this
directive. Supervisors are responsible for prohibiting any employee from
engaging in any prohibited activity, :

TYPES OF REGULATED ACTIVITIES AND VIOLATIONS OF THE DIRECTIVE

4. Conduct subject to this directive includes employee activity which is n any
way job related and which involves a dishonest, unethical or otherwise
unlawful act in violation of Airpert instructions, directives or policies.
Employees should not nor attempt 10 deceive, defrand or mislead the Adirport,
other employees, or those whom the Airport has business or other
relationships; take or misuse Airport property, funds or service; misrepresent
the airport or its employees, divulge or release any information relating to the
Alrport of a proprietary nature; obtain a personal advantage or benefit
because of their association with the Airport or by use of the Alrport name;

“withhold their best efforts to perform their work to acceptable standards;
engage in unethical business practices; violate applicable laws; or conduct
themselves at any time dishonestly or in a manner which will reflect discredit
on the Airport. The following provides a general outline of the types of
activities subject to this directive and examples of misconduct to be
considered when administering this Executive Directive. However, no

attempt has been made o illustrate every conceivable instance which would
be considered misconduct.

- AIRPORT FUNDS, SECURITIES, PAYMENT PAPERS

5. All funds collected on behalf of the Airport shall be promptly and properly
reported, deposited, and credited to the proper accounts. Monies assigned as
working funds, petty cash funds, etc., shall be used only for the Airport
purposes intended and authorized staff shall adequately safeguard such funds.
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Specific violations include, but are not limited to:

s Misappropriation of funds by theft or falsification of records related
to such funds. , ,

e "Temporary borrowing” of funds by unauthorized FOU's

. Using worthless checks as part of a fund in substitution for cash.

e Obtaining reimbursement Or knowingly making payments from petty
cash or other funds for unauthorized expenditures. ‘

e Altering (raising) amounts on petly cash tags or other payment papers
for personal gain.

“ Forging endorsements Of approving signatures of 20y payment paper.

e Entering falsified and untruthful information on time caxds for the
purpose of gaining unearned pay or concealing absences.

e Making false statements On personal expense accounts.

° Knowingly processing ot approving false o1 inflated invoices for
payments {0 outside vendors.

& Establishing or maintaining any "off the books" bank accounts Of

anrecorded funds for the purpose of making any unauthorized of
questionable payments. ' '

TOOLS, MATERIALS, SUPPLIES AND EQUIPMENT

6. All Airport material, tools, and equipment purchased or rented by the Alirport
‘ shall be used exclusively for Airport business and operations; and shall not be
taken, loaned, or personally used by employees.

Specific violafions include, but are not limited to:

Theft or borrowing of Airport tools and equipment.
. Use of Adrport tools, equipment, materials, fuel, or Airport labor on
“employees' or other parties’ personal property; &.&. automobiles,
radios, television sets, private construction, etc. N
Flagrant and willful abuse of Airport propetty, inchuding vandaiismi.
Improper and unauthorized disposal of Airport property, including
. salvage, scrap, ot obsolete items. -

J Unauthorized possession or removal of Airport property from the

' Airport's premises pursuant t© Executive Directive 99-03 effective
May 3, 1999.

s Use of Airport vehicles, owned or rented, for other than authorized

Airport use or allowing unauthorized persons to drive or ride in the
vehicle (except in emergency situations).
Unauthorized purchases on Airport credit cards.

. Offering aid or inforrnation to outsiders or other employees to be used
for the purpose of misappropriating Alrport property.
¢ . Unauthorized use of Airport data processing resources, including

computers and software pursuant to Executive Directive 0303
effective August 6, 2003, '

. Release of proprietary information about the Airport's computer
programs and systems and those licensed to the Airport for 1's
exclusive use.




Executive Directive 87- 03
Standards for Ethical Conduct

AIRPORT ACCOUNTS, REPORTS, AND RECORDS

7.

Alrport accounts, repoits, and records should be prepared as accurately and
completely as pessible and should not be released to outside parties
indiscriminately. Any reports, information, etc., shall only be released with
the consent of the responsible management employee involved, pursuant to
Executive Directive 02-04 effective September 23, 2002.

Specific violations include, but are not limited to:

e Release of original or reproduced copies of Airport records without

proper approval. -

Supplying contractors', suppliers’, or employees' names, addresses, or
other data to outside solicitors.

e Willfully destroying or altering Airport records.

* Falsification of education, skills, experience, or other pertinent data
shown on initial or subsequent personnel records relied on for hiring

or subseguent promotion. '

Making false or misleading entries in the Airport's accounting forms,

records, or books of account and misleading reporting thereorn.

Preparation of operating, personnel, or other reports and studies which

are intentionally false, incomplete, or misleading.

. Wiliful, unauthorized destruction, or alteration of Airport computer
programs and data.

Employees shall facmél}y report time worked and not warked, pursuant to

‘Executive Dirfzctive 03-12 effective September 26, 2003.

Gift means any payment, merchandise, gratuity, favor, discount,
entertainment, hospitality, loan forbearance, anything having monetary value
that confers a personal benefit on the recipient, to the extent that
consideration of equal or greater value is not received and includes a rebate
or discount in the price of anything of value unless the rebate or discount is

made in the regular course of business to members of the public without
regard to official status, ' :

a. No employee shall solicit a gift, regardiess of its value, when to do so
reasonably creates the appearance of a conflict of interest or of
influencing him or her in the performance of official duties.

b. Except as provided below. no employee shall accept any gift from
- anyone doing business or secking to do business with the Airport or 2
gift of any value from a subordinate in the line of authority,
c. An employee may accept 4 gift, regardiess of value, when:
(1) - The gift is from an immediate family member and does not

have the appearance of influencing the employee in the
performance of his or her duties.
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2)

(3)
(4)

(7

(8)

)

(10}

(1l

(12)

The gift constitures informational material such as books,
reports, pamphlets, calendars, or periodicals.

The gift is a devise of inheritance.

The gift is & personalized plaque OF trophy with an individual
value of less than three hundred uinety doliars ($390.00).

The gift is an award or prize siven in contests available to the
public, including random drawings.

The giftis aticket o a fundraiser for an organization that is
exempt from taxation as a qualified non-profit or ganizalion
under the Internal Revenue Code.

The gift is hospitality (including food, beverages, or
occasional lodging) provided by an individual in his or her
home when the individual or a member of the individual's
farpily is present. -

L
The gift is leave credits, including vacation, sick leave, oI
compensatory time off, donated to an employee in accordance
with a bona fide catastrophic or similar emergency leave
program established by the official’s employer and available
to 2ll employees in the same job classification of position.

The gift is a ceremonial one accepted on behalf of the Ai:poft

or given to the employee by the Airport in recognition of an
occasion of special personal significance.

The gift is free admission, and refreshments and similar
nor-cash nominal benefits provided to an employee during the
entire event at which the employee gives a speech, participates
in a panel or seminar, or provides a similar service, and actual
intrastate transportation and any necessary lodging and
subsistence provided directly in connection with the speech,
panel, seminar, Of service, including but not limited to meals
and beverages on the day of the activity. '

The gift is from & subordinate and given in recognition of an
occasion of special personal significance or has a value of $20

" or less and is given on an occasion on which gifts are

traditionally given, including any holiday traditionally
associated with gift giving, such as Christmas and Chanukah,
as well as birthdays or thanking & person for a kindness oI
good deed. . L

The gift is an upgrade of service from an air cardier offered in
the ordinary course of the carrier’s business and not based on
the employee’s status as an employee of the Alrport. An
employee may not solicit an upgrade.

23D
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{(13)  Acceptance is appraved by the Airport Director.
(14)  The gift 1s otherwise ;ﬁermitted by state or federal taw.

d. An employee should not solicit gifts, even of nominal value, from a
‘ business doing business or seeking to do business with the Alrport on

a regular or frequent basis since this would have the appearance of
influencing him or her. :

FINANCIAL INTERESTS

10. A financial inferest may come from ownership (e.g., shares of stock), income
(e.g., salary, dividends), liability (e.g., loan from the company}) or fiduciary
duty. The financial interest of an employee's immediate family will be
attributed to him or her for the purposes of this Executive Directive.

a. Definitions.
(1) Financial Interest means:

- (a) Ownership. An interest (e.g., shares of stock) of -
- $2.000 or more in a business or in real property.

(b} Income. Income of $500 or more in any form (whether
or not deferred) including, for example, salaries, fringe
benefits, interest, dividends, or rent that was received
in the previous 12 months. Income also includes the

prospect of income such as a pending job or offer of
employment. ‘ :

() Pledge or surety. Personal liability (incurred or
assumed} on bekalf of a business that exceeds $2.000.

(d)  Loan or debt. Personal debt of $200 or more to the
business or an individual involved with the business,
except a debt incurred in the ordinary course of
business on usual commercial terms; for exarnple, an-
autornobile loan on commercial terms from the bank
doing business on the airport is permissible: a loan
from the bank manager is not. :

(e) . Fiduciary dury. The duty owed to a business by a
erson in the position of corporate officer or member
of the board of directors or other governing body, even
without financial remuneration from the business.
' ' . Fiduciary duties to non-profit businesses (e.g., trade
Tt ) ~ associations) are ot included in'this definition of a
financial interest.

(2}  Business means sole proprietorships, firms, corporations,
‘ partnerships, companies or associations.
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3 Immediate Family means spouse and dependents living in the
same household. It alsoincludes any person over whose
financial affairs the employee has substantial legal or actual
control. : '

(4y  Participate means approving, disapproving, influencing, or
attemptimg to influence a decision of the Alrport.

b. An employee who has a financial interest in a business doing
business, or seeking to de business, with the Airport shall not
knowingly participate 1n any transaction with that business {such as a
lease, a contract negotiation, colicitation or award process, confract
sdministration, or an mvestment of Airport funds) on behalf of the
Ajrport absent a waiver {rom the Airport. An employee will be
presumned to know when he or she has a financial interest i a matter.
An employee has the affirmative responsibility to disclose that
financial interest to his or her immediate supervisor and to not
participate in the transaction. '

c. Absent a waiver from the Alrport Director, no employee nor any
member of his or her immediate family shall own any business or
have any investment in any business engaged in the fransporiation of
people of property by aircraft in common carriage whether or not the
business is doing business at the Airport’s faciiities. This does not
preclude ownership of shares in a diversified fund which may oWn an
interest in zir transportation company.

NEPOTISM

1. a For the purposes of this provision, the term "relative” means:
father, mother, grandfather, erandmother, son, daughter,
eranddaughter, grandson, brother, sister. uncle, aunt, nephew,
niece, husband, wife, father-in-law, mother-in-law, daughter-in-law,
son-in-law, sister-in-law of brother-in-law.

b. An employee may not, directly or indirectly, appoint, employ,
promote, or advance within the Airport one of bis or her own
relatives, Inm addition, a relative may not be assigned to any position
in which one relative may directly or indirectly supervise, control or
influence the work or the employment status of the other relative or
the affairs of the organizational unit in which the other relative 18
employed. Thus, a relative may not be assigned to a position that 1s
under direct or indirect supervision by another relative. Neither shall
two relatives report directly to the same SUPETVISOF.

CORRECTIVE ACTIONS

12.  Anemployee who, on the effective date of this directive, has or may have a
financial interest in a business that has a contract with the Alrport, has a
Sinancial interest that affects the employee's ability 10 participate n a
transaction, Supervises, or is in a position which is under the direct or mndirect
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supervision of a relative as defined herein, or is reporting directly to the same
supervisor that a relative reports to, shail report this situation to the Airport
General Counsel within 30 days after the effective date. If the Airport
General Counsel, in consultation with the Airport Human Resources Office,
determines that an employee has a personal financial interest, or other
situation that requires disclosure or some other action by the employee, the
employee, with the advice from the Airport General Counsel and the Alrport
Human Resources Office, shall make a plan for corrective action to be
umplemented as soon as is reasonably practicable. The Airport Director may
waive the application of the provisions of this directive to any situation that
does not otherwise vietate state or local laws. :

General Counsel of the Airport may. upon request of an employee, advise
employees on whether the Airport would consider a proposed action to be a
violation of this Executive Directive. No employee will be held to have
violated this directive if the alleged violation resulted from his or her good
faith reliance on 2 written opinion from the Airport General Counsel and the
opinion was made after a full and accurate disclosure of the material facts.

}3. Employees violating this Executive Directive will be subject to disciplinary
action up to and including dismissal and may also be subject to legal action.
In addition, supervisors who knowingly allow others to violate this Executive
Directive will be subject to disciplinary action up to and including disrnissal
and may also be subject to legal action.

JokRt. Martin
Alirport Director
Issue Date: April 19, 2007
Effectivel Date: April 26, 2007

Supercedes:  E.D. #04-01 - Standards for Ethical Conduet, effective J anuary 29, 2004

Related Executive Directives:
03-12 Daily Time Sheets, effective September 26, 2003

03-03 Use of Airport Telephones, Electronic Equipment, and other Equipment Devices and
Material, effective August 6, 2003 '

(02-04 Document Control, effective September 23, 2002
00-02  Standards for Employee Conduct, effective February 2, 2000
99-03 Unauthorized Possession and Removal of Alrport Property, effective May 3, 1999
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MEMORANDUM SCUR LM
TO: A Senior and Maneagement Staff - DPATE: December 18, 2007
FROM:  JohnL. Martin |
 Aljrport Director

SUBJECT: Revised Airport Executive Directive 07-09 Standards for Ethical Conduct

Attached is a revised copy of Airpert Executive Directive 07- 09 Standards for Ethical
Conduct. This Executive Directive reiterates my expectation that all employees act
n the best interest of the Airport Commission at all times and that no one knowingly
engages in conduct that 15 illegal, dishonest, constitutes a conflict of interest, or that
brings discredit upon the Arrport Commission.

In particular, those employees who obiligate the Airport Commission to spend money,
approve payments, and make decisions affecting disbursements have a special duty to
make their recommendations and decisions without prejudice, seeking to obtain the -
maximum value for the Airport Commission.

The addition of paragraph 10 (d} Financial Interests strictly prohibits an employee from
participating in an Airport related business transaction where his/her relative is or was

the project manager. Even though the employee would not have a financial interest, such
a situation would create at least the appearance of 2 conflict of interest. The consequences
for an employee faihing to bring this situation to the attention of Airport management
results in disciplinary action as described in the Discipline action of this Airport
Executive Directive,

Further changes have been made 1o the Gifis section of the Execufive Directive that
clarifies the Ethics Commission guidelines regarding the solicitation and receipt of gifis.

All questions regarding this Executzve Directive should be directed to Rob Maerz,
Airport General Counsel.

Aftachment:
Ajrport Executwe Directive 07-09 St aﬂdardg‘.for Ethical Conduct
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTIVE

07- age - Standards for Ethical Conduct ‘

STATEMENT OF POLICY

1. It is the policy of the Airport that e:mployeeé shall conduct their business activities
with honesty, fairness and i_niegrity by following fundamental ethical standards.
APPLICABILITY
2. This Executive Directive applies to all Airport Commission erployees.
RESPONSIBILITY
3. All Maﬁage:s and Supervisors are responsible for ensuﬁng compliance with this

directive. All employees are accountable for compliance with this directive.
TYPES OF REGULATED ACTIVITIES AND VIOLATIONS OF THE DIRECTIVE

4, Conduct subject to this directive includes employee activity which is in any way
‘ job related and which involves a dishonest, unethical or otherwise unlawful act in
violation of Airport instructions, directives or policies. Employees should not’
attempt to deceive, defrand or mislead Airport management, other employees, or

those whom the Airport has business or other relationships; take or misuse Airport -~

property, funds or service; misrepresent the Airport or its employees, divulge or
release any information relating to the Airport of a proprietary nature; obtain a
personal advantage or benefit because of their association with the Airport of by
use of the Airport name; withhold their best efforts to perform their work to
acceptable standards; engage in unethical business practices; violate applicable -
laws; or conduct themselves at any time dishonestly or in a manner which will
reflect discredit on the Airport, The following provides a general outiine of the
types of activities subject to this directive and examples of misconduct to be
considered when administering this Executive Directive. However, ne attempt -

has been made to illustrate every conceivable instance which would be considered
misconduct. -

AIRPORT FUNDS, SECURITIES, PAMI\I’T PAPERS

5. All funds coliected on behalf of the Airport shall be promptly and properly
reported, deposited, and credited to the proper accounts. Momes assigned as
working funds, petty cash funds; efc., shall be used only for the Airport purposes

" intended and authorized staff shall adequately safeguard such funds. ‘

Specific violations include, but are not limited to:

¢ Misappropriation of funds by theft or falsification of records related fo
such funds. -
"Temporary borrowing” of funds by unauthorized I0U's
Using worthless checks as part of 2 fund m substitution for cash. ‘
Obtaining reimbursement or knowingly making payments from petty cash
or other funds for unauthorized expenditures.
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Alte—mg (raising) amounts on petty cash tags or other payment papers for
personal gain.

Forging endorsements or appmvmg signatures on any payment paper.
Enterlng falsified and untruthful information on time cards for the purpose
of gaining unearned pay or concealing absences.

Making false statements on personal expense accounts.

Knowingly processing or approving false or inflated invoices for
payments to outside vendors. '
Establishing or maintaining any "off the books” bank accounts or
unrecorded funds for the purpose of making any unautherized or
questionable payments.

TOOLS, MATERIALS, SUPPLIES AND LQUIPMENT

6.

Al Afrport material, tools, and equiprnent purchased or rented by the nII’pOl‘t
shall be used exciuswely for Adrport business and operations; and shall not be
taken, loaned, or personally used by ;mplcyees.

Specific violations include, but are not limited to:

&
[ ]

Theft or borrowing of Airpoﬁ tools and equipment.
Use of Airport tools, equ:pment matenials, fuel, or Airport labor on

employees’ or other parties’ personal property; e.g., automobiles, radios,

television sets, privafe construction, eic.

Flagrant and willful abuse of Alrport property, including vandalism.
Improper and unauthorized disposal of Afrport property, including
salvage, scrap, or obsolete iterns.

Unauthorized possession or removal of Azrport property from the Anpoﬁ
premises pursuant to Executive Directive 99-03 effective May 3, 1999.

Use of Airport vehicles, owned or rented, for other than authorized Airport
use or allowing unautherized persons o drive or ride in the vehlcle {except
in emergency situations}.

'Unauthorized purchases on Airport credit cards

Offering aid or information to outsiders or other employees to be used for |
the purpose of misappropriating Airport property.

Unauthorized use of Airport data processing resources, inchiding
computers and software pursuant to Executive Dlractlve 03-03 effective
Augnst 6, 2003.

Release of proprietary information about the Airport's computer programs
and systemns and those licensed to the Airport for its exclusive use.

ATRPORT ACCOUNTS, REPORTS, AND RECORDS

7.

Adrport accounts, reports, and records should be prapared as accurately and
completely as posszble and should not be released to outside parties
indiscriminately. Any reports, information, efc., shall only be released with tbe
consent of the responszbie management e*rnplcyue mvowed, pursuant {o Executive
Directive 02-04 effective September 23, 2002, :
Specific violations melude, but are not limited to:

Release of original or reproduced copies of Airport records without proper
approval., : '
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GIFTS

. Supplying contractors’, suppliers', or employees' names, addresses, of
: other data to outside solicitors. '
e Willfully destroying or altering Airport records. .
s Falsification of education, skills, experience, or other pertinent data shown
on initial or subsequent personnel records relied on for hiring or
subseguent promotion.

e Making false or misleading entries n the Airport's accounting forms,
" records, or books of account and misieading reporting therson.
v Preparation of operating, personnel, or other reports and studies which are
: intentionally false, incompiete, or misleading. '
e Willful, unauthorized destruction, or alteration of Airport computer
programs and data.

Empiojees shall factually report time worked and not worked, pursuant to
Executive Directive 03-12 effective September 26, 2003.

Gift means any payment, merchandise, gratuity, favor, discount, entertainment,
hospitality, loan forbearance, anything having monetary value that confers a
personal benefit on the recipient, to the extent that consideration of equal or
greater value is not received and includes a rebate or discount in the pnice of
anything of value unless the rebate or discount is made in the regular course of
business to members of the public without regard to official status.
a. No officer or employes shall solicit a gift, regardless of ifs value, when to

do so reasonably creates the appearance of a conflict of interast or of

influencing him or her in the perforrnance of official duties.

b.  No officer or employee shall accept any gift from anyone who within the
- preceding 12 months knowingly attempted to influence the officer or
employee on any legislative or administrative action.

c. Except as provided below, no officer or employee shall accept any gift
from anyone doing business or seeking to do business within the
preceding 12 months with the Awrport or a gift of any value from a
subordinate in the line of authonty.

d Any officer or employee may accept a voluntary gift, other than cash,
when: : ,

(1}  The gift has an aggregate value of 525 or less per occasion,
provided, however, that this exception is limited {0 nc more than
four occasions per year.

(2) _ The gift is from an immediate family member and does not have -

" © " the appearance of influencing the employee in the performance-of - - - - -
his or her duties. :

(3} The- gift is food or drink, regardiess of valﬁe:, to be shared in the
office among officers 2nd employees.

(4)  The gift is a devise or ipheritance.
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(5)

(6)

(7}

{8

@y

(10)

(1)

(13)

The gift is a personalized plagne or trophy with an individual value
of less than three hundred ninety doliars {$390.00).

The gift is an award or prize given in contests available to the
public, melnding random drawings.

The gift is a ticket to a fundraiser for an organization that is
exempt from taxation as a qualified non-prefit cnrgwlzat‘zork under
the Internal Revenue Code. .

The gift is leave crcdits, including vacation, sick leave, or
compensatory time off, donated to an employee in accordance with
a bona fide catastrophic or similar emergency leave program
established by the official’s emplover and available to all-
employees in the same job classification or position.

The gi-ﬁ is a ceremontal one accepted on behalf of the Airport or
gwan to the officer or employee by the Airport in rf:cogmtlon of an
occasion of special personal significance.

The gift is free admission, and refreshments and similar non-cash
nominal benefits provided to an officer or employee during the
entire event at which the employee gives a speech, participates in a
panel or seminar, or provuies a similar service, Or engages in
networking opportunities which may enable the officer or
employee to estzblish working relationships that may inure to the
benefit of the City, and actual infrastate transportation and any
necessary lodging and subsistence provided directly in comnection
with the speech, panel, seminer, or service, including but not
Irmited to meals and beverages or the day of the activity.

The gift is other than cash, with an aggregate value of $25 or less
per occasion from a subordinate or a candidate or applicant for a
position.as an employee or subordinate under the officer or
employee and given in recognition of an occasion on which gifis
are traditionally given, including any holiday traditionally
associated with gift giving, such as Christmas and Chanukah, as
well as birthdays or thanking a person for 2 kindness or good deed.

The gift is an vpgrade of service from an air carrier offered in the
ordinary course of the carrier's business and not based on the
otficer’s or employee's status as an employee of the Airport. An
officer or employee shall not solicit an upgradc

The gift is otherwise perm_ttvd by state or federal law,.

e. An e:mp}oyee snould not sohcﬂ glfts even of nominal Vafue froma
business doing busimess or seeking to do business with the Alrport on a
regular or frequent basts since this would have the appearance of
influencing him or her.
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Executive Directive 7-09 :
Standards for Ethical Conduct -

FINANCIAL INTERESTS

“10. A ﬁnancxa} interest may corne from OWIL(f:l'Shlp (e.g., shares of stock), income
(e.g., salary, dividends}, lability (e.g., loan from the company) or fiduciary duty.
The Tinancial interest of an employee's immediate family wﬂi be attributed o him
or her for the purposes of this Executive Directive.

a. Definitions.
(1}  Financial Interest means:

(2) Ownership. An mterest (e.g., shares of stock) of $2,000 or
more it a buamess or in real property.

(6)  Income. Income of $500 or more in any form (whether or
not deferred) including, for example, salaries, fringe
benefits, interest, dividends, or rent that was received in the
previous 12 months. Income also includes the prospect of
mcome such as a pending job or offer of employment

(¢}  Pledge or surety. Personal hability (incurred or assumed)
on behalf of a business that exceeds §2,000.

... __ _ __(&)y__Loanor debt. Personal debtof $200 or more to the
' . business or an individual involved with the business, except
a debt incurred in the ordinary course of business on usual
comrmercial terms; for example, an automobile loanon
commercial terms from the bank doing business on the
airport is permissible; a loan from the bank manager is not.

(¢)  Fiduciary duty. The duty owed to a busimess by a person it in
the position of corporate officer or member of the board of
directors or other governing body, even without financial
remuneration from the business. Fiduciary duties to non-
proﬁt businesses {e.g., frade assocxanons) are not included

. to this definition of 2 financial interest!

(2} Business means sole propnetorshlps firms, corporations,
partnerships, COmpanies or associations.

(3)  Immediate Family means spouse and dependents living in the same
household. It also includes any person over whose financial affairs
the employee has substantial legal or actual control.

(4) Participate means approving, diszpproving, influencing, or
attempting to influence a decision of the Azrpon

b, An cmpioy&e who has a financial interest in 2 business doing business, or
seeking to do business, with the Airport shall not knowingly participate in
any transaction with that business (such as a lease, a contract negotiation,
solicitation or award process, confract admmlstrat}on or an investment of
Ajrport funds) on behalf of the Airport absent a waiver from the Airport.
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Executive Directive 4709

Standards for Kthical Conduet

NEPOTISM
1L

An empioyee will be presumed fo know when be or she has a financial
interest in a maiter. An employee has the affirmative responsibility to
disclose that financial interest to his or her immediate supervisor and to
not participate in the transaction.

c. Absent a waiver from the Airport Director, no employes nor any member
of his or her iimmediate family shall own any business or have any
investment in any business engaged in the transportation of people or
property by aircraft in common carriage whether or not the business is
doing business at the Airport's facilities. This does not preclude '
ownership of shares in a diversified fund which may own an interest in air
transportation company. :

d. No employee shall participate in an Airport related business transaction
{such as a jease, a contract negotiation, solicitation or award process,
confract administration, or an investment of Airport funds) where his/her
relative, e.g., busband/wife, is or was the project manager. Even though
the employee may not have a Financial Interest prohibrted by this
Financial Interests section, such a situation counld create at least the
appearance of a conflict of interest. If an employee fails to bring this
situation to the attention of Airport management, he/she may be ]
disciplined as described in the Discipline section of this Airport Executive
Drrective. :

a. An employee may not, directly or indirectly, appoint, employ, promote, or
advance within the Airport one of his or her own relatives, In addition, a
relative may not be zssigned to any pesition in which one relative may
directly or indirectly supervise, contro! or influence the work or the .
employment status of the other relative or the affairs of the organizational
unit in which the other relative is employed. Thus, a relative may not be

~assigned to a position that is under direct or indirect supervision by
another relative. Neither shall two relatives report directly to the same
SUpErvisor. -

b. For the purposes of this provision, the term "relative” means: father,
mother, grandfather, grandmother, son, daughter, granddaughter,
grandson, brother, sister, uncle, aunt, nephew, niecs, husband, wife,
father-in-law, mother-in-law, daughter-in-law, son-in-law, sister-in-lew or
brother-in-law, .

CORRECTIVE ACTIONS

12.

An employee who, on the effective date of this directive, has or may have a
financial interest in 2 business that has a contract with the Airport, has a financial

_imterest that affects the employee's ability to participate in & transaction, - =

supervises, Or IS in & positron which 1s under the direct or indirect supervisien of a-
relative as defined herein, or is reporting directly to the same supervisor that a
relative reports to, shall report this situation to the Airport General Counse! within
30 days after the effective date. If the Airport Genera! Counsel, in consultation
with the Airport Human Resources Director, determines that an employee has a
personal financial interest, or other sifuation that requires disciosure or some other
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Executive [¥irective 87-09

Standsrds for Ethical Conduct

Issue Date: Deceriiber 21, 2007

action by the employee, the émployee, with the advice from the Alrport General
Counsel and the Airport Human Resources Director, shall make a plan for
corrective action to be implemented as soon as is reasonably practicable. The
Airport Director may waive the application of the provisions of this directive to
any situation that does not otherwise violate state or local laws.

General Counsel of the Airport may, upon request of an employee, advise
employees on whether the Airport would consider a proposed action to be a
violation of this Fxecutive Directive. No employee will be held to have violated
this directive if the alleged violation resulted from his or ber good faith reliance
on a written opinion from the Airport General Counsel and the opinion was made
after a full and accurate disclosure of the material facts.

DISCIPLINE

13.

Employees violating this Executive Directive will be subject to disciptinary action
up o and including dismissal and may also be subject to legal action. In addition,
supervisors who knowingly allow others to violate this Executive Directive will
be subject to disciplinary action up to and including dismissal and may also be
subject to legal action. : '

O@j

. JohnL Martin
Adrport Director

Effective Date: Immediately

Supercedes: E.D.#04-01 - Standards for Ethical Conduct, effective January 29, 2004

E.D. #07-03 — Standards for Ethical Conduct, effective April 26, 2007

Related Executive Directives: '

Daily Time Sheets, effective September 26, 2003

Use of Airport Telephones, Electronic Equipment, and other Equipment Devices and
Material, effective August 6, 2003 '
Document Control, effective September 23, 2002

Standards for Employee Conduct, effective February 2, 2000

Unauthorized Possession and Removal of Airport Property, effective May 3, 1999

03-12
(3-03

02-04
100-02
99-03
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Exhibit B

j)HR‘s Responses - 7/2/08, 7/23/08
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City and County of San Francisco
Gavin Newsom
Mayor

Department of Human Resources

Micks Callahan
Human Resources Director

July 2, 2008

Sonya Knudsen )

" Dear Ms. Knudsen:

| 2m in receipt of your three lefters, each dated June 25, 2008, and attached Department Report of

Employment Discrimination Complamt forms regarding the San Francisco Alrport {SFO} and Department of
Human Resources (DHR) :

The San Francisco Charter, section 10,103, and Civit Service Commission Rule 103 provide that the Human
Resources Direcior shall review and reso!ve complaints of employment discrimination, subject to appeal to
the Civil Service Commission. {n order to initiate a discrimination complaint; certain criteria musf be met.
Enclosed Is our informational leaflet on how o file a diserimination complaint. A compiaint must be filed
within 180 days of the date the discriminatory action fook place, or the date the employee should have first
become aware of the violation. Additionally, the standards described below must be presented.

S’Eandards for Dlscrlmlnataon

Disparate Treatment Discrimination: 1) Complainant is a member of a protected category; 2) complainant
was subjected {o an adverse employment action; and 3) complainant was subjected to the adverse
employment action because of her membership in a protectsd category.

Denial of Reasonable Accommodation: 1) Comp!ainant s a disabied person within the meaning of the law;
2) complainant is qualified o perform the essential functions of her job with or without reasonable

accommodation; 3) complainant requested a reasonable accommodation; and 4) the employer failed fo
provide a reasonable accommodation.

Letter #1: By one ietter, you complained about the handiing of vour reguest for reasonable accommodation
by the SFO EEQ Office and denial of your request to telecommuie. Generally, telecommuting or working at
home may be a reasonable accommodation when the essential functions of the posifion can be performed at
home and the employee can establish a medical need for such accommodation. Please provide more
specific information and attach relevant documentation about your request and the department’s response.

Letter #2: By another letier, you alleged unfair and inequitable freatment by your supervisor Blake Summers,
at SFO's Airport Museums. On the form, you checked the bases as sex, disability and retaliation; and the
issues as denial of promotion, denial of reasonable accommodation and work assignment. Please provide a

detailed explanation of each action you believe to be discriminatory, the dates of the alieged acnons occurred
and other information describad on the Dnclosed ieafiet.
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Sonya Knudsen, page 2

| etler #3; Lastly, you complained about the handling of your November 2007 discrimination complaint by the
SFO, and issues regarding conflict of interest, neutrality, and mediation by the DHR EEO Division. The role
of an EEO investigator is that of a netitral fact finder, representing neither the SFO nor the complainant, to

_ investigate allegations of disciimination, and 1o subrmit findings to the Human Resources Director for
deterrination. In addition, complaints are aiso reviewed for possible resolufion through mediation by trained
mediators in the City's Employee Assistance Program or the Hastings College program. Your concems as
presented in this letter do not meet the standards to establish a complaint under the City's discrimination
complaint process. : ' ‘

For your information, you may file & complaint of discrimination with the U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity
Commission (EEOC) or the California Department of Fair Employment & Housing (DFEH). The EEOCis a
faderal agenoy and the DFEH is a state agency; both are independent of the City & County of San Francisco.
Contact these agencies directly for filing requirements and deadines.

in addition, you may alsc pursue your allegations of discrimination through the grievance process of your
union, SEIU Local 1021; however, the MOU batween the City and SEIU provides that ‘in the event more than
 one administrative remedy may be avaiiable within the City and County governmental system of San
Francisco, the Union and the employee shall elect only one. The election is irrevocabie.’

Please review the enclosed information about the City's employment discrimination complaint requirements
and provide the details specific o your charges. If we do not receive your response by July 17, 2008, these
issues will be administratively closed. '

Si‘ncereiy‘,

Dorothy Yee
EEC Manager

Enciosure: How to File
Copy. EEO File #1343

Silvia Castellanos
Steve Pitoochi, SEIU -
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Departmeﬁt of Human Resources
WMicki Callzhan

Human Resources Director

City and County of San Francisco
Gavin Newsom
Mayor

July 23, 2008
Ms. Sonya Knudsen

Dear Ms. Knudsen:

1 am writing in response to your various letters sent to me in the Department of Human
Resources in the past few weeks. In each letter, you wrote that you were filing a complaint of
discrimination, harassment, or retaliation against the San Francisco Airport.

The San Francisco Charter, section 10.103, and Civil Service Commission Rules provide that
the Human Resources Director shall review and resolve complaints of employment
discrimination. A complaint is accepted for Investigation after a careful screening process 10

- determine if it falls within the junisdiction of the City’s employment discrimination complaint
requirements. A complaint must contain allegations that, :f proven, constitute a violation of

- the provisions of federal, state or local EEO laws. Complaints that do not state a recognized

basis or adverse employment action, or do not establish the requisite inference of
discrimination shall be admimistratively closed on the basis of failure to establish a charge.

e Your complaint that you were denied a reasonable accommeodation to return to work on a
part time schedule in November 2007 was recorded as EEO File #1343 and assigned to
Silvia Castellanos in the DHR EEO Division for investigation. The Human Resources
Director will notify you of her determination in the complaint. '

= Your three communications dated June 25, 2008 were insufficient to support an inference
of discrimination. As I previously wrote, you may provide additional information to
support that your allegations are based on your membership in a protected category and
you were subjected to an adverse employment action. Please provide a detailed
explanation of each action you believe to be discriminatory, the dates of the alleged

actions occurred and other information descnbed on the enclosed leaflet about the City’s
complaint process.

»  Your two communications dated July 11, 2008 have been recorded as EEO File #1371 and

assigned to an BEQ investigator for further review. You will be contacted by the assigned
mvestigator,

-For your information again, you may file & complaint of discrimination with the U.S. Equal
Employment Opportumty Commission (EBQC]) or the Califorma Department of Fair
Employment & Housing (DFEH). The EEOC is a federal agency and the DFEH is a state
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Sonya fﬁudsem page 2
agency; both are independent of the City & County of San Francisco. Contact these agencies
directly for filing requirements and deadlines.
Sincerely,
m% V&
Dorothy Yee

BEEQ Manager

Enclosure: How to File & Discrimination Complaint

Copy: EEQO File #1343
EEO File #1371
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NOCO Ooooocdooodong

CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN RESOURCES

CHARGE OF DISCRIMINATION
(To be Completed by EEO Staff In Consultation with Complainant)

Name of Complainant: Sonva Knudsen
Address: Work Phone.:_650-821-6726
Home Phone:

— .- - -

- Respondent Department: SF International Afrpost

Worksite: SE Airport Museums ' Telephone No.: 650-821-6700
Address: SFE Intemational Airport, PO Box 8097, San Francisco, CA 94128

Complainant’s Current Employment Status {circle one):  Classification: PEX 3546
PCS TCS LT NCS PV PC TE PROB NOTA CITY EMPLOYEE

Basis of Dlsczmuna’non (spemfy) 5. Issue complained of:

Race: ‘ U Denial of Employment
Color: L} Denial of Training
Rehigion: XI Denial of Promotion
Creed: <} Denial of Reasonable Accommodation
Sex: U Termination :
Nationa! Origin: W Lay-off
Ethricity: 8 Constructive Discharge

- Age: 2 Disciplinary Action
Disability/Medical Condition: Harassment
Political Affiliation: U Work Assignment
Sextial Orientation: U Sexus] Harassment
Ancestry: U Compensation
Marital or Domestic L Other (please specify):
Partner Status: .
Gender Identity:
Parental Status:

- Other Non-Merit Factors:
Retajjaﬁan:

Has the Complainant filed the compiamt with any other local, state or federal agency'? Yes U No X
If yes, please spe<:1fy

Has the Complaiﬁa.ut filed a grievance or lawsuit? Yes U No &
IT yes, please specify:

Is the Complainant represented by a Union or an Atiomey? - Yes X1 No 3

Neame: Steve Pitocchi Organization/Firm: SEIU Local 1021
Address:350 Rhode Island St., Suite 100 So.Bidg.. SF  Phone No.: _415-848-3641
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9. Describe specifically and in detail the circumstances of the alleged discrimination.
Please include date(s) of adverse employment action(s).

In March 2008 Ms. Sonya Knudsen filed a discrimination complaint against manager,
Mr. Blake Summers, Director/Chief Curator-SF Airport Museums for November 2007
‘denial of reasonable accommodation. EEO informed Summers of complaint; Summers
refused mediation June 2008. July 2008 DHR Director determination: insufficient
evidence to support the charge; Knudsen filed appeal with Civil Service Commission.

Due to March 2008 complaint filing Summers subjects Knudsen to harassment,
disparate treatment, and intimidation upon April 2008 full-time return to work; second
discrimination complaint filed by Knudsen against Summers ie June 2008 re redefined
and restructured work asmgnments excessive scrutiny and interference, and denied

- promotion (0922 Manager 1, from 3546 Curator IV). Summers’ comment, “why Would
I promote you, you haven’t been here this past year?”

Manager’s assistant, Ms. Kathie Smookler, on July 1, 2008 harasses, intimidates, and
physically blocks Ms. Knudsen, in loud and aggressive manner accusing Kaudsen of
undermining Snmmers. Following that, on July 9, 2008 Summers informed Knudsen of
Alrport Facilities department complainté without providing details, and in a meeting in
his office behind closed doors, accused Knudsen of being 2 problem from day-one, of
having numerous complaints lodged against her, and of being “complaint-happy,”
denied Knudsen third party representation, saying “he wasn’t going there, like
mediation downtown.” Mr. Summers commented, “..don’t sit there all proper..”
knowing of Knudsen accommodation needs. Specifically, Mr. Summers linked the ,
complaints Knudsen filed with comment that she should resign, “...look at the number

- of complaints yow’vefiled, you’re unhappy, do you want to qult‘?” T

Since April 2008 return to work Knudsen has been subjected to discrimination,
harassment, intimidation, disparate treatment, and retaliation from Mr. Summers and
Ms. Smookler, working in an increasingly difficult, strained and hostile work
environment, with fear for her continued employment.

10. Has the Compléinant taken any action to resolve the issue(s)? If yes, please specify.
Complainant has filed discrimination complaints in an effert to bring about correctzve
action.

11. Remedy or corrective action desired by Complaihant:

1. Cease and desist workplace harassment and discrimination.
2. Granted promotion with applicable backpay/seniority, ~
3. Reassignment to another comparable position with department.

12. Isthe Complainant willing to participate in an informal resolution process? ~ Yes Xl No 3

Completed by:
' LUO, | - /07/5/55’
EEQO Staff Signature - B : - Date
%mm oreedeev 204 i
Complainaft’s Signature ' Date

1.:Share/EECQ/RevisedProcedures2000/ChargeofDiscrimination Reviged Septembler 20600
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City and County of San Francisco

Gavin Newsom
Mayor

December 10, 2008

Department of Human Resources
Micki Callahan
Human Resources Director

San Francisco Intemational Airport
c/o Mr. John Martin, Director

P.O. Box 8097

San Francisco, CA 94128

RE: Notification of Charge of Discrimination and Reqﬁest for Information
Complainant: Sonya Knudsen
EEQ File No.: 1371

Dear Director Marfin:

A complaint of emploj,ment discrimination has been filed against the Respondent
Department by Ms. Sonya Knudsen. - The Charter of the City and County of San
Francisco provides that the Human Resources Director shall review and resolve all
allegations of employment discrimination. I have been assigned to investigate this
complaint and my role as an investigator is to act as an objective third party, representing
neither the complainant nor the party charged with discrimination.

- - - - - A.- .- Notification of Charges [

Ms. Knudsen is a permanent exempt 3546 Curator IV Wlth the Airport Museums. Ms.
Knudsen filed a complaint of discrimination in March 2008 against the Airport Mussums
alleging denial of accommedation. In July 2008 the Human Resovwrces Director
determined that there was insufficient evidence to support the charge and Ms. Knudsen

filed an appeal of the Human Resources Director’s determination with the C1v11 Service
Commission, which is currently pendlng

Ms. Knudsen is aﬂegmg that the Airport Museurns has subsequently retaliated against her
for filing her previouns complaint and current appeal. Ms. Knudsen alleges that she has

been harassed and denied promotion in retaliation for her prevmus complaint and current
appeal (See enclosed).

B. Request for Information and Departmental Respense

In order to investigate this complaint, we request that the following information be

provided within 15 business days. Therefore, we request a response no later than
January 2, 2009,

1. Respondent’s Response to the Charges

Please respond to the allegations of the co ]ﬁ; as stated above, fo the extent the
Department is presently knowledgeable ab ﬁ e matters. This response should :
include the Department’s answer to the specific allegations, as well as any relevant =~ .. .~
evidence, such as records or documents that support the Department’s Tesponse.

44 Gough Street, San Francisco, CA 94103-1233 « (415 5574800 = www sfaov.ora/dhr -



. Knudsen, Sonya vs. SFO

EEQ File No. 1371.
Page 2 of 3 -

Please keep in mind that the Department should not conduct its own investigation to _
~ respond to the allegations. In particular, the Department should not interview Mr. Blake
Summers or Ms. Kathie Smookler regarding the allegations, but should only respond to
these allegations to the extent that management was made aware of these allegations.

2. . Witnesses for the Department

Please provide-a list of witnesses that the Departiment requests o be interviewed on its
behalf. ' - '

3. Reguest for Information |

a. Please identify the essential fiinctions of Complainant’s position prior to March
2008. ,
‘b, Please identify any subsequent changes t6 Complainant’s essential fanctions

subsequent to March 2008, If there was a change to Complainant’s assigned duties
and/or functions, please explain the reason(s; for the change.

c. Please identify if Airport Museums Chief Curafor Blake Summers has made any
(922 Manager I appointments from March 2008 to the present.

If so, please identify the selection process used for the 0922 Manager I
appointments in detail ' '

Please mark all information sent in response to this request “Confidential” on the mailing
envelope. | '

4, | Scheduling of Interviews

We request your assistance in scheduling interviews with:

a Mr. Blake Summers '

b. Ms. Kathie Smookler

c. Mz. Timothy O’Brien.
We request your assistance in scheduling these interviews during the week of January 12,
2009 at the EEQ Office. As the investigation progresses, we may need to schedule
further witness mterviews.

- Important Reminders

Please remermber that the information in this request is sensitive and that management
- should use professional discretion with régard to these allegations. In addition,
management should be reminded that any form of retaliation against an employee for
making a complaint of discrimination or participating in this investigation is stmctly
prohibited by law.

We remind all those mmvoltved in complaints of discrimination that the process of
evaluating the merits of the charggs,p@inforces@aﬁ?n?mployee’ s right to a workplace free



Knudsen, Sonya vs. SFO
EEOQ File No. 1371
Page 3 of 3

of discrimination. Therefore, allegations should not be considered as personal attacks but
management opportunities to demonstrate 2 commitment to such a working environment.

The Complainant has indicated that she may be interested in mediating her complaint of
retaliation. Mediation offers the parties an opportunity to resolve complaints with the

assistance of a neutral, trained professional. Please let mé know if the Department is
interested in mediation.

Should you have any qv:estions about the complaint process or this request, please do not
hesitate to contact me at 415 557-4855. Thank you for your assistance.

S

Sincerely, - M |
%&E{DS ¢ Z S
EEO Investigator

Enclosures:

Letters of Complaint- 7/11/08 (with attézhmcnts)
Charge of Discrimination- 12/8/08

cc: Dorothy Yes

Gloria Louie, Airport EEQ Manager
file



CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO'  DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN RESOURCES

. CHARGE OF DISCRIMINATION
(To be Completed by EEO Staff In Consultation with Complainant}

1.  Name of Complainant: Sonva Knudsen :
© - Address: o _ Work Phone.: 650-821-6726
 Home Phone: T

2. Respondent Departmént: SF International Atrport . _
: ‘ Worksite: SF Airport Museums ‘ ' Telephone No.: 650-821-6700
Address: SF International Airport, PO Box 8097, San Francisco, CA 94178

3. Complainant’s Current Employment Status (circle one):  Classification: PEX 3546
pCS TCS LT NCS PV PC TIE FROB NOTA CITY EMPLOYEE '

4, Rasis of Discrimination (specify). 5. Issue complained oft
d Race: ' ' 01 - Denial of Employment
O Color -1 Denial of Training
O Religion: X Denial of Prometion
O Creed: O Denial of Reasonzble Accommodation
U Sex ' 1 Termination
O National Origin: O Lay-off
& Ethmcity: O Constructive Discharge
O Age: : O Disciplinary Action
O Disability/Medical Condition: ‘Harassment
(I Political Affiliation: ' O Work Assignment
3 Sexual Omentation: O Sexual Harassment
L Ancestry: | 3 Compensation
@ Marital or Domestic .3 Other (please specify):

Partner Status:

O Gender Idenfity:
1 Parental Status:
O  Other Non-Merit Factors:

X - Retaliation: -

6.  Has the Complainant filed the complaint with any other local, state or federal agency? Yes 1 No
- I yes, please specify: ‘

7. Has the Complainant filed a grievance or lawswit? - Yes O No
If ves, please specify: :

8. Is the Complainant represented by a U;xibn oT an Attomey? o . Yes NolQd
Name: Steve Pitocchi - Organization/Firm: SEIU Local 1021

Address:350 Rhode Island St.. S!_Jite 100 So.Bldg.. SF Phone No.: _415-848-3641

= 2 ?9 STy T :,:,_“ .




10.

1L

12.

Completed by:

EEO Staff giguaturc

Describe specifically and in detail the circumstances of the alleged discrimination.
Please include date(s) of adverse employment action(s).

* Tn March 2008 Ms. Senya Knudsen filed a discrimination complaint against manager,

Mr. Blake Summers, Director/Chief Curator-SF Airport Museams for November 2007

‘denial of reasonabie accommodation. EEO informed Summers of complaint; Summers

refused mediation June 2008, July 2008 DHR Director determination: insufficient
evidence to support the charge; Knudsen filed appeal with Civil Service Commission.

Due to March 2008 complaint filing Summers subjects Knudsen to harassment,
disparate treatment, and intimidation upon April 2008 fall-time return fo work; second
discrimination complaint filed by Knudsen against Summers in June 2008 re redefined
and restructured work assignments, excessive serutiny and interference, and denied
promotion (0922 Manager 1, from 3546 Curator IV). Summers’ comment, “why would
1 premote you, you haven’t been here this past year?”

Manager’s assistant, Ms. Kathie Smookler, on July 1, 2008 harasses, intimidates, and
physically blocks Ms. Knudsen, in lond and aggressive manner accusing Knudsen of ‘
undermining Summers. Following that, on July 9, 2008 Summers informed Knudsen of
Airport Facilities department complaint6 without providing details, and in a meeting in
his office behind eclosed doors, accused Knudsen of being a problem from day-one, of
having numerous complaints lodged against her, and of being “complaint-happy,”
denied Knudsen third party represeptation, saying “he wasn’t going there, like
mediation downtown.” Mr. Summers commented, “..don’t sit there all proper..”
knowing of Knudsen accommodation needs. Specifically, Mr. Summers linked the
complaints Knudsen filed with comment that she should resign, “...look at the number
of complaints you’ve filed, you’re unhappy, do you want to quit?” '

Since April 2008 return to work Knundsen has been subjected to discrimination,
harassment, intimidation, disparate treatment, and retaliation from Mr. Summers and
Ms. Smookler, working in an increasingly difficult, strained and hostile work
environment, with fear for her continued employment.

Has the Complainém taken any action to resolve the issue(s)? If yes, please specify.

Complainant has filed discrimination complaints in an effort to bring about corrective
action.

Remedy or corrective action desired by Complainant: :
1. Cease and desist workplace harassment and discrimination.
2. Granted promotion with applicable backpay/seniority. :
3. Reassignment to another comparable position with department.

Ts the Complainant willing to participate in an informal resolution prdcess? Yes X No Ul

m& B ' /efos

Dafe

. L-Share/EEO/RevisedProcedures2000/ChargeoDisarimination

Complainaft’s Signature - =~

Date | -

Revised Septomber 2000




CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO _ DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN RESOURCES

DEPARTMENT REPORT OF EMPLOYMENT DISCRIMINATION COMPLAINT .
_ * Report Within Five Working Days of Receipt of Complaint*

Return to: Dorothy Yee, DHR/EEO Division_,, 44 Gough Street, San Francisco, CA 94103

1. Department/W orksite-: ‘\f/fﬂ/ %7\/ oy AP W7 AW EytS SEANTL 41270,

2. Complalnant: \Srﬁf\[lfﬁf&:’fll/ﬁféf\/ Tel, No. (Work): é.ﬂj 72 é}j}é _
Address: - P _ Tel. No. (Home): - -
3. Complaint Filing Date: __//VUL7 2004
4. Complainant’s Curent Employment Status (circle one): Classification: 3, 577% .
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U Race: : O Denial of Employment
0 Color: O Denial of Training
0O Religion: 22 Deniel of Promotion
8 Creed: : O Denial of Reasonable Accommodation
O Sex: | - 3 Termination '
& Nationa! Origin: - Q Lay-off
[} FEthnicity: O Constructive Discharge
O Age: - O Disciplinary Action
' @ Disability/Medical Condition: _ X Harassment
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8. Has the Complainant filed a grievance or lawsuit regarding this complaint? ' Yestd No Ul

If yes, please specily:

9.  Isthe Complainant represented by a Union or an Attorney? Yesd No L1 .
Name: " Organization/Firm:
Address: |

Phone No.:

*10.  What steps does the department recommend be taken to address this bomplaint? (For instance,
investigation, alternative dispute resolution, dismissal)

*10a. Name and position of staff who will implement recommended steps:

il.  Completed by: Date:

Address: Tel. No.

*12.  Please notify DHR/EEQ in written form immediately upon resolution of this complaint.

*Subject to the Human Resources Director’s app%ovéi

HUMAN RESOURCES DIRECTOR REVIEW

| Complaint is assigned EEO File Number:

1 . Approve department’s recommendations for addressing complaint. Proceed and notify HR

Director of actions, findings, and recommendations for resolution.

0 Complaint is assigned by HR Director to:
+ and/or the following actions are to be taken:
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11 July 2008

Dorothy Yee

Manager, EEC Division

Department of Human Resources (DHR)
City and County of San Francisco (CCSF)
- 44 Gough Street :

San Francisce, CA 94103-1233

Harassment and retaliaion complaint re: Blake Summers, San Francisco Alrport Museums, San.
Francisco Intemnational Airport :

Dear Ms. Yee:

. By means of this lefter and aftached City and County of San Francisco (CCSF) “Department Report
of Employment Discrimination: Complaint” form | am filing an harassment and retaliation complaint
against Blake Summers, Director and Chief Curator, San Franciseo Alrport Museums, San Francisco
International Airport, regarding a 9 July 2008 meefing, inclusive of unwelcome and offensive condud,

verbal harassment, infimidation, slander, unsubstantiated accusafions, derogatory comments, denial
" of request for a third-party wiiness, and retaliation from previously filed discrimination complains.

On Wednesday, § July 2008, at approx. 2:45 PM, | was in my office on the phone when my
suparvisor, Bleke Summers, came o my doorway. Seeing that | was on the phone Summers
deparied. | was off the phone within 2 minute, and sought out Summers, first outside my office, and’
then in the Museums’ icading dock area, inquiring of Roman Korolev and Kelvin Godshall whether
they had recently seen Summers and if so, what direction he had gone. Both indicated that Summers
had reiumed to his office. -

| went fo Summers’ office, knocked on his door, and standing at his doorway was then asked by
Summers whethar | had a recent altercation with staf from the Alrport Facilifies’ Carpentry
department. Surprised at the question | replied no and asked why. Summers said he had recaived a
phone call from Peter Acton, Facilities Deputy Director, re a complaint received against me from the
Carpentry department, Summers again asked i | had an altercation, and what recent dealings | had
with Carpentry parsonnel. | explained that | had worked with two Carpentry staff on Tuesday, 8 July
2008, at the Museums’ West Field Road storage room re bolfing down sheiving units, and had been
on the phone briefly with Lamy Tuccio, Carpentry Supervisor, but hat there had been no incidents or
dificuliies. | said | had nat been at work on Monday, 7 July 2008, and that Roman Korolev had
worked with the Carpeniry people in the storage room that day. | said | had briefly worked with one

Carpeniry person the previous Thursday, 3 July 2008, when he had come by to assess the storage
bolting down shetves project, :

 then asked Summers if he had more details of the Carpmgif complaint, and Summers replied no. |
explained to Summers that | was surprised fo hear of thg Bizint, and that it was difficult to
* respond fc a complaint not knowing specific defails and what the complaint was about. Summers



. SONYA KNUDSEN

Knudsen harassment complaint against Surnmers
Page two, 11 July 2008 :

again asked if | had any altercation with Carpentry and | said no, but that | had received some good
news from Tuccio re the tension-wire cement floors in storage. | said to Summers that | found this
Carpentry complaint disturbing, and that it wes a repeat of & similar complaint that Summers had
brought forth in April 2008 received from the Electrical depariment, a dupilication of not having any
details or knowing who had lodged the complaint, how to reply or defend against faceless and
nebulous accusations. Summers said he had fold me back then to lay fow, not ask Faciities.

~ personnel fo do anything beyond what they were required to do, and to avoid altercations or putling
in excessive work orders. | replied fo Summers that | had been especially careful when inferacting
with Faciliies personnel thus was all the more surprised fo hear of the Carpentry complaint, but also

how difficult such complaints would make my job overseeing facility management responsibilities,
working with Facilifies personnel, efe, ‘ - : - '

| then asked Summers what he had said to Acton, whether he had backed me. Summers paused, :
- and then said he had a difficult fime supporting me given my repuiation for being difficult to work with,
not getting along with others, the patier of recent complainis | had recently filed. Summers then
askad me to come into his office and closs his door. What followed, in & private conversation that -
lasted approximataly ten minutes, was unweicome and offensive conduct and behavior from
Summers, inchusive of verbal harassment, infimidation, slander, unsubstantiaied accusations,
derogatory comments, denial of request for a third-party withess, retaliation from previously filed
discrimination complaints ~ all severe and pervasive harassment from Summers in an increasingly
hostile and abusive work relafionship and environment. | will provide furiher details in the
investigation process. After receiving a query from Summers re whether | was going to quit,
~ concluded the meeting by replying that | was not quitting, but quitiing for the day and would be at
work on Thursday, 10 July 2008, with a major project at Spruce warehouse to oversee, | then left the -
~ office at 2:00 PM in shock, deeply shaken, devastated, and offended by Suramers conduct and
behavior, driving directly info San Francisco to go to the SEIL Local 1021 office.

Sincerely, . .
W /WEVL,%’%. |
Sonya Knudsen | '

' attachment: CCSF Department Report-of Employment Discriminafion Complaint form

cc: Steve Pitocchi, SEIU Local 1021



CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO *  DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN RESOURCES

DEPARTMENT REPORT OF EMPLOYMENT DISCRIMINATION COMPLAINT
' * Report Within Five Working Days of Receipt of Complaint™

Return to: Dorothy Yee, DH’RIEEO Division, 44 Gough Stree‘é, San Franeisco, CA 94103
I, Department/Worksite: A FLANCL L) ARPAET MUSEWLS | SFNTLATELHKT

2. Complainant: \QN?/;’/@V:&(EE\/ Tel. No. (Work): &20 ﬁQZ/ é?-zé

Address: __ _ Tel. No. (Home): smww-rrr-ere -
‘chWWWEﬁW ‘ '
3. Complaint Filing Dater  _ L/ SHL :‘7 . 7 '
-4, Complainant’s Current Employment Status (circle one): Classification: 35 %é I

PCS TCS LT NCS PV PE TE TPROB NOTA CITY EMFLOYEE At

5. Basis of Discrimination (specify): o 6. Issie complained of:
J Race: o _ . 1 Denial of Employment
g Color ‘ 1 Denial of Traming
0 Religion: 2 Denial of Promotion
O Creed: ‘ ' 0 Denial of Reasonable Accommodation
0O Sex: _ (3 Termination '
O MNational Origin: _ O Lay-off
O Ethnicity: : [ Constructive Dischargs - , '
O Age: ' : %isciplmary Action /NAFFT ROARLGTE -
O Disability/Medical Condition: arassment
O Political Affiliation: 0 Work Assignment
00 Sexual Orientation: . O Sexua} Harassment
1 Ancestry: ‘ _ ‘ 3 Compensation
03 Marital or Domestic /E’ Other (please specify):

Parimer Status: . /Wﬂﬁféﬂ i 7\.[7(/7’7{/ 42 {/C],

T Gender Tdentity: ' : ,&'7— AELATION -

O Parental Status: _ :

0 Other Non-Merit Factors:
mataliation: ‘

7 Describe the circumstances of the alieged discrimination and include date(s) of adverse employment
action(s): (Attach letter of complaint) SEE ATTACHED CemPLANT (ETTEL
AHANST EATHE JA0NILER, RE TR ASCAENT  JNCLLTTVE
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g. Has the Complainant filed a gnevance or 1awsuit regarding this complaint?  YesO No QO

If yes, please specify:
9, Is the Complainant represented by a Union or an Attorney? . Yes 1 No O
Name: ' Organization/Firm:
© Address: - ‘ Phone No.:

*10. What steps does the department recommend be taken to address this complaint? (For instance,
investigation, alternative dispute resolution, dismissal) '

*10a. Name and position of staff who will implement recommended steps:

11. Completed by:
Address:

Date:
Tel. No. .

*12. P]ease notify DHR/EEO in written form immediately upon resolution of this com?laint.

*Subject to the Human Resources Director’s approval

HUMAN RESOURCES DIRECTOR REVIEW

Complaint is assigned EEO File Number:

o Approve department’s recommendations for addressing complaint. Proceed and notify HR
- Director of actions, findings; and recommendations for resolution.

(! Complaint is assigned by HR Director to:
~ and/or the following actions are to be taken:

R L LY. .~ 7. * S
" . —_— A
for Philip A. Ginsburg, Human Resources Director Date
L:Share/EEQYR evisedProcedurss2000/ReportofComplaint

Revised 2005




SQNYA KNUDSEN

11 July 2008

- Dorothy Yee _

Manager, EEO Division ‘
Depariment of Human Resources (DHR)
City and County of San Francisco (CCSF)
44 Gough Street

San Francisco, CA 94103-1233

Harassment complaint re: Kathie Smookler, San Francisco Airport Museums, San Francisco
International Alrport

Dear Ms. Yee:

By means of ihis lefter and aitached City and County of San Francisco (CCSF) "Department Report
of Employment Discrimination Complaint” form ! am filing an harassment complaint against Kathie
Smookler, Assistant fo the Direcior, San Francisco Alrport Museums, San Francisco International
Ajrport, with regard to a 1 July 2008 workplace situation, inclusive of verbal harassment,
inappropriate discipline, improper physical conduct, and retaliafion.

On 1 July 2008, in & private meeting in my office, Smookier harshly reprimanded and accused me of .
. planning & 4 of July Airport Museums statf barbegue without the involvement and knowledge of
Summers, using terms such as undermining, sneaky, disrespactiul, and planning behind his back.
Smookler accused me of placing another Museums staff member, Timothy O'Brien, in a “mediator
position” between Summers and myself, forcing O'Brien info an awkward pesition fo inform Summers:
of the barbecue, act as go-between. Smookier accused me of being blatantly unaware of how busy
O'Brien’s work schedule wes, and that he should not be bothered or involved in such a matter,

in fhis conversafion, Smookler was very angry and increasingly animated and unreasonable,
conveying that she fought | was disrespectful of and undermining Summers within the Museurns
work sefting. While we talked, on two separafe occasions | requested of Smookler to be aliowed to
depart my office, first to seek out O'Brien fo involve him so s 1o clear up misundersiandings, and
later, 2 second attempt, because | found her comments harassing, distressing, and-upsetting. Both
atiempts to leave my office were not possible as she blocked my way. '

There are additional details and subsequent meetings and encounters between Kaudsen and
O'Brien: Knudsen, O'Brien, and Smookler; Smookier, O'Brien, and Knudsen; O'Brien and Knudsen;
Knudsen and Summers; Knudsen and Smookler regarding e Museums’ 4t of July barbecue, all of
which will be provided in the investigafion. Please ncte the Museums'4h of July barbecue was
cancelled. - : ' ' S



SONYA KNUDSEN

Knudsen harassment complaint against Smookler
Page two, 11 July 2008

Smookler is the Assistant to the Direcior, Blake Sumimers, an ally quite close and a confidant fo him.
Because of her position, Smookler is privy to confidential matters such as filed discriminaiion
complaints thus my perception is that the 1 July 2008 situation is harassment and as well as
retaliation from an earlier fiied discrimination comptaint I'had filed against Summers, my Supervisor,

* Please no'e ihat | had aftempted io schedule a meeting with SFO-EEQ on 3 July 2008 to report the

above harassment incident and was told that | should amend my earlier discrimination complaint filed
against my supervisor, Blake Summers, due to a November 2007 event. Per advice received from
my SEIU Local 1021 union representative, | then contacted Sivia Casiellanos &t the DHR-EED office
1o request a meeting to file an oral report, and was instructed fo provide this written report.

Sincerely, QW/—‘ . |
- Somnya Knudsen ‘

attachment: CCSF Depariment Report of Employment Discriminafion Complaint form

co: Steve Pitocchi, SEIU tocal 1021
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December 31, 2008
VIA INFTEROFFICE MATL,

Silvia Castellanos

. DHR-EEQ Assistant Manager
City ané County of San Francisco
Department of Human Resources
44 Gough Street
San Francisco, CA 94103-1233

SUBJECT: Request for Information — Sonva Knudsen, 3546 Curator IV
DHR-EEO File No. 1371

Dear Ms. Castellanos:

The mformation enclosed is in response to the Request for Information submitted by

"~ the Department of Human Resources Bqual Employment Opportunity Division (DHR-
EEO) regarding the Charge of Discrimination filed by Sonya Knudsen, 3546 Curator
1V, on July 11, 2008. The Airport Commission subrmits the following response and
information regarding Ms. Knudsen’s discrimination complaint against the City and
County of San Francisco, Airport Museurns, based on retaliation (., denial of
promotlon and herassment).

Should you require additional information or have any questions, please do not
hesmate to contact me at (650) 821-3592.

Sincerely,

“Susan Kim
Assistant Manager

EEO Programs

ok Gloria Logie, EEC Director




DHR-EEO Request for Information
Knudsen, Sonya

EEO File No. 1371

Page 2 of 8

Respense to Complainant’s Specific Allegations Listed in the Charge of
Discrimination

I In March 2008 Ms. Sonva Knudsen filed a discrimination complaint against
manager, Mr. Blake Summers. Director/Chief Curator-SF Airport Museums for
November 2007 denjal of reasonable accommodation. EEO mmformed Summers
of complaint. Summers refused mediation June 2008. July 2008 DHR Director
determination: insufficient evidence to support the charge: Knudsen filed
anpeal with Civil Service Comnnssion. .

- On March 12, 2008, Ms. Knudsen filed a charge of discrimination against her
supervisor, Blake Summers, Director and Chief Curztor of the San Francisco Alrport
Museums (“Airport Museums™). In her complaint, Ms. Knudsen alleges Mr. Summers
wrongfully denied her accommodation in November 2007 by refusing to allow her to
return: to work on a part-time schedule. Based on the investigative findings, the
Hurnan Resources Director deterntined there was insufficient evidence to substantiate
Ms. Knudsen’s allegation and dismissed the complaint on July 29, 2008. Ms.
Knudsen subsequently filed a timely appeal of the Human Resources Director’s
determination on August 8, 2008, That appeal is now pending.

Mr. Summers states he met with Silviz Castellanos, DHR-EEQ, regarding Ms.
Knudsen’s November 2007 complaint. During that meeting, it was agreed mediation
would likely be unsuccessful and alternative dispute resolution was not pursued amny
further. :

IF. Due to March 2008 complaint filine. Summers subiects Knudsen to harassment,
disparate treatment, and intimidation upon April 2008 full-time refurn fo work;
second discrmination complaint filed by Knudsen against Summers in.June
2008 regarding redefined and restructured work agsignments, exgessive scruhiny
and interference, and denied promotion (0922 Manager I, from 3546 Curatox
IV), Summers’ comment, “Why would I promote you, you haven’t been here

this past vear?”

The Airport Commission denies Mr. Summers has, at any time, subjected Ms.
Knudsen to harassment, disparate treatment, and/or intimidation. The Airport
Commission also denies Ms. Knudsen’s charge that Mr. Summmers subjected her to
excessive scrutiny and interference, wrongfully restructured her work assignments, or
that he unlawfully denied her promotion. '

Ms. Knudsen’s main fumction as Curator IV in Charge of Administrﬁt’ion 1s to perform

spectal projects and duties, as assigned. Thus, her particular assignments can vary,
depending on the department’s needs.
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From March 2007 to present, the majority of Ms. Knudsen’s assignments have
remained the same and are ongoing. During her leave of absence, however, certain
projects requiring immediate attention were reassigned to other Airport Museums
staff. Barbara Geib, Curator in Charge of Registration, was assigned four of the eight
reassigned tasks. These tasks were: creating the Risk Management monthly insurance
report, overseeing FAMSF Congervation invoice administration, and creating -
exhibition schedule updates on both excel and on Pﬂemaker All are ongoing
assignments which Ms. Geib continues to oversee.

Mr. Sumsmers assigned Roman Korolev, Museum Preparator, three of Ms. Knudsen’s
projects during her leave of absence. Two of these projects were completed upon
Knudsen’s retumn to work. The Kids® Spot repairs is'an ongoing assignment which
Mr. Korolev continues to oversee. The remaining assignment, the Arts Commission
maintenance installations project, has been assigned to a new employee hired
specifically to manage this project.

In addition to the eight reassigned tasks/projects, Mr. Summers assigned Ms. Krudsen
four special projects upon her return to work in April 2008: 1) coordination of the
storage move from the Spruce Street warehouse location; 2) management of the data
migration filemaker database; 3) management of the collection appraisals request for
qualifications; and 4) implementation of the collection appraisals. All projects, except
for the completed Spruce Street storage move, are ongoing and are currently being
performed by Ms. Knudsen. No “restracturing” or further changes have been made to
Ms. Knudsen’s work assignments since her return: to work.

According to the Airport’s records, Mr. Summers has not made any (0922 Manager [
appointments since 2006, In May 2006, Mr. Summers appointed Abe Garfield from a
class 3547 Curator V, to a lateral Manager I, Assistant Director of Exhibitions.

III.  Manager's assistant, Ms. Kathie Smookler. on July 1. 2008, harasses,

' intimidates. and physically blocks Ms. Knudsen in loud and aggressive manner
accusing Knudsen of undermining Summers. Foliowing that, on July 8, 2008,
Surnmers informed Knudsern of Airport Facilities department complaints
without providing details. and in a meeting in his office behind closed doors.
accused Knudsen of being a problem from dav-one, of having numerous
complaints lodeed against her. and of being “complaint-happy.” denied
Knudsen third party representation, saving. “he wasn’t going there, like
mediation downtown.” Mr. Summers commented, “...don’t sit there all
proper...” knowing of Knudsen’s accormmodation needs. Specifically, Mr.
Summers linked the complaints Knudsen filed with comment that she should
resion, “...look-at the number of complaints vou've filed, vou're unkappy, do
vou wanf to quit?” '




 DHR-EEQ Request for Information
Knudsen, Sonya

EEQ File No. 1371

Page 4 of &

Charge of IHarassment against Kathie Smookler _

During the week of July 1, 2008, Timothy O’Brien, Curator ITT, approached Mr.
Summers about a 4% of July barbecue being coordinated by Ms. Knudsen. O’Brien
felt it was important the Museums Director be made aware of plans involving his
department, even though Knudsen had offered to purchase all the food for the
factivitics. Kathie Smookler, Executive Secretary to Summers, was also present
during the conversation. ‘

O’Brien informed Summers that Knudsen had approached him earlier, requesting that
O’Brien grill meat for the barbecue. O’Brien asked Summers for his approval to gnil.
While Summers and Smookler had no previous knowledge of the planning of this
event, Summers’ response 1o O’Brien was, “I guess s0.”. During the interaction,
Smookler asked O’Brien if he wished to grill the food, as requested by Kpudsen, and
O’ Brien responded, “not really.” O’Brien states that while he normally would not.
have volunteered to participate as the event’s cook, he felt it was not 2 huge
imposition to do so. Both Smookler and Summers were not scheduled to work on the
day of the event.

On the following day, Smookler was approached at her desk by Barbara Geib. Geib
ctated to Smookler, “They’re plenning the party now.” Smookler then approached
Knudsen in her office regarding the event. While Smookler does not deny using the
words “undermining,” and “disrespectful,” during ber interaction with Knudsen, she -
states the point of the exchange was 1ot to harass or intimidate Knudsen, but to
communicate the importance of keeping the, Museums Director abreast of any plans
involving his department. Smookler stated to Krudsen that she should have shown
greater respect for Summers by informing him of any plans for a party, rather than
coordinating for a staff luncheon during his absence.

Smookler was upset that Knudsen had tzken it upon herself to coordinate the event
without involvernent of the entire department. She points out that in the past, some
individuals have been excluded from the planning of holiday parties and, thus, would
often not know of the event’s occurrence until the day of. During her exchange with
Knudsen, Smookler voiced that she felt it was inappropriate for Knudsen to recruit
O’Brien to grill meat, as he clearly had not volunteered for the job and had more |
pressing work obligations to attend to.

Smookler admits she was upset during her interaction with Knudsen and that she stood
in the doorway when Knudsen got up from her desk to leave the room. This action,
‘however, was Smookler’s attempt to discuss the situation openly, rather than rymg to
avoid the matter. At this time, Smookler communicated several fimes to Knudsen that
she simply wanted to talk to her. :

Knudsen departed the office to confront O'Brien. According to O Brien, Knudsen
was upset as she described the exchange that had just occurred between her and
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Smookler. O’Brien suggested they meet with Smookler to clear up any
misunderstanding. Both he and Knudsen approached Smookler. O’Brien stated to
both of them that he no longer wished to participate in the barbecue and that he would
teel more comfortable if, in the future, the planning of staff parties came from
Summers’ directive only. Smookler politely apologized to Knudsen for any confusion
and the matter appeared to be resolved according to O’Brien. The followmg day,
Smookler was informed the party had been cancelled

The Airport Comumission denies the July 2008 interaction between Ms. Smockler and
Ms. Knudsen subjected Knudsen to harassment.

Charge of Harassment and Retaliation agamst Blake Summers

In July 2008, Mr. Summers had a meeting with Ms. Knudsen to inquire about her
recent interaction-with Atrport Facilities staff, particularly staff from the Carpentry
section. During this meeting, Summers asked Knudsen if there were any incidents to
report regarding her recent work with the carpenters. Summers explained to Knudsen
that he had received a complaint from Peter Acton, F acilities Deputy Director,
regarding her most recent inferaction with the Carpentry staff. Knudsen was not
supplied specific details of the complaint, such as who reported the incident to Acton.
Summers feli the situation may be aggravated by Kaudsen’s attempt to perscnally
confront the carpenters about the complaint.

Summess was informed that Knudsen had made some unwelcome statements to the
carpenters and had acted rudely in her interaction with them. Summers does not recali
verbatim the statements reportedly made by Knudsen, but does recail Acton reporting
- that Knudsen referred to the Museums department as “my house” in her. conversation
with the carpenters. Additionally, it was reported that Knudsen, in referencing the
electric carts used by the carpenters, stated to them, “I’ll write a letter to John Martin
~ (Airport Director) to get you 2 bigger car.” After receiving this information, Summers
felt it appropriate to meet with Knudsen, communicate the department’s receipt of this
complaint, and allow Knudsen an opportunity to present her side of the exchange.
Knudsen denied any negative interaction with the Carpentry staff.

Knudsen inquired as to whether Summers came to her defense during his conversation
with Acton and, according to Summers, became upset upon learning her actions were
not defended by Summers. The Carpentry Shop complaint, however, had not been the
first complaint received by Summers regarding Knudsen’s abrasive interactions with
Facilities staff. Several months before the carpenters’ complaint, Acton informed
summers that Eleciric Shop staff were upset, cornplaining Knudsen acted very
“bossy” and rude during their interactions with her. Staff stated Knndsen often
demanded her work requests be attended to immediatelv, without consideration of
other priority assignments.

After receiving the Electric Shop’s complaint, Acton stated to Summers he did not
L :ﬁ‘ "
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appreciate Knudsen’s mistreatment of his staff. He stated that while his staff would
gladly continue {0 complete assignments for the Afrport Museums, Knudsen should
not directly coordinate these projects and interfere with the work to be performed.
Summers then commumicated to Krudsen that she should “lay low” by not demanding
Facilities staff to perform work beyond what is required of them. Several months
Jater, the carpenters’ complaint was recetved. : ‘ ‘

The purpose of Summers’ Fuly 2008 exchange with Knudsen was not to subject her io
verbal harassment and/or intimidation, but to obtain information about her recent
interaction with the carpenters, Summess does not recall discussing mediation during
this meeting, or making any inappropriate statements referencing Knudsen’s need for
disability accommodation. White he inquired as to whether Knudsen was happy at her
job, he does not recall accusing Knudsen of beng “complaint-happy,” as alleged.
Gummers did remind Knudsen of his earlier directive to her to request only that work

which Facilities staff were required to perform. -

Mr. Surnmers’ paramount concesn has been, and continues to be, that the Airport
Museums meaintain its ability to atilize the services of the Faciliies Division and retain
its positive working relationship with the crafts staff. The Alrport Commission denies
Ms. Knudsen’s charge that Mr. Summers has subjected her to harassment 2nd
retaliation. :

V. Since April 2008 return to work. Knudsen has been subijected to discrimination.
' harassment, intimidation, disparate treatment, and retaliation from Mr.
Syurrmers and Ms. Smookler, working in an increasingly difficult, streined and
hostile work environment, with fear for her continued employment.

The Airport Commission wholly denies Ms. Knudsen’s charge that it has taken actions
subjecting her o discrimination, intimidation, disparate treatment, and/or retaliation.
At no time has Ms. Knudsen been subject to harassment, nor has she been wrongtully
denied promotion, as aileged in her complaint. ‘ '

Witnesses for the Department : _
The following witnesses may have relevant information for this investigation:

+ Blake Summers, 0933 Director and Chief Curator

« Kathie Smookler, 1452 Executive Secretary It

» Timothy O’Brien, 3544 Curator I

«  Abe Garfield, 0922 Manager [, Assistant Diirector of Exhibitions
« Peter Acton, Assistant Deputy Director, Facilities '

29%
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Regquest for Information

1.

Please see Attachment A for a list of the essential fimctions for Ms. Knndsen's
3546 Curator I'V position. A general job description with important and
essential duties for a Curator IV has also been attached. (See Attachment B)
Please note the Airport Museums presently employs three (3) 3546 Curator
IVs, each with independent responsibilities: Curator in Charge of Aviation
(John Hill}; Curator in Charge of Registration (Barbara Geib); and Curator in

Charge of Administration and Museums Programs (Sonya Knudsen). As

Curator in Charge of Administration and Museums Programs, Ms. Knudsen
perionms special assignments and related duties. - '

There have been no changes to Ms. Knudsen’s essential fimctions as identified
in Attachment A. While Ms. Knudsen’s duty to perform assigned projects has
remained the samne, some changes have been made to her particular work
assignments after March 2008. As explained above, upon her retumn to full-
time work in April 2008, Mr. Summers assigned Ms, Knudsen four special
projects: 1) coordination of the storage move from the Spruce Street
warehouse location; 2) management of the data migration filemaker database; -
3) management of the collection appraisals request for qualifications; and 4)
implementation of the collection appraisals. Projects 2-4 are ongoing and are
currently being supervised by Ms. Knudsén, while the Spruce Street storage
move has been completed. Bight of Knudsen’s assignments were also
reassigned to other Museums staff during her leave of absence, as these
projects required immediate attention. Among these, two projects were
completed upon Knudsen’s return to work. The remaming six projects are
ongoing. (See Attachment C for a written description of Knudsen’s
past/present work assignments and Response II for greater detail)

. According to Airport Human Resources, Blake Summers has not made any

0922 Manager I appointments from March 2008 to present. :

Scheduling of Interviews - : :
The Arrport’s EEG Unit will gladly assist in the scheduling of interviews with Blake
Summers, Kathie Smookler, and Timothy O’Brien during the week of January 12,
2009. The foregeing parties have been notified. Please contact Susan Kim at (650)
821-3592 with a tentative interview schedule for further coordination. :
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Referenced Documents

The following re'ferencad documents have been attached:

Attachment A: Bssential Functions for Ms. Km;dsan s 3546 Curator IV Posmon.
Attachment B:  General 3546 Curator IV Job Descript tion.

A‘ctachiﬁent C. Listof Knudsen s onszomg WOTK asszgnments and noLed project
© changes post March 2008.
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ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS GUIDE

Eor each essential function listed, please check if this person can perform that function, with or without
accommodation, or not at all. If you mdicate that an accommodation is needed, please specify the accommodation.

Name of Employee: _Sonva Knudsen |
Class _3546 Title Curator IV Department Museums
Work Shift, if applicable: § hours/day, 40 hours/week '

General Description of Position:

Under general administrative direction, plans and directs the activities of a special department of

the museun; plans, assigﬁs and supervises the activities of subordinate personnel engaged in assisting
with such work: and performs related duties as required. Requires responsibility for: developing,
coordinating and carrying out policies and procedures relative to the operations of special phases
of museum activities; making regular personal contacts with outside orgauizatidﬁs, professional
personnel and the general public in connection with assigned museurn activities and operations;

preparing and maintaining operational records and reports relating to the assigned activities.

Essential Func_tion Ahle to Perform | Able to Perform | Unable to
' | without an with an Perform with or

accommodation. | accommodation. without an
' (Identify Below) | accommodation.

1. Sitting, 5-6 hours daily

2. Walking, 1-2 hours daily

3. Standing, 1-2 hours daily

4. Repetitive Use of Hands: dominant hand (either
lef/right) — up to 6 hours daily; non-dominant hand
- up to 4 hours daily; use of both left and right hénds '
- up to 4 hours daily; simple grasping of both right
& left hand, up to 2 hours daily; up to 2 hours daily
for both right/left hand — power grasping, fine
dexterity

5. G’résping; left/right/both (simple/light) —up to 2
hours daily; left/right/both (firm/strong) ~upto2 -
hours daily

6. Fine Dexterity: left/right/both —up to 2 hours
daily

7. Other Activities: Up to 2 hours daily — kneei'mg,'
bending over, reaching overhead, crouching, 299

| balancing, pushing or pulling, bending (neck)

8. Liftiﬁg or Carrying: Up t0 2 hours daily (10-25




1bs); up to 2 hours daily (26-50 1bs), though on-tare
ACCESIon

o, Job requires driving a motor vehicle {L.e., car) o -
meetings. .

10. Job requires working around office equipment
& machinery.

As to each essential function for which the individual seeks an sccommodation, please identify your recommended
accomrnodation.

['7 the undersigned health care provider, certify that the information I have provided regarding
the above-referenced individual is complete and accurate to the best of my kmowledge. I
understand that my cooperation is mnecessary for the employer to make an accurate
determination regarding my patient's reasonable accommodation request,

Health Care Provider's Signarure ' Date
Print Name ‘ . License No.
Phone Number - , Area of Practice
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City and County of San Francisco Class Specification Curator [V Page lof 2

Department of Human Resources

Curator IV (#3548 )

$35.16-842.72 hourly / $6,095.00-%7,406.00 monthly / $T3,138.00-$Sé,868.00 Yearhy

W

=
1

Y

= E{_ha'n Me whan 2 Job Opens for the above position{s)

Definifion

Under general administrative direction, plans and directs the activities of a special department of the museum; plans, assigns

anc supewiseé the activities of subordinate personne! engaged in assisting with such work; and perfonms related duties as
required. ‘

Requires responsibility for: developing, coordinating and carrying out poliicies and procedures relative to the operations of
special phases of museum activities; making reguiar personal contacts with outside organizations, professional personnet and
the generat public in connection with assigned museum activities and operations; preparing and maintaining operational records
and reports relating to the assigned activiies. : '

Examples of impottant and Essential Duties

1. Plans and supervises the instzilation of the museuT's collections; identifies, classifies and makes descriptions of works of art;
supervises the care and preservation of works of art. ' '

2. Concucts research in conhection with identifying and publicizing objecis in the colleciions; makes recommendations for
acquisitions. '

3. Plans and organizes loan exhibitiens; makes cost estimates; corresponds with lenders; designs and supervises installafions;
coordinates the instaliation of exhibitions with other museum personnel, assembles data and photographs for publicity and
prepares labels; compiles catalogues; prepares brochures.

4. Orders, classifies and catalogues art reference library books; maintains files of photographs, slides and other reproductions;

plans; éupervises and conducts programs of instruction in art and art appreciation for children and aduits; supervises, counsels
and instructs students in research study of the ruseum's collections and activities,

5. interprets the museum's coliections and exhibitians in all fields of art; lectures and conducts gallery fours; presents fadio and
television programs. :

6. Plans and prepares circulating exhibitions for ioan to other institutions; recommends on the loan of museum objects
requested by other institutions and furnishes photographs and other data for catalogues and publicity.

7. Organizes and supervises she work of voluntary assistants; corresponds and confers with scholars, spécialists and the public,
and performs cther miscellaneous ang reiated duties. ‘

Krowledge, Skills and Abllities

Requires considerabte knowiedge of. methods, techniques and pr’c%é}uggs invalved in the maintenance and care of 2 huseum



City and County of San Francisco Class Specification Curator IV . Page 20f2

collec-tion of fine arts; international art publications, ar, art history, and painting and decorative arts.

Reguires considerable ability to: teach and instruct art and art appreciation; speak and write effectively; deal tactfully and
courieously with the generat public and outside organizations and groups utilizing museum facilities; employ a fair reading
knowledge of German, French, italian and Latin. '

Exparience and Training

Reguires complefion of a four-year college or univer-sity with a baccalzureate degree, with major couise work i art history and
fine aris. :

Requires at least seven years of progressively responsible museun experience in the field to which assigned, including twe
years of responsible sUpenvisory experience; or an equivalent combination of training and experience.

Disasier Service Warkers

Alt City and County of San Francisco employees are designated Disaster Service Workers through state and jocal law
(Calfornia Government Code Section 3100-3108), Employment with the City requires the affirmation of a loyalty path to this
effect. Employees are required to complete all Disaster Service Worker-related training as assigned, and to return to work 2s
ordered in the event of an emergency.

CLASS: 3546 EST: ' REV: FORMERLY JOB TITLE: * REPLACES JOB TITLE:
FEOC: 2 MEDICAL: N
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Mar-07 Op Going Changes
Monthly activities report 20 Administration on going none
Monthly Insurance 1&port to Risk Mapagement _ lon going essiened to B Gieb during SK leave
Monthly Knudsen report t0 Summers o going Done
FAMSF Conservation invoice adminisiration on going assigned 10 B Gieb during SK leave
Proofread exhibition label copy on going none
Exhibition Schednle updates on Exoel o1 going 'assigned to-B Gieb during SK leave
Exhibition Schedule updates on Filemaker Pro on going assigned to B Gieb during SK leave
Assist with exhibition info to SFQ Public Affairs jon going none
Facility Maintenance of West Field Road/SFO on going none
Arts Commission maintenance installations @SFO|on going assiened to new employee hired specifically for this PU-TIES_IE
Bmployse onentation packet/sscurity alarm/keys |on going none
SFAM Collection Management Policy on going none
SF(O Emergency Operations Group imvolvement |om going none ]
SEAM Facility Reporis - SFO & WER on going none
Paintine of Mills Field Hangar 7 siding paneis complete -
Dieingtallation of Arts Commission O'Banion work compiete _
Kids' Spot repairs '~ |on going: assigned to R Korolev during SK leave
AAM reaccreditation prﬁ:pa.raﬁ ons on gouing nene
United Hub plane deinstallation for Pzint Dept. ‘
project complete
United Hub plane installation after Paint Dept.
project complietion complete
Resolve "Skyflights” insurance claim complete
ChemPack Emergency Procedural Plan complete
“|Electrical lights & timer imprevement to IT Cases |complete zssigned to R Korolev during SK leave
Resume HVAC reports for IT Cases on going noue
West Field R@. Tech Shop BVAC Dust Collestor complete
Recarpeting of West Field Rd Registration Area incomplete
Asguming responsibilities for West Field Rd. .
(WTFR) securify alarm system on going none
Cleaning & resealing of WER hallways on £0ing nong
Cleaning & resealing of WFR Mezzanine floors _ |on going none
SFAM Bimergency Plan for WER and SEQ sites|incompl e‘ta none
WER Boiler Room improvements complate
Painting perimeter of 670 West Field Rd. incomplete none
Spruce St storage inventory & relocation compleie
WFR building improvements/expension into
unused guadrant complets assiened to R Korolev during SK leave
8ince Mar-{8 On Going Changes
Bpmce St. stoTage move complete -
Eta migraﬁén Filemaker database oD going none (work assigned to B Summers during SK. leave)
LCcllectidn Appraisals RFQ \on going none (work assigned to B Summers during SK leave)
Enlemam Collection Appralsals on going none (work assigned to B Summers during SK leave) J
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SONYA KNIHDGER

e e e B B A LA S N L F

P e

I February Z00%

Ms. Silvia Castellanos

Assistant Manager, EEQ Division
Department of Human Resources (DHR)
City and County of San Franmsco (CCSE)
1 South Van Ness Avenue, 4° floor

San Francisco, CA 94103-1233

re; 23 January 2009 meeting
Dear Ws. CasteHanos:

Please note enclosed response to the DHR/EEO meeting of 23 January 2009 regarding
Mr. Sumnmers, related disparate treatment, dlSCI’lHL_[laUOI’l and retaliation.

Sincerely,
Sonya Knudsen | '

cc: Steve Pitocchi, SETU Local 1021

enclosure; Knudsen response to 23 Jan meefing, seven (7)pages
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The foliowing protected categories apply to Ms. Sonya Knudsen, 3546 — Curator IV, Curator in Charge of

Administration, San Francisco Aiport Museums (SFAM) San Francisco Intemnational Airport {SFO), City and County
of San Francisco (CCSF):

EMLA; disability; fiing a discrimination complaint; sex/gender; age
Ms. Knudsen was on approved CCSF FMLA sick Jeave for the following dates:
» 14 March — 1 April 2007, full-ime CCSF FMLA sick leave;
> 2 April - 8 June 2007, part-time CCSF FMLA sick leave;
> 8 June 2007 — 1 April 2008,'fulil—time CCSF FMLA sick leave;
> 26 August — 16 September 2008, fuliime COSF EMLA sick leave;
> 8 October — 28 October 2008, revised to 18 Novemberi— 9 December 2008, full-time CCSF FMLA sick leave
Upon her FMLA return o SFAM in April 2008, Ms. Knudsen was medically desigﬂated disabled with need for
reasonable accommodation; CCSF paperwork is on file, Ms. Knudsen is a quaiified individual with a disability as
defined by ADA, able to perform her essenial job responsibilities. '

Six CCSF discrimination complaints have been filed at DHR/EEO by Ms Knudsen, as fol!ows

¥ March 2008 vs. Mr. Blake Summers, Manager V, SFAM Director and Chief Curator, re November 2007 denial of
reasonable accommodation, inclusive of FMLA retum to part-lime work schedule at SFAM;

v

June 2008 vs. Mr. Summers re his actions from April to June 2008, inclusive of discrimination, harassment,
disparate freatment, change of job responsibiiities, denial of promotion; '

> June 2008 vs. SFO/EEO re their handling of March 2008 request for reasonable accommodation;

v

June 2008 vs. SFO/EEQ and DHR/EEOD re their handling of March 2008 discrimination complaint;
> July 2008 vs. Mr. Summers, re his actions on 9 July 2008, inclusive of retéiia'zion;
¥ July 2008 vs. Ms. Kathie Smookler, secretary to Mr. Summers, re her actions on 2 Juty 2008

Mr. Summers meets with Ms. Veronica Davis, Senior Labor Relations Analyst, SFO/HR, after receiving a certified
letter dated 23 November 2007 from Ms. Knudsen re their phone conversation of 16 November 2007 in which Mr.
Summers' denied Ms. Knudsen reqlest to retum to SFAM with reasonable accommodation:

»  November 2007

Ms. Knudsen and Mr. Steve Pitoset, SEEU Local 1021, requests fo DHR/EEC and SFOMR for temporary
reassignment of Ms, Knudsen from SFAM to SFO Risk Management:

> 17 September 2008,
¥ 24 October 2008

Ms. Knudsen has been subjected to a notable and consistent pattern of discrimination, disparate treatment, and
retaliation, and has brought these matters io the attention of CCSF, via formal discrimination complaint filings, _
comespondence, and mestings at DHR/EEC, SFO/EED, and SFOHR, requesting and seeking CCSF Administration
assistance, attention, and remedy to concerns brought forth, As of this writing, core issues and aspects have yet fo

Sonya Knudsen 02/01/09 response to Ms. Castellanos DHRJE%{@B/OQ mig, page 1 of 7



" be addressed by CCSF and are outstanding, inclusive of & CCSF Civil Service Commission appeal filed in July 2008.
The CCSF discrimination process has not adhered to CCSF policies and procedures, and has been inconsistent,
tedious, and profonged, far from sffective, responsive and fimely. Ms. Knudsen continues to work at SFAM, with her
supervisor, Mr. Summers, in an awkward, strained, and difficult environment, subject 1o unwelcome, offensive

- conduct that has been pervasive as to alter the condition of employment.

The examples that foliow are a comparison of Ms. Knudsen's Curator IV classification/position: before and after.per
FMLA leave: to two other SFAM Curator [V positions (Mr. John Hili, Curator-in-Charge of Aviation, and Ms. Barbara
Geib, Curator-in-Charge of Registration); and comparison fo all SFAN empioyees. SFAM is a small depariment at

~ SFO, and many positions and related job descriptions are unigue within SFAM but mirror those in much larger

| SEQ/CCSF departments, .., Administration, Facilities. ‘

Attendance standards

Ms. Knudsen's SFAM attendance standards were nof questioned or scrutinized prior fo April 2008. Ms. Knudsen has
atways adhered and exhibited refiable and consistent attendance standards, responsibly fulfilting her assigned work
schedule and hours, nor abusing or misusing sick leave, vacation leave, et al.. CCSF timesheets, computer-logs of
office building access via SFAM scan card, and performance evaluations confirm such, as well as an established
reputation at SFAM and SFO of working more than 2 full work day/week plus, inclusive of after-hours and weekends.

But since Ms. Knudsen's FMLA retum to full-time work in April 2008, Ms. Knudsen has been unduly scrutinized and
questioned by her supervisor, Mr. Summers, and his secretary, Ms. Kathie Smookler, regarding her fimesheets, use
of vacation leave and sick leave for medical appointments, FMLA requesis, et al. Unfike Ms. Knudsen, Mr. Hill and
Ms. Geib, as well as SFAM staff, are not heid accountabdle or obsarved fo such a degree.

Srom Ms. Knudsen's employment start at SFAM in 1897 to present, there has been and continues o be notable
misconduct, consistent misuse and abuse of, and lack of adherence to attendance standards by many SFAM

~ employees. Examples inciude SFAM empiovee sick and vacation leave abuse, work breaks and lunch-hour abuse,
timesheets not accurately refiecting actual ime worked, etc., with suspect administrative monitoring and '
enforcement.

~

Denial of Promotion

In 2006, Ms. Knudsen was promoted by Mr. Summers in name ofity, from Curator-in-Charge of Registrationto
Curator-in-Charge-of Administration, with addifionat duties and responsibilities, but the same Curator [V classification
rather than to Manager 1. At that time, Mr. Summers told Ms. Knudsen that he could not promote her in classification
and salary due o budget resiraints, and further, that if he promoted Ms. Knudsen it would be resented by Mr. Abe
Garfield, Assistant Director (Manager 1), and Mr. John Hil, Curator-in-Charge of Aviation (Curator [V), Mr. Summers
did say o Ms. Knudsen that he wouid incorporate a prometion into the SFAM budget, and Ms. Knudsen provided Mr.
Summers a preliminary CCSF JAQ and & spreadshest with job comparisons o other like positions within CCSF
system. : '

in May 2008, while preparing the monthly SFAM administrative report, Ms. Knudsen queried Mr. Summers abouta
fine item regarding promotions for the Manager | and Curator [V positions, and whether it applied fo her. Mr.
Summers' replied, “Why would | promote you, you weren't hers last year?,” an inappropriate comment fo Ms.
Knudsen on many fronts, especially as it is in violation of FMLA and ADA standards. This discussion with Mr.
Summers was not 2 mesting but a brisf, S-minute conversation. At no other time since has Mr. Summers initiated -
discussion regarding possible or future promotion.

On 23 January 2008, in a meeting with Ms. Sivia Casteliancs, DRR/EED, and Mr. Steve Pitocohi, SEIU Local 1021,
Ms. Castellancs provided Ms. Knudsen the department response tﬁ_@;@nbined June 2008 and July 2008
discrimination and retaliation complaints against Mr. Summers, Referring io the promotion complaint, Mr. Summers
had responded fo Ms. Castelianos that there was not a SFAM budgeted promotion for Ms. Knudsen, there wes no

Sonya Knudsen (2/01/09 response to Ms. Castellanos DHR/EEQ 01/23/09 mtg, page 2 of 7



merit for Ms. Knudsen fo be promoted, Ms. Knudsen had to request & promotion, and that the SFAM budgeted
position was for promoting Mr. John Hilt from Curator IV {o Manager | Mr. Summers’ statement regarding planned
promotion and pre-selection of a candidate from an applicant pool is a violation of CCSF policy, and also confirmed
Mr. Summers’ intent to promote Mr. Hill, not Ms. Knudsen.

Regarding merit, Ms. Knudsen was promoted by Mr. Surmmers in 1999 from Senior Museum Registrar {3558) 1o
Curator-in-Charge of Registration (3546 Curator [V}, In 2008, Mr. Summers promoted Ms. Knudsen from Curator-in-
‘Charge of Registration to Curator-in-Charge of Administration (both Curator V), with added responsibilities bui
without upgrades fo classification or salary. These promations were due fo Mr. Summers' acknowiedgment of Ms.

* Knudsen's notable SFAM coniributions and work product, meeting and exceeding all job responsibiiities and
assignments, fulfiling SFAM organizational need. in the 2008 promofion, Mr. Summers expected Ms. Knudsen to
assume added administrative responsibilities and maintain her responsibififies for the Registration depariment as
wall. Ms. Knudsen suggested that it would be dificult fo do two full-tme jobs. Ms Knudsen said to Mr. Summers that
Ms. Barbara Geib, to be promoted to Curator-in-Charge of Registration {Curator IV}, a department head capaciy,

shouid assume related responsibilities and assignments, and that Ms. Knudsen wouid provide assistance and
instruction. ‘

As SFAM department head of Registration, Ms. Knudsen interviewed and selected Ms. Geib for a Museuri Registrar
nosttion in 1957 Ms. Geib was promoted fo Senior Museum Registrar in 1999, then to Curator-in-Charge of

Registration in 2008, both positions previousty Ms. Knudsen's that became open and avaiiable when Ms. Knudsen '
was promoted. ‘ o

M. Hill has a long established reputation of missed deadtines and incomplete assignments, delaying and impacting
the SFAM exhibition schedule, nesding continual aid and support from SFAM staff to fulfill his responsibilities. Given
Mr. Summers' intent to promofe Mr. Hill, not Ms. Knudsen, it appears that SFO confinues fo have a bias benefitting
Caucasian males, especially in senior administrative staff posifions, with favoritism and promotion of individuals with
questionabie merit while excluding or penalizing gualified individuals, inclusive of those in protected categories.

Ms. Knudsen is currently ranked #1 on both the CCSF Manager | and CCSF Manager V1 lists, telling indication and
confirmation of her qualifications, skills, and experience. The Manager Vi position, Director and Chief Curator of
Airport Museurns, was a newly created CCSF position posted in November 2008 on a limited basis; save for Mr.
Summers, no one o1 SFAM staff seemed to know about it. Ms, Knudsen discovered the posting when she had gone
on the CCSF website to confirm application details for the Manager | position, and subsequently applied and met the
qualifications criteria for both the Manager | and Manager Vi positions.

Change of Responsibilifies

Brior to Ms. Knudsen's June 2007 to April 2008 full-ime FMLA leave, the following were some of her primary SFAM
duties and responsibiliies: :

> Facility management of 670 West Field Road (WFR) and all SFO SFAM exhibition and storage sites, inclusive of
capttal improvements and upgrades, working with SFAM, SFO departments (e.g., Architecture, Engineering,
Maintenance and Faciliies’ crafts), and ouiside vendors, issuing pertinent work requests, coordinating,
collaborating with, faciitating, and supervising personnel for timely project completion;

> Monthly SFAM administrafive reports;
Monthly SFAM risk management reporis re exhibitions and parmanent collection;

 Liaison to FAMSF Conservation re SFAM exhibitions, inciusive of managemert of scheduling, siaffing, budgsts,
supplies, invoices
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» Updates and maintenance of SFAM exhibition scheduleicalendar on FilemakerPro and Excel, providing
applicable reports;

» U'pdates nd maintenance of SFAM exhibition activity log on FilemakerPro and Excel, providing'applicéble
reporis;

» Updates and maintenance of SFAM coliection management FilemakerPro databases (exhibitions and permanent
coliestion), planning for database upgrades and migration info combined collection management system;

> Security and alarms, inclusive of maintenance, upgrades, and being on SFAM Emergency Call List for SFG,
* Fire, Police, EOG :

> Special projects and assignments (.., security and alarm system upgrades, member of Emergency Operations
Group; fawsuit re SFO-leased Buriingame office faciiity; lawsuit re-Kaslikowski exhibition ioan: re-roofing of 670
WFR, updating SFAM policies, updating American Association of Musesms' Facility Reports; relocation of
Spruce storage)

An employee returning from FMLA leave is entilled fo reinstatement to an equivalent position that must be virtually
identical to the employee’s former position (€.g., In pay, benefits, job duties). In March 2008, Ms. Knudsen submitied
to CCSF FMLA paperwork for refurn to work at SFAM in April 2008, inclusive of medical certification and request for
reasonable accommodation due to disability status, and also filed a discrimination complaint against Mr. Summers
with DHR/EEQ. Upon Ms. Knudsen's April 2008 FMLA retum fo SFAM, her job duties and responsibilities were not
the same, changed and altered in position scope, conditions, methodology, rank, and SFAM and SFO staff
interaction, with firrther restraints, censorship, and isolafion as a result. For example:

Facility management

\While faciiity managemert responsibiliies were the same, the manner and method in which Ms. Knudsen condusted
these responsibilities was hampered. Ms, Knudsen was fold by Mr. Summers (e.g., April 2008 and July 2008} that
she shouid not generate excessive work requests, not rock-the-boat, and that complaints had been received against
her. Mr. Summers did not describe or ciarify the alleged problems or provide details of the alleged complaints, and
did not provide a description of what changes/improvements was expecied, as is standard per CCSF policy. This
pattem of not providing clarfication and detalls regarding alleged problems duplicated Mr. Summers' actions of
November 2007 when he toid Ms. Knudsen that when she had worked a part-time FMLA schedule in April to June
2007, that it had been disruptive to SFAM staff and operations without providing explanation. Mr. Summers penalized
Ms. Knudsen by implying that she was at fault, stating that she had issued too many work requests, taking
assignments away (e.g., working with SFO Electrical re lighting improvements at [T wall cases), and necessitating
Ms. Knudsen to become especially selective and passive rather than proactive and involved when generating FOM
work requests and working with staff. ' :

SEAM risk management, exhibition scheduie, sxhibition activity log, cdnservation. gt al.

Mis. Knudsen handled risk management, exhibition schedule, exbibition acivity log, conservation, et al,
responsibifities when she was on & part-ime FMLA schedule in April fo June 2007. When Ms. Knudsen was on a full-
fime EMLA sick leave from June 2007 to April 2008, these responsibiliies were delegated to Ms. Barbara Geib,
Curator IV {Curator-in-Charge of Registration). Upon Ms. Knudsen's raturn in April 2008, Ms. Geib retained these
responsiniiities. -

By May 2008 Ms. Geib had three new staff registrars, recovering pesitions lost due'to budget cuts when Ms.
Knudsan was Registration depariment head (1987 - 2006). Even with additional staff, Ms. Geib has difficulty in-
managing the Registration depariment and fulfilling Ws. Knudsen's prior responsibiities. As a result Ms, Knudsen
provides ongoing assistance. ‘
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Collection Management FilemakerPro databases

Prior to Ms. Knudsen's 2007 FMLA leave, Ms. Knudsen had an ongoing, collaborative working relationship with Mr.
Summers regarding SFAM exhibition and permanent collection TilemakerPro database management, upgrades, and

_ improvements, coordinating and disseminating various aspects and details with SFAM staff, e.g., Regisiration. A ong
ferm goal to migrate via in-house nersonnel into an upgraded, exhibition and permanent collection-combined,
FilemakerPro database system was suspended well before Ms. Knudsen's FMLA leave.

Upon Ms. Knudsen's April 2008 FMLA refum fo SFAM, Ms. Knudsen found that SFAM was in the process cf
preparing for migration into an updated, combined coliection management FilemakerPro database, working with an
outside contractor. Mr. Summers instrusted Ms. Knudsen to.report to Ms. Barbara Geib, Curator-in-Charge of
Registration, and Ms. Julie Takatg, Librarian, ask them for priority ist and assignments, and keep them apprised of
her work progress. Such direction demoted Ms. Knudsen io a secondary, supportive role, often in the capacity of
filling in holes re information needs for the computer contractor, compiling key information and reparts (e.g., database

file and field structure and content) that would have heen better served provided in the initial pianning stages of
contracted work. L

" Currently, one of Ms. Knudsen's job assignments is FilemakerPro datascrub to prepare for projected Spring 2009
migration into a new database; Ms. Geib, Ms. Takata, and Registration, Library, and Curaterial staif have sporadically

heen working on dafascrub to prepare for database migration, concentrating more on exhibition and curatorial
responsibifiies. . :

Standards for Employee Conduct and Employee Discipiinary Actions

SFO, through its managers, supervisors, and various programs, atiempts to create a harmonious work environment
for its empioyees, administer personne! policies that are fair and equitable, and treat all employees with consideration
and respect. it is CCSF and SFO policy to deveiop and foster sffective communication between supervisors and their
employees regarding employes performance and conduct, with a consistent approach to employee discipling.

Prior to November 2007, Wr. Summers had not provided Ms. Knudsen any indication of concern regarding her
conduct and work performance; Ms. Knudsen's CCSF performance evaluations reflect consistent and exemplary
accomplishments and standards, But aiter Ms. Knudsen's March 2007 car accident and refated FMLA sick leave,

disability status, filing of discrimination complaints, etal., Mr. Summers had issue with Ms. Knudsen, altering the
terms and tone of her employment at SFAM. ‘ :

i November 2007, Ms. Knudsen was told by Mr. Summers that her request fo retum to SFAM in December 2007
with reasonable accommodations was denied. . This denjal was a contradiction o past SFAM precedent as many

staff had been accommodated in fike circumstances. Prior to and after November 2007 SFAM stafi accommodation
requests have been granied by Mr. Summers.

Mr. Summers aiso foid Ms. Knudsen in November 2007 that when she had worked a part-time FMLA schedule in
April to Jung 2007 it had been disrupfive to SFAM staff and operations. This statement surprised Ms. Knudsen as
she had never been informed of such during that Aprit to June 2007 period, verbally or in writing, and was now
hearing about it well after the fact, No expianation has been given to this point.

Ms. Knudsan sent a November 2007 letter to Mr. Summers réiterating their phone conversation. Upon receipt, Mr,
Summers mat with Ms. Veronica Davis, Senior Labor Relafions Analyst at SFO/HR, regarding the letter and was
informed hat he has not foliowed proper CCSF procedures, '

in April 2008 and July 2008, Mr. Summers verbally reprimanded and penalized Ms. Knudsen regarding separats
verbal compiaints that had been received against her from FOM Electrical and FOM Carpentry, respectively, and did
not provide Ms. Knudsen clarification or representatior, a thorough or informative description, or explanation of the
alleged issues, nor offerad suggestions or established eg agtgw plan to address the alleged concems brought forth.
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Mr. Summers did not implement CCSF disciplinary protocols, mest with either SFO/MR or SEIU Local 1021 regarding
the FOM complaints against Ms. Knudsen, nor was Ms. Knudsen involved in & formal empioyee progressive.
disciplinary process. Instead, Ms. Knudsen was seemingly judged and juried by Mr. Summers, without support or
adherence fo CCSF policies and procedures. '

" Ms. Knudsen met saveral times with Ms, Veronica Davis, Senior Labor Refations Analyst at SFO/HR, regarding
concems related to Mr. Summers, suppiementing DHR/EEQ meelings and carrespondence.

Protected Cateqories; FMLA, disability, discrimination complaint Hling., sexfoendsr, age -
While thers is managerial discretion to amend and alier employee duties and responsibilifies, such should fall within
reasonable parameters, be judicious and appropriate based on CCSF policies and procedures, employment and
labor contracts, organizational needs, and available resources. Ms. Knudsen's pesition and associated job duties
upon her April 2008 FMLA return shouid have been virtually idenfical to those that she had before her leave. Mr.
Summers disregarded or dismissed Ms. Knudsen's protected category status, changed her job duties, aktered and
adversely impacted the interaction and relationship Ms. Knudsen had with SFAM and SFO staff, and provided Ms.
Knudsen inconsisient and corficting direction regarding work duities and expectations. Given Mr. Summers’
discriminatory and retaliatory actions, and a relaied hostile work environment with disparate treatment, it was and
remains difficutt for Ms. Knudsen to confer with Mr. Summers for supervisory clarity and instructions. Ms. Knudsen
did sesk out aid and assistance from DHR/EEQ and SFO/HR in discrimination complaints, mestings and
correspondence, requesting assistance, support, intervention, and remedy regarding concerns brought forth.

Wir. Summers knew of the March 2008 and June 2008 discrimination complaints filed by Ms. Knudsen at DHR/EEQ
hecause on § July 2008 he accused Ms. Krudsen of being complaint happy, refusing her request for third party
representation, saying he “wasn't going there, like the request for mediation downtown.” This mediation reference
was regarding DHR/EEO investigation of the March 2008 discrimination compiaint and Ms. Knudsen's request for
DHR/EED mediation via Hasfings Schoo! of Law, which ¥r. Summers refused. The June 2008 discrimipation o
complaint filed by Ms. Knudsen against Mr. Summers had vet to be investigated by DHR/EEC, and Ms. Knudsen had
just received on 3 July 2008 the NHRIEED determination results regarding the March 2008 discrimination complaint.

In the meeting of 23 Ja'nuary 2009 regarding the combined June 2008 and July 2008 discriminafion complaints, Ms:
Castelianos stated Mr. Summers' position and reference o Ms. Knudsen as being a strong, abrasive personaiity
(rather than compstent and professional), conveying Mr. Summers’ gender stereotypes and personality preference.

In 2008, Mr. Summers denied Ms. Knudsen a promotion from Curator IV 1o Manager |, citing budget restraints and
#hat & promofien would not be well received by Mr. Garfield and Mr. Hill. Now in January 2009, Mr. Summers
indicated to Ms. Castelianos that there are no merits for Ms. Knudsen to be promoted, there is no budget allocation
for such, and that Ms. Knudsen should be asking for a promotion. In 2006 and 2008, also confirmed in a 2007 five-
year SFAM succession plan, Mr. Summers projects no infention of ever promoting Ms. Knudsen, despite Ms.
Knudsen's competence and qualifications.

WMr. Summers provided a five-year SFAM succession pian fo SFO Administration in December 2007, SFAM staft
promotions are projecied to be male only, evidence of workplace gender preference. Wr. Summers has intention to
promote Mr. Abe Garfield, a male Caucasian, from Manager | to Manager I, and Wr. John Hill, & male Caucasian,
trom Curator IV to Managar | When Mr. Hill is promoted fo the Manager | posifion, his previous Curator IV position ig
slated to be filied by & male Caucasian currantty on SFAM curatorial staff. Further, Mr. Kelvin Godshall, a male
Caucasian, was recently promoted from Senior Preparator fo Curator Il, part of the succession plan. By posting the
Director and Chisf Curator Alfport Museurns' Manager VI position on the CCSF website for such a short duration,
SFO Administration conveys an intantion fo promote Mr. Blake Summers, a male Caucasian.

There is 2 distinct CCSF and SFO bias favoring the employer rather than neutratity for both employer and employee
in the CCSF discrimination complaint process. D‘sscriminationgof;f?a‘mts filed by.Ms. Knudsen against Mr. Summers
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in March 2008, June 2008, and July 2008 remain outstanding, yet to be addressed or resolved by CCSF, while Ms.

Knudsen has worked in a discriminatory, hostile, and isolated work environment from April 2008 to present, despite
being in a protected category.

I the July 2008 meeting, Mr. Summers denied Ms. Knudsen's request for third-party representation, and proceeded
to intimidate and harass her with harsh, unprofessional, inappropriate, and unwelcome comments, further
discrimination and pointed retaliation against Ms, Knudsen for filing discrimination complaints. The actions and words
of Mr. Summers on 8 July 2008 were offensive ang teliing, indicating his established mindset and agenda, a
pronouncement of his desire for Ms. Knudsen to quit. The shock that Ms. Knudsen experienced in November 2007
when Mr. Summers denied her request to return to SFAM with reasonable accommodations was notable, Ms.
Knudsen wes further surprised and dismayed about Mr. Summers' professional behavior and actions since Ms.
Knudsen's FMLA return to SFAM in April 2008. But all paled in comparison to the adverse impact and distress Ms.

~ Knudsen felt after departing Mr. Summers’ office on 8 July 2009. Ms. Knudsen wes dismayed about the ongoing and

escalating acfions of Mr. Summers, concemed about her current and future CCSF employment.

Mr, Summers is on SFO Semor Administrative Staff and the SFAM Director and Chief Curator. As such, anyone
placad under him, in this instance Ms. Knudsen, is in & subordinate position, The CCSF and SFO faiiure to respond -
“and remedy in a timely manner fo the discrimination complaints that have been flled by Ms. Knudsen exacerbate and
compounds the issues brought forth. Mr. Summers' disregard and violation of CCSF policies and procedures, reiated
discrimination, harassment, inimidafion, retafiation, and disparate treatment of Ms. Knudsen is established, whether
comparing Ms. Knudsen to her status, job duties, and work environment before and after the 2007 FMLA lsave and
subsaquent protected categories from Aprit 2008 o present, o like Curator 1V staff, and to all SFAM staff.

Ms. Knudsen is in an awkward, untenable situation but has maintained a professmnai decorum, continues fo work
and fulfill her job responsibilities in exemplary manner. Ms. Knudsen has adjusted to a work sfyle forced upon her,
isolated from SFAM and SFO staff, in & secondary, supportive and passive role, waiting to be assigned projects by
Wr. Summers rather than volunteering and initiating project involvement, faciiity management, and day-to-day tasks.
There are 2 myriad of projects that need to be addressed at SFAM, and Ms. Knudsen's skills and experiise are not
 being fully ufilized by her supervisor o that end. Instead, Mr. Summers has and continues to penalize-and
discriminate against Ms. Knudsen despite her protected-category status. if a person is refafiated against due to

ralsing & good faith concem about discrimination, harassment, or disparate treatment, they shouid be protected, and
. a remedy provided.
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City and County of San Frarzc'isc_o Department of Human Resources

Gavin Newsom
Mayor

Micki Callahan
- Human Resources Director

February 12, 2009

San Francisco International Airport
c/o Ms. Susan Kim ,
Assistant EEO Manager
P.O. Box 8097

San Francisco, CA 94128

Re: Request for Additiopal Information - Knudsen. S. vs, SE Airport
EEO File No.: 1371

Dear Ms. Kim:

Following my interviews of staff on January 12, 2009, I met with the Complainant and her
representative on January 23, 3009 to review the department’s position and to review the
information gathered in my interviews of staff.

The Complainant has submitted a rebuttal statement dated February 1, 2009 (please see attached)

and at this time, [ am requesting that the department respond to this statement with as much
detail as possible. , -

Included in her rebuttal statement, the Complainant makes the contentions that the Airport
violated FMLA provisions when she returned to duty in April 2008 and found certain job tasks
reassigned; that Mr. Summers’ intention regarding 2 budgeted position for another Curator IV
employee violates merit system policies; that she was verbally reprimanded by her manager in
April 2008 and July 2008; that her manager applies gender stereotypes; and that the Airport

- favors Caucasion males. '

In addition to your response to the Complainant’s rebuttal statement, I am also requesting
essential function information for the Curator IV positions held by M. John Hill and Ms.
* Barbara Geib. ' '

Please provide this information by or before February 27, 2009 and please feel free to giveme a
call at 415 557-4855 should you have any questions. Thank you very much for your cooperation.

a Casielianes
HUMAN RESQURCES EEO

Enclesure

Sincerely,
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- GONYA KNIINQEN

e e

1 February 2009

Ms. Silvia Castellanos

Assistapt Manager, EEO Division
Department of Human Resources (DHR)
City and County of San Francisco {(CCSF)
1 South Van Ness Avenue, 4 floor

San Francisco, CA 94103-1233

re: 23 January 2009 meeting

Dear Ms. Castellanos:

Please note enclosed response to the DHR/EEO meeting of 23 January 2009 regarding
Mr. Summers, related disparate treatment, discomination and retaliation.

Sonya Knudsen
co: Steve Pitocchi, SEIU Local 1021

enclosure: Knudsen response to 23 Jan meeting, seven (7)pages
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“The following protecied caegornies éppiy o Ms. Sonya Kni}dsen, 3546 — Curator IV, Curator in Charge of.

Adminisration, San Francisco Aiport Museums (SFAM), San Francisco Intemational Airport (SFO), City and County
of San Francisco (CCSF): '

EMLA disabifity; fiing & discrimination complaint; sex/oender, age
Ms. Knudsen was on apprdved CCSF FILA sick leave for the following dates:
> 14 March— 1 Aprl 2007, full-fime CCSE FMLA sick eave; |
» 2 April- 8 June 2007, part-ime CCSF FMLA sick leave,
3 8 June 2007 - 1 Aprl 2008, fulk-fime CCSF FMLA sick leave;
> 26 August - 16 September 2008, ﬁ}lk—’ﬂ'me COSF FMLA sick isave;
» 8 Ociober — 28 October 2008, revised o 18 November — B December 2008, full-ime CCSF FMLA sick leave
Upon her FMLA ratum to SEAM in Aprit 2008, Ms. Knudsen was medically designated disabled with need for
reasonable accommodation; CCSF paperwork is on file. Ms. Knudsen is 2 qualified individual with a disability as
defined by ADA, able o perform her essential job responsibilifies. .

Six CCSF discrimination cormplainis have baen filed at DHR/EEQ by Ms. Knudsen, 28 follows:

% March 2008 vs. Mr. Rlake Summers, Manager V, SFAN Direcior and Chief Curator, re November 2007 denial of
reasonable accommodation, inclusive of FMLA return o part-fime work schedule at SFAM;

v

Juﬁe 5008 vs. Mr. Summers re his actions from Aoril o June 2008, inclusive of discrimination, harassment,
digparais freatment, change of job responsibilities, deniat of promofion;- ‘

June 2008 vs, SFO/EEO re thedr handfing of March 2008 request for reasonable accommodation,

>
> June 2008 vs. SFO/EED and DHR/EED re their handiing of March 2008 discrimination complaint;
»  July 2008 vs. Mr. Summérs, re his actions on § July 2008; inclusive of retafiation; |

>

Juiy 2008 vs. Ms. Kathie Smookler, secretary to Mr. Summers, e her actions on 2 July 2008

Mr. Surnmers meets with Ms. Veronica Davis, Senior Labor Relations Analyst, SFOIHR, after recelving a certified
ietiar dated 23 November 2007 from Ms. Knudsen re their phone conversaion of 19 November 2007 in which Mr.
Summers denied Ms. Knudsen request o return to SFAM with reasonable accommodation”

¥ November 2007

Ms. Knudsen and M. Steve Pitocchl, SEIU Local 1021, reuests fo DHR/EEC and SFOMR for femporary
reassignment of Ms, Knudsen from SFAM fo SFO Risk Management

S 17 September 2008;
» 24 October 2008

Me. Knudsen has been subjecied 1o 2 notable and consistent patiem of discrimination, disparate freafment, and
wetaliafion, and hias broaght these malisrs io the attention of CCSF, via formal discrimination complaint fiings,
correspondence, and meetings at DHR/EED, SEQ/EEQ. and SFOMR, requesting and seaking CCSF Administration

assistance, atfention, and remedy f2 concemns brought forth. As of this writing, core issues and aspects haya yetfo

318

Qenva Knndsen 02/01/09 response 10 Ms. Castellanos DER/EEO 01/23/09 mtg, page 1 6f 7



be addressed by CCSF and are ouistanding, inclusive of a CCSF Civil Service Commission appeal filed in July 2008,
The CCSE discrimination process has rot adhered fo CCSF policies and procedures, and has been inconsistent,
tedious, and prolonged, far from effeciive, responsive and fimely. Ms. Knudsen confinues o work ai SFAM, with her
supervisor, Mr. SUMMETS, in an awkward, sirained, and difficult environment, subject to unwelcome, offensive

conduct that has been pervasive as 1o atter the condition of employment.

The examples that foliow are @ comparison of Ms. Knudsen's Curator IV classification/position: before and after her
CMLA leave; Io fwo ofher SEAM Curator IV positions {(Mr. John Hitt Curator-in-Charge of Aviation, and Ms. Barbara
Gelb, Curator-in-Charge of Registration); and comparison fo all SFAM employees. SFAM is & small depariment at -
SFO. and many posifions and related job descriptions are unique within SFAM but mirror those in much larger
SFO/CCSF departments, e.3., Administration, Facifiies. ,

Attendance standards

Ms. Knudsen's SFAM attendance standards were not questioned of scrutinized prior to April 2008. Ms. Knudsen has
always adhered and exhibited reliable and consistent atiendance standards, responsibly fulfilling her assigned work
schedule and hours, nor abusing or misusing sick leave, vacation leave, &t ol CCSF timesheets, computer-logs of
office building access via SFAM scan card, and performance evaluations confirm such, as well as an established

reputation at SFAM and SFO of working more than a full work daylweek pius, inclusive of affer-hours and weekends.

But since Ms. Knudsen's FMLA reftum to fuliime work in April 2008, Ms, Knudsen has been unduly scrutinized anc
questioned by her supervisor, Mr, Summers, and his secretary, Ms. Kathie Smookler, regarding her timesheets, use
of vacation leave and sick leave for medical appointments, FMLA requests, of 2. Unlike Ms. Knudsen, Mr. Hilt and
Ms. Geib, as well as SFAM staff, are not held accountable or observed to such a degree.

Erom Ms. Knudsen's employment start at SEAM in 1997 fo present, there has been and continues o be notable
misconduct, consistent misuse and abuse of, and lack of adherence fo attendance standards by many SFAM
employses. Examples inciude SFAM employee sick and vacation lsave abuse, work breaks and lunch hour abuse,
smasheets not accurately reflecting actua fime worked, eic., with suspect administrative monitoring and
enforeement. ' ' -

Denial of Promofion

In 2008, Ms. Knudsen was promoted by Mr, Summers in name only, from Curafor-in-Charge of Registration to
Curator-in-Charge-of Administration, with additionat duties and responsibifities, but the same Curator IV classiiication
rather than to Manager | At that fime, Mr. Summers fold Ms. Knudsen that he cotid not promote her in classification

 and salary dus to budget resiraints, and further, that  he promoted Ms. Knudsen i would be resented by Mr. Abe
Garfield, Assistant Director (Manager 0, and Mr. John Hill, Curator-in-Charge of Aviation (Curator V). Mr. Summers
-did say to Ms. Knudsen that he would incorporate a promofion into the SFAM budgat, and Ms. Knudsen provided Mr.
summers a prelfiminary COSF JAQ and a spreadsheet with job comparisons fo other like posifions within GCSF
system.

n May 2008, white preparing the monthly SFAM adminisirative report, Ms. Knudsen gueried Mr. Summers about a
fine ftem regarding promotions for the Manager | and Curator [V posiions, and whether it applied fo her. Mr. '
Summers' replied, “Why would | promote you, you weren't here lest year?,” an inappropnaie comment o Ms.
Knudsen on many fronts, especially asitis in violation of FMLA and ADA standards. This discussion with Mr.
Symimers was not 2 meeting but a brief, S-minute conversation. A no other time since has Mr. Summers inifiated
discussion regarding possible or future promofion. ' '

On 23 January 2008, ina mesting with Ms. Sivia C-asjteﬁanosB)@iﬁ%EO, and Mr. Steve Piocst, SEIU Local 1021,
Mis. Castelianos provided Ms, Knudsen the depariment resporise To e combined June 2008 and July 2008
discimination and retafiation complaints against Mr. Summers. Referming o the promotion complaint, Mr. Summers
had responded fo Ms. Casieflancs that there was not a SFAM budgeted promotion for Ms. Knudsen, there was no
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merit for Ms, Koudsen fo be promofed, Ms. Knudsen had to request a promotion-, and that the SFAM budgeted
position was fof promating Wr. John Wil from Curator IV to Manager ( My, Summers’ statement regarding planned

sromotion and pre-sefection of & candidate from an applicant pool s & violafion of CCSF policy, and also confirmed
Mr. Summers infent fo promote Mr. Hill, not Ms. Knudsen.

Regarding meri, Ms. Knudsen was promoted by Mr. Summers iry 1900 from Senior Museum Registrar (3558) to
Curator-in-Charge of Registration (3546 Curator V). In 2008, Wr. Summers promoted s, Knudsen from Curator-in-
Charge of Registration fo Curator-in-Charge of Administration (both Curator 1V}, with added responsibilifes but
without Lpgrades io classification or salary. These promotions were due © Mr. Summers’ acknowledgment of Ms. -
Knudsen's notable SFAM contributions and work product, mesfing and exceeding all job responsibilifies and
- assignments, fulfiling SFAM organizational need. in the 2006 promofion, Mr. SUmmMers expected Ms. Knudsen to
assume added administrafive responsibilities and maintain her responsibiifies for the Registration department as
wel. Ms. Knudsen suggested that it would be difficult fo do two ful-ims jobs. Ms Knudsen said to Wr. Summers that
Ms. Rarbara Geib, fo be nromoted to Curator-in-Charge of Registrafion (Curafor V), a department head capacity, '

should assume related responsibilities and assignments, and that Ms. Knudsen would provide assistance and
instruction.

As SEAM department head of Registration, Ms. Knudsen interviewed and selected Ms. Geib for a Museum Registrar
position in 1987. Ms. Geib was promoted fo Senior Mussum Registrar in 1898, then fo Curator-in-Charge of

Registration in 2005, both posfiions previously Ms. Vrudsen's that became open and availabie when Ms. Knudsen
was promoted. ‘

Mr. Hili has a long established reputation of missed geadlines and incomple

te assignments, delaying and impacting
fhe SFAM exhibition schedule, needing confinual aid and support from SFAM staff fo fuifill his responsibifities. Given

Wir. Summers’ intent io promote K. Hilt not Ms. Knudsen, it appears that SFOQ continues 1o have a bias benefiting
Caucasian males, especially in senior administrative staff pesitions, with favoriism.and promofion of individuals with
questionable mert while excluding or penalizing qualified individuals, inclusive of those in protected categories.

Me. Knudsen is currently ranked #1 on both the CCSF. Manager | and CCSF Manager V lists, teiling indication and
confirmation of her qualifications, skills, and experience. The Manags! V1 posifion, Director and Chief Curator of
Airport Museums, was 2 newly created CCSF posifion posted in November 2008 on a fm

iied basis; save for Mr.
Summers, na one on SFAM st=f seemed to know about it Ms. Knudsan discoverad the posfing when she had gone

on fhe CCSF website to confirm application details for the WManager | pasifion, and subsequently applied and met the
qualifications criteria for both the Managsr | and Manager Vi positions. ' | '

Change of Responsibilities

Brior to Ms. Knudsen's June 2007 to April 2008 fuli-time

EMLA leave, fhe following wers some of her brimary SFAM
~ duties and responsibilities:

$  Fagility management of 670 \West Fisld Road (WFR) and all SFO SEAM exhibition and storage siies, inclusive of
- capital improvements and upgrades, working with SFAM, SFO departments (e.3, Architeciure, Engineering,
Maintenance and Facilities crafts), and outside vendors, issuing perfinent work raquests, coordinating,
collaborating with, faciitating, and supervising personnel for fimely project completion, '

5 Monthly SFAM administrafive reports;
»  Monthly SFAM risk management reports e oxhibitions and permanent collection;

> Liaison fo FAMSF Conservation re SFAM &

xhibitions, inclusive of management of scheduling, staffing, budgets,
_supplies, invoices ‘
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> Updatés and'main‘[enance of SFAM exhibifion schedulelcaiendér on FilemakerPro and Excel, providing
applicable reports; ' ‘

» Updaies and maintenance of SFAM exhibition activity log on FilemakerPro and Excel, providing applicable
* reporis;

» Updates and maintenance of SFAM coliection management FilsmakerPro databases {exhibitions and pefrnanent
collection), planming for database upgrades and migration into combined collection management system;

Y

Security and alarms, inclusive of maintenance, upgrades, and being o SFAM Emergancy Call List for SFO,
Fire, Police, EOG ' .

» Special projects and assignments (e.9., security and alaim sysiem tpgrades, member of Emergency Operations
Group; lawsuit re SFO-leased Buringame office facility; lawsuit re Kasiikowski exhibition loan; re-roofing of 670
WFR, updating SFAM policies, updating American Association of Museums’ Facllity Reports; relocation of
Spruce storage!

An employee retuning from FMLA leave is entifled to reinstatement o an squivalent position that must be virtually |
identical to the employee's former position (e.g., in pay, benefits, job duties). In March 2008, Ms. Knudsen submitied
to COSF FMLA paperwaork for return fo work &t SFAM in Aprit 2008, inclusive of medical certification and request for
reasonable accommodation due fo disability status, and also filed a discrimination complaint against Mr. Summers
aith DHR/EEC. Upon Ms. Knudsen's April 2008 ERLA return fo SFAM, her job duties and responsibiiities were not
tha same, changed and attered in posiiion scope, conditions, methodology, rank, and SFAW and SFO stafl
interaction, with further restraints, censorship, and isolation as & resuit. For example:

Facifity management

While facility management responsitilities were the same, the manner and method in which Ms. Knudsen conducted
these responsibilities was hampered. Ms. Knudsen was toid by Mr. Summers (e.g., Aprit 2008 and July 2008) fnat
she should not generate excessive work requests, not rock-the-boat, and that complaints had been received against
her. Mr. Summers did not describe or clarify the allegad problems or provide details of the alieged complaints, and
dig not provide a description of what chiangesfimprovements was expected, a5 is standard per CCSF poficy. This
pattern of not providing clarification and details regarding afleged problems duplicated Mr. Summers' actions of
November 2007 when he told Ms. Knudsen that when she had worked a par-ime FMLA schedule in April to June
2007, that it hag been disruptive to SEAM staff and operafions without providing explanation. Mr. Summers penalized
iis. Knudsen by implying that she was at fault, stating that she had issued too many work requests, taking
assignments away (g.g., working with SEO Elecirical re fighting improvements at 7 wall cases), and necessitating -
Wis. Knudsen to become espesially seleciive and passive rather than proaciive and involved when gengrating FOM
work reguests and working with staff, ' '

SEAM risk management, exiibifion schedule. exhibition activity log. consewéﬁon,. etal

Ms. Knudsen handled risk management, exhibifion schedule, exhibifion activity log, conservation, et al :
responsibilities when she was on 2 pari-fime FMLA schedule in April o June 2007. When Ms. Knudsen was on a full-
time FMLA sick isave from Jung 2007 to April 2008, these responsibifities were delegated fo Ms. Barbara Geib,
Curator IV (Curator-in-Charge of Regisiration). Upon M. Knudsen's retum in April 2008, Ms. Geib retained these
responsibifiies. , , T

By May 2008 Ms. Geib had fhree new siaff registrars, recovering posifions jost due o budget culs when Ms.
Krudsen was Registration depariment head (1997 - 2008}, Even with addiional staff, Ms. Geib has difficulty in-
marniaging ihe Registration depariment and fulfilling Ms. Krudsen's prior responsibiiities. As 2 result Ms. Knudsen
provides ongoing assistance. _
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Collection Management F%Iemake{‘r"’rd databases

Prior to Ms. Knudsen's 2007 FMLA leave; Ms. Knudsen had an ongoing, collaborative working relationship with Mr.
Summers regarding SFAM exhibition and permanent collection FilemakerPro database raanagement, upgrades, and
improvements, coordinating and disseminating varous aspects and defalls wih SEAM siff, e.q., Regisiration. A long
term godl to migrate via in-house personnel into an upgraded, exhibition and permanent coliection-combined,
FilemakerPro database sysiem was suspended well before Ms. Knudsen's FMLA leave.

Upon Ms. Knudsen's Aipril 2008 FMLA refum to SFAM, Ms. Knudsen found that SFAM was in the process of

~ preparing for migration into an updated, combined collection management FilemakerPro database, working with an
outside contractos. Mr. Summers snstrucied Ms. Knudsen to report to Ms. Barbara Gaib, Curator-in-Charge of
Registration, and Ms. Juiie Takata, Librarian, ask them for priofity list and assignments, and kKeep them apprised of
her work progress. Such direction demoted Ms. Knudsen 0 a secondary, supportive role, often in the capacity of
filing in holes re information naeds for the compuier contracior, compifing key information and reports (e.g., dafabase

file and field structure and content) that would have been hetier served provided in the initial planning stages of
- contracted work. '

Curently, one of Ms. Knudsen's job aésignments i« SilemakerPro datascrub to prepare for projectad Spring 2009
migration into a new database; Ms. Geib, Ms. Takata, and Registration, Hibrary, and Curatorial staff have sporadically

been working on datascrub fo prepare for database migrafion, concentrating more on exhibifion and curatorial
responsibiliies.

Sténdards éor Employse Conduct and Emoloyee Discipfinary Actions

SFO, through i managers, supenvisors, and various programs, attempts fo cresle a harmonious work environment

 for fis employees, administer personnet poficies ihiat are fair and equitable, and treat all employees with consideration
and respect. it is CCSF and SFO policy to develop and foster effective.communication between supenvisors and their
employees regarding employes performance and conduct, with a consistent approach fo employee discipline,

Prior to November 2007, Wr. Summers had not provided Ms.Knudsen eny indication of concem regarding her
conduct and work performance, Ms. Knudsen's CCSF performance evaluations refiect consistent and exemplary
accomplishiments and standards. But after Ms, Knudsen's Wiarch 2007 car acoident and related FMLA sick leave,

disability status, filing of discrimination complaints, et at., Mr. Summers rad issue with Ms. Knudsen, altering the
terms and fone of her employment at SFAM.

In November 200?,' Ms, Knudsen was told by hr. SUmmers that her request fo retum to SFEAM in December 2007
with reasonable accommodations was denied. This denial was a confradicion o past SFAM precedent as many

siaff had been accommodated in fike circumstances. Prior to and afier Novamber 2007 SFAM staff accommodation
requests have been granted by Mr. Summers. o

Wr. Summers aiso fold Ms. Knudsen in November 2007 that when she had worked a part-fime FMLA schedule in
Apl o June 2007 ithad been disruptive to SFAM staft and operations. This statement surprised Ms. Knudsen as
she had never been informed of such during that April o June 2007 period, verbally arin writing, and was now

hearing about it well after the fact. No explanation has been given io this point.

Wis. Knudsen sert & November 2007 letier 1 Wir. Summers refterating fheir phone conversation. Upon receipt, Mr.
summers met with Ms. Veronica Davis, Senior Labor Relafions Anafyst at SFO/HR, regarding the iefier and was
infarmed that he has not followed proper CCSF procedures. ‘

in April 2008 and July 9008, Wr. Summers verbally reprimanded and penalized Ms. Kr}udse'n regarding separaie
varbal compiaints that had been raceived against her from FOM Electrical and FOM Carpentry, respeciively, and did
not provide Ms. Knudsen clarification of representafion, 2 ﬂ%rgg or informative description, or explanation of the
alleged issues, nor offered suggastions or established an Sk Btan fo address the alleged concems brotignt forth,
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Mr. Summers did not implement CCSE disciplinary protocols, meet with either SEOMR or SEIU Local 1021 regarding
the FOM complaints against Ms. Knudsen, nor was Wis. Knudsen involved in a forma! employee progressive
disciplinary process. Instead, Ms. Knudsen was seemingly judged and jured by Mr. Summers, without support o
adherence fo CCSF policies and procedures. . .

Ms. Knudsen met several fimes with Ms. Veronica Davis, Senior L abor Relations Analyst at SFOMR, regarding
concems related o Mr. Summers, supplementing DHR/EED mestings and comespondence.

Protecied Categories; FMUA, disability. discrimination compiaint fling, sex/gender. age :
~ While there is managerial discretion © =mend and alter empioyee duties and responsibifiies, such should fall within
reasonable parameters, be judicious.and appropriate based on CCSF policies and procedures, amployment and
labor confracts, organizational needs, and available resources. Ms. Knudsen's position and associated job dufies
upon her April 0008 FMLA refum should have been virtually idenfica! to those that she had before het leave. Mr.
summers disregarded or dismissed Ms. Knudsen'’s proteciad calegoty status, changed her job dulies, altersd and
adversely impacted the interaction and relationship Ms. Knudsen had with SFAM and SFO staff, and provided Ms.
Knudsen inconsistent and conflicing direction regarding work duties and expectations, Given Mr. Summers’
discriminatory and refaliatory actions, and a related hostile work environment with disparate tragtment, it was and
remains difficuit for Ms. Knudsen o confer with Mr. Summers for supervisory clarity and instructions. Ms. Knudsen
did seek out aid and assistance from DHR/EED and SFOMHR in discrimination complaints, meetings and
corespondence, requesting assistance, support, infervention, and remedy regarding concerns brought forth.

Wr. Summers knaw of the March 2008 and June 2008 discriminafion compiaints filed by Ms. Knudsen at DHR/EEO
wecause on 3 July 2008 he acoused Ms. Krudsen of being complaint happy, refusing her request for third party -
representation, saying he “wasn't going there, like the request sor mediation downtown.” This mediation reference
was regarding DHR/EED investigation of the March 2008 discrimination complaint and Ms. Knudsen's request for
DHR/EED mediation via Hasfings School of Law, which Mr. Summers refused. The June 2008 discrirhination
compiaint filed by Ms. Knudsen against Mr, Summers had yet1o be invesfigated by DHR/EEO, and Ms. Knudsen had
just received on 3 July 2008 the DHR/EEQ defermination restits regarding the March 2008 discrimination complaint.
in the meeting of 23 January 2009 regarding e combined lune 2008 and July 2008 discrimination complaints, Ms.
Castelianos stated Mr. SummsTs’ position and reference o Ms. Knudsen as being & strong, abrasive personality
(rather than competent and professional), conveying M. Summers’ gender stereotypes and nersonalify prefersnce.

in 2008, Mr. Summers denied Ms. Knudsen a promotion from Curator IV to Manager |, citing budgef resfraints and
that a promotion would not be weli received by M. Garfield and Mr. Hill. Now in January 2003, Mr. Summers

“indicated to Ms. Castghanos that there are no merits for Ms. Knudsen to be promoted, there is no budget aliocafion
for such, and that Ms, Knudsen shouid be asking for 2 promotion. in 2006 and 2008, also confirmed in a 2007 five-
year SFAM succession plan, Mr. Summers projects no intention of ever promofing Ms. Knudsen, despite Ms.
¥nudsen's competence and qualifications. a :

M. Summers provided & five-year SFAM sucoession plan fo SFO Administration in December 2007, SFAM staff
promotions are projecied to be male only, evidence of workplace gender preference. Mr. Summers has infenfion o
promote Wr. Abe Garfield, a male Caucastan, from Manager | to Manager i, and Wir. John Hill, a male Caucasian,
from Curator 1V fo Manager | When M. Hill s promoted 1o e Manager | posttion, his previous Curator IV posifion is
siated to be filed by a male Caucasian currently o SFAM curatorial stafl Eurther, hr. Kelvin Godshal, a male
Caucasian, was recently promofed from Senior Preparator o Curator [, part of the succession plan. By posting the
Director and Chiief Curafor Alrport Wuseums' Manager Vi position on the CCSF website for such & short duration,
SFO Adminisiration conveys an inteniion o promote Mr, Qiake Summers, & male Caucasian.

There is a distinct CCSF and SFO bias favoring the empéyﬁ thar than neutrality for both employer and empioyee
in the CCSF discrimination complalnt process. Discrimine® mplaints filed by Ms. Knudsen against Mr. Summers
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i March 2008, June 2008, and July 2008 remain outstanding, vet to be addressed or resolved by CCSF, while Ms.

Knudsen has worked in a discriminatory, hostile, and isoiated work environment from: Aprit 2008 to present, despite
being in a protected category. : _

I the July 2008 meefing, Mr. Summers denied Ms. Knudsen's request for third-party representation, and proceeded
{0 infimidate and harass her with harsh, unprofessional, inappropriate, and unwelcome comments, further
discrimination and pointed retafiation against Ws. Knudsen for fling discriminafion complaints. The actions and words
of Mr. Summers on @ July 2008 were offensive and tefiing, indicating his established mindset and agenda, a

* pronouncement of his desre for Ms. Knudsen fo quit. The shock that Ms. Knudsen experienced in November 2007
when Mr. Summers denied her request fo refum o SEAM with reasonahle accommodations was notable. Vs,
Knudsen was further surprised and dismayed about Mr. Summers’ professional behavior and actions since Ms.
Knudsen's FMLA raturn to SFAM in April 2008. Bui all paled in comparison o the adverse impact and distress Ms.
Knudsen felt after departing Mr, Summers’ office on 9 July 2009. Ms. Knudsen was dismayed about the ongoing and
" escalating actions of Mr. Summers, concermed about her curent and future CCSF employment.

Wir. Summers is on SFO Senior Administrative Staff and the SFAM Director and Chief Curator. As such, anyone
placed under wim, in this instance Ms. Knudsen, is in & subordinate posifion. The CCSF and SFO failure io respond
and remeady in a fimety manner fo the discrimination complaints that have been fied by Ms. Knudsen exacerbate and
compounds the issues brought forth. Mr. Summers’ disregard and violation of CCSF policies and procedures, related
discrimination. harassment, infimidation, retafiation, and disparate freatment of Ms. Knudsen is established, whether
comparing Ms. Knudsen to her status, job duties, and work environment before and after the 2007 FMLA leave and
subsaquent profected categories ffom Aprii 2008 to present, o like Curator IV staff, and to ali SFAM siaff.

Ms. Knudsen is in an awkward, unfenable situation but has maintained a professional decorum, continues fo work
and fulfitt her job responsibilities in exemplary manner. Ms. Knudsen has adiusted fo a work style forced upon her,
isolated from SFAM and SFO staff, in a secondary, supportive and passive role, wailing to be assigned projects by
Mr. Summers rather than volunteering and initiating project involvernent, facility management, and day-io-day tasks.
There are a myriad of projects that need to be addressed at SFAM, ang Ms. Knudsen's skills and expertise are not
being fully utifized by her supeivisor o that end. Instead, Mr. Summers has and continues to penalize and
discriminate against Ms. Knudsen despite her protected category status. If a person is retaliated against due to

raising & good faith conCem ahout discrimination, harassmert, of disparate freatment, they should be protected, and
5 remedy provided, : _

L X1
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March 6, 2009

VIA INTEROFFICE MAIL
& FACSIMILE

Silvia Castellanos

DHR-EEO Assistant Manager

City and County of San Francisco
Department of Human Resources

1 South Van Ness Avenue, 4% Floor
San Francisco, CA 94103-1233

SURJECT: Request for Information — Sonva Knudsen, 3546 Curator IV
DHR-EEO File No. 1371

Dear Ms. Castellanos:

The information enclosed is in response to your Request for Additional Information
regarding the July 11, 2008 Charge of Discrimination filed against the San Francisco
Alrport Musenms by Sonya Knudsen, 3546 Curator IV. Specifically, the information
speaks to Ms. Knudsen’s rebuttal statement dated February 1, 2009.

Should you require additional information or have any questions, you may contact me

at (650) 821-3592.

Sincerely

e

Susan Kim
Assistant Manager
EEQO Programs

o Glora Louie, EBO Director
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Response to Complainant’s Rebuttal Statement of February 1, 2609
Sonya Knudsen, hereinaiter “Complainant,” alleges the following:

1. Attendance Standards
+ Since returning to full-time work in April 2008, Complainant has been “unduly
scrutinized and questioned” by Blake Summers, Chief Curator of the San
Francisco Airport Museumns (“Airport Museums”) and Kathie Smookler,
Executive Secretary to Sumimers, regarding Complainant’s timesheets, use of
vacation leave/sick leave, and Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA) requests. .
« Other Airport Museumns staff are not sirnilarly held accountable or guestioned.

Response ‘ - ‘

The Airport Commission denies Complainant’s charge that she is being excessively
scrutinized and questioned by Mr. Summers and Ms. Smookler regarding her
timesheets, use of vacation/sick leave, and/or requasts for FMLA leave. Further,
Complainant has always been held ¢o the same attendance standard applied to all
Airport Museums staff. ‘

Mr. Summers recalls questioning Complainant about her timesheet only one time.
On this occasion, Complainant stated she was Jeaving to attend a doctor’s
appointment during regular work hours. After noticing that Complamant’s timesheet
failed to account for the time she was not present for work during her appointment,
Summers approached Complainant. In response, Complainant stated she

would either work late or come in early during the work week to make up the hours.
Summers did not take issue with Complainant making up the time later in the week,
and did not pursue the mater apy further. -

1. Denial of Promotion :

e By planning and budgeting for John Hill’s promotion from a Curator Vtoa
Manager T position, Mr. Summers is in violation of fhe merit system policies of
the City and County of Sen Francisco (CCSE).

« Mr. Summers’ intent to promote Mr. Hill, and not Complainant, evidences the
Alrport’s bias toward Caucasian males in senior administrative staff positions.

Response
The Airport Commission denies Complainznt’s charge that Mr. Summers has taken
actions in violation of the City’s merit system policies.

Tneluded in the Airport Museums’ proposed budget for 2009-2010 (still pending
approval by the Mayor’s Office and Board of Supervisors), is a request for a position
substitution of a Curator IV to a Manager Inihusis substitution is approved, it will

s fect the requisition currently occupied b IG5l Hill. S
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There are three individuals at Airpert Museums holding the 3546 Curator IV position
(John Hill- Curator in Charge of Aviation, Barbara Geib- Curator in Charge of
Registration, and Complainant- Curator in Charge of Administration). While all share
the same classification, their individual dutles and responsibilifies vary.

Mr. Hill’s Curator IV position was selected for substitution because the duties and
responsibilities associated with this position most closely match those expected to be
performed by the proposed Manager I. Mr. IEi11’s present Curator IV duties and
responsibilities are as follows: '

_ Direct and research development of approximately ten exhibitions annually on
Airport and aviation history for the Airport Commission’s Aviation Library
and Louis A. Turpin Aviation Museum (ALM).

- Supervise work of Curator [ in assisting with research and development of
aviation related exhibitions. : ,

- Direct and research identification and description of collection objects.. Make
recormmendations for acquisitions and contimually assess the appropriateness of
all aspects of the aviation permanent collection. '

_ Liaise through outreach and public speaking between the Airport Commission
and the airline/aviation/museums community to increase awareness of the
ALM. _

- Direct research of, and familiarization with, related collections of outside
organizations and private sources and identify potential exhibition loan
sources. : -

- Organize, train, 2nd supervise the work of volunteers in the ALM.

_  Retain membership with the Collections Review Committee, and the
Operational Scheduling Committee.

Some of the duties and responsibilities for the proposed Manager I position are as
follows: |
- Oversee and direct the research and development of approximately ten
exhibitions annually on Airport and aviation history for the ALM. Includes
supervision of subordinate staff, such as the Curator 1.
. Overses and direct the development of aviation related exhibitions for new
exhibitions program in renovated Terminal 2 space. _
- Oversee and direct the development of new symposiums and publications
relating to aviation exhibitions. '
- Oversee and direct the development and production of educational programs
and publications in conjunction with current exhibitions.
. Oversee and direct the development and launch of online library collection
cateiogue. ‘ :
- Oversee and direct the development of special projects, such as the visitors’
survey and public access database.
- Liaise between the Airport Commission and San Francisco Aeronautical

Society Board of Directors, the nonpro suppoﬂ group to the Adrport
. sy » 5, .j_? .
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Musenms. .

_ Oversee the management of ALM facility/staff/volunteers, including the ALM
manager and head librarian. Oversee the coordination of ALM activities with
other Airport divisions and managers, the daily operations of the facility, as
well as special events. ‘

The Afrport Commission denies Mr. Summers hes, in any way, compromised the
cornpetitive Civil Service selection process. Complainant’s ability to apply and
compete for the Manager 1 position remains intact, as Mr. Hill’s placement in the
position is not guarzntead. As with any Airport Commission employment vacancy, all
qualified candidates will receive equal consideration for employment.

The Airport denies, and there 18 no information to support, the existence of an Alrport
bias favoring Caucasian males in the hiring and selection process for senior level jobs.
The Airport Commission endorses 2 policy of fairness and equality for emnployment
and career advencement of ail people, without regard to race, color, religion, national

* origin, sex, age or disability.

L. Chanee of Responsibilities Upen Complainant’s return o full-time work
+ Upon Complainant’s return to work in April 2008, her job duties and
responsibilities were altered in position scope, conditions, methodology, rank,
and staff interaction.

Response - :

Ag Curater in Charge of Administration, Complainant performs a variety of special
projects and duties for the Alrport Museums. These projects are assigned fo
Complainant by Mr. Summers based on the department’s needs.

Since March 2007 to present, the majonty of Complainant’s assignments have
remained the same and are ongomg. Certain projects requiring immediate attention,

" however, were reassigned to other Airport Museurns staff during Complainant’s leave
of absence. (See Aftachment A for a list of Complainant’s ongoing work assignments
and noted project changes post March 2008) There were eight total reassigned tasks.
In addition to performing her regular work, Barbara Geib, Curator in Charge of
Registration, was assigned half of these tacks: creating the Risk Management monthly
insurance report, overseeing FAMSF Conservation 1nvoice administration, and
creating exhibition schedule updates on both excel and on Filemaker. All are ongoing
assignments which Ms. Getb continues to overses.

Mr. Surnmers assigned Roman Korolev, Museum Preparator, thres of Complaipant’s
projects during her leave of absence. Two of these projects were completed upon
Complainant’s return 0 work. The Kids™ SpotT d \airs is an ongoing assignment which
M. Korolev continues to oversee. The re e 45s]

» assignment, the Arts Comenission
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maintenance installations project, has been assigned to a new employee hired
specifically to manage this project.

Upon her April 2008 retumn to work, Mr. Summers assigned Complainant four special
projects: 1) coordination of the storage move from the Spruce Street warehouse
location; 2) management of the data migration filemaker database; 3) management of
the collection appraisals request for qualifications; and 4) implementation of the
collection appraisals. All projects, except for the completed Spruce Street storage
move, are ongeing and are currently being performed by Complainant. No other
alterations have been made to Complainant’s job duties and responsibilities.

TV. Standards for Emplovee Conduct and Employee Disciplinary Actions
« Mr. Summers failed to adhere to CCSF policies and procedures when, in April
and July 2008, he verbally reprimanded Complainant regarding complaints that
had been received against her from the Airport’s Electric and Carpentry Shops.
« After her March 2007 car accident and related FMLA sick leave, disability
status, and filing of discrimination complaints, Mr. Summers altered the terms
and tone of Complainant’s employment.

Response

In or around April 2008, Peter Acton, Facilities Deputy Director, informed Mr.
Symmers that Blectric Shop staff were upset, complaining Complainant acted “bossy”
and rade during their interactions with her. Staff stated Complainant often demanded -
her work requests be attended to immediately, without consideration of existing
priority assignments. After receiving the Electric Shop’s complaint, Acton stated to
Surnmers he did not appreciate Complainant’s mistreatment of his staff. He stated that
while his staff would gladly continue to complete agsignments for the Airport
Museums, Complainant shouid not directly coordinate these projects and interfere
with the work to be performed. In turn, Summers communicated to Complainant that
she should “lay low” by not demanding Eacilities staff to perform wotk beyond that
required of them. E .

Several months later, in July 2008, a second complaint was received by Surmmers from
the Airport’s Carpenters Shop regarding Complainant. It was reported by Acton that
Compiainant had made some unwelcome statements to the carpenters and had acted
rudely in her interaction with them. After receiving this information, Summers felt it
appropriate to meet with Complainant, communicate the department’s receipt of this
complaint, and allow Complainant an opportunity to present her side of the exchange.

During this meeting, Complainant denisd any negative interaction with the Carpentry
staff. |

Complainant did inquire.as to whether Summers came to Her defense during his
conversation with Acton and, according to Sm%i%?@ bacame upset upon leaming her

nHE
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actions were not defended. During this meeting, SUMIMeTs reminded Complainant of
his earlier directive to her to request only that work which Facilities staff are required
to perform. :

Mr, Summers’ paramount Concern has been, and continues to be, that the Airportt
Museums maintain its ability 1o utilize the services of the Facilities Division and refain
its positive working relationship with the crafts staff. The Airport Commission denies
any wrongdoing concerning Mr. Summers’ April and July 2008 meetings with
Complainant. The purpose of the referenced meetings was not to intimidate, harass;
discipline, or otherwise reprimand Complainant. Rather, the intertion was to
communicate and hopefully address the cornplaints received by certain Maintenance

Division staff regarding their work interactions with Complainant.

The Airport Commission denies the charge that Mr. Sumimers has unlawiully altered
the terms and tone of Complamant’s employment based on her EMLA leave, disability
status, and/or previously filed discrimination complaints.

V. Protected Categories

'« Mr. Summers has and continues 10 penalize and discriminate against
'Complainant despite her protected category status.

« Complainant’s skills and expertise are not being fully utilized by her
supervisor, as she has ween forced to take a secondary and passive role in her
work style. . o

« There is a distinct CCSF and Airport bias favoring the employer rather than
neutrality for both employer and employee in the CCSF discrimination
complaint process. '

Response . : _

The Airport Commission demies Complainant’s charge that she has been subject to
discrimination and/or “penatized” hased on her protected category status. The Airport
Commission deniss taking action forcing Complamant to modify her adopted work
style, as Airport Museurns soff are encouraged by management 10 take a proactive
role in their approach to work. Further, there is no information to support the
exigtence of a City or Airport bias favoring the employer. Thus, the Adirport
Commission denies Complainant’s charge that the COSE’s discrimination complaimt
process is partial to fhe department employer I its implementation.

321
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Referenced Documents

The following referenced document has been attached:

~ Attachment A:  Listof Complainaﬁt’s ongoing work assignments and noted project
changes post March 2008.
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Mar-07 On Going Cﬁanges
Monthly activities report to Adminisiration on going none
Monthly insurance repaort to Risk Management _ |on going assigned tc B Gieb during SK leave
Monthly Knudsen report to Summers jon going nonE
JFAMSF Conservation invoice adminisiration on going assigmed 1o B Gieb during SK leave
Proofread exhibition label copy On going none
Exhibition Schedule updates on Excel . on going assigned to B Gieb during SK leave
Exhibition Schedule updates on Filemaker Fro on going assigned 1o B Gieb during SK leave
Assist with exhibition info to SFO Public Affairs |on going HODE
Facility Maintenance of West Field Road/SFO on going none
Arts Commission mainienance installations @SFOlon going assigned to new employee hired specifically for this pufpase
Employee orentation packet/security alamm/keys  jon going none -
SFAM Collection Management Policy on going none
SFQ Emergency Operations Group involvement  |on going none
SEAM Facility Reports - SFO & WFR o going none
Painting of Mills Field Hangar 7 siding panels complete
Deinstallation of Arts Commission O'Banion workicomplete
Kids' Spot repairs OF going assigned to R Koroley during SK leave
AAM reaccreditation preparations on going none
United Hub plane deinstallaton for Paint Dept,
" |project complete
United Hub plane installation after Paint Dept.
project completion complete
Resolve "Skyflights” insurance claim complete
ChemPack Emergency Procedural Plan complete
Blectrica; i ghis & tiner improvement to IT Cases complete assigned to R Korolev during SK leave
Resume HVAC reports for IT Cases on going none -
West Field Rd. Tech Shop HVAC Dust Collector jcomplete
f{ecagaﬁﬁn g of West Field Rd. Registration Area {incomplete
Assuming respensibilities for West Field Rd.
{WFR) secuniy alarm system on going none
Cleaning & resealing of WFR hallwayg o7 going none
Clez‘x:x:ling & resealing of WFR Merzanine floors !on going none
SFAM Emergency Plan for WFR and SFO sites  |incomplete none
WER Boiler Room improvements complete
Painting perimeter of 670 West Fieid Rd. incomplete none
Spruce St. storags inventory & relocation camplete
WFR building improvermentis/expansion info
unused guadrant complete assigned to R Korolev during SK leave
Since Mar-08 On Going Changes
Spruce St. storage move complate '
Date migration Filemaker database orn going none {work assigned 1o B Sumimers during SK leave)
Collection Appraisals RFQ on going " |none (work assigned to B Summers during SK leave)

implement Collection Appraisals

on going

24

none {work assignad to B Sunmers during SK leave)
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Susan Kim To Silvia Castellanos <Sylvia.Castellanas@@sfgov.org>
<Susan Kim@iflysfo.com> :

03/10/2008 02:40 AM

cc

bee

. Subject FW: Executive Directive $9-05 Airport Commission
Discrimipation Process and Executive Directive 00-02
Standard of Conduct

Hi Sitvia, here you are. The poﬂcy was redis’arlbuted Airport-wide 1o all Senior and Manaaemem
staif o share with their lnd{v dual divisions.

Thanks,

Susan

From: Gloria Louie

Sent: Thursday, February 05, 2009 3:31 PM
"Tot SFO Senior and Management Staff

Ce: SFO Senior Secretarial Staff; Susan Kim

Subject: Sxecutive Directive 95-05 Alrport Commission Discrimination Process and Executive Directive
00-02 Standard of Conduct

Airport Commission employees are called upon to commit themselves to continuously building a
team that strives for the highest quality work product and for professienalism and respect in all
dealings with co-workers, Alrport tenants and the traveling public. To help assure the highest
possible level of service to the traveling public, effectiveness of all Alrport divisions in carrying
out their missions, and a postive working environment, please review with your staff, the Airport
Commission’'s Executive Directive 00-02 Standards of Conduct. (See attached).

In addition, it is the Airport’s desire io handle employee concerns effectively, fairly, and
internally, buiiding a favorable work environmenti in which employees feel frée to bring their
concerns to their respective managers or the Airport Commission EEO office. Piease review
with your staff members the Airport Commissior’s Executive Directive 38-05 Airport
Discrimination Compiaint Process.

If you or any of your staff members have questions about these two Executive Direclives, please
call me at 1x3588 or Susan Kim, Assistant Manager, EEQ Programs at 1x3582.

Thank you for your attention to this matier.
Gloria Louie
EEO Programs Director

San Francisco Alrport Commission
650.821,3588

iyl
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0002

EXECUTIVE DIRECTIVE

Standards for Emplovee Conduet

To help assure the highest possible level of service 1o the travelling public. effectiveness
of all Airport divisions im camryving out their missions and a positive working
environment, the following set of standards are established to guide the performance of
Atrport Comumission emplovees. Abeve all, these standards call upon all Airport
Commission employees to commit themselves to continwously building a team that
strives for the highest quality work produet and for professionalism and reapec:t in all
dealings wmb co-workers, Airport tenants and the travelhng public.

As Airport Commission employees, our performance is evaluated based upon our
demoenstrated commitment to the following standards:

1. To camry out the mission of the Airport Comumission. This mission 15 cammied forth

through the Airport’s commitment to being recognized as the world leader in
stting the standard for

= Customer service and satisfaction
»  Safety and security

= Financial end economic vxabﬂl‘fy
= Community relations

= Quality of facilities

= Environments! Responsibility

To take responsibility for completing our work in a quality and timely way so that
others know they can depend upon us; to carry out the tasks we commit fo carrying
out; to support our supervigsors and co-workers in their work; and to anticipate
problems and issues that may arise out of our work and engage effectively with
cthers to resolve them.

o

3.  To communicate effectively ang professionally with others; to keep employess we
supervise and co-workers mformed so that they can perform their duties well; and
to encourage honest and open commumication that assures the mission of the
Atrport is accomplished.

4. To discourage unprofessional sommunication {verbally, in writing, or through
electronic mail} incloding the dizseminztion of false or misieading information,
gossip, or p_rsonal attacks; to protect the confidentiality of information E'iT.TU:StGd to
us s & necessary Tunction of the position we hold.

5. To mamtzin the highest standards of personal conduct by treating emplovees we
supervise, co-workers, tenamts and the public fairly, respectfully, and
professionaily, to observe all City policies that prohibit discrimination, harassment
{including sexual harassment) and the vse of slurs against any mdrvidual besed on
their race, ethnicity, national origin, religion, age, gender, gender 1cfpmn:y sexuai
crientgtion, disability, or medical condition.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTIVE

00-02 continued

6. To respect and meintain in excellent condition all Airport property mcluding
facilities, equipment, and supplies.

7. To refrain from soliciting or receiving for ourselves or for a third party anything of
value from anyone in rerim for business, serviees, or conndenual mformation from
the Airport Comrmisston; and

8. To discharge- all responsibiiitieé and those of the Airport Commission. in
compliance with State and Federal laws, City Ordinances, and County Rules and
Regulations (e.g., Conflict of Interest Code}, Afrport Rules, Regulations and
Directives. '

Failure to meet any of the standards described above shall be considered in evaluating

the finess of the Airport employee, shall be entered in the performance appraisal
evaluation, and may result in disciplinary action.

John 1.. Martin
Atrport Director

Issue Drate: February 2, 2000
Effective Date:  February 2, 2000

Supersedes Executive Directive §6-11 issued 12/12/86
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9305

EXECUTIVE DIRECTIVE

* Airport Discrimination Complaint Process

It is the Airport’s desire o handle employep coneerns effectively, Tairly and internally.
and to build a favorable work epvironment in which employvees feel free to bring their
concerns to management. To epsure this work environment, the Airport Director has
designated the Equal Employment Opportunity and Diversity oifice to monitor and
respond immediately and effectively to discrimination complaints, handle all equal
employment opportunity concerns and matters of dwer*;ty . This office reports solely to
the Airport Director. ‘

Under Federal, State and City and County of San Francisco law, it is illegal t
discriminate against any employee or applicant on the basis of race, color, religion,
creed, sex, national origin, ethnicity, age (40+), physical or mental disability, medical
condition {cancer related), Acquired Immunity Deficiency (AIDS/HIV) or AIDS related
conditions, political affiliatiod, sexual orientation, ancestry, martial or domestic partner
status, pregnancy of pregnancy leave, gender identity, parental status, or other non-merit
factors. Tt is also illegal to retaliate against any employee or apphicant for having made
a good faith complaint, for reporting diserimination, and/or for participating or aiding in
an employment diseriminafion Investigation.

¥ any employee believes that he/she has been discriminated against for any of the

‘aforementioned bases, the employee may attempt to resolve the matter by way of one of

the following internal or external processes:

INTERNAL PROCESSES

At The Work Site: The emiployee may Wnnt to first discuss his/her alleged

discrimination charge with the mmmediate supervisor. By Lakmg this initial action, the
supervisor tmay be able to guickly resolve the employee’s concern. The employee
should be as specific as possible about what actions were tzken, when the actions
occurred, who tock such actions, how the employze was affected and why the employee
believes that the actions were discriminatory. The employes should present any .
evidence, which relates to the aliegations. If the allegations are against the employee’s
supervisor, the employee may address his/her concerns directly fo the. supervisor's
supervisor. Airport supervisors and managers are requiréd o report complaints of
discrimination within three (3) working days of recelving the complaint to the Airport’s
EEQC and Diversity Programs Oifice, : :

Airport’s Office of Egual Employment Opportunity and Diversity Programs: If the

emplovee feels uncomforizble raising his/her concern within the work unit’s cham of
command, or if the matter canmot be resolved after talking to the appropriate
supervisor/manager, the employee is encouraged to contact the Airport's EEQ and
Dive rsﬂ'y Programs office. An investigator will be assigned to investigate the complaint
and issue a preliminary. finding including any recommendations for a change, if
appropriate, The investigative report will be forwarded to the Airport Director for
review and disposition.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTIVE

9905 continued

EXTERNAL PROCESSES

Department of Human Resounrces (Citvwide administrative process): The employee
aiso has the option to directly contact the City’s Department of Human Resources’ EEQ
Office at 44 Gough Street. Pursuant to Civil Service Commission Rule 3, such contact
should be initiated no later than one hundred eighty (180) calendar days from the date
the alleged discriminatory action occurred, or the date the employee/applicant should

bave first become aware of the violation. For complaints of sexual harassment
employees may also call the San Francisco City and County’s Department of Humar
Resources Sexual Haressment Helphine 2t (415) 5544900 to make 2 sexual harassment
complaint.

Union_Grievance Procedure: Depending on a complainant’s employee organization,
certain procedurs may include a grievance procedure for resolving discrimination
complaints. Such procedures, if any, are set forth in the Memorandum of Understanding
(MOU) cavermg the pvnnent union.

Federal and State Agencies: Employess also have the right to file a complaint with the
federal Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC) . and/or the state
Department of Fair Emploviment and Housing (DFEH),

The Airpcort EEO and Diversity Programs office is available to assist empiovees and
supervisors in understznding their respective roles in maintaining 2 discrimination free
work environment, and in hET}CﬂIHE issues that arise. Please contact the staff at 650-821-
3594.

John L. Martin
Airport Director

Issoe Date: July 26, 1979
Effective Drate: .August 2, 1999

Supersedes: Executive Directive §3-37 issued 12/7/§3 & 99-05 issued 7726799
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CSC Report

Complainani Interviews, Witness Summarnies
EEOQ File #1371
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Knudsen, S. vs. SFO
EEQ File: 1371 |
INTAKFE - 9/17/08, with Steve Pitocehi (Local 1021)

Incident of 7/1/08: K. Smookler, Executive Secretary (for B. Summers)
Time: mid-day on 7/1/08.

Duration: 10 - 15 minutes

Location: CP’s Office.

K.Smookler closed the door to her office. KSmookler asked her, “why are you
organizing BBQ? Why are you putting T.0’Brien in position of mediator?”

CP explamed was one of the organizers, T.0 Brien had asked permissien for BBQ, had a
BBQ 1n 2006, not aware was problem for T.O"Brien, not aware it was a problem.

KSmookler went on and on (she intimidates staff}. CP did not react even though

exchange was intirnidating. KSmookler said CP should talk directly with B.Summers.

KSmookler wanted to know who was behind BBQ. CP did not provide names. CP got

up to go get T.O'Brien. KSmookler wouldn’t let her leave the office. K.Smookler got
more and more upset and stormed out of the office.

¢ Both CP and K.Smookler were standing, with K.Smookler in front, blocking CP’s
way out of the office.

e K .Smookler raised her voice throughout conversation.

¢ K.Smookler’s demeanor was hostile, 811&201118’510 Her words were loud, angry,
judgemental.

e K .Smookleris about 5°5.

e CP not aware if anvone overheard.

s K. .Smookler shows pattern and has harangued other staff. CP has ﬂlaa complaints on
others® behalf (late Tune).

CP went to T.0’Brien and asked if he had any difficultics with organizing the BRQ. He
apologized and said he had gone to B.Summers and secured permission. In talking with
1.0’Brien, CP discussed whether or not to have a BBQ. He suggested maybe they
should go talk with K.Smookler. CP suggested they talk with K.Smookler and
B.Summers, or maybe they should cancel.

They both went to talk with K.Smookler. K.Smookier apclogized. K.Smookler said
B.Summers did not like socializing. K.Smookler suggested they go to FOM for §.
K.Smookler asked, What do you need?”. CP suggested cups.

However, CP and T.O’Brien decided not to have the BBQ.

CP explained “mediator™: as in go-between, as in why not talk with B.Summers? why
undermine B.Summers.

344



CP explained “verbal harassment™ words that convey harassment such as

d -
K Smookler’s woids of ‘go-between’, ‘mediator’, ‘undermining’, and how K. Smookler
passes judgement.

CP explained “inappropriate discipline”™: felt that K.Smookler was reprimanding CP.
'K_Smookler was passing judgement, saying she (CP) was undermining.

CP explained “inappropriate nhysical conduet™ K.Smookler closed CP’s office door

and blocked CP from leaving. K.Smookler was standing in a confrontational pese (arms
crossed).
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Incident of Julv 9, 2008
(B.Sumnmers, in pm}

CP went to B.Summers’ office, after he had come 10 her office. CP standing in doorway,
B.Summers was sitting, with arms crossed. He asked, “have you had an altercation with
Carpentry?”. B.Summers had received a ‘complaint’ from Carpentry. He asked, ‘what
involvement have you had?’. CP answered, ‘very little’. CP asked, ‘do you have mose
details?’. B.Summers said ‘no, I don’t’. B.Summers said, ‘this is becoming a problem’.
CP agreed. B.Surnmers said there were ‘several’ complaints, ‘numerous’ complaints.
B.Summers said, ‘I told you to be low-key’. B. Summers said, ‘close the door’.

Since back at work, the work environment and work relationship with supervisor has
shifted and CP was concemed but went ahead and closed the door.

B.Summers proceeded on with ‘numerous’ complaints. CP asked B.Summers if he had -
supported her or judged her as guilty. B.Summers paused, and said ‘1 have a ditficult
time supporting you’. He said, ‘look at all the complaints vou’ve filed. You've been a
problem since we were at El Camine. A problem from day 1. Look how complaint-
happy you’ve been’. o

His voice was raising. His tone was confrontational. CP was even more concerned. She
asked to have a third-party witness present. He said, ‘I’m not going there’, referming to
her previous complaints. '

CP has to sit a certain way to be comifortable. B.Summers said, ‘don’t sit there all
proper’. CP asked why she was just now hearing about problems with her.

B.Summers did most of the talking. He continued the tirade, saying “younever listerny’,
‘lock at the number of complaint you've filed, you’re unhappy- do you want to quit?”.

CP was very offended. Shocked. Concemned at hearing his judgements, that he wanted
her out. As there were ne witnesses, CP thought it was best to stop the conversation and
said she didn’t want to quit, but would quit for the day and suggested perhaps they have a
further meeting. She left an hour early that day. o '

CP expiained “derogatory comments”: as in ‘sitting there proper’, as in ‘problem from
get-go’, as in “difficult to work with’.

CP said B.Summers has continued to be difficult. Regarding her recent surgery, he asked
“what’s this request for leave for?” where everybody could hear (breach of
confidentiality on 8/26/08). CP said it’s been very isolating. B.Summers is never
available. ITis response is to delay
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City and County of San Francisco Bepartment of Human Resources

Gavin Newsom
Mayor

Micki Callahan ‘
Human Resources Director

CONFIDENTIAL
DHR EEOQ INVESTIGATION OF EMPLOYMENT DISCRIMINATION COMPLAINT

INTERV]EW SUMMARY
‘ ‘ EEQ File No./Name:
WITNESS: ' ' Knudsen, Sonya vs. Afrpert Museums
- Blake Summers : #1371
Investigator: Sitvia Castellanos , Date(s):

1.} September 23, 2010

Representative: None

Location: 1 South Van Ness Avenue Pages: J{
(Phone Interview)

1. What triggered the discussion with S.Knudsen in July 20687

Peter Acton, in charge of Maintenance (within Facilities Department), is a fellow manager. P.Acton told

im ‘keep her away from my people” basically. There had been a specific incident where a crew had
come on-site, had not checked in with her, been a back/forth, which she had not told him about and then
she had teased the crew member about his cart, something like, “if you need to get a real truck, 1 can talk
to John Martin..”. The maintenance staff (electrician? Carpenter?) was upset. This was not the first time*
that P.Acton had sald the same thing. She needed to miteract with maintenance crews, the Museum needs
to have a good working relationship with maintenance. His intention was to convey, ‘keep your head
down’, convey a ‘heads-up’, to not have more interaction with maintenance than was necessary to do her
job.

She wanted to know details, exactly who had complained about her? He did not give details, concerned
sitnation would escalate.

He began conversation in hallway outside his office, she immediately became upset, said she felt he
wasn’t being supportive of her so he mvited her into his office so they wouldn’t have a public
conversation. His intention was not to upset her. His comments were true, she hadn’t been happy, she’d
outgrown her position. She started saying how supportive she’d been (of him) and that wasn’( true,
otherwise she wouldn’t have filed all those complaints. He felt her statement or comment, that she’d
sepported him, was not accurate.” His comments weren’t related to her leave or in retaliation for her
complaints. What she said wasn’t true, she hadn’t been supportive of him.

2. “Mentor”- a formal arrangement?

o, not a formal arrangement. Previously, they’d always had that relationship, she respected him, she was
always in his office discussing stuff, asking for his advicg. é[;?ey’d worked together since 1997, since the

One South Van Ness Avenue, 47 Floor, San Francisco, CA 94103-5413 = (415} 557-4800 » www . sfgov.org/dhr



B.Summers
EEQ #1371
Pagse 2 of 2

previous Museurns Director. Sometimes their discussions were of a more personal nature, such as how to talk
to someone, how not to mffic feathers. They are polite and professional, he says “helio”, “good morning™.
He’s assigned the Curator I'V’s to Abe Garfield. '

*Note: Per Airport response of March 6, 2009: On or about Aprif 2008, P.Acton, Facilities Deputy
Director informed B.Summers that Electric Shop staff were upset. SKnudsen had acted “bossy”
and was rude with Shep staff. Shop staff complained that S.Knudsen was demanding and
inconsiderate regarding their prioritization of assignments. P.Acton told B.Summers that Shop
staff would continue to cemplete projects for the Airpert Museums but he did not appreciate the
mistreatment of his staff apd S.Knudsen should not directly coordinate these projects and interfere
with work of the Shop staff. o : '

In July 2008, B.Summers received a second complaint from P.Acton relating to Carpenter Shop
staff complaining that S Knudsen had acted rudely.}
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B.Summers

EEQ #1371
Page2 of 2
INTERVIEW SUMMARY
WITNESS: ‘ EEO File No./Name:
Blake Summers : Knudsen, Sonya vs. Airport Museums.
#1371 .
Investigator:  Silvia Castellanos Date(s):

1.} Jamuary 12, 2009, 9:60 am

Representative: None

- B : (,—"-\ /“
Location: SFO oy o5 N
. Upon her RTW Apnl} 2008, how was SKnudsen informed of her assigned pro;ebts‘? Did you meet with
S.Knudsen?

She had a list, before leaving, of active assxgnmmts she was given a list WhBﬂ she returned.

2. Since her RTW April 2008 has 5. Knudsen informed you that she considers her work assignments
“restructured/redefined”? (“providing monthly insurance reports to SFO Risk Management, updating and
managing FilemakerPro and Excel databases re permanent collection and exhibition schedules”, as opposed to
working directly with supervisor to plan/develop and implement database improvements).

Jpdating database, managing insurance had been moved with SKnudsen; while she was gone had starte
working on new database; SKnudsen has been doing database clean-up, did not have decision-making
responsibilities (“plan/develop™). Her work was dictated by needs of the department and those shift and vary.
S.Kmudsen used to be Chief Registrar, responsible for objects, then assigned her to more administrative tasks
and B.Geib now runs Registration.

3. Has she complained to you of “excessive serutiny and interference’™?
No, she works independently.

4, Promotions — Has 8.Knudsen spoken to you re a promotion? When, what was context of discussion?
In updating monthly report, she saw that hie had upgraded Curator TV to Manager I (it's in the budget butt
hasn’t gone through yet). Museums has shrunk in staffing, has had 1 Manager I (Curator V, Abe Garfield); she
questioned him as to why not upgrade for her. Proposed upgrade is Aviation Curator. It hasn’t happened yet,
not a done deal for pext FY, currently Curator of Avaiation is John Hill.

5. Did vou state to S.Knudsen, “why would 1 promote you, you haven't been here this past year?”

That was at the same discussion (on July 9, 20087 Took place last year, towards late Spring or early Summer)
regarding John Hill and the upgraded Curator position. The context was, S.Knudsen criticized J Hill and

promoted herself. His work and responsibilities merit promotion- his work is more complex, more
responsibilities are involved.

-

f, There were initial plans for a 7/4/68 BBQ. How did fqou_ first become aware of these plans?
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B.Summers
EECG #1371
Page 2 of 2

Through T.O’Brien, he used to be on the Museum crew. The BB was pot an issue, it wasn’t a big deal.
K_Smookier voiced concern about it, had an air of exclusion. There were social functions before (at SFAM),
they weren’t well-organized and people felt excluded. Re K.Smooker’s conversation with S.Knudsen:
Became aware of it through K.Smoolkler, she called him over the weekend and G.Louie let him know

S Knudsen had fited a complaint on part of .07 Bnen where he wasn’t interested in filing a complamt.
K.Smookler said she may have over-reacted. ‘

7. . Everstate to s, *(nud.se”l ‘you are unhappy here, look at all the complaints you have filed, do you want
to quit?”

I got a call from P.Acton, he was asking me to keep her away from his people. He’'d gotten feedback from
Facilities that they weren’t happy with her and he asked her to keep 2 low profile. S.Knudsen wanted 10 know
the details, she felt he wasn’t being supportive. ... Staternent {rue: in context of her protesting she got along
with everybody, and he spoke frankly. She didn’t ask for a 3™, party witness, she talked about mediation as a
3%, party, not having someone come into the meeting then and there.

“complaint-happy™? :
Don't recall using those words, jist of it is true, context was, why would he think she was complaining to the
Director about the cart; he was talking about the written complaints (denial of accommodation and about

T.0’Brien)..

“don’t sit there all proper™?
Probablv, not certain. ..

“problem from day 177 “can’t change you, never histen™?
Yes, might have said that..

S.Knudsen very much into self-help, trying to grow, he was her mentor. She became very defensive. He was

honest in his feedback. She has a healthy ego but also very fragile, she left in tears. He didn’t mean to upset
her. ' :
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City and County of San Francisco Department of Human Resocurces

Gavin Newsom WMicki Callahan

Mayor Human Resources Director
INTERVIEW SUMMARY
WITNESS: - EEO File No./Name:
Kathie Smookler : Knudsen, Sonya vs. Airport Museums _
| #1371
Investigator:  Silvia Castellanos - Date(s):

1.) January 12, 2009

Representative: None

Location: SFO . Pages: 2

1. Currently 1452 Executive Secretary Il Report to B.Summers.

2. Do you have authornity to reprimand S.Knudsen? No.

3.7 How would you describe youf working relationship with 8. Knudsen?
Has known S Krudsen since 1990 (sympathetic to S.Knudsen’s car aceident of 2006- she had a
car accident in 2000, came back pt...). Both she and B.Summers worked for the previous
Museums Director, who was a womarn.

4. The plans for a 7/4/08 BB(Q. How did you first become aware of those plans?

' T.0’Brien came by, late at night.' She wondered why T.0'Brien was asking (if it was ok to have
the BBQ) mstead of 5. Knudsen.

5. What happened when }.Tou discussed BBQ w/S.Knudsen?
The next day (after T.O’Brien came by), B.Geib {new Curator IV in Charge of Registration)
went to her desk (to tell her of the BBQ). Did stand by the door, did insist that S.Knudsen speak
about the BBQ and why she hadn’t approached B.Summers and why she’d designated T (’Brien
to be at the grill, T.0’Brien felt put-upon:

6. What was S.Knudsen’s reaction to the discussion?
She wanted T.O'Brien to come 1n 1o the conversafion.

7. You then had a discussion with both S. Knudsen and T.O*Brien?

Yes. T.0 Brien said he did not feel put-upon to be at the grill. S.Smookler apolegized, twice.
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8. Previous BBQ's for Museumns staff?7 How e}rﬂamzpd‘?
Enformal_ly and not wel‘;~6rgaxﬁzed,_ certain staff (Abe Garfield) excluded, or not mvited uniil
day-of; 1 staff person cut themselves badly, generally held on Fridays when she and B Summers
are not there. FOM staff had organized a BBQ, Museum staff could go to that. '

9. Any policy re social functions sucb as a BBQ?
Always have a Xmas party. True that B.Summers not very social, work is more impoﬁant.
Documents from K.Smooker:

e Emails related to 4/24/06 incident.

(Material not relevant to this investigation. Involved pnvﬂeged/conﬁdmnm information.
Mam;amed separately 1n manila enveiope )
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City and County of San Francisco Department of Human Resources

Gavin Newsom Micki Callahan
Mayor Human Resources Director
INTERVIEW SUMMARY
WITNESS: ' EEQ File No./Name:
Timothy O’Brnen Knudsen, Sonya vs. Airport Museums
' #1371
Investigator: Silvia Castellanos Date{_s):

1.} Yanuary 12, 2009

Representative: None

Location: SFO , : Pages: 1;‘

1. Currently 3544 Curator III. Who do you report to?
Abe Garfield and Blake Surmmers.
2. What are your current duties as a Curator [TI?

Research and write, consult with curatorial board regarding possible exhibits, trying fo get
objects loaned to the Museums.

3. Do youhave any direct reports?
{ Curator I that reports to him.
4. During the course of your duties, do you ha{fe regular contact with S.Knudsen?
No. S.Kﬂu_dse:ﬁ was previously in charge of Registration now interaction is less and }esé_,
5. How wouid you describe your working ralatioﬁsbip w/S Knudsen?

It's good. It's good with all the staff, prides himself in getting along with everyone at work. It's
not a big deparcment and there are strong personalities.

6. There were plans for a 7/4 BBQ. BHow did yéu first become aware of these plans?

Museums staff 1s not very social, previous events were informal; S.Knudsen has, in the past,
been the person responsible for initiating events and he has previously staffed the grill.
S.Knudsen misperceived that he was big on grilling. He said “ok™, but was not really interested.
She said she would bring meat and he suggested and/or asked if others would bring stuff.
Grilling was not a big deal.
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7. Discussed BBQ plans with B.Summers? Plans approved?

Yes, after speaking with S.Knudsen, he felt it was important to ‘receive his blessing” as the boss,-
to let kim know what was intended. B.Summers was ok with the plans for 2 BBQ.

& Aware of any concerns from B.Summers/K.Smookier re BBQ?

K_Smookler voiced an objection to the way it was being handled, she thought he may have felt
put-upon. He didn’t think it was a big deal, he has a very good relationship with K.Smookler.
The BBQ, July 4% tmay have been on a Friday. Specifics re K.Smookler’s concerns: “don’t
remember”

9. Any policy re social funcﬁons such as a BB(Q?

No, no policy against, these are informal. Manager believes in getting job done (first and
foremost).

10. K. Smookler then had a discussion re BBQ w/S.Knudsen. S.Xnudsen then discussed
with you. How did S.Knudsen describe her discussion with K.Smockler?

S Knudsen was-upset, said “T had a very unpleasant encounter with K.Smooker”, that
K.Smookler claims he was being forced into something he was not into.

What did he do?

He suggested they both go speak with K.Smooker.

Describe:

..went to K.Smookler’s desk, they politely discussed the miscommunication and he apologized
for any impression he might have given, that he felt put upon; K.Smookler apologized for
possibly over-reacting and she said, “lets do it”.

[1. How was It agreed that BB would not take place?

e suggested it, to S Knudsen, that they not do it, he wasn’t comfortable going forward. It'sa
very professicnal work environment, given the diverse range of work styles, duties. He thought

that was the end of it, he was surprised at the complaint. Both K.Smookler and S Knudsen are
strong personalities.



City and County of San Francisco Department of Human Resources

- Gavin Newsom Micki Caliahan -

Mayor Human Resources Director
INTERVIEW SUMMARY
WITNESS: - ' EEO File No./Name:
Veronica Davis Knudsen, Sonya vs. Airport Museums
' ' #1371
Investigator: Silvia Castellanos Date(s):

1.) February 20, 2009

Representative: None

Location: SFO . | Pages: 2

1. Asa Sr. Labor Relations Analyst, you provide HR support for Airport Museums? Yes.
Describe:

Support managers and empioyees with all employee/labor functions; since 2 2007 restructure of
HR. previously supported Engineering, Architects; involve coaching/counseling? Yes: involve
preparing budgets? No, not since with Labor; mvolve Performance Appraisals? Maintain
schedules and involved when there’s an Unsatisfactory/Development Needed rating, then will
coach/counsel; discipline? Yes; leave management? Yes, also contract negoiiations and non-
DOT drug-testing, special pay/compensation issues.

N\

2. Suppeort other Airport Divisions?

Yes, Airport Operations, Adminzstration, COO’s, Commission Secretary, Director’s office, legal,
Airfield Development, Business/Finance, Design and Construction.

3. How do you compare the Museums with Other Divisions?

Museumns is a very small unit, smallest vnit 15 GroundfTransportatidn Unit which has 7/10
people, on that level. '

4. Currently, Airport Museums has 3 Curator IV employees. Are they cbmparable/diétinct?

Don’t have familiarity with the Curator [V’s, there are MQ)’s, baseline standards they would all
have to meet.

5. De you have regular meetings with Blake Summers, Museurns Director?
No, only meet if he requests, Museums is quiet compared to other Divisions, very under the

radar, _ ,
6. Do you advise on FMLA?

pEY)
1
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Yes, 1244°s are now final decision-makers.
7. Ind S.Knudsen ask vou about FMLAY

Yes, she came in and got a packet, 2/3 times. Museums’ liaison to HR is Gayle Eavis-Woo
(1842). Took the FMLA piece of that. S.Knudsen was on FMLA 2/3 times, there were lots of
emails/phone calls from her re leave-status questions. HR manages the FMLA process and
forms are available on-line. Managers are not entitled to complete information, that’s
confidentizl. Don’t know of Museum’s mternal process.

8. While S.Knudsen was on leave (2007 — 2008), aware of s5ome of her duties being
reassigned? '

No, that’s not something HR would be aware of unless 2 manager 1s concernied re any MOU .
provisions.

9. Do vour duties involve meeting with employees? Did you meet with S.Knudsen?

Is available but encourages emplovee to call for an appointment. Received an email from
S Knudsen regarding “compressed work week”, altemative work schedule. Curators under
SEIU, a compressed work week can be 9/80 shift, 4/10 work schedules. For S.Knudsen, she was
reporting to work at 7am, worked 9/80 schedule and she returned to work to the same schedule
Met with S.Knudsen on 3/13/80 regarding payroll/SD1, applying for ADA, emailed 5. Kim
‘regarding RA request. 3/13/08 S.Knudsen emailed and asked for duties/responsibilities. On
6/5/08, contacted by S.Knudsen (phone calis 10:am, 11:45 am), she was angry. Museumns has 1)
failed to accommodate her by her return; retaliated against her; subjected her to unfair treatment
and gender bias, removed ber from certain job duties, in a hostile work environment; Blake told
her, why would he (when she asked about a2 promotion to Manager 1)?, ‘you haven t been here’,
she linked that reference to her being back from FMLA .

Documents from V.Davis Attached:
e 3/14/08 email to B.Summers, re SKnudsen’s RTW 4/1/08, what are
responsibilities/duties/projects?
«  3/19/08 email from Gale Bavis for B.Summers, please see attached duties and
responsibilities upon her return.
¢ 3/19/08 Sonva Knudsen Duties and Responsibilities (23 tasks)

When provided list of Duties and Responsibilities to S.Kpudsen? 3/206/88

%]



Veronica Davis To: Blake Summers/SFO/CCSF @CCSF
4 . cc ‘
03”4/2003 09:59 AM Subject: Request for Information from Scnya Knudsen

Good morning Blake:

I'm sl famifiarizing myself with the repor‘zihg structure of your section. Therefore, if this request should be
provided 1o a jevel in between yours, and Sonya, | apologize. If so, please iet me know whom should be
the recipiem,_‘ and | will forward the reguest accordingly.

'E met with Sonya regarding a few HR and payroll issues yesterday marning. 1 just retrieved an e-m4il from
Sonya requesting that | forward an information reguest to you on her behalf. She has reguested to receive
the following information: :

e Her approved ieave ends on Tuesday, Aprii 1, 2008. She will to return to duty on Wednesday, April 2,
2008 at 7:00 a.m. Please confirm that her 7:00 a.m. beginning work time (i.e. status of her previous
9/80 work schedule is still active). '

e She would iike o receive advance notice (oy no later than March 24, 2008}, of what responsibilities,
duties, and projects will be assigned to her so she can come in prepared {i.e. smooth fransition back to

duty).

Please let me know if | you have any questions or if | may be of further assistance to you. -

Thanks Blake.

Veronica M. Davis

Senior LLabor Relations Analyst

Airport Commission Human Resources
(650) 821-2072 ‘

Confidentiality Notice: This e-mail message, including any attachments, is for the sole use of the intended
recipient(s), and may contain confidential and/or privileged information. Any review, use, disclosure, or
distribution by persons or entities other than the intended recipient(s} is prohibited. If you are not the
intended recipient, please notify the sender by replying and destroy all copies (electromc or otherwise) of
the original message.

Thank you for your cooperation. =



B .. Gale Eavis To: Veronica Davis/SFO/CCSF@CCSF :
ﬁ o ) _ ce: Gloria Louie/SFO/CCSF@CCSF
03/19/2008 03:08 PM Subject: Request for Information from Sonya Knudsen

Veronica

Per Blake, Sonya's previous 9/80 work schedule is stilf ac:(ive.

Please see the attached regarding her duties and responsiblities upon her return.

iR

Knudsen duties.dog

Regards, Gale

Gale Eavis ,

San Francisco Airport Museumns
650.821.6754

650.821.6777 fax



March 19, 2008

Sonya Knudsen
-Duties and Responsibilities

Monthly activities report to Administration
Monthly Knudsen report to Summers
Proofread exhibition label copy
Assist with exhibition info to SFO Public Alffairs
Facility maintenance of WFR/SFO
Employee orientation packet/security alarm/keys
SFO Emergency Operations Group involvement
Kids Spot repairs
Resolve SkyFlights insurance claim
ChemPack Emergency Procedural Plan
- Electrical lights and timer improvements to IT Wall Cases
‘Resume HVAC reports for IT wall and freestanding cases
'WFR Tech Shop HVAC/Dust collector improvement
‘Recarpeting of WFR Registration Offices
“Assuming responsibilities for WER security alarm system
-Cleaning and resealing of WFR hailways
-Cleaning and resealing of WFR mezzanine floors
SFAM Emergency Plan for WER and SFO sites
WFR Boiler Room Improvements
“WFR Electrical Room Improvements
Painting of 670 WFR perimeter
‘Spruce Street storage inventory and relocation
“WEFR building improvements/expansion into unused quadrant
Terminal 2 exhibition galleries ramp-up
‘SFAM database data scrub for migration
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Department of Human

Resources -
, Gavin Newsom Micki
Calishan , ' . 4 ‘
Mavor ' : Human Resources
Director : '
INTERVIEW SUMMARY.
WITNESS: . EEOQ File No./Name:
Kathie Smookler . Knudsen, Sonya vs. Airport Museums
#1371
Investigator: Silvia Castellanocs Date(s):

1.} September 23, 2010

Representative: None

Location: PHONE ' Pages: 1

1. Aware of S Knudsen’s complaint of discrimination at time of discussion in July 20087

Yes. Discussion in office had nothing to do with that (discrimination complaint), it had nothing
to do with B.Summers. July 4 is her (S Knudsen’s birthday), she buys'food and staff grills meat,
~she doesn’t ask B.Summers’ permission to do it and not everybody is included.

- Tim (T.0’Brier) had come by and mentioned, “S.Knudsen asked me if T would grill at the BR™.

Blake said, "ok, if you want to..”. She asked Tim, ‘how do vou feel about it?°, thinking it was an

impoesition and he said, ‘ok’. The pext day, B.Geib came by her desk and noted the BB was
going to take place. '

2. Approach S Knudsen on behalf of B.Summers? Did B.Summers know you intended to
speak with S.Knudsen? '

No. It was her idea, B.Summers wasn’t even there. [t was a big mistake and she ended up
looking like a shmuck because the BB was canceled and there were Registrar interns who had no’
idez and they had been excited and probably considered her a big party-pooper.

Regrets the whole thing, and she apologized twice, Has known S.Knudsen since 1990, Has-
learned her lesson though. Now she asks people, “what are vou going to do about it?° when they
come to her about things that bother them, and psople do come 1o her.
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Clty and County of San Francisco
Gavin Newsom
Mayor

Departiment of Human Resources
Micki Caltahan
Human Resources Director

Q(WUJMM
DHR EEO INVESTIGATION OF EMPLOYMENT DISCRIMINATION COMPLAINT

REBUTTAL MEETING NOTES
COMPLAINANT: Sonya Knudsen | EEO File No./Name:
- - #1371
Investigator:  Silvia Castellanos Date(s):

1.} January 23, 2009 (9: OO)
2.) March 27, 2009 (11.00)

Repreéentative: S.Pitocchi

Location: a. DHR, 1 South Van Ness - Pages: 5

1. Review of the basis and issues: Retaliation, Harassmentdue to Retaliation, Dlsparate
Treatment.

2. Review of the Standards:

Retaliation '

1. The Complainant engaged in a protected activity;

2. The Complainant suffered an adverse employment action; and

3., There was a causal link between the protected activity and the adverse employment action.

Harassment- Hostile Work Environment Standard

1. The Complainant is subject to physical, verbal or visual conduct on account of the
Complainant’s membership in a protected category;

2. The conduct is unwelcome; and .

3. The conduct is sufficiently severe or pervasive as to alter the condition of the Complainant’s
employment and create an abusive working environment.

Disbarate Treatment Standard

1. - The Complainant is a member of a protected category;
2. The Complainant has suffered an adverse employment action; and
3. The Complainant suffered an adverse employment action because of his or her -

membership in a protected category.

S.Knudsen: the standards she's being aséessed and judged under are different. Schedule?
6.30 — 4.00 pm, alternate Fridays off, with Mondays for Rotary lunches, Dr's appointments.

Page 1 o | ‘ ggi



EEO #1371

Examples? Other Curator IV comes in “consistently late”. V. Davis is Analyst for
Museums, she's a resource for staff, she’s unbiased and a neutral party, serves to
clarify FMLA. She can give indication of B.Summers’ response re CP's concerns.

-Review of Allegations:
A. Harassment, Denial of Promotion- Since RTW April 2008, work assignments have been
redefined and restructured. Subjected to excessive scrutiny and interference. Denial of
promotion to Managerl “‘why would | promote you, you haven't been here this past
year?”

B. Harassment- 7/1/08 confronted by K.Smookler who was confrontational, aggressive,
and physically blocked CP’s egress from office.

C. Harassment- 7/9/08 accused by B.Summers of “being a problem from day I, of being

“complaint-happy”, of sitting there “all proper”, of not being happy, perhaps she wanted
“to quit?”

Correct. B.Summers’ asked her specifically, “do you want to quit”? Regarding the promotion to
J.Hill, ‘why would | promote you?. you haven't been here’ — reference to her leave.

Reviewed fact finding: -

Work Assignments have been re-defined and re-structured {core job responsibilities no
_longer the same as prior to 3/2007. Key duties of monthly insurance reports to SFO
Risk and updating and managing Filemaker Fro and Excel databases reassigned. Has
-been placed in a supporting role).
o The essential function of CP's posmon is to perform special assignments and re!ated duties
as assigned. Those essential functions have not changed.
« CP as resumed the same work schedule she had previously. _
« Based on department need, some of CP’s work assignments were reassigned, and CP was
given new assignments upon her return from leave (storage move from Spruce St;
management of data migration database; management of collection appraisals requests for
clarification; implementation of collection appraisals). :
s CP continues to be assigned special projects.
s CP continues on same work schedule as before.
+ During leave, certain assignments were reassigned to other staff, Manager can determlne
that those assignments will continue with other staff.
» Does not amount to tangible adverse employment action.
+ Does not support Harassment, Retaliation.

V.Davis can offer insight- she was the first person to interact with B.Summers (duties
upon return) as well as decision not to retuin her to work part fime, CP spoke with
V.Davis, brought her a spreadsheet, manaqement was exceeded its right (to reassign

work).
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EEQ #1371

Excessive scrutiny and interference:

‘e Per B.Summers, continues to work independently. CP not mentioned excessive scrutiny
-and interference to him, he’s not aware of her concermns.

rS

CP and representative took notes- will respond after they confer.

Denial of promotion to Manager I, “why would | promofe you, you haven't been
here this past year?:

» B.Summers has not made any 0922 Manager | appomtments since 20086, for Abe Garfield,
who was a Curator V.

e B.Summers has requested a Manager | position be included in the department’s budget for a
provisional promotive appointment for a Curator IV employee, John Hill, to a Manager |.
The Manager | position is currently in the department’s budget, it has not gone through the
complete approval process and the promotive appointment has not taken place.

e B.Summers did have a conversation with the CP where he explained he would not be
recommending a promotive appointment for her. B.Summers explained to CP, in a frank .
and direct manner, that he does not feel she merits a promotion. ,

« B.Summers declined to recommend CP for promotion. There was no actual promotive
position under consideration.

« Not situation where CP competed for a promotive posrt;on and was not selected..

CP and representative fook notes- will respond after thev confer.

Verbal harassmeni- comments were harassing, distressing and upsetting.
Amounted to inappropriate discipline (reprimand). Improper physical conduct
(blocking egress). Was retaliation. ' ,
- K.Smookler admitted her conduct/behavior was mappropnate
K.Smookler has no authority to discipline CP.
K.Smookler apologized twice.
K.Smookler stated she only wanted to oommunlcate concerns. K.Smookler felt that knowing
CP as long as she has, she could be frank and direct.
K.Smookler has since been civil and professional.
K.Smookler does not assign/direct CP’s work.
K.Smookler's interaction with CP on 7/1/08 was not disciplinary.
K.Smookler has no authority to discipline CP.
This was 1 instance. T.0'Brien confirmed K.Smookler apolog:zed was poh’te
K.Smookler's behavior with CP was unprofessional.
K.Smookler did have knowledge of CP’s engaging in protected activity (complarnt actions).
K.Smookler not in position to take adverse employment action against CP. This was 1
instance. It was unpleasant, very unprofessional but does not rise to level of
severefpervasive. Does not support Harassment. Does not support Retaliation. -
Recommendation: Airport redistribute "Standards for Employee Conduct” pohoy

® & 9 » @& 2 & 9

CP and representative took notes — Wril respond after they confer
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EEO #1371

Unwelcome and offensive conduct, verbal harassment, infimidation, slander,

unsubstantiated accusations, derogatory comments, denial of request for third party

witness, refaliation.

« B.Summers did receive verbal complamls re CP's interactions frorn the Facilities Deputy
Director, as conveyed by Carpentry staff.

« B.Summers did meet with CP in his office on 7/9/08.

o On7/9/08 B.Summers did ask CP about her interactions with Carpentry staff.

s B.Summers did not provide CP with specific information regarding Carpentry complaints.
B.Summers was concemed that situation would be aggravated by CP personally confronting
staff about their complaints. _ '

« Asthe manager, B.Summers wanted CP’s feedback of her interactions with staff.

» As the manager, B.Summers’ intent was to have a frank and honest discussion with CP
about her method of interaction with others, which has been perceived as abrasive.

« B.Summers does not specifically recall calling CP "complaint-happy”.

-« B.Summers not certain he said “don't sit there all proper”.
s B Summers stated he may have said, “problem from Day |, you dont listen, can't change
you”.

» B.Summers did say, “you are unhappy here, look at all the complaints you have fl!ed do you
want to quit?”.

. B.Summers recognizes and acknowledges that his manner hurt CP’s feelings, he showed
poor judgement.

¢ Was not ‘unwelcome and offensive conduct’, ‘verbal harassment’, ‘unsubstantiated
accusatlons’ ‘derogatory comments’.

- 8.Pitocchi- pervasive (disregard) at Alrport with the EEQ process, based on other situations
he's involved with.
Re this specific compiaint, CP and representative took notes, will respond after they confer,

FINAL REBUTTAL MEETING March 27,2009

1. Reviewed — | received her rebuttal statement of 2/1/09. Provided that statement to the
Department. The Department responded on 3/6/09 and | have interviewed V.Davis

(2/20/09).

- CP statéd “tone” of Museums interaction with her has been “inappropriate”, B.Summers
said he nheeded to have informatio‘n re FMLA and she was forced to divulge information
reqarding her FMLA. CP stated managers need to attend FMLA/ADA fraining.

CP agrees she has not been denied FMLA. CP stated she continues in a very awkward
and strained work environment and she hopes staff will recommend mediation. Re
disparate treatment, if Museums is too small a comparison (simiarly situated Curator [\/'s)
then should be able to broaden that to overall Department workforce, Re the Manager |
Aviation description, that's what John Hill has been doing.
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EEQ #1371

CP/representative made no cher comkhent, reviewed staff report would be submitted to
HRD for her determination. Letter of determination sent to both parties. Appeal is to CSC,

Page 5



- CSC Report
EXHIBIT K

Appellant’s Performance Appraisal Report-
Curator in Charge of Registration
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- 6508216777

. sfo museum

Identiﬁcation

15:55:143  G6-02-2011

—
<

& O
| Report

-

Count

o< B

San ®

FranciSco. -

Performance Apprais

1 Last Name, First Narme, Middie Inital
Knudsen, Sonya

4 Work Lacation and Division

- Chief Operating Officer

Muselums

2 Class No and Tifle 3 Slatus
3546 Curator IV PEX

5 Deparimenl & Reason for Report 7 1"DaleinClass - B
AIRPORT Annual 11/29/19389
COMMISSION :

& Penod of Report ) S Probation Ends

From 7/1/2005 to 6/30/2006

San Francisco Airport Commission / Performance App‘ra'isai Report / Airport 7-04
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6308216777

*

sfa museum 15:56:05  06-02-20%1

. t
L. Duties and Respunsibilities / Performance Criteria

Curator in Charge of Registration. Responsible for the supervision of the registrars
and interns.  Responsible for the planning, directing, and management of the
Callection Management activities for the permanent collections (Aviation and
Education). Responsible for all objects on loan for exhibitions; this includes bit js not
limited to 'oan agreement forms, incoming and outgoing receipts, safety and security
of objects, proper handling, shipping and packing requirements, condition reports,

" storage, installation and deinstaliation. - : ‘

Liaison with the City Risk Manager.
Ligison with the Fine Arts Museums of San Francisce Conservation Lab.

Consulis with the Direétor and Chief Curator of development of the new collections
database. -

As one of the Readers, proofs all label copy for eichibiiions and brochures.

Responsible for the deaccessioning of ccllections objects, per the recommendaticn
of the Colléctions Review Commitiee. :

Works and collaborates with other SFAM staff, interns, volinteers, airport persennel,
private collectors, museums, and outside vendors. ‘ :

A mefmber of the Airport Museums Senior Staff, the Collections Review Committee,
and the Operational Scheduling Committea.

Befinition of Ratings

Use the following definitians to identify employee's level of performance when rating factors in Sections {I, il and V.

Competent and Effective Performs aésigned duties in an acceptable level through dernonstrated appliication of
skills.
Exceeds Standards Performs assigned duties in & manner Indicating exceptional understanding of

assential functions. Resulis achieved are often belter thian expecied of performance
rated “Competent and Effective,” but not of such uniqueness as 1o warrant an
*Quistanding” rating.

| Qutstanding Performs assighed duties in a manner demenstrating mastery at every level of major

respansibility. Results schieved are well beyond the level of performance rated
“Exceads Standards,” ’ :

Development Needed Performance in ang of more areas does not meet the requirement for a "Competent
‘and Effective” rating. Improvement is required if acceptable rasults are to be

achieved.
Unacceptable Even under close direction, perforrmance dees net demonstrate lhe ability andior

willingness to produce required results.

San Francisco Airport Comniission / Perfermance Appraisal Report i Airport 7;%4 g
»]
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sfe museum

15:56:36

N

06-02--2011

. i
il. Performance Facl. . (Required for all employoss)

Compstant and Effective
1.1, __Attendancae and Punctuality

] Exceeds Standards

Qutatanding [

Davalopment hocded I

Unacteptabls

Good sbsarvance of work
hours; only routine absenca
from work

Very punatual and
dependable

LJ

Exiremely punctual ang
dependabla

>

Highi rate of lataness and/or
absence from work

]

Excessive ang persistent ]
pattern of Iateness andfor
gbsencs fram wark

%z Krowledge of Job

Wel-informed on important
phass of Ihe job

Well-informad 20 zil phases
of the job

]

Exceptonal knawledge and
understanding of the job

0

Lacks knowledge of some
important phases of the jab

O

Insufficient knowledge to
perfonm the essential job
requirements

3. _ Quantity of Work Performed

Quanlity of work meals
essantial job requiraments

Quantily of wark olter
extesds job requirements

.

Quantity ef work consistently
exceeds job requirements

(]

Quantity of work doss not
eet job requirerents in

stme areas

Quantity of work fails 1o mest
essantial job raquiraments

0J

4. Quality of Work Performed

Quality of work maeats
essantial job requirements

]

Quiiity of work often
exceeds job requiramant

]

Quality of wori cansstently
exgeads job requirements

]

Quality of work does not
meet job requirements in

SOME areds

Quality of work faifs to meet
essentizl job requiremants

[J

5. Effectivenssa In Working wiih Others

Work effectively with others

<]

Works sffactivaly with alhars
under gifficull circumsiancas

[

Actively prormales good”
refalions with others

L]

Occasionally has difficulty in
warking with others

[

Serious mattention fo rieeds
of others andfor continued
conflict wilh others

§. _ Adaptation fo Work Sktuations

Effuctively adapts 1o day-ta-
day demands of the job

Parforms wall even uridsr
pressura in difficul! situvations

Berform’s affsctivaly In crisis
situations

[

Performarnce consistenily
declines in ather than outine

Stiuations
]

Does not adapt o rautine
demands of the job

D .

7. Use of Malerials an

d Equipment

Routinaly conserves
malerials and/er maintains
equipment

: [

Obtaing maximum ulllization
of materials and/or
aguipment

£

Develops improved
techniguss for the usa of
materials andior equipmatt

%

Gceasionally wasteful andfor
careless

al

Unacceptably wasteful
andlor carelass

]

8.  Safety

Roulinely observes alf safety
practices .

L]

ldentifies and reports safety
hazards

-

Censistanlly identifiey salely
hazards and initiates
comestive action

X

Qcrasicnally disregards
safaty praghices :

|

Seriously disreqards safaty
practices

L]

it

Managerial Factors (Required for aif supervisory personnel)

Campetent and Effectiva

i Exceeds Standards |

Quistanding I

Unaccepiabie -

1. Communicating

Deveiopmant Needad |

Usuafly communicates
‘clearly and produces
effective love! of

Frequently usas language

levs] of clarily and

3kills lo promate oplimal T--skills ko manage

Consistenfly Uses language

interpersenat prablems

Sometmes fanis lo
communicate clegrly,
resulling in

“Seroug andfar peraistent
probfems using ianguage
skills

and plans and svsluates
results

and davalops conlingency

plans
L]

usa of all resources

&

anderstanding understanding effactivaly risundersiahding andfor

. *:‘ ) i:] . D confusion l:]
2. Planning
Develops net Y goals Mdanlifies potential problems Plans crealively to optimze Foor atenfien to plarnming Sarious inaflention 1e

andlar inefficient usa of

rasourcesg

planming andfer exiresnaly
weak in utihzing resourcas

]

3. De.cislcn Making

Usually demanstrates sound
evaluation or factors in
touline matters

d

Demanstrates excaptional
abillty {0 solve difficuft
problams

il

Consistently demonsirates
ability lo solve problems of a
highly compfax nalure

Semetimes overlpoks andfor

misjudges basic factors in

reuline matlers

Serious inallention ta
decision making, Demsions
produca pgoar results

4. Directing end Motijv

aiing Employees

Effactivaly diracts the wark of
erplayeas

g

Motivales employees lo
schieva high paiformance

B¢

Identifies employee polentiai
and provides opportunities
for oplima! performancs

U

Has difficulty in directing

snd/or motivating employess

L

Senous irattenlion fo
direcing and/or molivating

emgloyees

5, Trainiﬁg and Developing Employees

Makes provisions for
employees 1o acquice

Encourages emplayess n
caresr davalopment

Aclively provides employss -
traning end development

Sometimes fails lo prowide
regded lraiming or job

Serious inatterhon to
employze raining resds

necassary job skils and oppoertunities formation to emplayees .
hnowladge . . D .
v. QOverall Evaluation .

Compelent and Eftective f Exceeds Standards Cutstanding ' Develapment Needed Unacceptable
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3
B

Comments. Must be completed according (o instruations.”

San Francisco Airport

Museums §-1¢ Leolp -

V.

A. Factsi/Specific Performance Documentation: Adequate and.accurate docuprentation is
required. (Attach addiffonal pages as necessary.)

. Despite our inabilily to fil vacant positions during the fast fiscal year Ms Knudsen and her staff have
managed to patch together the registration department and continug the program continuity to bring in
objects to keep tha exhibition schiedule moving ahead. -

Ms Knudsen has cantinued to focus on her work with the factities maintenance staff to heip oversee the
various construction projects in the Airport Museums West Field Rd facility. Some of these projects includs
the re-roofing of the building, the replacement of floar tiles on the mezzanine and the lights for the parking
lot. By doing sa Ms Knudsan has minimized the impact on the Airport Museums staff and expedited the
construction process. Ms Knudsen has also worked on maintaining the Kid's Spot in Terminal 3, by
bringing the Exploritorium staff together with the faciiities mainienance staff. :

B. Employee Strengths:
Ms Knudsen works well independsntly without my having to micre-manage her tirme, Sonya is a very hard
werker and will always go the exira mile to complete the necassary tasks. She is very motivated.

C. Work Plan for Next Report Period:
Ms Knudsen should work with the staff-and our interns to continue fo updaté‘ thé permanent collection
inventory. This is an ongoing process and needs constant upkeep, We should also continue the process of
deaceessicning the cbjects from the parmanent collection as deemed necessary by tha coilections review
committes. .

D. Recommendations:

VI Reporting Manager g .

T Name, Work Addrass 2 Class No and Title 3 Ceonferenca ﬁemﬂ. Wih ]
Blake Summers 0933 Manager V (Manager's Signalure)
San Francisco Airport 4 Dae g;‘zﬂs%‘s 5 Sg‘z‘“z: ( ‘
Museums 8/1

Vik Employee’s Statement (See Handbook for Statemant of Emplayes Rights)

'gil agres with this repod. . 2z Dal? 7}2% lZemew
D ‘ldo not agree with s report. Section “Numbear - N l
D 1 request a conferanca with the Reviewer. 3 52‘&3 cantifies ma?nw )

{J  Rebultat Altached. /ﬂW LYt L__,-
Vil Reviewer's Certification i .
1 Nameg, Work Addrege 3 Class No and Titie U 3 Date of Lonierence Imtals of

Blake Summers ‘ 0933 Manager V those Present

4 Dals ol Report

I
E E I cerify | have rewewed the report ) & Sigraluse é L[/ 2\/\/\

£1 1 have |akan tha fotawing acton;

(35
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CS8C Knudsen packet 8 Aug 2011 page 1 of 5

4 August 2011

CCSF CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSION
President E. Dennis Normandy
Vice President Donald A. Casper
Commissioner Morgan R. Gorrono
Commissioner, Mary Y. Jung
Commissioner. Lisa Seitz Gruwell

Through Ms. Anita Sanchez, Executive Officer
City and County of San Francisco

5 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 720

San Francisco, CA 94102-6033

Dear Commissioners:

| am submitting the attached packet of materials which | would like you to use as evidence to take into
consideration to grant my appeal and sustain my discrimination complaints as outfined in EEO File #1371.

ISSUES OF APPEAL, per 7/5/2011 Civil Service Commission Report, page 4:
»Harassment - Hostile Work Environment
» Retaliation |
» Discrimination

The EEO File #1371 complaint was denied by Department of Human Resources (DHR) Director Ms. Micki
Callahan based upon the facts that the complaints did not rise to the leve! of threshold as outlined in the July
9, 2011 Civil Service Commission (CSC) Report “Standards and Definitions (CSC pg. 4):

Harassment ~ Hostile Work Environment

The legal standards for a discrimination comptaint under a harassment — hostile work

environment theory are:

- The complainant is subject to physical, verbal, or visual conduct on account of complainant's

membership in a protected category;
The conduct is unwelcome; and
The conduct is sufficiently severe or pervasive as to alter the condition of the complainant's
employment and create an abusive working environment.

Retaliation _ _
The legal standards for a discrimination complaint under the theory of retaliation are:
The complainant engaged in a protected activity;
The complainant suffered an adverse employment action; and
There was a'causal link between the protected activity and the adverse employment action.

Discrimination

The legal standards for a discrimination claim under a disparate treatment theory are:
The compfainant is a member of a protected category;
The complainant has suffered an adverse employment action; and
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The complainant suffered an adverse employment action because of her membership in a
protected category.

The attached documents are separated by number designations 1, 2, and 3, to coordinate with the EEO File
#1371appeal, the subject of this report, as noted in the 7/5/11 CSC Report (CSC pg. 2), and 6/25/08 EEO
Investigative Report (CSC pgs. 41 and 44). Added numbers are supplemental information, 5, and remedy, 6.

1) Allegation D. Harassment due to Retaliation on 7/1/08 — Ms. Kathie Smookier
2) Allegation E. Harassment due to Retaliation and Disparate Treatment - Mr. Blake Summers
3) Allegation C. Harassment due to Retaliation and Denial of Promotion ~ Mr. Blake Summers

It is without questions that 1 am in a protected group as outlined in documentation provided by Employer,
and has never been denied.

1} Allegation D. Harassment due to Retaliation on 7/1/08 — Ms Kathie Smookler
The following correlated to Allegation D, that show that indeed in this case there was a threshold for which

harassment, hostile work environment, and retaliation has been met. The same is true for Allegation E.

(CSC pags. 30, 42, 57, 59, 293, 344, 351, 363)

1. 1 was subjected to verbal and physical conduct on the part of Ms. Smookler

Ms. Smookler has not denied using words undermining and disrespectful (CSC pg. 292) point of exchange

was not to harass or intimidate me, but to communicate the importance of keeping museum director abreast

of any plans invoived his department (CSC pg. 293). Additionally Ms. Smookler blocked my egress from y

office during confrontation.

2. The conduct of Ms. Smookler was unwelcome — Ms. Smookler indicated that she could have a frank
and honest discussion with me (CSC pg. 56), and did admit that her conduct and behavior was
inappropriate (CSC pg.363). The CCSF investigation established that Ms. Smookler's conduct was
unwelcome {CSC pgs. 30, 33), and that her behavior was unprofessional (CSC pg. 363)

3. The actions of Ms. Smoaokler on July 1, 2008, and from March 2008 to present is sufficiently severe or
pervasive as fo alter the condition of my employment and create an abusive working environment at
SFO Museum

The causal link between the action and condition of employment includes the following:

My working environment has been altered. Ms. Smookler thought it odd that | did not come by to ask Mr.

Summers permission for the barbecue, and despite the fact that Mr. Summers approved the barbecue, Ms.

Smookler did approach me afterwards (CSC pg. 57). As Mr. Summers Executive Secretary, Ms. Smookier

acts as agent and liaison, knows of my filing complaints (CSC pg. 363), and she has no authority to

discipline me (CSC pg. 363). Before my 2007-2008 FMLA leave, | did go directly to Mr. Summers for
applicable permission, discussion, and conversation regarding work-related matters. Upon my return, after
requesting reasonable accommodations and filing a discrimination complaint, | was no longer able to do so.

Ms. Smookler and Mr. Summers, in their bias, actions, words, and behavior, effectively alienated and

ostracized me from SFO Museum and SFO staff. Fulfiling my essential work responsibifities were and

remain restricted, offsetting and placing a ceiling on any possible expansion of job responsibilities and
applicable promotions. These hostile working conditions are indeed pervasive as that is my day-to-day.

2) Allegation E. Harassment due to Retaliation and Disparate Treatment — Mr. Blake Summers

(CSC pgs. 30, 33, 42, 51, 54, 63, 64)

The following correlated to Allegation E, that show that indeed in this case there was a threshold for which
harassment, retaliation, and disparate treatment has been met.

1. Ihave had and continue to have unfair and inequitable treatment and scrutiny of timesheets, vacation
leave, and sick time usage; there has been more than one occasion contrary to CCSF statement (CSC
pgs. 30, 42, 51)
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DHR did determine that SFO Museum timesheets could be improved (CSC pgs. 30, 33), a telling indication
that imesheets protocols were not being observed by SFO Museum staff. Subsequent to my complaint filing
and related CCSF investigation, SFO Museum staff did in fact become more responsible in and correct their
work hours, attendance, and timesheet sign-in, but there remain abuses. From my March 2008 return to
present, | have been continually questioned by Mr. Summers, Ms. Smookler, and Mr. Garfield with regard to
use of vacation, sick, FMLA leave, and comp time, countering instructions | had received from SFO Payroll.
Examples include a recent workshop tile-fioor project, where | worked both day and graveyard shifts; being
questioned why | had gone to the hospital; and being specifically instructed to inform my supervisor and the
receptionist and / or secretary when | depart for lunch each day, or go to the Airport for project assignments.

2. My job responsibilities have been and continue to be diminished, restructured, and reassigned after
retumn from protected FMLA leave in 2008 (CSC pg. 54). Many of the duties listed are not accurate.

3. Mr. Summers did accuse me of being a problem, of being ‘complaint-happy,’ and intimating that |
should resign as my complaints were evidence that | was not happy in the workplace.
CCSF investigation did establish Mr. Summers acted inappropriately, (CSC pgs. 30, 33), with
recommendation from DHR Director to SFO Airport Director to counsel manager, provide with training, and
propose mediation (CSC pg.64). Yet, Mr. Summers contradicts himself by stating the he does not
specifically recall calling me ‘complaint-happy,” may have said | have been a problem from day one, 1 don't
listen, he could not change me, and did say that | was unhappy {at SFO Museum), look at all the
complaints you have filed, do you want to quit? (CSC pgs. 63, 364). Mr. Summers admits that he showed
poor judgment. (CSC pg. 364)

3) Allegation C. Harassment due to Retaliation and Denial of Promotion — Mr. Blake Summers
1. Biased regarding ADA and accommodation

CCSF Investigation established that Mr. Summers denied that he had not any bias or resentment on his part
for my FMLA leave {(CSC pg. 33) but in fact, that is not true. Mr. Summers denied my November 2007
request to return to work with reasonable accommodation, which led to my filing a complaint (EEQ File
#1343) in March 2008, which eventually led to an appeal before the Civit Service Commission in November
2009, which was granted. Upon my return Mr. Summers and Ms. Smookler questioned the use of my
vacation hours after SFO Payroll has provided me instruction to use such as my sick leave hours had been
exhausted due to my extended 2007 — 2008 FMLA leave, as well as nature of my absences. Due to car-
accident refated injuries which necessitated surgeries, Mr. Summers refused to sign FMLA paperwork until |
divulged reason for FMLA request, angry that | not provided him paperwork before submitting to SFO HR.
Submitting FMLA paperwork to SFO HR is proper protocol, and only the cover page is sent to supervisor for
signature to ensure confidentiality. There have been numerous times | have offered to assist staff, and have
been rebuked. For example, due an extended absence due to the marriage and honeymoon of the Aviation
Museum manager, | had offered to substitute for day-to-day responsibilities, as-needed, as well as
overseeing set-up and overseeing evening functions / events at Aviation Museum. Mr. Summers said | was
unable to fulfill responsibilities as such entailed lifting chairs and tables. All such event set-ups are done with
assistance of SFO Pavement & Grounds. | subsequently found that Mr. Summers had promoted an intern to
a newly created Associate Registrar position; this individual, a man, is now substituting for the Aviation
Museum manager due to manager's FMLA patemity leave.

2. Strained working environment

Employer denies Mr. Summers harassed me (CSG pgs. 291, 62). Mr. Summers did say "you are unhappy
here, look at all the complaints you have filed, do you want to quit?" Mr. Summers stated he may have said
you've been a problem from day one, you don't listen, | can't change you." (CSC pg.364). Mr, Summers said
this. Mr. Summers confirmed that he did receive verbal complaint regarding my interactions from the Facility
Deputy Director, as conveyed by the Carpentry staff, and did not provide me specific information (CSC pgs.

7
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61, 363). Mr. Summers did convey "a head's up to keep my head down, to not have more interaction with
Maintenance than was necessary to do my job (CSC pgs. 347, 62). Maintenance complaints are heresay.
Mr. Summers said his comments were true, that | was not happy , that | had outgrown my position {CSC pg.
347). There was a denial of promotion to Manager | (CSC pgs. 30, 33, 49, 52-54)

Investigation established that there was not a promotive position, and that there was a marked difference in
the level of responsibilities. (CSC pg.30)

Department denies that my work assignments have been wrongfully restructured since my return from leave
(CSC pg.49} Airport says my assignments have remained the same and are ongoing {CSC pg. 292)
Department states that Mr. Summers did have a conversation with me and said that he would not be
recommending me for a promotive appointment. The department states that Mr. Summers explained to me
in a frank and direct manner that he did not feel | merit a promotion, nor was there an actual promotive
position under consideration (CSC pg.363)

Department agrees that during my leave of absence, certain projects were reassigned to other Airport
Museum staff.

The department denies that Mr. Summers denied me a promotion to Manager I. The department responded
that Mr. Summers had not made any appointment to 0922 Manager | since 2006, and that Mr. Summers
appointed Mr. Abe Garfield to Manager |. The appointment of Mr. Garfield was a reclassification from 3547
Curator V (CSC pg. 50) ‘

The department contends that for FY09/10, the Airport Museums requested a position substitution for a
Curator IV classification to a Manager |. If the position substitution request is approved through the budget
process, the 0922 Manager | reclassification will affect the 3546 Curator IV position held by Mr. John Hill,
Curator in Charge of Aviation. Job duties listed (CSC pg. 52) The Aviation Curator IV position was approved
for reclassification to Manager |. The reclassification was based on the level of responsibilities currently
performed by the Curator IV in charge of Aviation. ... When the position is announced and open for
application, | wouid have the opportunity to compete and be considered for the position. (CSC pg. 54)

The Curator |V positions are significantly different in terms of responsibilities. The Curator IV in Aviation
manages a sizeable program and staff, whereas | perform special projects as needed (CSC pg. 54)

The department contends that, should the Manager | — Aviation position remain in the department’s budget,
a selection process will be implemented and | will be able to compete for the position (CSC pg. 52)

Summers stated that since my return from leave, | had been assigned to conduct database clean-up, and
that there had been no changes to my decision-making responsibilities (CSC pg. 52}

Summers stated that | worked independently and that | had not informed him that | felt | had been subjected
to excessive scrutiny and interference, and in regards to timesheet/attendance. Mr. Summers recalls only
one instance asking about my timesheet (CSC pg. 52). But in fact, there have many instances.

Mr. Summers stated that it is a long-standing situation that | do not like fellow Curator IV John Hill, and that
he was not surprised about my disparaging views. Mr. Summers stated that the work performed by John Hill
related o Aviation was more complex and involved more responsibilities and, therefore, upgrading the
position to Manager | was merited. (CSC pg. 53) '

Mr. Summers agreed that in his conversation with me in May 2008, he did make a statement “why would |
promote you, you haven't been here this past year.” This statement was both a factual observation of Mr.
Summers' bias and in reference to my FMLA leave of 2007-2008 (CSC pg. 53)

The depariment agrees certain projects were assigned to other staff while | was on leave, but the evidence
established that the majority of projects | was responsible for, | continue to be responsible for {CSC pyg. 54}

Mediation CSC pgs. 33, 262

EEO and Summers agreed that mediation likely be unsuccessful and alternate dispute resolution was not
pursued any further. DHR noted relationship between Mr. Summers and me was strained, recommending
mediation to re-establish working relationship with improved communication (CSC pg. 33). Mediation was
not ultimately achieved {CSC pqg. 3). There was not good faith effort on part of Employer .
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MAKE WHOLE REMEDY RETROACTIVE TO INITIAL COMPLAING DATE:
1. Grant/ Sustain Appeal by Appellant Sonya Knudsen;
2. Promotion to Manager |, Assistant Director of Administration and Special Projects
reinstatement of all duties removed from me to include staff management, administrative
assignments, as well as duties refated to Airport expansion of media and community outreach;

3. Reinstate $32,500, the differential between 2008 and present re loss earnings and retirement;

4. All reasonable atiorney fees paid for by Employer

Yours respectively,

Ciamdm——

Sonya Kntidsen
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August 4, 2011
NOTICE OF CIVIL, SERVICE COMMISSION MEETING
Sonya Knudsen
PV .
San Francisco, CA 94128

SUBJECT: APPEAL BY SONYA KNUDSEN OF THE HUMAN RESOURCES
DIRECTOR’S DECISION TO DISMISS HER EEO FILE #1371 DUE
TO INSUFFICIENT EVIDENCE TO SUSTAIN A COMPLAINT OF
HARASSMENT, RETALIATION AND DISPARATE TREATMENT.

Dear Ms. Knudsen:

The above matter will be considered by the Civil Service Commission at.a meeting
to be held on Angust 15,2011 at 2:00 p.m. in Reom 400, Fourth Floor, City Hail, 1 Dr.
Carlton B. Goodlett Place.

This item will appear on the regular agenda. Please refer to the attached Notice for '
procedural and other information about Commission hearings. '

Attendance by you or an authorized representative is welcome. Should you or your
representative not attend, the Commission will rule on the information previously submitted
and testimony provided at its meeting. All calendared items will be heard and resolved at this
time unless good reasons are presented for a continuance.

All nonprivileged materials being considered by the Civil Service Commission for
this item are available for public inspection and copying at the Civil Service Commission
office Monday through Friday from 8:00 a.m. fo 5:00 p.m.

CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSION
ANITA SANCHEZ YY
Executive Officer

Attachment

c Silvia Castellanos, Departent of Human Resources

Susan Kim, San Francisco ternahonal Alrpost
Gloria Louie, San Francisco International Airport
Steve Pitocchi, SEIU 1021, 350 Rhode Island, Ste. 100 So ., S.F., CA 94103
Linda Simon, Department of Human Resources
Blake Summers, San Francisco International Airport
Jamie White, Department of Human Resources
Commission File
Commissioners” Binder
- Chron CO



CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSION REPORT

MEMORANDUM
TO: - Civil Service Commission
THROUGH: Micki Callahan, Human Resources Director
THROUGH: Linda Simon, Deputy Director- EEO Programs
FROM:- Silvia Castellanos, Sr. EEO Program Specialist
DATE: July 5, 2011
EEO FILE NO: 1371
REGISTER NO: 0343-09-6
APPELLANT: Sonya Knudsexn

1. Authority

The San Francisco Charter, Section 10.1 03, and Civil Service Comrnission Rules provide
that the Human Resources Director shall review and resolve complamts of employment
discramination. Pursuant to Civil Service Commission Rule, Section 103.3, the Civil

Service Commission shall review and resolve appeals of the Human Resources Director’s
determinations.

2. Summary

The Appellant is a permanent exermnpt 3546 Curator IV- Administration with the San -
Francisco Airport Museums (SFAMY. SFAM is aceredited by the American Association
of Museums and features approximately twenty (20) galleries throughout the Airport
termunals displaying art, history, science and cuitural exhibitions. SFAM also features
the Sar Francisco Airport Commission Aviation Library and Louis A. Turpen Aviation
Museum, 2 permanent collection of the history of commercial aviation. ‘

SFAM 1s headed by Director and Chief Curator, Blake Summers. The Appeliant
performs special projects for SEAM. The Appellant is the only Curaror IV with this
speciaity. SFAM has two other Curator IV employees, Ms. Barbara Geib, Curator ['V-
Registration. and Mr. Timothy O°Bren, Curator TV - Exmbitions. All Curator [V
employees report 1 Mr. Abe Garfield, 0932 Manager I1*, Assistant Director-SFAM.

*Note: At the time thic complaint was filed apd ipvestigated, the Appellant reported directly to
Blake Swmmers and Mr. O’Brien was a Curator IIL

I
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Previous EEO Complaint #1343

In March 2008, the Appellant filed a discrimination complaint against SFAM alleging
denial of accommodation (refurn to work on part-time basis). On July 29, 2008, the
Human Resources Director issued her determination finding there was insufficient
evidence to substantiate the Appellant’s claim that she was denied accommodation.

The Appellant appealed the Human Resources Director’s determination and on
November 16, 2009, the Civil Service Commission granted her appeal. As a result of the
Commission’s determination, the Appellant received restoration of sick leave and
vacation leave.

Current EEQ Complaint #1371

The Appellant submitted 6 letters of complaint to the Department of Human Resources
EEO Unit (DHR/EEQ) between June 25, 2008 and july 11, 2008. In her letters of
- complaint, the Appellant alleges the following:

Al Denial of Accommodation- Alrport EEO .
Airport EEO denied accornmodation (phone headset, ergonomic work station). Appeliant
alleged that it took over three weeks for the department to provide her with the requested
equipment, impacting and hampering her ability to fulfill her job duties and '
responsibilities. Appellant also alleged that her accommodation request to telecommute
was denied without evaluation. ' '

B. Discrimination by Airport and DHR EEO

DHR/EEO and Ajrport EEO Division gave inconsistent, confusing and contradictory
explanations of the complaint process; exhibited a contlict of interest, lack of third party
impartiality and peutrality. :

C. Harassment due to Retaliation and Denial of Promotion — Blake Summers
The Museums Director was biased regarding ADA and accommodation; Appellant
worked in a strained work environment; isolation and deraal of promotion to 0922
Manager I on May 28, 2008,

D. Harassment due io Retaliation on_7/1/08 —~ Katlue Smookler

Harassment due io retaliation by Kathie Smookier, Executive Secretary to Blake
Summers, on July 1, 2008; when Ms. Smookler accused Appellant of undermining Blake
Sumrmers and physically blocked Appellant’s efforts to leave her office.

E. Harassment due to Retaliation and Disparate Treatment — Blake Sumrners
Harassment due to retaliation and disparate treatment by Blake Summers in the form of:

- 1) unfair and inequitable rezmment and scrutiny of Appellant’s timesheets, vacation,
Jeave and sick time usage and 2) diminished job responstbilities, restructuring and
reassienments after return from protected FMLA leave in 2008. Harassment due to
retaliation bv Blake Summers on July 9, 2008, when he accused ber of being 2 problem,
of being ‘complaint-happy’ and intimating that she should resign as her complaints were
evidence that she was not happy in the workplace.

See Exhibit C, Attachments A- A9 pages 66 - 266

&
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Allegations Not Investipated 7

Allegation A ~ Denial of Accommodation by Airport EEQ (ergonomic equipment and
workstation) was not investigated as Appellant was, in fact, provided with the requested
ergonomic equipment and workstation and her request for telecommuting was

considered, however the duties of her position required her to be at work to pian and
supervise special projects.

Allegation B — Discrimination on part of Airport and Department of Human Resources
EEO staff was not investigated as Appellant’s discrimination complaint (EEO complaint
# 1343) was processed in compliance with applicable Rules and policies.

Allegation C — Demial of Promotion

Allegation C was initially accepted for investigation but it was established that there was
no cause of action as there had been no selection process or appomtment for the (0922
Manager I-Aviation position as of the date of the Appellant’s charge. Therefore,
Appellant had not been denied a promotion, she had not suffered an adverse emplovment
action; and had not established a prima facie case of discrimination. See Exhibif C pg 34

Human Resources Director’s Determination _ .

On September 25, 2009, the Human Resources Director issued her deterrmination that
there was insufficient evidence to sustain the Appellant’s complaint of harassment,
retaliation or disparate treatment. See Exkibit B, pages 28 - 34

The Human Resources Director found that the Appellant had not provided any specific
information regarding excessive or unreasonable scrutiny of timesheets or attendance;
that there had been no denial of leave, vacation or sick time usage; that the Appellant had
returned 1o work from leave to the same position and responsibility of performing special
_projects; that she had not been denied 2 promotion and that Kathie Smookler and Blake
Summers had not harassed or retaliated against her.

Mediation '

In January 2010, through DHR EEQ’s Alternative Dispute Resolution Program, both
parties agreed to enter mto mediation with Ms. Lucia Kanter St. Amour, Adjunct
Professor with Hastings College of Law-Center for Negotiation and Dispute Resolution.

Mediation sessions were held on:

Apnl &, 2010, a Pre-caucus Session;

Apnl 21, 2010, a Joint Mediation Session; and
Fuly 27, 2010, a Joint Mediation Session.

Mediation of the Appellant’s current charge was not ultimately achieved. However, both-
parties expressed an interest in continuing settlement discussions and Professor Kanter St.

Amour agreed 10 make herself available should ongoing mediation services be requested
by the parties in the future.

3. Issues on Appeal to the Civil Service Commission

The following 1ssues are before the Comrmission: -

3
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Allegation D — Harassment due to Retahation on July 1, 2008 by Kathie Smookler.

Allegation E — Harassment due to Retaliatton and Disparate Treatment 'by Blake
Sumimners.

Appellant’s Letter of Appeal — October 22, 2009

Appellant submitted a timely appeal of the Human Resources Director’s determination. -
However, Appellant did not provide any new evidence in support of her claims.

See Exhibit A, pages 14— 25
4. The Standards and Definitions
Harassment- Hostile Work Environment

The legal standards for a discrimination complaint under a harassment- hostile work
environment theory are:

The complainant is subject 1o physical, verbal or visual conduct on account of the
complainant’s membership 1n a protected category; '

The conduct 1s unwelcome: and _

The conduct is sufficiently severe or pervasive as to alter the condition of the
complainant’s employment and create an abusive working environment.

Retaliation
The legal standards for a discrimination complaint under the theory of retaliation are:

The complainant engaged in a protected activity:

The complainant suffered an adverse employment achon; and

There was a causal link between the protected activity and the adverse employment
action.

Discriminarion
The legal standards for a discrimination claim under a disparate treatunent theory are:

The complainant is the member of a protected category;

The complainant has suffered an adverse emplovment action; and

The complainant suffered an adverse employment action because of her membership in 2
protecied category.

3. Findings/Analysis

DHR/EEQ conducted a therough investigation incinding mterviewing relevant witnesses,
reviewing written information rom both the Appellant and the department, and gathering
other pertinent document. See Exhibir O Investigarive Report and Atiachments, pages 38
A7
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The following responds to the appealable issues in this matter:

Allegation D: The Evidence Is Insufficient to Show that Xathie Smookler subjected
the Appellant to Harassment due to Retaliation on July 1, 2008, for previously filing
a discrimination complaint against Blake Summers. :

A. Investigative Findings

In 2008 the Appellant planned to host a Fourth of July barbeque for SFAM employees.
She approached then-Curator 111 Tim O’Brien and asked if he would gnill at the barbeque
and Mr. O’Brien agreed. Mr. O’Brien stated Appellant misperceived that he was big on
grilling. While he was not opposed to grilling at the barbeque and he had agreed to grill,
he was not really interested in grilling at the barbeque.

Appellant had not advised Mr. Summers about the planned barbeque. Mr. O"Brien
thought Mr. Suminers, as Director of the Department, should be informed of the planned
Fourth of July barbeque. He asked Mr. Summers for permmission and Mr. Summers
agreed. Ms. Smookler, executive secretary for Mr. Summers, was also present when Mr.
O’Bnen brniefed Mr. Summers about the barbeque. Ms. Smookler asked Mr. O’Brien how
he felt about having to grill and he responded, “ok™. Ms. Smookler interpreted his
response as an mdication that he felt it was an imposition. '

Ms. Smookler already had concerns regarding previous barbeques organized by the
Appellant because they had either excluded certain staff or failed to give staff prior notice
of the event and had generally been scheduled for Friday, a day that neither she nor Mr.
Summers worked. Ms. Smookier was concerned that Appellant had taken it upon herseif
0 coordinate the barbeque without involvement of the entire department and had
1mposed on Mr. O’Brien by asking him to grill. - '

The next day, after another employee, Barbara Geib, Curator [V Registration told Ms.
Smookler about Appellant planning the barbeque, Ms. Smookler went 1o Appellant’s
office 10 discuss the issue. She asked Appellant why she hadn’t advised Mr. Summers -
about the barbeque, why she had designated Mr. O°Brien to grill, as she felt that Mr.

O’Brien felt put upon {by having to gnill). When Appellant stood up from her desk 1o

jeave the room, Ms. Smookler stood in the doorway and insisted that Appellant discuss
the siteation.

Appeliant departed the office and went to confide in Mr. O*Brien that she had had a very
unpleasant encounter with Ms. Smookler who had accused her of forcing Mr. O°Bren
nto something he did not want to do. Mr. O’Bren suggested they go speak with Ms.
Smookler. According to Mr. O°Brien, they approached Ms. Smookler and politely
discussed the miscommunication. He apologized if he had given any misimpression
regarding his being asked to barbeque and Ms. Smoolder apologized for over-reacting

and said, “let’s do 1t™.
See Exhibit C, pages 35 — 39 and Exhibit D, pages 351, 360
B. Analvsis

Ms. Smookler was aware the Appellant had filed discrimination cbmplaints agairist
SEAM and Mr. Swummers. The evidence demonstrates that Appellant was subjecied to
il =
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verbal conduct by Ms. Smookler which she found unwelcome. However, the evidence
also demonstrates that it was Ms. Smookler’s concerns of Appellant’s handling of prior
Fourth of July barbeques, along with her current assessment that Appellant had imposed
wpon Mr. (’Brien by asking him to grill and had inappropniately bypassed Mr. Summers
when planning a Department social event, that triggered her going to Appellant’s office
and accusing her of being sneaky, disrespectful and of undermining Mr. Summer’s
authority. The Appellant was not subjecied to verbal comments by Ms. Smookler because
she had previously filed an EEO complaint.

Additionally, as Ms. Smookler apologized to both the Appellant and Mr. O’Bnen and this
was a ope-time occurrence, Ms. Smookler’s conduct was neither sufficiently severe nor.
pervasive as 1o alter the ‘condition of the Appellant’s employment and create an abusive
working environment. See Exhibit D, pages 351, 360 '

Allegation E: The Evidence Is Insufficient to Show that Blake Summers subjected
the Appellant to Harassment due to Retaliation and Disparate Treatment in the
form of: 1) unfair and inequitable treatinent and scrutiny of Appellant’s timesheets,
vacation, leave apd sick time usage and 2) diminished job responsibilities,
restructuring and reassignments after return from protected FMLA leave in 2008.
The Evidence is Insufficient to Show that Blake Summers subjected the Appellant to
Harassment due to Retaliation on July 9, 2008, when he accused her of being a
problem, being ‘complaint-happy’ and intimating that she should resign as ber
complaints were evidence that she was not bhappy in the workplace.

A. Investigative Findings

Harassment due to Retaliation and Disparate Treatment by Blake Summers -Excessive
Scrutinv of Timesheets. Vacation. Leave and Sick Time Usage

Appellant submits that upon her retarn to work in Aprii 2008 she was 1astructed to sign
out and use vacation time when attending Burlingame Rotary Club Junch meetings. She
does not allege that other employees are attending such meetings and not being asked to
take vacation. Appetlant also made general allegations that she was being subjected to
eXcessIve SCrutiny.

The Airport Museumns timekeeping practice involved having employees report and 1mtial
hours worked or Jeave taken, on a weekly rimesheet. The Appellant returned to work
from leave in April 2008 to the same practice of signing in and intialing her hours
worked or leave taken. as all other SFAM employees.

The Airport Museums has designated forms for employees to use when taking sick pay or
Jeave. The Appellant returned to work from leave in April 2008 to the same practice of
using designated forms 1o request approved absence from work, as ail other SFAM
emplovees. All of Appellant’s requests for vacation. leave. and sick pay were granted.

Mr. Suminers recalls one instance where the Appellant’s recorded time did pot reflect her
absence 10 atiend a medical appowntment and he asked the Appellant about her recorded
time. The Appellant explained that she would be making up the time by either working
jate or corming in early. Mr. Sumuers was satisfied with her explanaton and did not sav
anvihing else about it. That 1s the only instance racalled by Mr. Summers where the
Appeliant was approached and asked about her recorded time. See Exhibir C — Siaff’
Report, pages 39 - 63 6 ¢
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Harassment due to Retaliation and Disparate Treatment— Diminished Job
Resnonsibilities, Restructuring and Reassionment

Appellant was on an extended medical leave from March 2007 — April 2008. The
Appellant returned to the same Curator I'V classification, the same work schedule, the
same reporting structure, and the same responsibility of being Curator in Charge of
Admimstration, which includes facilities maintenance and performing special projects.

The Department confirmed that five of Appellant’s previously assigned tasks were
reassigned during her medical leave to others and were not returned to Appellant upon
her return from medical Jeave. Four tasks were reassigned to the Curator of Registration

and one task was assigned to an employee hired specifically to perform that function. See
Chart: S Knudsen Duties and Responsibilities

Appellant was the Curator in Charge of Registration until December 18, 2006. When she
assumed the Curator of Administration position, she continued to perform four tasks from
Registration, When Appellant began her leave in 2007, those four tasks still needéd to be
performed, so they were reassigned back to the Curator of Registration. The Department
contends they were approprately assigned to Registration before and are appropriately
assigned to Registration now. See Exhibit E, pages 367 - 369

As identified in the Department’s contemperaneous listing of Appellant’s. duties and
responsibilities i March 2008 (See Exhibit D- Interview of Veronica Davis, page 359)
and clarifying the listing of Appellant’s duties and responsibilities as identified in the
Department’s responses of December 31, 2008 and March 6, 2009 (See Exhibir C, pages

49, 50), the Appellant’s duties and responsibilities before and after her leave are as
follows:

S.Knudsen Duties and Responsibilities

Assignments in 2007 Before Leave Assignments in 2008 After Leave Assignments Reassigped
Monthly insurance report to Risk ‘ To: Curator of Registration
Management.
1. FAMSF Conservation invoice To: Curator of Registration
adruinistration.
Exhibition Schedule updates on Excel. - . To: Curator of Registration
Exhibition Schedule updaf.es on To: Curator of Registration
Filemaker Pro. ' ‘
Arts Commission maintenance To: 3554 Associate Museum
i installations @ SFO. Registrar
'LMonthly report to Administration. : Monthly report to Admimsiration.
Monthly report 1o Blake Summers. - Monthly report o B:Summers.
Proofread label exhibition copy. Proofread label exhibinion copy.
Assist with exhibition inio to SFO | Assist with exhibition nfo 16 SFO

Public Affairs. : Public Affairs.

=
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Employee onentation packet/security
alarm/keys.

Employee onentation packet/security -
alarm/keys.

SFO Emergency Operations Gfoup.
SFAM Emergency Plan for WFR/SFO.
ChemPack Emergency Procedural Plan

SFO Emergency Operations Group.
SFAM Emergency Plan for WFR/SFO.
ChemPack Emergency Proceduratl Plan.

SFAM Collection Management Policy.

Other Administrative (Spruce St.
storage woventory/relocation; resolve
SkyFlights insurance claim; Terminal 2
exhibition gallenes ramp-up; SFAM
Collection Management Policy; AAM
reaccreditation preparations, etc.).

| AAM reaccreditation preparations,
other Administrative (Spruce St.
storage inventory/relocation)

Facilities Maintenance of WFR/SFO
(Kids® Spot repairs; electrical
lights/timer improvements: WFR

building improvements/expansion into

Facilities Mamntenance of WFR/SFO. unused quadrant. etc.).

In July 2006, prior to Appellant’s medical leave, the Department began efforts to request
a requisition for a 3554 Assoclate Museumn Registrar position. The 3554 requisition was
approved in August 2007. The Job Analysis for the 3554 position was conducted in
February 2008. Inter\news for the 3554 position were conducted in May 2008 and an
appointment was made in June 2008. The Department assigned one task related to the
Art Comrnission installations to this new position.

Prior to the Appellant’s medical leave in 2007, as the Curator W iz Charge of
Administration she was assigned fourteen (14) tasks, including the core functions of
facilities maintenance and spemal projects. Upon Appellant s return from the medical
leave 1n 2008, she returned to nine (8) tasks, mcluding the same core functions of
facilities maintenance and special projects.

See Fxhibit C — Staff Report, pages 49, 50

Harassment due to Retahiation — Meeting with Blake -Smn_mers on Julv 9. 2008

The Appellant is in charge of facilities maintenance which requires interaction with
maintenance staff. In or around Apnl 2008, Mr. Peter Acton. Facilities Deputy Director,
jnformed Mr. Summers that Electnic Shop staff were upset, complaining Appeliant acted
“bossv” and rude during their interactions. They complained she often demanded her
“work requests be attended to Imumediately, without consideration of existing prionity
assignments. Mr. Action told Mr. Summers he did not appreciate Complainant’s
mistreatment of his staff and that Appellant shouvld not directly coordinate projects and
interfere with the work to be performed. Mr. Surniners toid Appellant to “lay low™ and
not demand Facilities staff perfoin work bevond that required of ther.

In July 2008, Mr. Summers received a second complaint from Mr. Acton recardmo
Appellant’s interactions with the Carpentry Shop. Mr. Acton reported that Carpuntn staff
had complained the Appellant was rude to ihem and Mr. Acton requested that the
“Appeliant not have unnecessary interaction with his subordinate Taintenance siaff.

2
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On Juty 9, 2008, Mr. Summers met Wwith Appellant to discuss the feedback regarding her
interactions with maintenance staff. Appellant became upset and wanted detailed
information about who had complained and what had been said. as she contended she
gets along with everyone and she asked Mr. Summers if he had supported her in his
conversation with Mr. Acton, noting how she had supported Mr. Summers. Mr.
Summers did not provide specific details to the Appellant regarding which maintenance
employee had complained, as he did not want the Appellant to confront maintenance
staff, escalating a delicate situation.

Mz. Summers stated that his intention, in initiating the conversation with the Appellant,
was 10 relay the feedback from Mr. Acton and advise her to ‘keep her head down’ and
not have more interaction with the maintenance staff than was necessary. However, the
Appellant became defensive and insisted on knowing if Mr. Summers had supported her
1n his conversation with Mr. Acton. Mr. Summers stated that when the Appellant
protested that she had been supportive of im, he felt that was not a true statement and he
did make a comment regarding the complaints she had filed against him and he did
observe that she did not appear to be happy in her position: *“vou are unhappy here, Jook

at all the complaints you have filed, do you want to quit™ See Fxhibit D, pages 347 —
350 '

B. Analysis

Harassment due 1o Refaliation and Disparate Treatment- Excessive Scrutiny of
Timesheets. Vacation, Jeave and Sick Time Usage '

The Appellant did not provide any specific information regarding when or how she was
subjected to excessive scrutiny regarding attendance; or any specific information
regarding when or how she was uniquely scrutinized or questioned regarding ber requests
for vacation, leave or sick time; or specific information identifying in COmparison to
whom and how, did she feel she was excessively scrutinized regarding her attendance or
requests for approved absence from work. Additionally, the Department contends, and
the Appellant does not dispute, that Appellant’s requests for approved absence from work

were all granted. Appellant did not establish that she has been treated differently than
others. : :

The Department contends there was one occasion when the Appellant was asked to
clarify ber time as she had been out on a medical appointiment and her timesheet showed
no docurpentanon for Jeave. Once Appellant explained that she would stay late to make
up the fime, the issue was dropped. The fact that Appellant was asked on one occasion
about her time reporting does not rise to the level of being severe and pervasive conduct
as to alter the conditions of her employment and create an abusive working environment.

Harassient due to Retaliation and Disparate Treatment— Diminished Job
Responsibilines. Restructurine and Reassionment

It was established that the Department did make centain changes and reassigned certain
tasks and projects during the Appellant’s period of leave in 2007 1o April 2008, and that
those reassignments continued upon Appellant’s return from leave. Four tasks were
reassigned from Administration to Registration during Appellant’s leave and those tasks

remained with Registration upon Appellant’s return to work in April 2008.

15
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The Department provided a copy of the Appellant’s Performance Appraisal Report for
2005 to 2006 (See Exhibit F, pages 367 - 369) whben the Appellant was Curator IV in
Charge of Registration. At that time, the tasks of working with the City Risk Manager,
the Conservatlon Lab, and resp0n31b1hty for objects on loan for exhibition were part of
Registration. In December 2006, Ms. Barbara Geib assumed the responstbility of Curator
IV in Charge of Registration. At that ime, Registration was short-staffed, so 1t was
assistive to the Department that Appellant centinue to perform those Registration tasks
when she assumed the position of Curator in Charge of Administration. Tn 2007, while
Appellant was on leave, the Department had to make provisions 10 make sure those tasks
were still completed, so they were reassigned back to Registration. Upon Appellant’s
return from leave in 2008, those tasks remained with Registration as they were originally
Registration tasks and Ms. Getb was well able to resume responsibility for those
Registration tasks. '

The Department began efforts to add a 3554 Associate Museum Registrar position 1o
perform maintenance of Arts Commission installations to their bud.qet in July 2006, prior
to the Appellant’s March 2007 medical leave. In August 2007, the 3554 requisition was
approved the selection process was conducted in May 2008 and an appointment was
made in June 2008. The work performed by the 3554 employee, assisting in the handling
- and processing of objects acquired for collections and/or exhibitions, is a  task superwsed
by the Curator of Registration.

There was no evidence that the Department reassigned tasks during Appellant’s leave in
retaliation for Appellant being on leave or in retahation for Appellant filing a
discrimination complaint in March 2008. The Department had to make decisions as to
how to continue to complete assignments/tasks dunng Appellant’s extended medical
leave. In doing so, they identified those tasks which were more appropnately aligned
with Registration. Four of the tasks had been previously assigned to Registration so it
made sense to reassign them back to Registration. The other task was assigned to a 3554
emplovee who had been appointed to perform that task. Appellant, upon her return from
medical leave, continued to perform the core functions of her position, namely facilities
maintenance and special projects. The Appellant did not suffer any change in class, status
or any loss of pay. The reassignment of tasks, while maintaining the Appellant’s core
function of performing facilities maintenance and special projects, 15 not an adverse
employment action.

Harassment due to Retaliation — Interaction of Julv 9. 2008 with Blakt: Summers

In July 2008, Mr. Sumnmers received a verbal notice from a fellow manager, Mr. Peter
Acton that maintenance staff had complained of Appellant’s method and style of
interaction. As the Museums work depends on the cooperarion and assistance from

maintenance staff and as this was a second similar notice within a short period of tume,
the first being April 2008, Mr. Summers initiated a conversation with the Appellant on
Tuly 9, 2008, to discuss the feedback from Mr. Acton.

It was established that Mr. Summers did make comments 1o the Appellant tha
inappropriately coupied the fact of her protecied activity of filing a compiaint tooemvr
with speculation that she was not happy at SFAM and perhaps needed 10 leave City
service. Mr. Summers’ comments were a one-Time occurrence and were not rypeaLed
Additionallv, the evidence does not establish that the motvation for the discussion with N
Appeliant was her flling of previous compiaints; rather. the mpetus for Mr. Summers’ ' E
conversaton with the Am:)eJant on Julv 9. 2008 was Mr. Acton’s second complaint in

VO
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three months regarding Appellant’s negative interactions with maintenance staff. It was
Mr. Summers’ intent to communicate this feedback to Appellant so as to improve said
communications and ensure a positive working relationship with maintenance staff.

While Mr. Summers’ interaction with Appellant was very upsetting, it did not nse to the
level of being severe or pervasive as to alter the condition of Appellant’s employment or
create an abusive working environment. The evidence established Mr. Sumrmners did
make some mnappropriate references to Appellants filing of complaints, mferred that it
was evident she was unhappy and asked 1f she wanted to quit. However, the context of
the remarks were in response to Appellant’s defensive rebuttal to the feedback, denying
any responsibility, asserting that she got along well with everyone, demanding to know
who had made the complaint and asserting that Mr. Summers had not defended her. This
was a one-lime occurrence, it has not been repeated and Appellant did not miss work or
take leave due to the disagreement. Complainant suffered no-Joss of employinent,
demotion or other adverse employment action and she was not mntimidated or dissuaded
from subsequently filing another discrimination complamt.’

The Department recognized the seriouspess of a manager making these comments to an
employee who had engaged in protected actjvity and reissued key policies regarding the
night of employees 1o file discnmination complaints and the City’s prohibition of
retaliation. The Department also complied with additional corrective action regarding
Mr. Summers as recommended by the Human Resources Director 1n her letter of
determination dated September 25, 2009.

6. HR Director’s Determination

Following review of the investigative report, the Human Resources Director determuned

that there was insufficient evidence to support the Appellant’s charges of discrimination
(See Exhibit B, pages 28 — 34). In addition to the Airport’s re-issuance of applicabie

- department policies, the Human Resources Director also directed the Axrport to take

corrective action regarding Mr. Sumrmners for his behavior on July 9, 2008, and the

Department has done so. '

Mediation Sessions _

Further, by mutual agreement. Mr. Summers and the Appellant entered into facilitated
mediation sessions in 2010. These sessions allowed both parties to air and discuss
concerns and were assistive to their working relationship and SFAM as a whole.

7. Recommendation

For all the reasons set forth above, the Hurnan Resources Director:s decision should be
upheld and the appeal should be denied.

8. Notification

Ms. Glona Lowie, Airport EEO Manager
Sap Prancisco Intemational Airport
P.O. Box 8097 _ |

\ -+
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San Francisco, CA 04128

Ms. Susan Kim, Assistant Airport EEO Manager
‘San Francisco International Airport

P.O. Box 8097

San Francisco, CA 94128

Mr. Blake Summers

Director and Chief Curator - Airport Museums'
P.O. box 8097

San Francisco, CA 94128

Ms. Linda Simon, Deputy Director- EEQ Programs
Department of Human Resources

1 South Van Ness Avenue

San Francisco, CA 94103

Ms. Silvia Castellanos
Department of Human Resources
1 South Van Ness Avenue

San Francisco, CA 94103

9. Appendix/Attachments to Report

Exhibit A: Appellant’s Letter of Appeal, 10/22/09.

Eﬂﬁbit B: HRD Letters of Determination, 9/25/09.

Exhibit C: DHR/EEO _Staff Report and Attachments, 9/15/09

Extubit D: . Complainant Interviews, Witness Summaries — EEO #1371
Exhibit E: Appellant’s Perforrnance Appraisal Report-

Curator in Charge of Registration

\2



EEO INVESTIGATIVE REPORT

To: | Micki Callzhan _
- Human Resources Director

Through: Linda Simon,
Acting Manager, EEC Division
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EEOQ File No.: 1371
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Demnial of Promotion

- Basis: ' . Retzhation
Date Complaint Filed: Tune 25, 2008
Date of Rep51‘t: September 15, 2009

EEO Supervisor Signature
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1. _I'n_tfodtkc_ﬁon"

)

Complainant 18 2 PEX 3 40 Curator f\f with the San Francisco Airport Museums. She is -
2 lopgljme'ef*lpiciyee‘ of the Alrport Mu fuseums, starting m 19 90 as a Non Civil Service
3556 Museum Registrar. In 1997 Complainant was promoted to PCS 3558 St Mussum
Registrar and in 1999 she was promoted (0 PEX Curator IV, Cumrently, Co;; lainant is

Tesponsible for special prmects at the Airport Musewns.

L

b

Complainant aﬂeoes that she has been subjected to Re 1ation in the form of Harassment
and Demal of Promotion by her ma:xag 1, Blake Su.tamerh. DM cior and Chief Curator,

and Harass;ment b\ his execuizve secret ', Kathie Smookei
Prev OUS}V CﬁmplmmL has taken FMLA leave and filed-a discrimination ca:np}am‘i
aganst Blake Summers in March 2008.
2. Complaipant's ;fﬂlegﬁﬁcﬁs
A, Denial of Accomjnodaﬁeﬁ- Alrport EEO

+

Complainant filed ietiers of complaint dated Jume 25, 2008 and August 11 "GUS
against the Airport EEQ Office. CO‘”’l lainant alleges she was denied
accommodation (phone headset, ergonomic work station). Cun:plam_nf alieges

-~ that it took over three weeks for the department to provide her with the request ed
equipment, impacting and hampenug her ability to fulfill her job duties aﬂﬂ
TéSpOIlSibilﬁi&S. Complainant also zlleges that her accommodation requesi to
telecommute was denied by the department w ithout evaluation.
(See Exhibits &, A-1} '

B, Discrimipation by Atrport and DHR EEO ‘
Commamam filed letiers of complaint dated June 25, 2008 and Angust 17, 2008
i o

against Department of Human Resources and Airport EE arding
her pTE\lO».S co_uplazn of discriminat 10‘“ (pwu Lomplal_u lainant
ced there was inconsistent, confusing and centradiciory explanafions.ofthe -
' \Jorrpia,xm process; a conflict of inte eg‘; lack of third party impartiality and
neutrality.

(See Exiubits A- 7 A-3)
e J

O

Hearassment and D‘*r* of Promotbion — Blake Summers
Comp-amam filed lﬂ*ﬁe*"- of comnpiamt dated June 25, 2008, 9,
August 23, 2008, She alleges Musesums Direcior has con 'L:r 1ed bias

ADA and accommodation; she warks in a strained work env
and has been dered DIOmOn ion
(See Exhibits A4, A-5, A6

y
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-D. .'I-i’-*"assment and Relaliation on 7/ 1/08 — Kathie SmmLer

Complainant filed a letter of complaint dated July 11, 2008 211 eging harassment
by Kathie Smookler, Executive Secretary to Blake Sumrp TS, oD Julv 1,2008.
Ms. Smookler accused Complartant of u Lndenn_mnc B’a\e Summers and
physically blocked Complainant’s efforts to leave the offize.
' (_Si Exhubit A-7) :

e

Harassment. Disparate Treatment a_Jd Retaliation on 7/9/08 ~ Blake Summers
Unfair and inequitable treatment and scrutiny by Blake Summers; diminished iob
responsibilities, restructuring and reassignments. Harassment and reialiation” by
Blake Summers on iuly 9. 2008, when he acc:Lsed her of being a problem, of
being ‘complaint- -bappy’, lntimating that she should resign as her complaints were

evidence that she was not bappy 1n the workplace.
(Se Exhibit A-8)

C ompjamqm submiited a Summation of her CODPI&;IILS dated Sepiember 16, 2008.
(See E LA_D} bit A- 9)

COD.'lD ainant eks the fo 1 owing relief:

That workplace harassent cease and desist,

That she be granted promomon with applicable baCR‘p"‘\ senio t&

‘That she be reassigned to another comparable position within the department.

SRR N R

(See Exhibit C- Charge of Discrimination)

3. . Allegations Not Investigated
Allegation' A. ~ Demal of Accommodation by Airport EEO (ervo“OT‘g GliiDIIl_GIlE and
W’?TkSLa.TAOD} was pot investigated as Complainant was, in fact, provided with the
requested ergenomic equipment and workstation:

Chronology of Reauest for Accomrnodaﬁon'

5/10/08 - - - | Date of Complainan s Request for-Accommod

- "smdardlzadoﬁ'-;»“;‘i;olh SENGT PAOHE | heaam;'
woik schedule toznclude 1 to 3 minute breaks ev

applicabie. Possible telecommuting.” ' ' ‘ :

3714708 Co—n.nlanant s Regu or Accomrnodation is r ce*\»eo by Almport !:,tO
3/19/08 Complainant meets with 2 rport bz@ staff Susan Kim 1o review her

request for ergonomic Pcu:* ent and workstaton. ‘;

Le)
t2
h
-
o0

Arrport EEC contacts Complainant’s Health Care Provider Tegarcs:
ComplamaQa s reguest for ergonomic equipment and workstation.

Con HO | | o -
2
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3/27/08 Airport EEO writes to Complainant: periodic breaks can be incorporated
into woerk day; an ergonomic workplace évaliation has been scheduled;
Telecommuting would not be compatible with duties and responsibilities as
Complainant needs to be at work to plan and supervise special prmect:. and
activities as assigned.

4/2H08 Comiplainant returns to work from leave

4/2/08 Ergonomic eva}uatio_m of Complainant’s workstation 1s conducted.

g P

4/3/G8 Ear/Headset mnstalled.

'4#1/08 Airport Carpentry, Health & Safety assess Complainant’s work station.

4/4/08 Complamant provided with temporary book stand with slant featur

4/4/08 Airport EEO updates Complainant re PIogress of request. Tnforms
Complainant department is working expediticusly to put requested items in
place. Advises Complainant that if she feels current work site is causing
ds.SCODlLGIL recommended she ‘:top working until desk and chair have been
delivered. Advises Complainant of option of additional leave until
requested items 1n plag

4/7/08 Axrport EECQ advises Complainant larger ergonomic desk has heen ordered

' and will be shipped 4/6/08.

4/7/08 Complainant visits The Chair Place. Ergonomic chair that ﬁnﬁ,lq
speciiications located. .

4/15/08 Purchase Order for Complainant™s Chair is approved.

4 ‘Reguested ergonomic equipment is m pla

e

Allegation B. — Discrimination on part of A;'u—pmf‘ nd

EEO staff was not investigated as Complainant’s d;scm'_m_m

complaint #
policies.

X

343) was, in fact, processad in com:hance with appli

(See Exhibit B)

Allegations Investigated :
Allegations C— E were mmvestigated and are the subject of this report.

2z
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4. Relevant Background

‘Complainant is 2 Curator IV in the Airport Museums in charge of Administration and

Museum Programs. She is responsible for special projects and duties as assigned. She
has no direct reports and reporis directly to Blake Summers, '

Curator IV Workforce | ,
There are three Curator I'V employees at the Airport Museums:

Name . . Title
1. Complamant . Curator 1o Charge of Administration.
2. Barbara Geib : Curator in Charge of Registration
3. John Hill | Curator in Charge of Aviation
5. -Departmental Responses

The Department denies that Complainant has been subjected to harassment, retaliation or
been denied a promotion. ‘ ' ' ‘

) : Department’s First Response
On December 10, 2008, a Notice of a Charge of Discrimination and a Request for -
Information was sent to the Department (See Exhibit D). The department’s first response
15 dated December 31, 2008. Ms. Susan Kim, Assistant Manager Amrport EEQ responded

 for the department (See Exhibit E). _

7 , Departiment’s Second Response ‘
The department submitied a second response dated March 6, 2009 (See Exhibit H).
Specifically, in response to Complainant’s allegations, the department contends that:

Change of Work Assienments - Complainant’s work assignments can vary depending on

e department seeds. To meet gperational tieeds, cerimrwork assionments were ™~ T

reassigned while she was on leave and remained reassigned once she retirned from leave. —
FHowever, she continues to perform the essential functions of her position, i.e. special
projects.

Limesheets. Reauests for Vacation, Sick Time - Compleinant was asked to account for

her time i ope instance. Complainant has not been deniad any use of reguested fime.

Complainant uses the same timesheet for attendance as everyone else within the Ajrport
Museums (See Exhibit 1.

Incident on 7/1/08 - Kathie Smookler did behave inappropriately towards Complainant
onJuly 1, 2008. Ms. Smookier apologized to Complaimant the same day, and thers has
been no repetition of inappropriate behavior. Ms. Smookler does not supervise -

2%
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Complainarnt, and the interaction between both emplovees has been cordial and.
professiopal.

Incident on 7/9/08 — Blake Summers atiempted to have an honest discussion with'
Complainant on July 9, 2008, His intentions were not to upset her but to comlruue,ahc
- concerns from otber staff regarding Complamam methods of interaction.

Allegation of Denial of Promotion - Co;:lp amment has not bv denied a promotion.
Blake Summers reguested  position substitution in the departr: em’s buc‘lg t, which was

approved. The position substitition involved the Curator IV duties currently performed -

by the Curator of Aviation. Based on the level of rﬂSpOﬂSlb,f\ a more appropiiate

classification for the duties performed by the Curator of Aviation 1s Manager I Once the
position 1s open for application, Complainant will be free 10 apply. At no time, currently

or Dl'eVLJL_J\’. did Blake Summers promise or imply that he would propese or request a
promo ve reciassification for Complainant.

6. Investigative Standards

The applicable standards for discrimination in this matter are:,

- Harassment- Hostile Werk Epvironment Standard

1. The Complainant 1s subject to physical, verbal or visual CO'idhCT on azccount of the
C O""ﬁplmaﬂt s membership in a protected category; '

2. The conduct is unwelcome; and

2. The conduct is sufficiently severe or Dvﬂ’ﬁSlV 55 10 alter the conidition of the
Complainant’s employment and create an abusive working environment.

Retalation ) :

1. The Complainant engaged in a protecied activify:
2. The Complainant suffered an adverse employment action; and
3. There was z causal link between the protecied activity and the adverse employment
action. .
Disparzaie lreahment ,
- ImThe-Complainant s amemberolaprotecied categoryy -~ — T
2. TheContpiainatt has Suffered an adverse emploviient acion; zZnd S
3. The Complainant suffered an adverse empioyiment action because of his or her
membership in & protected category.
7. The Investigation
8. The Investigative Process
Ar intzke mLer»fiei with the Complainant was held on September 17, 2008, The
Complainant Im on D‘Pcemhe* 8, 2008 (See Esxthibit C).
DATE 3 fﬂ*mmym PROCESS §
12410/08. | Charge of Discrimination and Rat_ues: for Tmo mation sent to Alrport
' (Sze Exhibit D)

St
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12/31/08 Department submitted response to Request for Information.
(See Exhibit E)

01/12/08 Fact-finding interviews conducted.

(1/12/09 Complammt perbonnel file reviewed.

Meeting with Comp]ainant and Representative to review information
gathered. Complainant was afforded opportunity to rebut erartm\,m s

position.
02/01/09 Complainant submitied rebuital staiement.
(Se Exhibit F) ' '
02/12/09 ™. Request for Information sent to department.
‘ o { Qeﬁ Exhuibit G) :
02/20/09 Additional fact-finding interview conducted.
03/04/09 Additional information obtained from Airport Budge’{ Ofﬁce.
03/06/0% Department submitted response o 2”“ Request for hformatmn
o ' (See Exhibit H) :
3/27/09 Meeting with Complainant and REpresentatwe to review information
' gathered and afford Complainant opportunity to rebut department’s
position.
g. Findings of Fact

Allegation C:
Complainant’s work assigoments were. redefined and restructured, key duties vrere
reassigned to others and she was placed in a supporting role. Complainant’s
timesbeets and requests to use vacation and sick pay kave been unduly scrintinized

Upen her remrﬂ to work from FMLA leave in April 2008,

Summarv of Re] evant Evidence:

1.

Complainant's Written Complaints

6/25/88 Letter
Complainant’s letter of 6/25/08 contends that upon I‘\ILTD.II}U te work on April 2., 2008,
she was subjected to discrimina: tory attitade and actions by SUPErviSor, uniair and
inequitable treatment and scrutiny; diminished job responsibilities and restructuring and
reassignment; continied bias regarding ADA and reasonable accommodation, adversely

impacted, strained

1 work environment and conditions and isolation. Commlalna:h alleges

she was denied nromotlor:

{See Exhibit

A4

AH
z5

- _and questmnea Compiamdnt was. aemed promoﬁon ta-"rﬁianaoer | T NI
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7/9/08 Letter o
Complainant’s lettér of Tuly 0, 2008 &leses meqmmb e treatment and work assignment
disparity on part of Blake Summers. ' '
{See Exbit A - 5)

8/23/08 Letter , . :
Complainant’s statermnent of August 23, 2008 contends her work atiendance 1s exemplary,
while there is wide-spread abuse at Airport Museums and that since returning tc work on

- April 2; 2008 she has been instructed to sign out and use vacation when attending Rotary
Club of Burlingame lunch mestings; and she has been subjected to discrirninatory,

retaliatory and inequitable treatment and work assignment-disparities. Complainant

identifies that her daily and weekly hours have been questioned and scrutim.zed' that she
has been asked how she signs infout for the work day and told to change how she signs -
out; and Lhat she has been asxva about using sick leave versus vacation hours.

Demal of Promotion A

 Complainant recounts that on May 28, 2008, in a discussion with Blake Summers, she
learned that a 0922 Manager I position in the department’s budget for FY 08-09 was not
intended for her. Complainant recounts that when she quened Blake Suln_mers he
responded, * why wauld I promote you? You weren’t here for 2 year.” therubﬁ referrmc
negatively to the fact that she had been out on medical leave.

St

Complainant contends that the Manager 1 upgrade is intended for her colleague, John
Hall, the Curator in Charge of Aviation, a Caucasian male; and that 111 contrast to John
HlL she has consmwm]v been working out- of-class and exceeding work fesl;onslbmtws
and duties.

Complainant contends that Blake Summers had previously implied that he would request
a classification change with salary increase for her. Complainant alieges that she was
denied promGhon and subjected to gender bias, in retaliation for exercising her right to
FMLA leave and in retaliation for filing a discmmination commpiaint '“U&nST Blake

T Summmmers (Soe Bxhibit. Al S den e ——3

8/16/08 Sammation ‘ )
Complainant’s statement of Septenber 16, 2008 coniends that since her return to work in
2008, she found her core job responsibilities changed and Le duties such as:

+  Providing monthly insurance reports to Risk Management;
s Updating and managing Filemaker Pro and Excel databases,

were ng longer her responsibilifty,

Complainant contends she was placed in a supporting role instead of working directly
with Blahe Su.nmcrs to plan, develop and implement database mmprovement.

r 4

Denial of Prormotion ,
Complainant alleges that Blake Summers has fziled to in melude Ber in s12ff promotions.
Complainant comczas that in 2 conversation she had with Blaie Sufumers in b 'a'v' 2008,

—

HH
26 S
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he answered her query regarding staff promotions, stating “why would I promote you?
You haven't been here this past vear”, referring negatively to her FMLA leave.
Complainant contends that in 2006 she was promised a reclassification with salary

-Increase.
 (See Exhibit A-9)

© Charge of Discrimination

Complainant’s signed Charge of Discrimination form dated December 8, 2008 allege
that upon her return from leave in April 2008, her wortk assignments were re-defined and

‘restructurs

Demal of Promotion

Complainant alleges that Blake Summers denied her a promotion to (0922 M'an'ager I
while negatively referring 1o her abserce from work while she was on FMLA Leave.

(See Exhibit B)

2/1/09 Statement

Complainant’s statement of 2/1/09 contends she is the only Curator TV employee to have
her timesheets and use of vacation and sick leave unduly scrutinized and questioned.

Complainant contends that the following were the assignment changss she was subjected
to: ' : : : '

Duties and Responsibilities before Leave

Duties and Responsibilities after Leave

Facility management of 670 West Field
‘Road and all SFO exhibition and storage

sites.

CP told by Blake Summers not to generate
excessive work requests. Therefore, the

manner and method in which CP conducts

Morthly SFAM administrative reports.

these duties is hatnpered.

Monthly SFAM risk managemnent reports .
te exhibitions and permanent collection.

Liaison 1o FAMSF Conservation.

Updates and mainienance of SEAM:-
exhibition schedule/calendar on

| FilemekerPro and Excel.

Risk management, Conservation,

i exhibition activity log were delegated to __-

B.Geib. -

Updaies and maintenance of SFAM
exhibition activitv log on FilemakerPro and

Excel

Updates and maintenance of SFAM
coliection management FilemakerPro
databases.

e
23
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Security and alarms, being on SEAM
Emergency Call List for SFO, Fire, Police,
EOG. /

Special projects and assigninents (security
and alarm system upgrates, member of
Emergency Operations Group, re-roofing ~ |. - , )
1670 WFR, updating SFAM poiicies‘ B '

updating American Association of
Museums’ Facility Reports; relocation of
Spruce storage). .

CP retamed from Leave to find SFAM in
process of preparing for migration mto
updated; combined collection management
FilemakerPro datzbase. CP was instructed
toreport to B.Geib, Curator in Charge of
Registration and Julie Takata, Librarian,
and ask them for priority list and
assignments and kevp them aporised of her
work progress

FilemakerPro datascruby to prepare for

datzbase.

projected Sproing 2009 migration nto a new

Complainant contends that while there is managerial discretion o amend and alter
emplovee duties and resgomlbiues soch should fall within reasonable parameters, be
judicious and appropriate based on CCSE policies and proceﬂues _empl ovment and labor
contracts; organizational needs and available resources. — — '

Complainant contends that that upon-her return from April 2008 FMLA leave, her job

duties should have been virtually identical to those that she had before her leave. Instead,

Complainant contends that Blake Surnmers changed her job duties, altered and adversely

Jmpgonef% the Inieraction and relationship Complainant had with other staff and provided
Complainant with _nuonsmtem and confiicting direction regarding her work duties and
xpectations.

2zl of Promotion
. Co:_'lplain__w alleges that she was ﬂ*o:nmed in name only n 2006 from Curator n Charge
of Registration to Curator in Charge of Administration, he‘r current Curator [V
assignment. '

Z8
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Complainant alleges that Bleke Summers told her then that he would incorporaie a
promotion for her into the budget, at some futire time, and Complainant provided Blake
Summers with 2 preliminary JAQ and spreadsheet informatior.

In May 2008, when she queried Blake Summers about the Line item regarding a
promotion from Curator IV to Manager T and whether that applied to her, Blake Summers
responded, “why would I prorote you, vou weren't here last year?”. Complainant
contends this was an inappropriate comment and 1t violated FMILA and ADA standards.

- Complainant contends that her promotion from Sr. Museum Registrar to Curator IV in

11999 and from Curator in Charge of Registration to Curator in Charge of Administration
were due to her meeting and exceeding all job responsibilities and éssignmen_ts. By
contrast, Complainant contends that Mr. Hill has an established reputation of missed
deadlines and incomplete assignments. In Blake Summers’ mtent to promote John Hill,
Complainant contends that the Airport has a bias benefiting Caucasian males.

2. Interview of Complainant

Meeting 0£9/17/08 . _ .
This investigator met with Complainant and her representative on September 17, 2008.
Complainant stated that since her return to work from FMLA leave on-April 2, 2008, the
work environment and her working relationship with Blake Summers has shifted and he
has continued to be difficult. :

Meeting of 1/23/09 , : : . _

This imvestigator met with Complainant and her representative on lanuary 23, 2009,
Complainant did not dispuie that she returned from leave and resumed the same work
schedule as before her leave. Comiplainant did not-dispute that she continues to be

- assigned special projects. Complainant stated that managerment had exceeded ifs right to
reassign work duties. o

workplace as the reason he wouldn’t consider her for promotion, was a negative reference
and established his bias against Complainant taking EMT A leave.

Meeting of 3/27/09 .

This investigator met with Complainant and her representative on March 27, 2009,
Complainant did not dispute that her requests for FMLA had been granted by the
department. Complainant did not dispute that her chain-of-command has not been
" changed since hey return from leave. o

Complainant contends that her manager used an mappropriate “tone” when presented
with additional request for FMLA leave in the latter part of 2008 and that he demanded
specific informarion regarding her need for FMLA leave end that Complainant was
foreed to divulge additional information regarding her request. '

>4

Complainant contended that Blake Summers’ teference to her being absent Tom the .
p : g
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Complainant did not dispute that, in fact, a promotion for fellow. Cirator IV Jobn Hill had
not taken place, and she continied to contend she hiad been denied promotion.

3. . Department’s Response '

Written Response of 12/31/08

In the department’s written response of December 31, 2008, the depamnent denies that
Complainant’s work assignments have been wrongfully restructured since her return from
leave. The department contends that Complainant’s essential fimction as a Curator IV in
Charge of Administration is to perform special projects and duties as assigned.

Therefore, her assignments can vary depending on the needs of the deparirnent:

The department agrees that during Complainant’s leave of absence, certain projecis were
reassigped to other Airport stafi. The department also contends that upon her return from
leave, Complainant was assigned four special projects. The department contends that
while specific, particular special projects asmgn"’] to the Complainant may vary, the
essential functions of her Curator I'V position to perforin special projects, continue:

Complainant’s Wi ork Assienments Before/After Leave -

Asswnments Before Mareh 2087 . Assionments After March 2008
‘Monthly activities report to Administration. | ' ' '

Monthly report to Blake Summers.

Prooz::read label exhubition copy.

ASSiSi with exhibitior info to SFO Public On-going. No chenge.
Affairs. ‘

i
o’

s

| Facility Maﬁ?nance of West Fi eld__ R A
‘Road/ SFO — - . N .

Ermplovee orientation packet/security
alarm/keys.

SFAM Colisction Management Policy.

SFO Emergency Operations Group

involvement.

SEFAM Facility Reporis- SFO & ‘\RHR

A AM rezccreditation preparations.

e
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HVAC reports for IT cases.

Re-carpeting of West Field Road

| Tegistration area.

West Field Road security alarm system.

| Cleaning and reseaﬁﬂg of WF R-ha]lways.

Cle anmc and resealing of WFR Mezzamne
floors. =

SFAM Emergencv Plan for WFR and SFO

sites.

Painting perimeter of 670 West Field Rdad

Asszgnm ents Reasswned to Other Staff

Monthiy report to Risk Management.

| Assigned to B.Gieb during CP’s lzave.

FAMSF Conservation invoice

administration.

Assigned to B.Gieb during CP’s leave,

Exhibition Schedule Updates on Excel,

Assigned to B.Gieb during CP's leave.

Exhibition Schedule bpdates on
FilemakerPro.

Assigned to B.Gieb during CP’s leave.

Arts Commission maintenzance installations

at SFO.

Assigned to new employee hired
spectically to perform this task.

Kids™ Spot Repairs.

Assigned to R.Korclev, Museum
Preparator, during CP’s leave.

Electnical nghts and timer mprovement 10

TIT Cases.

Assigned to RKorolev, Museum

Preparator, duning CP’s leave,

’mto unused quadram

FR building impr O\’SII]EHLS/ERP@S;OD

Assigned to R_Korolev, Museumn

Preparator, dunfig CP’s leave,

Asszgnments Since Return from Leave

Spmce St storage move, Completed.
Data migration Filemaker database. - On going
Collection Appraisals REQ. On going.
Implement Collection Appraisals. On going.

"Denial of Promotion

The department denies that Blake Summers denied Complainant a promotion to Manager
1. The department responded that Blake Summers had not made any appointments to

0922 Manager I since 2005. In 2006, Blake Summers appointed Abe Garfield to

Manager 1. The appointment of Abe Garfield to Manager | was a reclassification from

3547 Curator V.

j=a

(See Exkibit F)

50
3
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Written Respon:e of 3/6/09

In the departiment’s response-of March 6, 2009, the depamnent 1dent1ﬁes that the
Cotnplainant continues to perform a variety of special projects and duties for the Airport
Musenms based on the needs of the department. The department responds that the
majority of Complainant’s assignments are the same and ongoing.

Certain projects, requiring immediate attent tion, were reassigned to cther staff during
Complainant’s leave. After Complainant’s return from leave, Blake Summers assigned
four special projects to Complainant: 1.) coordination of the storage move from the
Spruce Street warehouse location; 2.) management of the data migration filemaker
database; 3} management of the collection appraisals request for qualifications; and 4.)
implementation of the collection appraisals. No other alterauons have been made to
Complainant’s job duties and responsibilities.

Timesheets, ‘v"acaﬁon/ Sick Leave

The department’s written request dated March 6, 2008 contends that Complainant is not
treated any dif“erenﬂy in the matter of timesheets or use of vacation and sick leave, as
anyone else at the Airport Museums. The department contends that Blake Summers
recalls asking Complainant about her timesheet on ope occasion. In that instance,
Complainant left work to attend a doctor’s appointinent and her timesheet did not account
for the tirne she was absent from the workplace. Blake Summers approached
Complamart and Compldinant stated she would either come 1n early or leave late 1o make
up the hours. Blake Surnmers did not pursue the matter further.

Nogees”

Demal of Promotion :

The department endorses a policy of faimess and equality for employment and career
a.d‘va.DCSI'DSHL of all people without regard to race. color, religion, national origin, sex, age
or disability. The department denies the existence of any bias favoring Caucasian males.

The department contends that for Fiscal Year 2009 - 2010, the Airport Museurns . o
requested a position substitution of a Curator IV classification te 2 Manager L. Ifth . -
position substifition request is approved through the budget process, the 0922 Mmager i

eclassification will affect the 3546 Curator TV position held by John Hill, Curator in

Charge of nV“ ation.

“U:aw; I\/ of Avizhion Uut;e\

~ The aem“zmem identifies that the Curator [V duties as performed by John Fill are more

properly within Manager [ and mmvolve: '
« Direct and research development of ’“;‘pr"‘;i_m“t-?,}}“ ten exhibitions annually on
Adrport and aviation history for the Aviation Library and Louts A. Turpin-
Aviztion Museamn (ALM). ' B
s Suv_anfise work of Curator II in assisting with research and development of,

zviafion related sxhibitions.
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« Direct and research 1denuﬁcat10n and desanption of collection obJects Make
recommendations for acquisitions and continually assess the appropniateness of '
all aspects of the aviation permanent collection. .

« Liaise through outreach and public speaking. between the Airport commission

- and the arrhne/aviation/mmuseums community to increase awareness of the ALM.

*  Direct research of, and familiarization’ with, related collections of outside
organizations and private sources and 1dentify potential exhibition loan sources.

*  Organize, frain, and supervise the work of volunteers in the ALM.

= Retain membership with the collections Review Comumittee and the Oper aﬁonal
Scheduling Comlmttee -

The deparrment contends that, should the Manager I — Aviation position remain T_he in the

deparnnent s budget, a selection p Process Wﬂl be implemented and Commenant will be
able 1o compete for the position..

- (See Exhibit 1) -

Airport Museums Timesheet
The department submitted a copy of a Weeldv Attendance Report This sheet shows
* weekly attendanice for the Complainant and the two other Curator IV employees.

Employees sign in the number of hours worked per day and initial the appropriate box.
(See Exhibit T} :

4. Interview of Blake Sum_mers

This mvestigator. mtervzewea Blake sSummers on J anuarj, 12 2009 Mr sSummers stated
that certain database uDdatmg had been reassigned while Complamant was on leave, and
that since her return from leave, she had been assigned to conduct database clean-up. Mr.
Surnmers stated that there had been no change‘: 10 Complamani s decmmn—malung
responsibilities.

Mr. qum:r:m:rs stated that in making assignments of museums staff, he is guided ‘m the
needs of the deparlzment and those needs can shift and vary.

Mr. Summers stated that Complainant works mdppendently and that she had not
informed him she feels she’s been subjected 1o excessive scrutiny and interference and in
regards 1o fimesheet/sttendance, Mr. Summers recalled only one instance where he had
specifically asked her about the recording of her time, as her absence to aftend 2 doctor’s
appointment was not reflected on her timesheet,

Denial of Promotion '

Mr. Summers recalled that after Complainant returned from leave in 2008, she was

updating a monthly report and she viewed that he had upgraded a Curator ﬂ’ position to

Manager I. Mr. Summers recalled that C omplainant questioned him as to why the-
upgrade would be for Curator of n.\"l”UOB (Jobn Hill) and not her, |

33
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Mr. Summers stated that, unfortunately, it is a long-standing situation that the
Complainant does not like fellow Curator IV John Hill, and Mr. Summers indicated that
he was not surpriséd by her disparaging view of Mr. Hill. However, Mr. Summers stated
that the work performed by John Hill related to Aviation was more complex and mvolved
more responsibilities and, therefore, upgrading the pdsition to Manager [ was merited.

_ \/L Summers agre ed that'in his conversation with the Complainant regarding the mtent to
upgrade the Curator IV position in Aviation, he did make a statement-to the effect of
“Why would I promote you, you haven’t been here this past vear”. Mr. Summets stated
his statement was a factual observation, and it was not intended or offered. as a negative -

reference of Complainant’s leave (PIV;CLA)

Mr. Summers denies that he, at any time, implied he would seek to reclassify
Complainant’s posmon and/or promote her as Complainant alleges.

5. Airport Budget Otfice

© This investigator confacted the Airport Budget Office on March 4, 2009, It was

~ established that the department’s proposed FY2009/2010 Operating Budget did include a
position substifittion for 3546 Curator IV to (}922 Manager I Tne justification for this
request is the fodowmg

“Ome 3546 Curator IV to 0922 Manaeer I in AIREXHIBIT. When the San
Francisco Airbort Commission Aviation Library and Louis A. Twrpen Aviation Museum
opened in 2001, the scope of responsibilities for rhis position expanded to include the
management and oversizht of this new facility and related staff, These duries include
supervision of a staff of twe librarians and the Mugseum Manager. development of
aviation exhibitions. management of the Oral Hisiory Program. liaising with aviation
related support groups. developing the aviation collection primarily throueh donations,
vroducine educational programs and publications and representing the Director/Chief
Curator and Assisiant Director as needed ™ '

The AJIpOI“ Budget Ouuce identifies that the A;rport T\fluSa:u_ s request to reclassify the
Curator I'V i Aviation position was subzmt‘ed on Nowember 17. 2008.

6. FMLEA Ich Benefits ana Protection

The Family and Mecical Leave, Act promdes that an emplovee returning to work Tom an
FMLA/CFRA leave is entifled to be restored to the same position of emplovment (the one
keld by the emplovee when notice was given or the ieave comumenced) or 10 &n
eguivalent position with equivelent emplovee benefits, pay, anc other termns and
conditions of emplovrasnt. ‘

e
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Analvsis: .

~ Cormplainant has established that she engaged in the protected actjvity of taking FMLA
leave and that she returned to work from such leave on Aprl 2, 2008. The available
evidence on this matter establishes that Complainant returned to the same work schedule -
(alternate Fridays off) and the same reporting structure she had before she went on leave;
that she performed special projects before going on leave and that she resumed

b=l

performing special projects after returning from leave.

The department agrees certain projects were reassigned 1o other staff while Complainant
was on leave, but the evidence establishes that the majority of projects Complainant was
responsible-for, she continues to be responsible for. '

Complainant has not established that she was denied the seme or equivaiet{t Curator IV, .
. position, with attendant special projects, that she ‘occupied before she took FMLA Jeave
m 2007. E

Denial of Promotion ‘ -
The facts establish that there was no position open for application for which the -
Complainant applied and was not selected.

The Aviation Curator IV position was approved for reclassification to Manager I. The
reclassification was based on the level of responsibilities currently performed by the
Curator IV in charge of Aviation. Ifthe budget process allows for the reclassification to
proceed and the Manager [ position is announced and open for application, Complainant
w1l have the opportunity to compete and be considered for the position,

Complainant contends that Blake Summers should be seeking to re-classify her Curator
IV position. However, the Curator IV positions are significantly different in terms of
responsibilities. The Curator [V i Aviation manages a sizeable program and staff. The
Complainant’s Curztor [V posttion perforins special projects as needed.

Timesheets. Vacation — Sick Leave -
Complainant did not provide any specific examples of how her timesheets ‘or -

. vacation/sick leave requests were singled out for serutiny. Complainant acknowledged
she has not been denied any request to use vacation or sick pay and Complainant
acknowledged she returned from leave o the same work schedide she had before she -
went on leave. - ‘ '

ABegation D On July 1, 2608 Complainant was harassed and verbally
reprimanded by Kathie Smookler, Executive Secretary to Blake Summers. Ms.
Smoekler accused Complainant of undermining Blake Summers and physically
blocked Complainant’s efforts to leave the office. L

' Sﬁtaﬁm’rv of Réle vant Evidence: ..
B35
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1 Complainant’s Written Complaint

7/11/08 Letter

Complainant’s letter of July 11, 2008 relavs that on Juiv 1, 2008, in her office at the-
Adrport Musewmn’s, she was verbally harassed and repnman_ded by _ﬁathlu Smookler,
Assistant io Blake Summmers, and subiécted to physical intimidation by Kathie Smookler.

Complainf alleges that her effort to organize a staff barbeque with a colleague. Tim
O’Brien, was instead characierized by Kathie Smookler as being undenmmno sneaky
and chsresPemﬁL of Blake Summers '

Complainant ahecres that Kathie Smookler’s accusations on July 1, 2008 were exiremely
upsetting, such that when shé tred to leave her offic:e Kathie Smookier blocked her way.
Complainant alleges that as assistant to Blake Summers, Kathie Smookler is privy to
knowledge of confidential matters, such as Compla_nam s previous discrimination
complaint-against Blake Summers and, therefore, Complainant considers the incident of
July 1, 2008 with Kathie Smookler was retahatorv :

(See Exhlbu A- /)

9/16/08 Summation

Complainant contends that on July 1, 2008, Kathie Smookler, secretary to Blake
Summers, reprunanded and accused Complamant of being undermining, sneaky and
disrespectful of Blake Sumnmers and of placing a colleague, Tim O Bnen 0 an aWKwa_rd
position by including him in her effort to orgamze a barbeque.

Complainant contends that Kathie Smockler was angry, Lmreasonable and accusatory and
wouldn’t let Complainant leave her office. Complainant id‘emi'ﬁes that Kathie Smookler
subsequenﬂ3 apologized to her and Tim O’Brienon Julv 1, 2008, and Kathie Smookler
admitied that she had O\rer‘*eacted '

(See Exhibit A-Ol

2. Interview of Complainant

Meeting of $/17/08

This investigator met with the CemplamauL and her representative on September 17,
2008. Complainani stated that at approximately mid-day on July 1, 2008, Katne

Smockler, Executive Secretary to Blake Summers, came 10 her office, closed the door

and asked her a sesies of guestions regarding a planned Tuly 4 " Ba:r:ec;e.

Complainant coniended that Ms, Smookler’s questidﬁé involved:
¢ “Why are you organizing the BBQ7”
¢ “Why are you putiin g_
Complainant con tends th

ner words were Joud, angryv and

) in the position of mediator?”
de emEean)r \xas hostile Lnd La‘omstwc &uﬂ

uégem emtal. : . -
Ao

7
im O'Bren
’s
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At one point, Complainant contends that she stood up, with the intent to go to Mr.
O’Brien for assistance and clarification, and that Ms. Smookler wouldn’t let her leave the
office. Complainani contends that Ms. Smookler becarne increasingly upset and finally
stormed out of her office. Complainant then sought out M. O’Bren and they both went
to speak with Ms. Smoolkier. ' : ' '

Compla_ip\ant stated that after discussion, Ms. Smookler apoiogized to ther both and
asked if they needed auything for the barbeque. Ultimately, Complainant and Mr.
O’Brien decided not to have the barbeque.

Complaiant explainéd that “verbal harassment”, as she alleged in her lettersrof July 11,
2008 and August 8,2008, related to words used by Ms. Smookler that conveyed
harassment to the Complainant, such as “go-between”, “mediator” and “undermining™.

Complainant explained that “inappropriate discipline”, as she alleged in her letters of July

1, 2008 and August 8, 2008, related to the fact that Compleinant felt Ms. Smookler was

reprimanding her and passing judgement by stating that Complainant was undermining
Blake Summers.

Complainant explained that “inappropriate physical conduct”, as she alleged in her letters
of July 11, 2008 and August 8, 2008, related to the fait that Ms. Smookler closed the
door to Complainant’s office and blocked Complainant’s efforts to leave, while standing
in a confrontational pose (arms crossed).

3. Interview of Kathie Smookler

This investigator interviewed Kathie Smookler, 1452 Executive Secretary I, on January
12,2009. Ms. Smoockler stated that she has khown and worked with the Complainant
since 1990 Ms. Smookler indicated that, having known Complainant for as long as she
has, she felt she could have a frank end honest discussion about the planned staff

: *_bajbgquemQQOS _ L T AT . S e ol

Ms. Smookler explained that Blake Summers is not as interested in social events as he is
in ensuning that the work of the Museums is gefting done. Ms. Smookler explained that
previous staff barbeques have not been well planned or organized and not evervone was
invited which resulted in certain staff feeling excluded. Also, Ms. Smockler explained
that at & previous staff barbeque, 2 staff member had cuf himsel€ badly. Ms. Smookler
pointed out that Facilities Maintenance staff have a barbegue and Mussuoms staff could
attend that function.

Ms. Smoolder stated that on June 30, 2008, Tim O Brien had come by the office to speak:
with Blake Stmmers, that she was also present, and that Mz, O’ Brien had asked for
permission for the barbeque to take place. Ms. Smookder indicatad that Mr. O’ Brien is -

~

1elt pressured to participate and pressured to

37
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staff the gnll Ms. Smookle:r thought it odd that Complamant herselfbad not come by to
ask for perJ:m351 on and so Ms. Smookler approached her the next day.

Ms. Smookler stated that based on her many years of working with Complainant, she -
thought she could speak plainly. Ms. Smoolkler stated.that she asked the Complainant
why she hadn’t approached Blake Summers directly, as Tim O’Brien was put into an
uncomfortable pesition. Ms. Smookler stated that she asked the Complainant why and
how it was decided that Tim O’Brien would be stationed at the grill, as Tim O’Biien felt

_put-upon and felt he couldn’t refuse when Complainant approached him about planning

the barbeque. Ms. Smookler stated that she did stand by the door in Complainant’s
office and that she did insist the Complainant speak to her about the barbeque. '

Ms. Sroookler stated that she recognized her behavior and actions were inappropﬁa‘_ce and

she did subsequently apologize that day, twice, to both Complainant and Mr. O Brien

4. Deparl:nem’s Response

. Written Response of 12/3 1/08

The department’s written response of December 31, 2008 identifies thaI du.rmg the week
of July 1, 2008, Timothy (O’ Brien, Curator 111, approached Blake Summers about a

barbeque being coordinated by the Complainant and he asked Blake Summers’ approval

tc grill. Ms. Smockler was present in: the office at this time. Both Blake Suramers and
Ms. Smookler had been unaware that this event was being planned.

Ms. Smookler asked Mr. O*Brien if he wanted to grill the food, as requested by the
Complainant and he answered “not really” and stated thai while he wouldn’t vohnteer to
be the cook, it wasn’t a huge imposition either. Both Ms. Smookler and Blake Summers
were not scheduled to work the day of the planned event.

The next day, Ms. Smookler went to Complainant’s office and she did use words such as
*“undermining” and “disrespectful”, but her intent was 16 communicate the need to keep

- Blake Summers informed-of-such-eventi—Ms-Smookler-also-voiced-her-opinion that it-

was inappropriate for Complainant to delegate Mr. O’Bren to be the cook as he had not

-volumteered for the task and he had more pressing matters to attend to.

Ms. Smookier admits that she was upset and that she stood m the doorway of

C’Gmnia_inaﬁ’c office when Complainant got up to leave the room.. Ms. Smockler stated
that she was atiempting 1o discuss the situation openly and that she commumicated several

times that she smpl} wanted to speak with the ComplmahL,

Subsp‘c ugn‘_‘“ Ms. Smooh& did zpolegl ze for her behavior and the matier appeared 1o be

resolved, though the event was subsequently cancelled. The denartment denied that this

Jl?’:r.wum amounted 1o harassment. ’ ’

See Exhibiz E)

,L‘T'_st;
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5. Interview of Timothy O’Brien

This investigator interviewed Mr. O°Brien on January 12, 2009, Mr. O’Brien is a 3544
Curator 11 with the Airports Museums. His responsibilities include conducting research
- and writing reports regarding exhibits, consulting with the department’s curatorial board
regarding possible exhibits and effecting loans of objects to the Museum. Mr. O°Brien |
reports 1o the Assistant Chief Curator and to Blake Summers. Mr. O*Bren Supervises a.
Curator I emplovee. o ' .

Mr. O’Brien described that he has a good working relationshiﬁ with the Complainant and
Ms. Smookler. Mr. O’Briea described the Airport Museumss as a very small workplace
and he prided himself on getting along well with everyorne. . ' :

While a small workforce, Mr. O’ Brien stated that the Alrport Museums is not a
workforce known for social networking. Previous social events among employees have
been informal and Complainant has been responsible for mitiating social events. .
Previously, Mr. O”Brien staffed the grill at other barbeques and he felt that Complainant
may have misperceived that he was invested somehow, in being the person to do the
grilling.- Mr. O’Brien stated that Complainant approached him about the Fourth of J uly
Barbeque and he said “OK”, even though he was not really interested in doing that.

. Complainant told him that she would bring the meat and he suggested that other staff also
be asked to bring contributions. ' o

After speaking with the Complainant, Mr. O*Brien did approach Blake Sumimers, as he -
was the manager and Mr. O’Brien felt it was important to let him know what was
intended and receive his approval. Blake Suromers was in his office with Kathie
Smookler when Mr. O"Brien talked to him about the barbeque plans. Blake Summers did
not object and Mr. O’Brien recalled that Ms. Smookler perceived that he was being put-
upon, in being asked to do the grilling, though he indicated it was not a big deal.

Subsequently, Complainant came to see him and she was clearly upset, her voice was

- -shaky, and she told-him that-she’d had-a-very unpleasent-encounter with-Ms- Smookler— — -
Complainant relaved to him that Ms. Smookler claimed he was being forced into
participating in the barbeque. He suggested that they both go and speak with Ms.

- Smookler to clarify any misunderstandings.

Mr..O’Brien stated that both he and Complainant went to speak with Ms. Smookder at her
desk, where they politely discussed the miscommunication and he apologized for any
Impression he might have given regarding his participation in the barbeque. Mr. O’Brien
stzted that Ms. Smookler apologized to them both for over—reacting. Mr. O’Brien stated
that at that point, he was not comfortable going forward. Complainant felt the same way
and they both decided that ibey would not have the barbeque.

Mr. O’Brien stated that the Airport Museurns 1s a very professional work environment

with a diverse range of work styles among the different duties being performed, Mr.
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O’Brien characterized both the Complainant and Ms. Smookler bas being “strong o : 7
personalities”, and he regretted if there was anything in his commmunication be‘fween the ‘
two women that restilted-in; or added to any confusion or nnscommumcatzon,

Analysis:

There is no dispute that Ms. Smookler and Complainant did indeed have a very
unpleasant interaction on or about July 1, 2008. Ms. Smookler admits that her behavior
was inappropriate and unproiessional and all partles do agree that she did subsequently
apologize for the way she acted. ‘

Complainant and Ms. Smookler continue to have a professional, cordial working
 relationship. The interaction in Complainant’s office was a one-time occurrence. 'Ti has
not been repeated. This one-time incident does not rise to the level of bemg severe and
pcrveqve S0 as to estabhsh hostile work envuonmmt harassment

While Ms. Smc_}older: as conﬁdem‘:ial secretary to Blake Sum'mers; was-aware of
Complainant’s protected activity of filing a-discrimination complaint against Blake
‘Surnmers, there is no evidence that her behavior towards the Complainant on or about
July 1, 2008 was as a result of Complainant’s engaging in that protected activity.

Allepation E: On July 9, 2008 Complainant was confronted by Blake
Summers, who accnsed her of being a problem, of being ‘complaint-happy’, of
intimating that she should resign as her complaints were evidence that she was not
happy in the Workpiace

R

Summary of Relevant Evidence:
1. Complainant’s Written Complaints

" 7/11/08 Letter
Complanant's letier of July 11, 2008 alleges harassment and retaliation on part of Blake
Summers. Complainant alleges that on July 9, 2008, Blake Summers subjected her to
unwelcome, and offensive conduct, verbal harassment, intimidation, slander,
unsubstantiaied accusations, derogatory comments, denial of request for third-party
Witneéss 2 _J:d reizliztion for filing & previous discrimination complaint.

Cnmp'ananf recounts that on fu_h 9 2008, Blake Summers told her he had recerved &
complaint about her from Carpeniry staff, but did not provide her with more mformation.
Previousiy, Blake Summers had LOld ber in April 2008 that he had recaived 2 complamt
about her from Electrical staff, but also did not prowde her with any mfermation.
Complainant contends that o ] Tuly 9, 2008 Blake Summers told her he hacd e difficult
time supporting her, given her reputation for bemng difficult to with and not getting along
with others. Complainzant contends tnﬁ' on July 9, 2008, Blake Surtirners told ber to come

. 09 )
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into his office and then subjected her 1o unwelcome and offensive conduct and behavior
which included verbal harassment, slander, unsubstantiated accusations, derogatory

- comments, denial of request for thud—parrv witness and retahahon for her prevmus
complaint against him.
See Exhibit A-8)

9/16/08 Summation

- Cornplainant’s staternent of September 16, 2008 alleges that on July 9, 2008 Blake

- Summers asked Complainant if she had had any altercations with Carpentry staff becanse
the Assistant Deputy Director of Anport Mantenance had contacted him with a
complaint about Complainant from Carpentry staff. Complainant contends Blake
Summers would not give her addmonal details about the complatnt.

' Complamant alleges that she told Blake Sumimers T_hat hearuzcr about vague
. unsubstantiated complaints against her was becoming a disturbing g pattern, as he had told
her in April 2008 about complaints about her from the Electncai staff.

Compiamant allegeb that BlaLe Summers told her there had been several 51gmﬁcant .
complaints against her. Once in his office, Complainant alleges that Blake Summers told
her she was difficult to work with and that everyone knew she was difficult to work with. .
Complainant alleges Blake Summers told her he had a difficult time supporting her
against Carpentry staff’s complaint against her, as she was “comp]amt~happy and noted -
the discnmination complaints she had filed. When Complainant asked for their meeting

to 1nclude a third-party witness and participant, Complainant alleges Blake Summers told
her he “wasn’t going there™. ’

Further, Complainant alleges that Blake Summers told her, “You’ve been a problem from
the get-go” and that her actions, behavior and tone of voice were a contmual problem.
Complamant alleges Blake Summers told her, “Don’t sit there all proper.” He told her, “1
can’t change you, you never listen, 1 have been your strongest advocate.” Complainant

alleges Bleke Summers told her, “You’re urhappy here, lock at the number of bompla_mts
you've filed, do you want to quit?”, :

_ Compla..nam states she was comipletely devastated by the discussion with Blake Summers
on Tuly 9, 2008 and she contends he was resentful of the complaints she had filed and
zmphed strongly that he wanted her to resien (See Exhibit A - 9.

2/1/09 Statement

Complainant contends that Blake Summers hare;sed her on July 9, 2008 with
unpr ofessional, inappropriate and unwelcome comments which were offensive and
indicative of his desire that she resign. Complainant contends that she left Blake

Suramers® office concemned a’oom her current and future employment with the Cﬁ} .
. (See Exhibit F) :

2. Interview of Complainaﬁt '
SN 11
“L
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Meeting of 9/1 7/08

" This investigator met with the Complmnant and her representatwe on September 17,

- 2008. Complainant alleges that on Juiy 9, 2008, she went to Blake Summers® office, -
- after he had come by her office while she was on the phone. At the doorway to his
office, Blake Summers asked her, “have you had an altercation with Carpentry?”,

Blake Summers explained that he had received a complaint from Carpentry staff about

* her. He asked her what involvement she’d had with Carpentry staff and Complainant
answered that she’d had very litile involvement.  Complainant asked for more details of
the complaint and Blake Summers said-he didn’t have more details. Blake Summers then
said there had been ‘several” and ‘numerous’ complaints about her. Complainant alleges
that Blake Summers then asked her to close the door and Complamant did so and sat
down. : :

Complainant stated that she asked him if he had backed her. Complainant alleges that
. Blake Susnmers responded that he had a difficult ime supporting her, that he said, “Took
at 21l the complaints you've filed. You’ve been a problem since we were at El Cammo.
A problem from Day Ome: Look how complaint-happy you’ve been™.

Complainant alleged that as he spoke, Blalcé sSummers’ voice was raising and his tone -
was becoming confrontational. Complainant became concerned and asked to have
‘someone else present, and Blake Summers refused her request.

'Compl'a'iﬁant has to sit a certain way to be .COmjor‘s:ab}e.‘ Complainaﬁt stated that Blake
Summers made a comment regarding the Way she was sitting, Complainant alleges that
he told her, “don’t sit there, all proper...”. Complainant asked him why she was just now

hearing about problems with her. Complamant 2lleges that he continued with his ‘tirade’,

saying, “look at the number of complaints you've filed, you're unhappy, do vou want to
quit?”. : S S

Complainant stated thet she was shocked and offended at hearing Blake Sumrers
basically sav he wanted her out. Complainant excused herself, suggested that they
perhaps have another meeting and left work early that day. -

-3. Department’s Response

Written Response of 12/31/08 E
The department provided a written response dated December 31, 2008. The departinent
states that in July 2008, Blake Summers had received a verbal complaint from the
Facilifies Deputy Director, Peter Acton, regarding Complainant’s mmiteraction with
- Carpentry staff. The department agrees that Blake Summers did not provide
Complatmant with specific details of the compleint, such as which staff had made the .
complaint, as-he was-concerned that Complainant would directly confy front staff and
‘aggravate the situation.

wo | : 61 gt
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The department contends that the nature of the complaints were incidents where
Complainant acted rudely and imperiously to Carpentry staff: such as referring to the
Muscums department as “my house”, and stating to Carpentry staff that she would write
to the Airport Director to get bigger carts for Carpentry staff.

The department contends that Mr. Acton’s complaint was not the first that Blake
‘Summers had received about Complainant from Facilities staff The department contends
that previously, Electric Shop staff complained that Complainant had acted rudely and
was “bossy” in her interactions with staff and that Blake Surhmers had counseled her not .
to ask Facilities sﬁaﬁf to perform work that they were not required to perform. There were
complaints that Complainant would often demand that her work requests be'attended tg

immediately, without considening other priority assignments.

The department contends that Blake Summers sought to have a frank and honest
discussion with Complainant about her interactions with staff and denies that the inient
was to harass or intimidate her as a form of retaliation. The departinent contends that
Blake Summers did ask Complainant whether she was happy at her job, but that he did
- not accuse her of being “complaint-happy”. * -
(See Exhibit E) -

Written Response of 3/6/09 : L

The department contends that after receiving a second complaint from the Facilities

Division regarding Complainant’s interactions with staff, Blake Summers did meet with

Complainant in July 2008. The purpose of the meeting was to commumicate and address
~ complaints received by Facilities stafl alleging rude behavior on part of Complainant. -

" The department denies that this necessary communication by Blake Summers was in any
way harassing or in retaliation for her previous discrimination complaints or for taking
FMLA leave, or as a result of her disability status. '

(See Exhibit H)

Re-distmbution of Airport Executive Directive B ,
- On February 5, 2009, the department’s Executive Directive 99-05 was re-distributed to
Senior and Management Airport staff. - g

The Executive Directive 99-05 involves the discrimination complaint process and
reaffimms the rights of emplovees to file a complaint. The Directive also reaffirmed the
prohibition regarding retaliation for having made a complaint. |

(See Eatibit T) | |

4. Interview of Blake Summers

terview of 1/12/09
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This investigator interviewed Blake Summers on January 12, 2009 Mr. Summe:rs stated
that he received a call from Peter Action, the Facilities Director, who basically asked that
the Complainant be kept away from his staff. ‘Previously, Mr. Summers stated that he :
had gotten feedback frorn Facilities staff that they were not happy with Complainant and -
he had asked her to keep a low profile.” With this second complaint, he spoke with her
_ again. Mr. Summers stated that she was upset that he hdd not been supportive of her and
that he wouldn’t provide details of the complamts ' '

“You are unhappv here, look at all the complaints you bave ﬁled do vou want to quit??
Mr. Summers stated that yes, he had made that statement. He stated that it was in the
context of Complainant protesting that she gets along with everybody. He felt that he

- needed to speak ﬁank}y to her. ' '

“complaint- hapol
- Mr. Summers did not recall using these words, rhoubh he acknowledoed that the ‘jist” of
it was true and it was based on her ready solution'to complain to the Airport Director |
about a cart for Carpentry, and her attempts to complain on part of others (such as Tim
‘(' Brien), and her own complaints. :

“Jon’t sit there all proper’” _ '
Mr. Summers was not certain he made such a comment, he stated he probably had but
was not certain. |

“problent from Dav One”, “can’t changaj: yoi, vou never listen”™
Mr. Summers stated that yes, he might have made those comrments.

Mr. Sumnmers stated that he considered himself a mentor 1o the Complainant and he was

“attempting to give her honest feedback about herself and her method of interacting with
others and how others perceive her. However, Complainant becamne very defensive. Mr.
Summers commented that Complainant has a healthy ego but she is also very fragile as
she left hus office 1 tears. ‘ ' '

5. Complainant’s Performance Appraisals, Personnel File

This investigator reviewed Complainant’s personnel file on J anuary 12, 2009, "he
Performance Appraisals on file were the following:

_ Dates Class Overall Rating Comments
1. 7/1/05 10°6/30/06 3546 Curator IV Exceeds Standards '
2. 7/1/04 10 6/30/05 - 3546 Carator [V Exceeds Standards
3. 01/01/03-t0 6/30/04 3546 Caretor [V Exceeds Standards “Occasionally has .
' ' ' “difficulty working with
others.” . '
_ Recommendation:
o | Improve Communication
S 5 3

_—
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4. 11/17/9710 05/16/98 | 3558 St. Musewms. | Outstanding
: - Registrar ‘ . |
5. 11/17/97 to 02/16/98 3558 Sr. Musenm Outstanding
| Registrar L

Complainant has no record of any disciplinary action.
Analvysis:

Complainant engaged in the protected activity of filing a discrimination complaint
against Blake Summers in March 2008 (EEO File #1343). Blake Summers was well
aware of Complainant’s previous filing of a discrimination complaint that specifically
named him as engaging in discrimination against her. His comments to Complainant on
~or about July 9, 2008 were seriously inapproprizte. . -

However, Mr. Summers’ comments were 2 one-time occurrence and were not severe or
pervasive so as 1o alter the terms or conditions of Complainant’s employment.
Complainant did fiot experience any disciplinary action, demotion or loss of pay; any
sudden unfavorable change in-work shift, assignment, or Tesponsibilities. In short,
Complainant did not experience any tangible adverse employment action and she was not
dissuaded from filing her subsequent complaints. '

9. Recotnmendations

‘The department acknowledged the inappropriateness of Blake Summers® comments and
reissued an Executive Directive regarding the right of employees to file complaints and
the prohibition against retaliation. The department’s re-distribution of key policies is a
good start. However, the departrhent heeds to take the following steps: '

a) Counsel the manager immediately. Mr. Summers needs to understand
how mapproprate his comments were. Such counseling needs to
include a clear and firm reiteration of the City’s zero tolerance for
retaliation. '

b.) Provide the manager with training.’ Mr. Summers needs to develop his
skalls in eifective communication, establishing periormance
expectations; conducting accurate performéance appraisals; and
managing problem performance. - '

c.) Propose mediation to both the manacer and Complainant. The Airport
Museums 1s & small division and the working relationship between
Complainant and her manager is strained. :

e -
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Recommendations Reéarding Other Wbrk'pla-ce Issues/Practices. ' : \3
a)  Revise Sign-in Sheets for Adrport Museums. The Airport needs to

assist the manager in revising the Museums sign-in sheet so that |
emplovee hours are more accurately documentied for all employees.

10.  Attachments to Report
Attached to this report are the following Exhibits:

Exhibit A: Letter of Complaint, 6/25/08 — Denial of Accommodation, Airport EEO

A-1 Letter of 8/11/08 - - Demal of Accommodation, Alrport EEO
A-2 Letter of Complaint, 6/25/08 - DHR, Airport EEO
A-3 Letter of 8/17/08. - DHR, Aimport EEO :
A-4 Letter of Complaint, 6/25/08 - Harassment, Denial of Promouon
- A-5 Letter of 7/9/08 - Blzke Summers
- A-6 Letter of 8/23/08 - Blake Summers -

- A-7 Letter of Complaint, 7/11/08 — Kathie Smookler
_ A-8 Letter of Complaint, 7/11/08 — Blake Summers
A-9 Complainant’s Summation of Complaints, 9/16/08

Exhibit B:  DHR’s Responses- 7/2/08, 7/23/08

g

Exhibit C:  Charge Form, 12/8/08 -
* Exhibit D Charge and RFL, 12/10/08

Exinbit

3

~ Response to RFI, 12/3 1/08
Exhibit F: Rebuital Statement, 2/1/09

Exhibit

&

Second RFI, 2/12/09
Exhibit H:  Response to RFL 3/6/0%
Exhibit Lk Aifpor’c Museums Timesheet

Exhubit]:  Airport Policles
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City and County of San Francisco Department of Human Resources
-Gavin Newsom

Micki Callahan
Mayor

Human Resources Direcfor

Septembe: 25,2009

Ms. Sonya Knudsen

San Fra.nc:lsco CA W
RE: _ Complamt of EmDIOVment Discrirnination
EEO File No. 1371

Dear Ms. Knudsen:

In accordance with the San Francisco Charter, § 10.103, the Human Resources Director shall review and

resolve all allegations of discrimination. Your letter of Compla_mt dated June 25, 2008 was reported to
me and recorded as EEO File #1371.

You are a PEX Curator IV, Curator in Cha:ge of Administration, with the Airport Museums. In your

complaint, you allege that in retaliation for engaging in the protected activity of filing a prevmus

discrimination complaint against him, Airport Museums Director Blake Summers and his assistant,
“athie Smookler, have retaliated against you by subjecting you to harassment which has created a hostile

work environment, and Blake Summers has denied you promotmn to a Manager I posltion due to
retaliation and your gender (female).

A, Aﬂegaﬁons

' 1. Harrassment due to Retaliation

. You allege that upon your return to work in Aprit 2008, you were subjected to harassment in the form of:
a. Excessive scrutiny regarding your timesheets and requests to use Vacation and Sick Leave.
b. Having your work assignments redefined and restructured, having key duties reassigned to others and

being placed in a supporting role. You allege violation of FMLA Job restoration requirements because
you did not return to work from leave to the exact same assignments.

¢. "A confrontation with Kathie Smookler on July 1, 2008 where she verbally reprimanded you in a loud

and intimidating manner and physically blocked your egress from your office when you attempted to
leave,

d. A confrontation with Blake Summers on July 9, 2008 where he verbally repnmanded you for filing
complaints against him and asked you if you wanted to quit.

II. Denial of Prémotion due t¢ Retaliation and Gender ( female)

You allege that you were denied promotion to 0922 Manager I in retaliation for previousty filing a
iscrimination complaint against Blake Summers and that Blake Sumnmers alluded negatweiy to the fact

. 8¢
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that you had been on leave when you inquiréd about the Manager [ positioﬂ- You allege that your
manager had previously implied that he would be seekjng_ a promotive reclassification for you and
instead, 1s seeking to promote a male co-worker, the current Curator IV of Awviation.

B.. Standards of Discrimination
Harassment- Hostile ‘Work Environment

The standards for Harassment- Hostile Work Environment mvolve the followmg :
1. The Complainant is subject to phy51ca1 verbal or visual conduct on account of the Complamaut S

. membership in a protected category,
2. The conduct is unwelcome; and
3. The conduct is sufficiently severe or pervasive as to alter the cond;tlon of the Complamant S

employment and create an abusive working environment.

Retaliation :
‘The standards for discrimination on the basis of retaliation involve the followmg
1. The Complainant engaged n a protected activity;
2. - The Complainant suffered an adverse employment action; and - :
3. There was a causal link between the protected activity and the adverse employment action.
- Disparate Treatrnent Standard S
I The Complainant is a member of 4 protected category;
2. The Complainant has suffered an adverse employment action; and :
3. The Complainant suffered an adverse employment aCthIl because of his or her members]mp in'a

~ protected categery.

C. Investigative Findings

Harassment

a Excessive Scrutiny: You did not provide specific examples of how your timesheets, vacation and/or
sick leave requests were excessively or unreasonably scrutinized after your return from leave as opposed
to before your leave, or as opposed to before you filed your discrimination complaints: You did not
identify any specific instances where your tinesheets were questioned, nor any specific instances where
your vacation and/or sick leave requests were denied. In fact, you agreed that none of your leave,

- vacation or sick time usage requests have been denied.

Investigation established that the Airport Museums currently uses 2 timesheet method where all Museums
staff merely note the nurnber of hours worked each day. The Airport Museums contends that there was one
occasion where Blake Sunmers asked you how you recorded time used to attend a medical appointment

- when that appointrrent wasn’t recorded on your tumesheet. There 1s no recerd of any dates or times of your
attendance which have been contested, nor does the A_uport Museums identify any dates or times of your

“attendance which have been contested -
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Managers have a responsibility to ensure employees are accurérte}y documenting their work time and it is

»ssible that the Airport Museums may change the current method of daily sxgn—m by all employees 1
order to more accurately record employee time.

b.  Change in Work Asswnments The essentlal functions of your Curator IV position are to perform
special projects for the Airport Museums. Investigation established that during your leave 1n 2007, certain
‘assignments were reassigned to other staff and that upon your return from leave in 2008 certain assignments

remained reassigned 10 other staff. Investigation also established that you continue to be assigned speciat
projects.

FMLA leave pPIovisions entzﬂe employees to be restored 1o the same or equivalent position and a
department is entitled to rea551gn duties based on the OPeranonal needs of the department. .

c. Confrontation with Kathie Smookler on J uly 1. 2008: Investigation estabhshed that Ms. Smookler did

behave unprofessionally and inappropriately when she came info your Ofﬁce on or about July 1, 2008 and
refused to let you leave your office.

Investigation also establishéd, and you agree, that Ms. Smookler apologized to you that same day for her
behavior and that Ms. Smookler has not repeated that behavior. Investigation established that Ms.
Smookler does not supervise you, did not reprimand you nor does she have any authority to repritnand
you, and that she does not come into'regular contact with you except as may be required.

Confrontation with Blake Summers on July 9, 2008:  Investigation éstablished that comments
.uade by your manager, Blake Summers, on or about July 9, 2008 were extremely upsetting to you and
Mr. Summers® comments were inappropriate. However, the evidence did not demonstrate that this
Interaction was severe or pervasive as to alter the terms and condition of your employment; the

comments did not dissnade you from exercising your right to file complams and there was no evidence
of any tangible adverse employment action.

Denial of Promotion

Investigation established that there was not a promotive position that you applied for, competed for and were
not appointed to. Investigation established that your manager subrmitted a request which was appreved by
the Airport Budget Office, based on the level of responsibilities and staff managed by the functions of the
Curator [V in Charge of Aviation. The Curator IV in Charge of Aviation manages a sizeable program and
staff. Investigation established that there is 2 marked difference in the level of responsibilities between the

Curator IV in Charge of Aviation and your current Curator IVin Charge of Adlmmstratzon, which performs
special projects as asmgncd

The department’s request for position substitution has not been actualized to date. Should the request to
substitute a Manager I position for the Curator IV in Charge of Aviation continue to remain in the
department’s budget, the department will proceed with a selection process in which you will be free to

participate. Blake Summers denies that he previously implied or promised he would se:ek a promotive
reclassification for you
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Determination

I have reviewed the investigative report and I ﬁnd that there is mSLﬁment evidentce to sustain your
~ complaint of harassment, retahatzon or disparate treatment.

Your manager’s comments to you on July 9, 2008 are a serious concern.  They were inappropriate and
please be advised that by separate cover Tam addressmg that issue with Mr. Martin. - The City and County of
San Francisco stands firmly in supporting employee rights to file discrimination complaints without fear of
retaliation of reprisal. The Airport has already taken action 1o re-distribute key Executive Directives
affirming an employees right to file a discrimination complaint without fear of :r.ctaliation or reprisal. -

The decision of the Human Resources Dlrector is final unless the decision is appealed to the Civil Service
Commission, and is reversed or modified. A request for appeal must be received by the Civil Service

Commission at 25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 720, San Francisco, CA 94102, within thirty (30) calendar days
of the postmarhed date of this letter.

- You may contact Linda Simon m the D.epartment of Human Resources Equal Employment Opportunity
 Division at 557-4837 if you have any questions. : '

~ Sincerely,
Micki Callaban
Human Resources Director

cc: John L. Martin, Airport Director
Susan Kim, Airport EEO
Iinda Simon, DHR/EEC
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City and County of San Francisco Department of Human Resources

. Gavin Newsom- Micki Callahan
Mayor Human Resources Director
september 25, 2009

John L. Martin, Director

San Francisco International Airport
- P.O.Box 8097 '

San I'rancisco, CA 94128

RE: ' 'Complaint of Ermnnloyment Discrimination
EEO File No. 1371 '

Dear Director Martin:

In accofﬁance with the San Francisco Charter, § 10.103, the Human Resources Director
shall review and resolve all allegations of discrimination. The purpose of my letter is to

: notlfy you of my determination in the complamt of discrimination filed by Sonya Knudsen,
Curator IV in Charge of Administration, with the Alrport Museums

Begmnmg Tune 2008 Ms. Knudsen filed several complaints of retaliation alleging that she
had been subjected to harassment which has created a hostile work environment and denied
promotlon due to retaliation and her Uender (female).

© Ms. Silvia Castellanos, Assistant EEO Manager, Department of Human Resources,
_ completed the investigation and has submitted her report to me for a determination.

Investigative Findings

Allegation of Harassfnent due to Retaliation

Ms. Knudsen alleged that she was subjected to excessive scrutiny regarding her timesheets

- and requests to use vacation and sick leave; that her work assignments were redefined and
restructured; that key duties were reassigned to others and she was placed in & supporting
role; that the Airport violated FMLA job restoration requirements because she did not return
to work in the exact same assignments; that she was verbally reprimanded by Kathie -
Smookler on July 1, 2008; and that she was verbally repnmanded by Blake Summers on
Tuly 9, 2008 for filing complamts against him..

However, Ms. Koudsen failed o provide specific instances where she was subjected to
excessive scrutiny and the evidence established that none of her requests for vacation or

" leave have been denied and investigation did not establish any violation of FMLA job

restoration requirements. Investigation established that the Airport Museurms uses a sign-in
sheet where empioyees srmply record the nlx;nber of hours worked per day. In order to more
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S.Kmdsen
EEO file 1371
-Page20f3

_ accurately reflect employees’ work hours, the A.ll“pOIT Museums may Want to consider
alternate methodc of taking attendanc:e '

-I_nvestjgation did not establish that Ms. Smookler harassed Ms. Knudsen.

Allegation of Harassment by Blake Summers

Investigation established that Blake Summers did speak inappropriately to Ms. Knudsen on
Tuly 9, 2008. Ms. Castellanos interviewed Mr. Summers on January 12, 2009 and Mr.
Summers admitted to the following:

o He did make a comment to Ms. Knudsen regarding the complaints she had fﬂeti
“you are unhappy here, look at all the comp]amts you have filed, do you want to
quit?™;

'« He may have mmade a comment to Ms. Krudsen along fne lines of, “you’ve been a
problem from Day One T can’t change yo& you never histen”. ~

These cornments on part of a manager, are a serious concern. However, they were a one-
time occurrence, Ot SeVere or pervasive so as to alter the terms and conditions of Ms. '
Knudsen’s employment and she was ot dissuaded or ‘chilled” from filing her subsequent '
complaints. The Airport EEC Office took action to re-distribute key EEO Executive
Directives in February 2009. However, I would also recommend additional steps which
incinde counseling Mr. Summers that an emplovee has a right to file complaints, and that the A
City prohibits retaliation for doing so. It is also apparent that the working relationship '
between Mr. Summers and Ms. Knudsen 1s strained and 1 would recommend that the
department explore mediation for both Ms. Knudsen and Mr. Summerts to re- estabhsh a
smoother working relationship with improved communication.

Aﬂegation of Denial of Promotion

Ms. Knudsen alleged that her manager, Airport Museums Director Blake Summers denied
her a promotion to Manager I while granting promotion to a male co-worker. Ms, Knudsen
also alleges that Mr. Summers had previously implied be would seek a promotive position:
for her.

However, investigation established that there had not; in fact, been a promotion. Rather, the
Airport Museums requested and was approved for a position reclassification which remains
in the budget process. Should the department be able to fill the reclassified position, the
Alrport will implement a formal selection process to appoint the best qualified candidate and ’
Ms. Knudsen will be welcome to apply and compete in the sclection process. Mr. Summers -

denied that he previously implied or promised Ms. Knudsen a promotion and there was no
“evidence that a factual observation he made that she had not been in the workplace fora

certain time, spoke to any bias or resentmest on his part for the fact of her FMIA leave,

when he has not depied Ms. Knudsen any request to use vacation, sick or FMLA leave time.
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S.Xnudsen ‘
" EEO file 1371
Page 3 of 3

: Deten_ninaticn

Based on a careful review of the mvestigative report, | have determined T.hzit there is .
insufﬁcient'evidén;e fo sustain the charge of discﬁmination. A copy of my determination to -
~ Ms. Knudsen is enclosed.

" The San Francisco Charter, § 10.103, provides that the decision of the Human Resources
- Director shall.be final unless the decision is appealed to the Civil Service Commission, and
s reversed or modified. A request for appeal must be received by the Civil Service
Commission at 25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 720, San F rancisco,-CA 94102, within thirty
(30} calendar days of the postmarked date of this letter. © '

| You may contact Linda Simon in the Department of Human Resources Equal Employment
-Opportunity Division at 557-4837if you have any questions. '

Micki Callahan o

Human Resources Direcior.

Sincerely,

[

Enc]osu;e .
Letter of Determination — 8 Knudsen

e Susan Kim, Airport EEO
Linda Simon, DHR/EEQ-

File
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December 31, 2008
VIA INTEROFFICE MATT. -

Silvia Castellanos

- DHR-EEO Assistant Manager .
City and County of San Francisco
Department of Human Resources -
44 Gough Street
San Francisco, CA 94103- 1233

SUBJECT: Request for Information — Sonya Knudsen, 3546 Curator IV
DHR-EED File No. 1371 '

Dear Ms, Caste]lands':

The mfo:rma’non enclosed is 1n response to the Request for Information submitted by
the Department of Human Resources Equal Employment Opportunity Division (DHR-
EEO) regarding the Charge of Discrimination filed by Sonya Knudsen, 3546 Curator
IV, on July 11, 2008: The Airport Comnission submits the following, response and
information regarding Ms. Knudsen’s discrimination, complaint against the City and

County of San Francisco, Airport Museums, based on retahahon (3. e demai of
promotion and harassment}

should you' ruqmre additional mformatzon or have any questlons please donot
hesﬁate to contact me at (650) 821 -3592.

Sincerely,

| e—

Susan Kim
Assistant Manager
EEO Programs

ot Gloria Lotie, EEO Director :
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' DHR EEO Request for Informatlozl '
‘Knudsen, Sonya
~ EEO File No. 1371

Page20f8 '_' R | e' é,

* Response to Complamaut’s Speeuc Aﬂegatwns Llsted in the Charge of _
. D;scermatlon -

I. In March 2008 Ms Sonya Knudsen Dled a d1scm‘mna‘non comelamt agamst
manager, Mr. Blake Summers. Director/Chief Curator-SF Airport Muscoms for
November 2007 denial of reasonable accommodation. EEQ informed Summers
of eomplamt Summerss refused mediation June 2008. July 2008 DHR. DhBCtOI'
“detersnination: insufficient evidence 1o suDDort the charge: Knuosen filed .
anoea] wﬂ;h Civil Servme Comzmssmn :

© On March 12, 2008 Ms. Knudsen filed a eharge of discrimination’ against her _
supérvisor, Blake Summers, Director and Chief Curator of the San Francisco Airport
Museums (“Airport Museums™). In her corplaint, Ms. Kimdsen alleges Mr. Summers
VVT'OIlEleHy denied her accommodation in November 2007 by refusing to allow her to
return to work on 2 part-tfime schedule. Based on the investigative findings, the

" Human Resources Director defermined there was insufficient evidence to substaritiate
Ms. Knudsen’s allegation and dismissed the complaint on July 29, 2008. Ms.
Knudsen subsequently filed a timely appeal of the Human Resources Director” s
determma’non on'August 8, 2008, That appeal 15 how pendmg

Mr. Sitmmers tates he met with Sﬂwa Castellanos, DHR-EEO, regarding Ms : )

Knudsen’s November 2007 complaint. During that meeting, it was agreed med;atzon
would likely be unsuccessful and altemauve dispute resolution Was not pursued any
fl_I'thL .

I Due to March 2008 eomnlamt filing. Summers gubwets Koudsen 1o harassment
' disparate treatment. and intitidation upon April 2008 full-time return to work:
second discrimination comiplaint filed by Knudsen against-Summers inJune
© 2008 recarding redefined and restructured work asszonments . eXcessive semtmv
and interference. and denied promotion (0922 Manager L, from 3546 Curator
V). Summers’ comment, “Why would ] promote Vou you haven 1 been here

.thes past vear?”

The Airport Commission denies Mr. Surmimers has, at zny time, subjected Ms. . -
Knudsen to harassment, disparate tréatment, and/or intimidation. The Airport
Commission also denies Ms. Krudsen’s charge that Mr. Summers subjectéd her to
excessive scrufiny and interference, wrongfully restructured her work asmgnments or
that he uﬁa\xﬁﬂly aemed her promotion.

Ms. Kﬂudsen s main function as Curator [V in Charge of Administration is to perform

- $pecial projects and duties, as assigned. Thus, her particular assignments catl vary,
~ dependmg on the department S needs
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DHR-EEQ Request for Information
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From March 2007 to prcsent the majority of Ms. Knudsen’s assignments have

- remained the same and are ongoing. During her leave of absence, however, certzin

_projects requiring immediate attention were reassigned to other Airport-Museurns |
staf{. Barbara Geib, Curator in Charge of Registration, was assigned four of the eight
reass1gned tasks. These tasks were: creating the Risk Management monthly nsurance
report, overseeing FAMSF Conservation invoice admimistration, and creating -
exhibition schedule updates on both excel and on Filemaker. All 4re ongomg.

" assignments which Ms. Geib contmucs to oversee. '

_ Mr. Summers asmgaed Roman Rorolev Museum Preparator, three of Ms. Knudsen’s
projects during her leave of absence. ' Two of these projects were comp}eted upon
Knudsen’s return to work. The Kids® Spot Tepairs 1§'an ongoing assignment which:
Mr. Korolev continues to oversee. The remaining assignment, the Arts Commission
maintenance instaliations project, has been assigned to a new ethployee hired
specifically to manage this project.

- In addition to the eight reassigned tasks/projects, Mr. Summers assigned Ms. Knudsen
four special projects upon her return to work in April 2008: 1) coordination of the
storage move from the Spruce Street warehouse location; 2) management of the data
migration filemaker database; 3) management of the collection appraisals request for
qualifications; and 4) implementation-of the collection appraisais. Al projects, except
for the completed Spruce Street storage move, are ongoing and are currently being
performed by Ms. Knudsen. No “restructuring” or further changes have been made to,
Ms. Knudsen’s wor rk a851gnments since hcr reth to work.

- According_to the Alrport’s records, Mr. Summers has not made ény 0922 Mariager [
appointments since 2006. In May 2006, Mr. Summers appointed Abe Garfield from a-
class 3547 Curator V, to a lateral Manager 1, Assistant Director of Exhibitions.

I  Manager's assistant, Ms. Kathie Stnookler, on July 1, 2008, haraSSes

E intimidates. and phvsically blocks Ms. Knudsen in loud and ag,c_rresswe IMANner
accusing Knidsen of undermining Summers. ‘Following that. on July 9, 2008,
Suimmers informed Knudsen of Airport Facilifies departroent complaints

~ without providing details. and in a meeting in his office behind closed doors.

accused Knudsen of being 2 problem from day-one, of having numerous
complaints lodged against ber; and of being “complaint-happy.” denied
Kaudsen third party representation, saving, “he wasn’t going there, like
mediation downtown.” Mr. Summers commented, “...don’t sit there all
proper...” knowing of Knudser’s accommodation needs SDBCLﬁC’dHY Mr.
Summcrs linked the cornplaints Knudsen filed with comment that she should

resign, .. dook at the number of comolamts vou ve filed; vou're unhappL do
you want to quit?”
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Charge of Harassment against Kaﬂ:ue Smookler

Dun_ng the week of° Iu]y 1, 2008, Timothy O Bnen Curator ]I[ appToached Mr.
‘Surnmers about a 4% of _Tuly barbecue being coordinated by Ms. Knudsen. O’Brien
felt it was 1mportant the Museirins Director bé made aware of plans mvolvmg his
department, even though Knudsen had offered to purchase all the food for the
festivities. Kathie Smookler, Executive Secretary to Stimmers, was also present
dunng the conversa‘non :

O’Brien nformed Summers that Knudsen had approached h]m earlier, requesﬁng that
O’Brnien gﬂll meat for the barbecue. -0’ Brien asked Summers for his approval to grill.
_While Summers and Smoomer had no previous k:nowledge of the planning of this
_event, Summers’ Tesponse to O’Brien was, “I guess so.”. During the interaction, -
Smookler asked O’Brien-if he wished to grill the food, as requested by Knudsen, and
(’Brien responded, “not really.” O’Brien states that while he normally would not
have vo]unteered to participate as the event’s cook, he felt it was not a huge :
immposition to do so. Both Smookler and Surnmers were not scheduled to work on the
day of the event: :

On the followmg day, Smookler was approached at her desk by Barbara Gelb Gelb ’
stated to Smookler, “They’re planning: the party now.’ > Smookler then approached-

- Knudsen in her ofﬁee regarding the event. While Smoolder does not deny using the
words “undermining,” and-‘ d_tsrespec:tful v durmg ber interaction with Knudsen, she
‘states the point of the exehange was niot to harass-or intimidate Knudsen, but to
commuricate the importance of keeping the Museums: Director zbreast of any plans -
mvolving his department. Smookler stated to Knudsen that she should have-shown
oreater respect for Summers by informing him of any plans for a party, rather than
coordmatmcr for astaff luncheon during his absence :

' .. - Smookler was upset that Knudsen had taken it upon herself to coordinate the event

without involvement of the entire departmént. She points out that in the past, some
individuals have been excluded from: the plaﬂmng of holiday parties and, thus, would
oftén not know of the event’s oceurrence until the day of During her exchange with
Knudsen, Smookler voiced that she felt it was inappropriate for Knudsen to recruit
O’Brien to grill meat, as he clearly had not vohmteered for the JOb and had more '
pressmg work obhgatlons to attend to. :

Smookler admits she was upset durmg her mteracnon with Knudsen and that she stood

in the doorway when Kaudsen got up from her desk to leave the room. This action,
‘however, was Stookler’s attempt to discuss the situation openly, rather than trying to

avoid the matter. At this time, Smookler communicated several times to Knudsen tnat
" she simnply Wanted to talk to her.

Knudsen departed the ofﬁce to confront O Bnen Aceordmo o O Bnen Knudsen

was upset as she described the exchange that had just occurred between her and
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- Smookler. O’Brien suggested they meet with Smookler to clear up any

- misunderstanding. Both he and Koudsen approached Smookler: ‘O'Brien stated to

“both of them that he no ]onger wished to parficipate in the barbacue and that he would
feel more comfortable if, in the futire, the planning of staff parties came from
Summers directive only. Smookler politely apologized to Knudsen for any.confusio
and the matter appeared to be resolved according to O’Brien. The following day,
Srnookler was- nnormed the party had been canceﬂecl

The Alrpozt Commission denies the July | 2008 mteracnon be’rween Ms. Smookler and
Ms Knudsen Slle ected Knudscn to harassment :

Chaz,qe of Harassment and Retahatzon agmnst Blake Smnmers

In July 2008, Mr. Summess had a meeting with Ms. Knndsen to inquire about her
‘recent interaction with Airport Facilities staff, particilarly : staﬁ from the Carpentry
section. During this meeting, Summers asked Knndsen if there were any incidents 1o
report regarcing her recent work with the carpenters. Summers explained to Knudsen.
that he had received a complaint from Peter-Acton, Facﬁlh es Deputy Director,
regarding her most recent interaction with the Carpentiy staff: Kaudsen was not
supplied specific details of the complaint, such as who reported the incident to Acton.
- Summers felt the situation may be aggravated by Knudsen’s attempt to personaﬂy
confront the carpenters about the complaint.

Summers was informed that Knudscn had made some unwelcome statements to-the
carpenters and had acted rudely in her interaction with them. Summers does not recall
verbatim the statements reportedly made by Knudsen, but does recall Acton reporting -
- that Knudsen referred to the Museumns. depamnent as “my house” in ber. conversation
with the carpenters. Additionally, it was reported that Knudsen, in referencing the -
electric carts used by the carpenters, stated to them, “T’ll write a letter to John Martin -

 (Agrport Director) to get you a bigger car,” Afier receiving this information, Summers

~felt it appropriate to meet with Knudsen, comumunicate the departinent’s receipt of this
.complalnt and allow Knudsen an opportunity to present her side of the exchange
Knudsen denied any negative interaction with the Carpentry staff,

Knudscn _anulrad as to whether Summers came to her defense durning his.conversation
with Acton and, according to Summers, became upset upon learning her actions were
not defended by Summers. The Carpentry Shop complaint, however, had not been the
first complaint received by Summers regarding Knudsen’s abrasive interactions with
Facilities staff. Several months before the carpenters’ complamt Acton informed
Summers that Electric Shop staff were upset, complaining Knudsen acted very
“bossy” and rude during their interactions with her. Staff stated Knudsen often
‘demanded her work requests.be attended to immediately, without.consideration of

- other priority assignments. ' :

A fter receiving the Electric Shop’s 'comp%,/é&cton statéd to Sumrmiers he did not
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appr_‘edgte K;;udéen,’s mistreatment of his staff. He stated 'thzit-while’ his staff would j
gladly continte to complete assignments for the Airport Museums, Kaudsen should
pot directly coordinate these projects and interfere with the work to be performed.

Surnmers then communicated to Krindsen that shé should “lay low”™ by not demanding .

Facilities staff to perform work beyond what is required of them. Several months
Jater, the carpenters’ complaint was received. ' ' S

The purpose of Summers’ July 2008 exchange with Knudsenwas not to subject her to
‘verbal harassment 2nd/or intimidation, but to obtain information about her recent

interaction with the carpenters,  Summers does not recall discussing mediation during
this meeting, or making any inappropriate statements referencing Krudsen’s need for

Gisability accormmodation.  While hie inquired as to whether Knudsen was happy at her

job, he does not recall ziccusiﬂg:KHUdsen‘of being “complaint-happy,” as alleged.
Summers did remind Knudsen of his earlier directive to her to request only that work
‘which Facilities staff were required to perform. - - o

" Mr. Surnmiers’ paramount concern has been, and continues to be, that the Airport

- Museums rmaintain its ability to utilize the services of the Facilities Division and retain
its positive working relationship with the crafts staff. The Airport Comimission denies
Ms. 'Kn,udsenf’s charge that Mx. Summers has subjected her to harassment and ‘
retaliation. . ' : '

IV. Since Api‘il-.’l_OOS return to work. Knndsen has been subiected to discrimination,
" harassment. intiznidation. disparate treatment, and retaliation from Mr. |

Surhmgrs and Ms. Smookler. working in an increasingly difficult, strained and

- hostile work environment. with fear for her continued emplovment.

The Ah-poﬁ'COmIﬁjssion wholly denies Ms. Kmudsen’s charge that it has taken actions
- subjecting her to discrimination, intimidation, disparate treatment, and/or retaliation.
(t 1o time has Ms. Knudsen been subject to harassmernt, nor has she been wrongfully

denied promotion, as alleged in her complaint.

" Witnesses for the Deépartment _ o :
The following withesses may bave relevant information for this investigation:

"« Blake Swnmers, 0933 Director-and Chief Curator
»  Kathie Smookler, 1452 Exectitive Secretary 1
+  Timothy O’Brien, 3544 Curator I+ . _
» Abe Garfield, 0922 Manager I, Assistant Director of Exhibitions
«  Peter Acton, Assistant Deputy Director, Facilities '
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Request for Informatzon

1.

Please see Attachment A for a list of the essential func’uons for Ms. Knudsen’s
3546 Cura_tor 1V positien. A- general job description with important and
¢ssential duties for a Curator I'V has also been attached. (See Attachment B)

‘Please note the Airport Museurns presently employs three (3) 3546 Curator

IVs, each with independent responsibilities: Curator in Charge of Aviation
(Yohn Hilt); Curator in Charge of Registration (Barbara Geib); and Curator in -
Charge of Administfation and Museums Programs (Sonya Knudsen). As

Curator In Charge of Adminisiration and Museums Progmms Ms. Enudsen

_ - performs special assignments and related duties.

There have been no changes to Ms Knudsen s essentia) Tunctions as identified
in Attachment A. While Ms. Knudsen’s duty t to perform assigned projects has -
remained the same, some changes have been made to her particular work
assignments after March 2008. As explamed above, upon her return to full-

' time work in Aprit 2008, Mr. Stmmers assigned Ms. Knudsen four spec;al

projects: 1) coordination of the storage move from the Spruce Street
warehouse location; 2) management of the datz migration flemaker database; -
3) management of the collection appraisals request for qualifications; and 4)
implementation of the collection apprznsals ‘Projects 2-4 are ongoing and are
currently being supefvised by Ms. Knudsén, while the Spruce Street. storage
move has been completed. Eight of Knudsen’s assignments were also '
reassigned to other Museumns staff durmg her leave of absence, as these
projects required immediate attention. Among these, two proj ects were
completed upon Knudsen’s return to work. The remaining six pro;ec‘rs are

‘ongoing. (See Attachment C for a written description of Knudsen’s

past/present work assignments and Response [ for greater detail)

. According to Airport Human Resources, Blake Summers has not made any

0922 Manager I appointments ﬁom March 2008 to present.

Scheduling of Intemews :

The Airport’s EBO Unit will gladly assist in the schedulmg of interviews with Blake
Summers, Kathie Smookler, and Timothy O’Brien during the week of January 12,

2009. The foregoing parties have been notified. Please contact Susan Kim at (650)

821-3592 with 2 fentative interview schedule for further coordination.
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- Referenced Documents -

“'"_[‘h'é‘follo{ving'refe'renced documents have been attaéhed: :

N Atiachpiant A

" Aﬁ;ichﬁ)_eﬁt B: .

Aﬁachment C:

Essen’nal Functlons for Ms Knudsen s 3540 Curator v posmon
General 3546 Curator v .Tob Descnpuon

List of Knudsen § ongomcr work assxg:uments and note;d pm}ect

Qhanges post March 2008.
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Knudsen, S. vs. SFQ
EEO File: 1371
INTAKE - 9/17/08, with Steve Pitocchi (Local 1021)

Incident of 7/1/08: K. Smookler, Executive Secretary (for B.Summers)
Time:. mid-day on 7/1/08. : '
Duration: 10— 15 minutes

Location: CP’s Office.

K.Smookler closed the door to her office. KSmookler asked her, “why are vou
organizing BBQ? Why are you putting T.0’Brien in position of mediator?”

CP explained was one of the organizers, T.Q'Brien had asked permissien for BBQ, had a
BBQ in 2006, not aware was problem for T.0"Brien, not aware it was a problerm.

KSmookler went on and on {she intimidates staff). CP did not react even though
exchange was intimidating. KSmookler said CP should talk directly with B.Summers.
KSmookler wanted to know who was behind BRBQ. CP did not provide names. CP oot
up to go get T.0’Brien. KSmookler wouldn’t Tet her leave the office. K.Smookler got

more and more upset and stormed out of the office.

¢ Both CP and K.Smookler were standing, with K.Smoockler in front, biocking CP’s
way out of the office.

* K.Smookler raised her voice throughout conversation.

¢ K.Smookler's demeanor was hostile, antagonistic. Her words were loud. angry,
judgemental.

o  K.Smookler is about 5°5.
¢ CP not aware if anvone overheard.

- K. Smookler shows pattern and has harangued other staff. CP has filed complaints on

others’ behalf (late June).

CP went to T.O’Brien and asked if he had any difficulties with organizing the BBQ. He
apologized and said he had gone to B.Summers and secured permission. In talking with
T.0’Brnien, CP discussed whether or not to have a BBQ. He suggested maybe they
should go talk with K. Smookler. CP suggested they talk with K.Smookler and
B.Surnmers, or maybe they should cancel.

They both went to talk with K.Smookler. K.Smookler apologized. K Smookler said
B.Summers did not like socializing. K.Smookler suggested they go to FOM for §.
K_Smookler asked, ‘what do vou need@?’. CP suggested cups.

However, CP and T.0’Brien decided not to have the BBQ.

CP explained “mediator™: asin go-between, 45 in why not talk with B.Summers? why
undermine B.Summers. '
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CP explained “verbal barassment™ words that convey harassment such as
K_Smookler’s words of ‘go-between’, ‘mediator’, ‘undermining’, end how K.Smookler
passes judgement.

CP explained “inappropriate discipline™ felt that K.Smookler was reprimanding CP.
K_Smookler was passing judgement, saying she (CT') was undermimng.

CP explained “inappropriate physical conduct™ K_Smookler closed CP’s office door
and blocked CP from leaving. K.Smookler was standing in a confrontational pose (arms
crossed).
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Ci-ty and Couhty of San Francisco ~ . Department of Human Resources

Gavin Newsom Micki Callahan

Mayor Huinan Resources Directorv
INTERVIEW SUMMARY
[ WITNESS: K - | EEO File No/Name: B
Kathie Smookler Kxnudsen, Sonya vs: Airport Museums _
= #1371 ' o '
Invéstigator: Silvia Castellanos Date(s):

1) Janvary 12, 2009

Representative: None

Location: SFO . S Pagés: 2

—
.

Currently 1452 Executive Secretary H. Report to B.Summers.

2. Do you have authority-to reprimand S.Knudsen? No.

(O8]

.~ How would you describe y_oi;f working relationship with S.Knudsen?

Has known S.Knudsen since 1990 (sympathetic to S.Knudsen’s car accident of 2006- she .haa' a
car accident in 2000, came back pt. . -). Both she and B.Summers worked for the previous
Museums Director, who was a woman. ' '

4. The plans for a 7/4/08 BBQ. How did you first become aware of those plans?

T.0"Brien came by, late at night. She wondered W}jy T.0’Bnen was asking (if it was ok to have
_ ";he BBQ)} instead of S.Knudsen. '

5. What happened when 5"01; discusséd BBQ w/S.Knudsen?
The next day (after T.O*Bren came by), B.Gesib (new Curator TV in Charge of Registration)
went 1o her desk (to tell her of the BBQ). Did stand by the door, did insist that S.Knudsen speak
about the BBQ and why she hadn’t approached B.Summers and why she’d designated T.QBrien
0 be at the gnll, T.O’Brier felt put-upon: - '

6. What was S_K_uudsen’s.reaction. to the discussion?
She wanted T.O’Brien to come in to the conversation.

7. Youthen had & discussion with both S.Knudsen and T.O’Brien?
Yes. T.0’Brien said he did not feel put-upon to be at the grill. S.Smookler apologized. twice.
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8. Previous BB(Q’s for Museums staff? How organized?

Informally and not well-organized, certain siaff (Abe Garfield) excluded, or not invited until
day-of; 1 staff person cut themselves badly, generally held on Fridavs when she and B.Summers
are not there, FOM staff had organized a BBQ. Museum staff could go to that. '

9. Any policy re social functions such as a BBQ?
Always have a Xmas party. True that B.Summers not very social, work 1§ more lmportant.
Documents from K.Smooker:

s Ernails related to 4/24/06 incident.

(Materjal not relevant to this investigation. Involved privileged/confidential information.
Maintained separately 1n manila envelope. ) '
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City and County of San Francisco

Department of Human Resources
Micki Callahan
Human Resources Director

Gavin Newsom
Mayor

CONFIDENTIAL
DHR EEO INVESTIGATION OF EMPLOYMENT DISCRIMINATION COMPLAINT

REBUTTAL MEETING NOTES
COMPLAINANT: Sonya Knudsen EEO File No./Name:
' #1371
Investigator: Silvia Castellanos Date(s):

1.) January 23, 2009 (9:00)
2.) March 27, 2009 (11:00)

Representative: S.Pitocchi

Location: a. DHR, 1 South Van Ness Pages: 5

1. Review of the basis and issues: Retaliation, Harassment due to Retaliation, Disparate
Treatment.

2. Review of the Standards:

Retaliation

1. The Complainant engaged in a protected activity;

2. The Complainant suffered an adverse employment action: and

3. There was a causal link between the protected activity and the adverse employment action.

Harassment- Hostile Work Environment Standard

1. The Complainant is subject to physical, verbal or visual conduct on account of the
Complainant's membership in a protected category;,

2. The conduct is unwelcome: and

3. The conduct is sufficiently severe or pervasive as to alter
employment and create an abusive working environment,

the condition of the Complainant's

Disparate Treatment Standard

1. The Complainant is a member of a protected category;
2. The Complainant has suffered an adverse employment action; and
3. The Complainant suffered an adverse employment action because of his or her -

membership in a protected category.

S.Knudsen: the standards she's being assessed and judged under are different. Schedule?
6:30 — 4:00 pm, alternate Fridays off, with Mondays for Rotary lunches. Dr's appointmenis.

Page |
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EEO #1371}

Examples? Other Curator |V comes In “sonsistently late”. V. Davis is Analyst for
Museums, she's a resource for staff, she's unbiased and a neutral party, serves to
clarify FMLA. She can give indication of B.Summers’ response re CP’'s concerns,

Review of Allegations: '
A. Harassment, Denial of Promotion- Since RTW April 2008, work assignments have been
redefined and restructured. Subjected to excessive scrutiny and interference. Denial of
promotion to Manager |, “why would | promote you, you haven’t been here this past

year?”

B. Harassment- 7/1/08 confronted by K.Smookler who was confrontational, aggressive,
and physically blocked CP’s egress from office.

C. Harassment- 7/9/08 accused by B.Summers of "being a problem from day 1", of being
“complaint-happy”, of sitting there “all proper”, of not being happy, perhaps she wanted
“to quit?”

Correct. B.Summers' asked her specifically, “do you want to quit’? Reqarding the promotion to
J Hill. ‘why would | promote you?, you haven't been here' — reference to her leave.

Reviewed fact finding:

Work Assignments have been re-defined and re-structured (core job responsibilities no

Jonger the same as prior to 3/2007. Key duties of monthly insurance reports to SFO

Risk and updating and managing Filemaker Pro and Excel databases reassigned. Has

been placed in a supporting role). ’ -

« The essential function of CP’s position is to perform special assignments and related duties
as assigned. Those essential functions have not changed.

« CP as resumed the same work schedule she had previously.

« Based on department need, some of CP’s work assighments were reassigned, and CP was

- given new assignments upon her retumn from leave (storage move from Spruce St

management of data migration database; management of collection appraisals requests for
clarification; implementation of collection appraisals).

« CP continues to be assigned special projects.

« CP continues on same work schedule as before.

« During leave, certain assignments were reassigned to other staff. Manager can determine
that those assignments will continue with other staff.

» Does not amount o tangible adverse employment action.

¢ Does not support Harassment, Retaliation.

\/ Davis can offer insight- she was the first person to interact with B.Summers (duties
upon return) as well as decision not to retun her to work part time. CP. spoke with
V. Davis, brought her a spreadsheet, management was exceeded its right {to reassign

work).

362
Page 2 :}'5






.

EEOQ #1371

Excessive scrutiny and interference:

-

Per B.Summers, continues to work independently. CP not mentioned excessive scrutiny
and interference to him, he’s not aware of her concerns,

CP and representative took notes- will respond after they confer,

Denial of promotion to Manager |, ‘why would | prornote you, you haven't been
here this past year?:

B.Summers has not made any 0922 Manager | appointments since 20086, for Abe Garfield,
who was a Curator V.

B.Summers has requested a Manager | position be included in the department’s budget for a
provisional promotive appointment for a Curator |V employee, John Hill, to a Manager |.

The Manager | position is currently in the department's budget, it has not gone through the
complete approval process and the promotive appointment has not taken place.

B.Summers did have a conversation with the CP where he explained he would not be
recommending a promotive appointment for her. B.Summers explained to CP, in a frank
and direct manner, that he does not feel she merits 3 promotion.

B.Summers declined to recommend CP for
position under consideration.

Not situation where CP competed for a promotive position and was not selected.

promotion. There was no actual promotive

CP and representative fook notes- will respond after they confer.

Verbal harassment- comments were harassing, distressing and upsetting.
Amounted to inappropriate discipline (reprimand). Improper physical conduct
(blocking egress). Was retaliation.

K.Smookler admitted her conduct/behavior was inappropriate.

K.Smookler has no authority to discipline CP.

K.Smockler apologized twice. _

K.Smookler stated she only wanted to communicate concemns. K.Smookler felt that Knowing

CP as long as she has, she could be frank and direct.

K.Smookler has since been civil and professional.

K.Smookler does not assign/direct CP’s work.

K.Smookler's interaction with CP on 7/1/08 was not disciplinary.

K.Smookler has no authority to discipliine CP.

This was 1 instance. T.O'Brien confirmed K.Smookler apologized, was polite.

K.Smookler's behavior with CP was unprofessional.

K.Smookier did have knowledge of CP’s engaging in protected activity (complaint actions).
K.Smookler not in position to take adverse employment action against CP, This was 1
instance. It was unpleasant, very unprofessional but does not rise to Jeve| of
severe/pervasive. Does not support Harassment. Does not support Retaliation.
Recommendation: Airport redistribute “Standards for Employee Conduct” policy.

CP and representative took notes ~ will respond after they confer,
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EEO #1371

Unwelcome and offensive conduct, verbal harassment infimidation, slander,

unsubstantiated accusations, derogatory comments, denial of request for third party

witness, retaliation.

« B.Summers did receive verbal complaints re CP's interactions from the Factlmes Deputy
Director, as conveyed by Carpentry staff.

« B.Summers did meet with CP in his office on 7/9/08.

« On 7/9/08 B.Summers did ask CP about her interactions with Carpentry staff.

B.Summers did not provide CP with specific information regarding Carpentry complaints.

B Summers was concermed that situation would be aggravated by CP personally confronting

staff about their complaints. ' '

« As the manager, B.Summers wanted CP’s feedback of her interactions with staff.

« As the manager, B.Summers’ intent was to have a frank and honest discussion with CP
about her method of interaction with others, which has been perceived as abrasive.

« B.Summers does not specifically recall calling CP “complaint-happy”.

« B.Summers not certain he said “don’t sit there all proper”.

« B.Summers stated he may have said, “problem from Day I, you don't listen, can't change
you”.

« B.Summers did say, “you are unhappy here, look at all the complaints you have filed, do you
want to quit?”.

B.Summers recognizes and acknowledges that his manner hurt CP’s feelings, he showed
poor judgement.

« Was not ‘unwelcome and offensive conduct’, ‘verbal harassment’, 'unsubstantiated
accusations’, ‘derogatory comments’.

A

AT
1

S Pitocchi- pervasive (disreqard) at Airport with the EEO process, based on other situations
he’s involved with.

Re this specific compiaint, CP and representative took notes, will respond after they confer.

FINAL REBUTTAL MEETING March 27, 2009

1 Reviewed ~ | received her rebuttal statement of 2/4/08. Provided that statement to the

Department. The Department responded on 3/6/09 and | have interviewed V.Davis
(2/20/09).

CP stated “tone” of Museums interaction with her has been “inappropriate”, B.Summers
said he needed to have information re FMLA and she was forced to divulge information
reqarding her FMLA. CP stated managers need fo attend FMLA/ADA training,

CP agrees she has not been denied FMLA. CP stated she continues in a very awkward
and strained work environment and she hopes staff will recommend mediation. Re
disparate treatment, if Museums is too small a comparison (similarly situated Curator [V's)
then should be able 1o broaden that to overall Department workforce. Re the Manager |
Aviation description. that's what John Hill has been doing.
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EEQ #1371

-~ CPlrepresentative made no other comment, reviewed staff report would be submitted to

HRD for her determination. Letter of determination sent to both parties. Appeal is to CSC.
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Department of Human Resources
Micki Caliahan
Human Resources Director

City and County of San Francisco
' Gavin Newsom -
Mayor

DHR EEO INVESTIGATION OF EMPLOYMENT DISCRIMINATION COMPLAINT

* REBUITAL MEETING NOTES

GOMPLAINANT: Sonya Knudsen | ~ EEO File No./Name:
' o ‘ - #1371

Investigator: _ Silvia Castellanos . | Date(s): o
| - 1) January 23, 2009 (9:00)
2.) March 27,2009 (11:00)

j Repré:é,entative: S._Pi{occhi

Location: a. DHR, 1 So_uth Van Ness T Pages: 5

1. Review of the basis and ‘issue:s_: Retaliation, Harassment due to Retaliation, Disparate
Treatment. - S '

2. Review of the Standards:

Retaliation : o

1. The Complainant engaged in a protected activity; o

2. The Complainant suffered an adverse employment action; and

3. There was a causal link between the protected activity and the adverse employment action.

Harassment- Hostile Work Environment Standard | o

1. The Complainant is subject fo physical, verbal or visual conduct on account of the
Complainant’'s membership in a protected category; - S

2. The conduct is unwelcome; and =~ - o

3. The conduct is sufficiently severe or pervasive as to alter the condition of the Complainant's
employment and create an abusive working environment. - -

Disparate Treaiment Standard

1. The Complainant is a-member of a protected category; o
2. The Complainant has suffered an adverse employment action; and
3. The Complainant suffered an adverse employment action because of his or her -

membership in a protected category.

S.Knudsen: the standards she's being assessed and judged under are different, Schedule?
6:30 — 4:00 pm, alternate Fridays off, with Mondays for Rotary lunches, Dr's appointments.
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. BEO #3137

Examples'? Other Curator IV .comes in oonsrstentlv late”. V. Davis is Analyst for:
- Museums, she's afesource for staff, she’s unbiased : and a neutral party, serves to
- olarrfy FMLA She can gtve rndtoatlon offB Summers response re. CP S concerns

| Revrew of Allegatlons : : :
A." Harassment, Denial of Promition- Srnce R'IW April 2008, work assrgnments have beer

redefined and restructured. Subjected to excessive scrutiny and interference. Denial of

-promotron fo Manager I “why would | promote you you havent been here thrs past
year’?" . :

B.. Harassment— 7f1108 confronted by K. Smookler who was: confrontatlonal aggressive,
and physrcally blocked CP s egress from office. : :

.-_C. _ Harassment- 7/9/08 accused by B Summers of "belng a problem from day I, l of berng
“complaint-happy”, of sitting there “all proper”, of not being happy, perhaps. she wanted’
"to quit?”. S ‘ - - o '

| Correot B Summers asked- her specrt” cally, “do you want to owt "? Reqardlnq the promotlon {o
J. Hill,. whv would 1. promote you?, you haven t been here" — reference to her. leave

Revrewed fact finding:

Work Assrgnments have been re-defined and re-structured (core job responsrbmtres no
~longer the same as prior to 3/2007. Key duties of monthly insurance repotts to SFO
Risk and updating and managing Filemaker Pro and Excel databases reassrgned Has
-~ been placed-in.a supporting ro!e) -

o The essential function of CP’s: posmon ist0 perform specral asmgnments and related dutres ,

- as assigned. Those’ essential functions have not changed:
» ' CP as resumned the same work schedule she had previously.
e Basedon department need, some of CP’s work assignments were rea55|gned and CP was
: given new. assignments upon her return from: leave (storage move from Spruce St.;

management of data migration database; management of oolleotlon appraisals requests for

clarification; implernentation of collection appraisals).
« CP continues to be assigned special pl‘OjeCl'S
« CP'continues on same work schedule as before. :
« During leave, certain assrgnments were reassigned to other staff. Manager can determlne
 ‘that those assignments will continue with other staff. .
+ Does not amount to tangible adverse employment actlon
. 'Does not support Harassrnent Retaliation. |

V.Davis can offer msrqht- she was the first person o interact Wrth B Summers (duties
upofi. retum) as well as deors:on not to return her to work: part time. CP spoke with
V.Davis. brouqht her a. spreadsheet manaqement was exoeeded its rlqht (to reassrqn '

ork)
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EEO #1371

Excessive scrutiny and-interference:

Per B.Summers, continues to work independenﬂy CP not mentloned excessrve scrutrny '

'_and inte'rference to him, he's not aware of her conoerns

CP and representatrve took notes- will re5pond after thev confer

Denial of promotron fo Manager! why woulo’ / promote you, you haven t been
here this past year?:

B.Sumimers has not made any 0922 Manager ] apporntments srnce 2006 for Abe Garf eld
who was a Curator V. '

B Summers has. requested a Manager | position be included in the department S budget fora

provisional promotive appointment for a Curator [V employee, John Hill, 1o a Manager.
The Manager | position is currently i in the department’s budget, it has not gone: through the -
complete approval process and the promotlve appointment has not taken place. _
B.Summers did have a conversation with the CP where he explained he would not be i

recommending a promotrve appomtment forher. B. Summers explained to CP, ina frank
- and direct manner, that he does not feel she merits a promotion.

- B.Summers declined to recommend CP for-promotion. There was no actual promotrve

posrtron under consideration.
Not situation where CP competed for a promotive posmon and was not seleoted

CP and representatrve fook notes wrll respond after thev confer

e o » o

s & ° & @

Verbal harassment- comments were harassrng, distressing and upsetting.
Amounted to inappropriate discipline (repnmand) Improper physical conduct
(blocking egress). Was retaliation; _ '
K.Smookler admitted her conduct/behavior was rnappropnate
K.Smookler has no authority to dreolpllne CP.

. K.Smookler apologized twice.

K.Smookler stated she only wanted to oommunrcate concerns._ K.Smookler felt that knowing
CP as long as she has, she could be frank and drrect - :
K.Smookler has since been civil and professional. -

K.Smookler does not assign/direct CP s work.

K.Smookler's interaction with CP on 7/1/08 was not drsosphnary

K.Smookler has no authorrty to discipline CP. :

This was 1 instance. T.O’Brien confirmed K.Smookler apologrzed was polrte
K.Smookler's behavior with CP was' unprofessronal o
K.Smookler did have knowledge ‘of CP’s engaging in protected actl\nty (compiaint actions).
K.Smookler not in position to take -adverse employment actiori against CP. This was 1
instance. . It was unpleasant, very unprofessional but does not rise folevel of +
severe/pervasrve Does not support Harassment. ' Does not support. Retaliation, -

. Recommenda’tlon Airport redistnbute "Standards for Employee Conduct” polloy

CP and representative took notes — erI respond aﬁer they confer. -
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© EEO #1371

Unwelcome and. offensrve conduct verbal harassment mtimrdatron slander ,
unsubstantiated: accusatrons _derogalory comments denrai of request for third party -
. witness, retaliation. :
» B.Summeérs did receive verbal complalnts reCP’s interactlons from the Facilities Deputy
Director; as conveyed by Carpentry staff.. :
« B.Summers did meet with CP in his office on 7/9/08.
« On 7/9/08 B.Summers. drd ask CP about her interactions with- Carpentry staff. .
« B.Summers did not provide CP with specific information regarding Carpentry compialnts
B.Summers was concemed that situation wotild be aggravated by cP personally confrontrng
- staff about their complalnts _
» Asthe manager, B. Summers wanted CP’s feedback of her interactions with staff.
« Asthe manager, B:Summers’ intent was to have a frank and honest discussion with cP
“about her method of interaction with others, which has been- perce;ved as abraswe
« B.Summers does not specifically recall calling CP complarnt happy”.
~» B.Summers not certain he said “"don’t sit there all proper”. . : :
-« B.Summers stated he may have sald problem from Day |, you don t Ilsten can’t change
you”.
« B.Summers did say, you are unhappy here look at aII the comptalnts you have fi led do you :
‘want to quit?”. ' '
. B.Summers recognizes and acknowtedges that his manner hurt CP's feehngs he showed
~ poor judgement.
'« Was not ‘unwelcome and oﬁensrve conduat', ‘verbal harassment un‘substantrated '
accusatlons' ‘derogatory comments’. ‘ .

S. PI'[OCCht- pervas:ve (disregard) at Alrport with the EEO process based on other srtuattons
he’s involved with.
Re this spec:f“ ic comp!alnt CP and representatlve took notes wrll respond after thev confer.’

FiNAL REBUTI'AL MEETING March 27,2009

1. Rewewed — | recelved her rebuttal statement of 211/09. Provided that statement to the
Depaftment. The Depariment responded on 3/6/09 and | have interviewed V.Davis -
(2/20/09).

CP stated ‘ftone” of Museums interaction with her has been “inappropriate”; B.Summers
- said he needed to have information re FMLA and she was forced to divuige information
regarding her FMLA CP stated manaqers need o attend FMLAJADA training.

CP agrees she has not been denied FMLA CP stated she continues in a.very awkward
and strained work environment and she hopes staff will recommend mediation. Re
disparate- treatment if Museums is too small a comparison (similarly situated Curator 1V's)
‘then should be able to broaden that to overall Department workforce. Rethe Manaqer I
Aviation descnptnon that's what John Hill has been doing.
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EEO #1371

,..., CP/representative made no other comment, reviewed staff report would be submitted to
' HRD for her detemmination. Letter of determination sent to both parties. Appeal is to CSC.
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March 6, 2005

VIA INTEROFFICE MAIL
& FACSIMILE

Silvia Castellanos
DHR-EEO Assistant Manager
~ City and Connty of San Francisco
- Department of Human Resources
1 South Van Ness Avenue, 4% Floor
San Francisco, CA 94103-1233

SUBJECT: Reguest for Information — Sonva Knudsen, 3546 Curator IV
DHR-EEQ File Ne. 1371 ' o

Dear Ms. C_::_lsteﬂanos:

The information enclosed is in response to your Request for Additional Information
Tegarding the July 11, 2008 Charge of Discrimination filed against the San Francisco
Adrport Museumns by Sonya Knudsen, 3546 Curator IV. Specifically, the information
speaks to Ms. Knudsen’s rebuttal statement dated February 1, 2009,

Should you reqiare additional information or have any questions, you may contact me
at (650) 821-3592. ' '

Sincerely

Susan Kim
Assistant Mapager
. EEO Programs
ol Gloria Loute, EEQ Director e

Y
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DHR-EEO Reguest for Information
Knudsen, Sonya ' '
EEO File No. 1371

Page 2 of 7

| ResPonSe to Complainant’s Rebuttal -Statetnen-t_of Febrnary' 1,2009

Sonya Knudsen, hefeinaﬁﬁ:r “Complainant,” alleges the following: -

1 Attendance Standards o o
»  Since returning to full-time work in April 2008, Complamant has been “unduly
scrutinized and questioned” by Blake Summers, Chief Curator of the San

~ Francisco Airport Museums (“Adrport Museums”) and Kathie Smookler,

Execiitive Secretary to Summers, regarding Complainant’s timesheets, use of

vacation leave/sick leave, and Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA) requests. .

« " Other Airport Museums staff are not similarty beld accountable or questiened.

Response . « ‘

The Airport Commission denies Complainant’s charge that she is being excessively
scrutinized and questioned by Mr. Sumners and Ms. Smookler regarding her -
timesheets, use of vacation/sick leave, and/or requests for FMLA leave. -Further,
Complainant has always been held to the same attendance standard applied to all

Airport Museuins staff. :

Mr. Summers recalls ‘questioning Complainant about her timesheet only one tirne.

Op this occasion, Complainzant stated she was leaving to attend a doctor’s

appointment during regular work hours. After noficing that Complainant’s timesheet

failed to account for the time she was not present for work during her appointment,

Sumrner$ approached Complainant. In response, Complainant stated she

wotild either work late or come in eatly during the work week to make upthe hours.

. Summers did not take issue with Complaipant making up the time later in the week,
and did not pursue the mater any further. E

II. Denial of Promotion _ _ , :
» By planning and budgeting for Jobn Hill’s promotion from a Curator IV to a
Manager I position, Mr. Summers 1s i violation of the merit system policies of
the City and County of San Francisco (CCSF). ,
« Mr. Summers’ intent to promete Mr. Hill, and not Cormplainant, evidences the
Ajrport’s‘bias toward Caucasian males in senior administrative staff positions.

Respouse
The Airport Comimission denies Complainant’s charge that Mr. Summers has taken
actions in violation of the City’s merit system policies. : -

Tnciuded in the Airport Museurns’ proposed budget for 2009-2010 (stili pending -
approval by the Mayor’s Office and Board of Supervisors), is a request for a position
substitution of a Curator IV to a Manager Inplg#igs substitution 1s approved, it wilt
affect the requisition currently occupied b il o '

e




DHR-EEO Request for Information
. Knudsen, Sonya '
EEOQ File No. 1371
Page 3of7.

" There are three mdiV]duals at Alrport Museums holdmg the 3546 Curator TV posmon
(John Hill- Curator in Charge of Aviation, Barbara Geib- Curator in Charge of

" Registration, and Complainant- Curator in Charge of Administration). While all share

 the same classification, their individual duties and responsibilities vary.

Mr. Hill’s Curator IV posmon was selected for substifution because the duties and
responsibilities associated with this position most closely match those expected to be -
performed by the proposed Manager L. Mr. Hill’s present Ciu-ator IV duties and

: respons1b1ht1es are as follows:

' _ Direct and research devel()pment of approx;mately ten exhibitions annually on
Airport and aviation history for the Airport Commission’s Aviation Library
and Louis A. Turpin Aviation Museum (ALM).

- Supemse work of Curator II in assisting with research and development of
aviation related exhibitions. -
- Direct and research identification and descnptson of collection objects. - Make
" recommendations for acquisitions and.continually assess the appropnateness of
all aspects of the aviation permanent collection.
Liaise through outreach and public speaking between the Airport Commission
and the aulme/amauonfmusemns commmimity to increase awareness of t’ne
Direct research of and famﬂlmzatlon with, related collecnons of outside -
organmatmns and private sources and identify potenttal exhibition loan
SOUICEs.
Organize, train, and supervise *fhe work of volunteers in the ALM
" Retain membership with the Collections Review Comurnittee, and the
Operational Scheduling Committes. -

1.

Some of the duties and responstbilities for the proposed Manager I position are as
follows: '
- Oversee 2nd direct the research and development of approximately te1
' . exhibitions annually on Airport and aviation history for the ALM. I_ududes
supervision of subordinate staff, such as the Curator 11,
_ Oversee and direct the development of aviation related exhibifions for new -
exhibitions program in renovated Terminal 2 space.
- Oversee and direct the development of new symposiuns and pubhcaﬁons
relating to aviation exhibitions.
. Oversee and direct the development and production of educatlonal programs
- and publications in conjunction with current exhibitions.
- Oversee and direct the development and 1atmch of online library collection
catalogne. :
- Oversee and direct the development of spet:lal prcgects such as the visitors’
survey and pubhc access database.
-. Liaise between the Airport Commuission and San P’anmsco Aeronaufical

Society Board of Directors, the nonpel suvport group to the Auport

| ef»‘t |



DHR-EEQ Request for Information
Knudsen, Sonya ' :
EEQ File No. 1371

Paged of 7 .

Museums. : . A o .

. Oversee the management of ALM facility/staff/volunteers, including the ALM
manager and bead Librarian.. Oversee the coordiﬁatibn of ALM activities with
other Airport divisions and managers, the daily operations of the facility, as
well as special events. ' . SR .

The Airport Commission. denies Mr. Summers has, in any way, compromised the
competitive Civil Service selection process. Complainant’s ability to apply and,
compete for the Manager I position remnains intact, as Mr. Hill’s placement in the
position is not guaranteed: AS with any Airport-Commission employment vacancy, all
qualified candidates will receive equal consideration for employment; ' '

The Alirport denies, and there 18 Do information to support, the existence of an Afrport
bias favoring Caucasian males in the hiring and selection process for senior level jobs.
The Airport Commussion endorses 2 policy of faimess and equality for employment
and career advancement of all people, without regard to race, color, religion, national -
origin, sex, age-or disability. ' - "

[T Change of Responsibilities pon Compleinant’s return to full-time work.
- Upon Complainant’s return to work in April 2008, her job duties and
responsibilities were altered i position scope, conditions, methodology, rank,
and staff interaction. ' S o -

Response _ - L : _

As Curator in Charge of Administration, Complainant performs a variety of special
projects and duties for the Airport Museums. These projects are assigned to
Complainant by Mr. Summers based on the department’s needs.

-Since _March 2007 to present, the majority of Complainant’s assigmnentshav_é
remained the same and are ongoing. Certain projects requiring immediate.attention, -

however, were reassigned to other Airport Museums staff during Complzinant’s leave -

of absence. (Ste Attachment A for a list of Complainant’s ongoing work- assignments
and noted project changes post March 2008) There were eight total reassigned tasks.
Tn addition to performing her regular work, Barbara Geib, Curator in Charge of

Registration, was assigned half of these tasks: creating the Risk Mapagement monthly

 jnsirance report, overseeing FAMSE Conservation invoice administration, and
creating exhibition schedule updates on both excel and on Filemaker. All are ongomg
assignments which Ms. Geib continues to oversee. '

" Mr. Surnmers assigned Roman Korolev, Museum Preparator, three of Complainant’s
projects during her leave of absence. Two of these projects were completed upon
Complainant’s return to work. The Kids’ Spotre Sairs is afrongoing assignment which

Mr. Korolev continues to OVErsee. The remidiesd assignment, the Arts Comnussion

9D
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inaintenandé installations proj ect, has been aééigned to a new employee hired
specifically to manage this project. '

Upon her April 2008 return to work, Mr. Sumrmers assigned Complainant four special
projects: 1) coordination. of the storage move from the Spruce Street warehouse _
location; 2) management of the data migration filemaker database; 3) management of
the collection appraisals request for qualifications; and 4) implementation of the -
collection appralsals A1l projects, except for the completed Spruce Street storage
move, are Ongoing anid are currently being performed by Complainant. No other
alterations have been made to Complamant s job duties and respens1bﬂ1hes

IV. Standards for Emplovec Conduct and Empiovee Disciplinary Actions .

« Mr. Summers failed to adhere to' CCSF policies and procedures When in April
and July 2008, he verbaily reprimanded Complainant regarding complaints that
had been received against her from the Airport’s Electric and Carpenny Shops.

» After her March 2007 car accident and related FMLA sick leave, disability
status, and filing.of discrimination complaints, Mr. Summers altered the terms
and tone of Complainant’s employment.

Response

In or around April 2008, Peter Acton Facilities Df:puty Duector mformed Mr.
Summers that Electric Shop staff were upset, complaining Complainant acted “bossy”
and rude during their interactions with her. Staff stated Complainant ofter demanded
‘her work requests he attended to immediately, without consideration of existing
priority assignments. After receiving the Electric Shop’s complaint, Acton stated to _
Surmnmers he did not appreciate Complainant’s mistreatment of his staff. He stated that
while his staff would gladly continue to complete assignments for the Airport
Museums, Coraplainant should not directly coordinate these projects and interfere
with the work to beperformed. - In turn, Summers communicated to Complainant that

she should “lay low” by not demandmg Facﬂmes staff to perform work beyond that
Tequired of them '

Sevcral months later; in July 2008, a second complaint was received by Summers from
“the Airport’s Carpenters Shop regarding Complainant. It was reported by Acton that
Complainant had made some unwelcome statemeénts to the carpenters and had acted
rudely in her interaction with them. Afierrecelving this information, Summers felt it
appropriate to meet with Complainant, communicate the department’s receipt of this
complaint, and allow Complainant an opportunity to present ber side of the exchange.

During this meeting, Complainant demt—:d any negative interaction with the Carpenh’v
staff.

Complainant did 1 mquu*e as to whether Summers came to'her defense during his
conversatl on with Acton and, accordmg to Smﬁ @ became upset tpon learning her

av
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actions were not defended. During this meeting, Summers reminded Compiajnan{ of
his earlier directive to her to request only that work which Facilities staff are required

to performm.

M. Summers’ ‘paramount concern has been, and continues to be, that the Airport

Miuseurns maintzin its ability to utilize the services of the Facilities Division and retain .

its positive working relationship with the crafts staff. The Airport Cornmission denies
any wrongdoing concermning Mr. Summers’ April and July 2008 meetings with
Complainant. The purpose of the referenced meetings was not to intimidate, harass,
discipline, or otherwise reprimand Complainant. Rather, the intention wasto
communicate and hopefully address the ¢omplaints received by certain Maintenance
Division staff regarding their work interactions with Complainant.

The Airport Comrmission denies the charge that Mr. Summers has unlawiully altered

fhe terms and tone of Complainant’s employment based on her FMLA leave, disability
status, and/or prcﬁously\ﬁled'discﬁminaﬁon complaints. R

V. Protected Categories S : .
M. Summers has and continues to penalize and discriminate against
'Complainant despite her protected category status. :
» Complainant’s skills and expertise are not being fully utiized by her
 supervisor, as she has been forced to take a secondary and passive Tole in ker
work style. ' . I
» There is a distinct CCSF and Airport bias favoring the employer rather than-
' neutrality for both employer and employee in the CCSF discrimination
complaint process. . ‘ | -

Response _ 7 7 - T

The Airport Commission denies Complainant’s charge that she has been subject to
discrimination and/or “penalized” based on her orotected category status. The Airport
Commission denies taking action forcing Complainznt to modify her adopted work
style, as Airport Museums staff are encouraged by management to take a proactive
role in their approach to work. Further, there is no information to support the
existence of a City or Airport bias favoring the employer, Thus, the Airport
Comnmission demies Complainant’s charge that the CCSF’s discrimination complaint
process is partial to the department employer 1n its implementation.
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Ref erenced Documents

The following referenced document has been attached: |

Attachment A:  List of Complamant s ongoing work assignments a:nd noted pro;cct
~changes post March 2008.

332
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City and County of San Francisco Departmerﬁt*of Human Resources

- Gavin Newsom-
Mayor

Micki Callahan
Human Resources Director

Scptt_:mberr 25,2009

John L. Martin, Director

San Francisco International Airport
- P.O.Box 8097 ©

San Francisco, CA 94128

RE:  Complaint of Employment Discrirnination
EEO File No. 1371

Dear Director Martin:

In accofdance with the San Frazcisco Charter, § 10.103, the Human Resources Director
shall review and resolve all allegations of discrimination. The purpose of my letter is to

- notify you of my determmatlon in the complaint of discrimination filed by Sonya KﬁUdSED
. Curator IV-in Charge of Admmsﬁatlon_ with the AJIpOI'E Museums

Beginning' June 2008 Ms. Knudsen filed several complaints of retaliation allécring that she
had been subjected to harassment which has created a hostile work environment and denied
pmmotlon due to retaliation and her gender (female)

 Ms. Sﬂvxa Castellanos, Assistant EEO Managar Department of Human Resources,
' complmed the investigation and has submitted her report to me for a determination.

Investig_ative Findings

Allegation of Harassment due to Retaliation

Ms. Knudsen alleged that she was subjected to excessive scrutiny regarding her timesheets
and requests to use vacation and sick leave; that her work assignments were redefined and
restructured; that key duties were reassigned to others-and she was placed in a suppertmc'
role; that the Airport vmia’zed FMLA job restoration requirements because 'she did not retumn
to work in the exact same assignments; that she was verbally reprimanded by Kathie
Smoekler on July 1, 2008; and that she was verbally repnmanded by Blake Summers on
Tuly 9, 2008 for ﬁhng complaints against him..

However, Ms. Knudsen failed to provide specific instances where she was subjected to
excessive scrutiny and the evidence established that none of her requests for vacation or

© leave have been denied and investigation did not establish any violation of FMLA job

restoration requirements. Investigation established that the Airport Museums uses a sign-in
sheet where employees smply record the number of hours worke:d per day. In order to more

3':’"
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7 accu:ately roﬂoct employees Work hours, the Aﬂport Museums may want to consider
alternate methods of takmcr attendance. ' ~

| Invesﬁgatlon did not estabhsh that Ms Smookler harassed Ms. K;nudsen

: ‘_A]legatzon of Harassment bj_,f Bla_ke Summers

Investigation established that Blake Summers did speek inappropriately to Ms. Knudsen.on
July 9, 2008. Ms Castellanos interviewed Mr. Summers on. Ianuary 12,2009 and MI
Summors admitted to the following:
» He did make a comment to Ms. Knudsen regarding the complaints she had ﬁ]ei
-~ “youare unhappy here look at all the complamts you have filed, do you want {0
quit?”;
s Hemay have made 4 comment to Ms. Kﬂudseo along the lines of; ¢ yo'u ve -been a
problem frox:o Day One I can’t change you, you never listen”. ‘

These coroments on part of A MANAZET, A5€ & serious concern. However, they were a one-
time-occurrence, not severe or pervasive so as to alter the terms and conditions of Ms. '
Knudsen’s employment and $he was riot-dissuaded or’ ‘chilled” from Giling her subsequent '
complaints. The Airport EEO Oﬂﬁce took action to re-distribute key EEO Executive -
Directives in February 2009. ‘However, I would also recornmend additional steps which

~include counseling Mr. Summers that an empioyeo has a.right to file complaints, and that the_ '

~ City prohibits retaliation for doing'so. It is also apparent that the working relatlonsl’up
" between Mr. Sumnmers and Ms. Knudsen is strained and 1 would recommend that the
depa_rtment explore mediation for both Ms. Knudsen and Mr. Summers to re- estabhsh a
smoother Workmg relationship with improved oommumcahon

A_llegation of Denial of Promotion

- Ms. Knudsen alleged that her manager, Ajrporf Musevrns Director Blake Sumnmers denied
her a promotion to Manager I while granting promotion to a male co-worker. Ms. Knudsen -
also alleges that Mr. Summers had previously implied he would seek a promotive position
for her.

However, investigation established that there had not; in fact, been a promotion. Rather, the
Alrport Museumns requested and was approved for a position reclassification which remains
in the budget process. Should the department be able to fill the reclassified position, the .-
o Alrport will mlplament a formal selection process 1o appoint the best qualified candidate and '
Ms. Knudsen will be welcome to apply and compete in the selection process. Mr. Summers

denied that he previously implied or promised Ms. Knudsen a promotion and there was no
“evidence that a factual observation he made that she had not been in the workplace fora
certain time, spoke to any bias or Tesentment on his part for the fact of her FMLA leave,

when He has not domed Ms. Knudsen any request to use vacatzon sick or FMLA leave ’ome '

Gt
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Based on a careful review of the 'ixivestigaﬁve report, I have determined t_hai there is .
insufﬁcient'evidénc_:e to sustain the charge of discriminatign. A copy of my dctennination to-
~Ms. Knudsen is enclosed. _ '

. The San Francisco Charter, § 10.103, provides that the decision of the Human Resources -

- DPrirector shall be final unless the decision is appealed to the Civil Service Commission, and
is reversed or modified. A request for appeal must be received by the Civil Service

~ Comunission at 25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 720, San Francisco, - CA 941 02, within thirty
(30) calendar days of the postmarked date of this letter. . '

‘ Y ou may Qonfact Linda Simon in the Department of Human Resources Equal Employment
Opportunity Division at 557-4837 if you have any questions. '

Micki Callahan |

Human Resources Director .

S incerélyl,

=

Enclosure .
Letter of Determination — S.Knndsen

" cer Susan Kim, Airport EEO
Linda Simon, DHR/EEO

File
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| * INTERVIEW SUMMARY
WITNESS: . ' "| EEO File No/Name: -
Blake Summers o - .| Knudsen, Sonya vs. Airport Museums. _
| B ¥ o
Investigator:  Silvia Castellanos " Date(s):

1.) January 12, 2009, 9:00 am

“Representative: None

‘ Location: SFO I /{30\313 A

1. | Upon her RTW April 2008; how was SKnudsen informed of her assigned ﬁfojecté?-_ Didryo_u meet with -
S Knudsen? _ ' ‘ S ,
- She had a list, before leaving, of active assignments; she was given a list, when she returned.

2. Since her RTW April 2008 has $ Knudsen informed you that she considers her work assignments
“restructured/redefined”? (“providing monthly insurance reports 1o SFO Risk Management, updating and
- managing FilemakerPro and Excel databases re permanent collection and exhibition scheduies™, as opposed to

working directly with supervisor to plan/develop and implement database Improvements).

-, dng database, managing insurance had been moved with SKnudsen; while she was gone had started
working on new database; SKnudsen has been doing database clean-up, did not have decision-making
responsibilities (“plan/develap™). Her work was dictated by needs of the department and those shift and vary.

- S.Knudsen used to be Chief Registrar, responsible for objects, then assignied her to more administrative tasks
and B.Geib now runs Registration. " ' -

3. Has she cotnpiajn'e_d 10 yoﬁ of “excessive scrutiny and interference™?
No, she works independently. :

4, Promotions ~ Has 8 Knudsen spoken to you re a promotion? When, what-was context of discussion?
In updating monthly report, she saw that ke had upgraded Curator IV to Manager [ (it’s in the budget but
hasn’t gone through yet). Museums has shrunk in staffing, has had 1 Manager I (Curator V, Abe Garfield); she
questioned him as to why not upgrade for her. Proposed upgrade is Aviation Curator. It hasn’t happened vet,
-not a done deal, for next FY, currently Curator of Avaiation is John Hill. ' ' '

5. Did you state to S Knudsen, “why would I promote you, you haven’t been.here this past year?”

That was at the same discussion (on July 9, 20087 Took place last year, towards late Spring or early Swmmer)
regarding John Hill and the upgraded Curator position. The comtext was, 5 Knudsen criticized J.Hill and
promoted herself. His work and responsibilities merit promotion- his work is more complex, more
responsibilities are involved. ' ' :

.- There were initial plans for a 7/4/08 BBQ. How did j}ou first become aware of these plans?

349
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Through T. O’Btien, he used to: be on the Museum CTew, The BBQ was not an issue, it wasn’t a bw deal
K.Smookler voiced concemn about it, had an ajr- of exclusion. There were social functions before. (at SFAM),
they weren’t well-organized and people felt excluded.” Re K.Smooker’s conversation with S Krudsen:
-Became aware of it through K.Smookler, she called him over the weekend and G.Louie let him know
- S.Knudsen had filed a complaint on part of T.O’Brien, where he wasn't Interested in ﬁhno a complamt
K. Smoolder sald she may have over-reacted. ' ‘

7. . Ever state to S Knudsen ‘you are unhappy hﬂre look at alI the cornpleunfs you have ﬁled, do you want
to qunt?”

1 got a call from P.Acton, he was asking me 10 keep her away from his people. He’d ooﬁen feedback from
Facilities that they weren’t happv with her and he asked her to keep a Jow profile. S.Knudsen wanted to know
the details, she felt he wasn’t being supportive:.. _Statement true, in context of her protesting she got along
with everybody and he spoLe frankly. She dldn t ask fora 3™ party witness, she talked about medlamon asa’
3. party, not having someone come into the meeting then and there. .

“complaint-happy”™? :

Don’t recall using those words, , jist of it is frue, context was, wh\f would he think she was complammcr to the
Director about the cart; he was talking about the written: complalms (demal of accommodation and about

T o’ Bnen) o - '

“don"t sit there all proper™? -
Pro-bably.' not certa'm...

“problem from dav 177 “can t. c;hange YO, Never hsten
Yes, r_mght have said that.. :

S Knudsen very much mio self-help, trymg to grow, he was her mentor. She became very defcnswe He was
honest in his feedback Sne has a healthv ego but also. very fragile, she left in tears. He didn’t mean to upset .

her.
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City and County bf San Francisco Department of Human Reso_tjrce's

Micki Callahan
Human Resources Director

Gavin Newsom
Mayor -

| S CONFIDENTIAL T
DHR EEO INVESTIGATION OF EMPLOYMENT DISCRIMINATION COMPLAINT

INTERVIEW SUMMARY, e
o R -~ .. % | EEOFileNo./Name: ‘ ©
WITNESS: = "~ - | Knouodsen, Sonya vs: Airport Museums
~Blake Summers: - .| #1371 R S
i_In.vestigator: - Silvia Castellanos | Date(s):

| 1.) September 23, 2010

Representative: None

‘ Location: 1 South Van Ness Avenue Pages: 92
. (Phone Interview) ' ‘
1. - What triggered the discussion with S.Knudsen in July 20087

Peter Acton, in charge of Maintenance (within Facilitiés Department), is a fellow manager. P.Acton told
~ir ““eep her away from my people’ basically. There had been a specific incident where a crew had _
0.  on-site, had not checked in with her, been a back/forth, which-she had not told ki abowut and then
she bad teased the crew member about his cart, something like, ‘if you need to get a real truck, 1 can talk
to John Martin..”. The maintenance staff (electrician? ‘Carpenter?) was upset. This was not the first ime*
that P.Acton had said the same thing. She needed to interact with maintenance crews, the Museum needs
to have a good working relationship with maintenance. His intention was to convey, ‘keep your head
down’, convey a ‘heads-up’, to not have more interaction with mairitenance than was necessary to do her
job. T ' '

She wanted to know details, exactly who had complained about her? He did not give details, concerned -
sitnation would escalate. - : : ‘ :

He began conversation in hallway outside his office, she mmmediately became upset, said she felt he
wasn’t being supportive of her so he mvited her into his office so they wouldrn’t have a public - 7
conversation. His intention was nat to upset her. His comments were true, she hadn’t been happy, she’d.
outgrown her position. She started saying how supportive she’d been (of him) and that wasn’t true,
otherwise she wouldn’t have filed.all those complaints. He felt her statement or comment, that she’d
supported bim, was not accurate. His cormments weren’t related to her leave or in retaliation for her
complaints. What she said wasn’t true. she hadp’t been supportive of him.

2, “Mentor”- a formal arrangement?

No -t a;formél arrangement. P,revidusly; they’d always had that relationship, she respecteé him, she was

At in his office discussing stuff, asking for his adyicg. 4TF?ey’d worked together since 1997, since the

0]
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‘prevxous Museums Dlrector Sornetlmes their chscusszons were of 2 more. personal nature such as how to talk
to someone, how not to ruffle feathers. They are polite and professmnal he says “hello”; Uood morning”.
-He’s assmned the Curator IV’s to Abe Garﬁe]d : .

*Note Per Agrport response of March 6, 2009 011 OF about Apm’ 2008, P. Acton, Facﬂmes Deputy
‘Director informed B.Summers that Electric Shop staff were upset. S.Knudsen had acted “bossy”
and was rade with Shop staff. Shop staff comp}amed that'S. Knudsen was demanmng and -
inconsiderate regarding their pnontlzatmn of assignments. P.Acton told B.Summers that Shop.
staff would continue to complete projects for-the Airport Museumas but he d]d not appreciate the
mlstreatm ent of his staff and S:Knudsen should- not diréctly- cogrdmate these pm_}ects and interfere -
'rvnth work of the Shop staff. - : :

In .fm'y 2008 B.Summers received 4 second complamt from P Acton re}atmo to Carpenter Shop
staff complammo that S. Iumdsen had acted rudely.) _

16z



SFO Museum Previous position - Promotive Position | Promotive
staff name Year

Blake Summers 0940 - Manager V 0941- Ma:ﬂ;éer VI 2008
Abe Garficld 3547 - Curator V ) (922 - Manager 1 B 2006
Abe Garfield 0922 - Manager I 10923 - Manager 1 | 2009
John Hill 3546 - Curator IV 0922 - Manager [ %2"010
Timothy O'Brien |3544 - Curator Il 3546 - Curator IV 2010
Sonya Knudsen {3558 - Senior Museum Registrar | 3546 Curator IV -V 1999
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Identification
1 Last Nama. Fust Name Middke Indial 2 Class No and Title 3 Status
Knudsen, Sonya 3546 Curator iV PEX
4 Work Localion and Qwision 5 Depariment 6 Reason for Report 7 1" Date in Class
AIRPORT Annual 11/29/1999
- COO COMMISSION
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L Duties and Responsibilities / Performance Criteria

Sonya Knudsen, Curator in Charge of Administration and Special Projects:

Responsible for computer database maintenance, i.e., “scrubbing” of the

Collections Database.

Facilities manager for 30,000 sq. ft. office/storage facility and 25 exhibition and
storage sites.

Responsible for scheduling routine maintenance for the San Francisco Airport
Museums West Field Road facility as well as the Airport terminal galleries and
storage facilities. :

tdentifies and scheduies emergency maintenance as necessary.

Responsible for the security alarm systems, and interfaces and coordinates
alarm maintenance with FOM Electricians.

Schedules and monitors quarterly weekend floor cleaning and sealing
maintenance at 670 West Field Road facility.

Responsible for the daily monitoring of climatic conditions in all galteries
throughout the Airport terminatls.

Liaison with the Airport Fire Marshall and coordinates safety inspections for 670.
West Field Road facility.

Responsible for creating the monthly activity report for the Director and Chief
Curator.

Acts as a member of the Airport Museums' Collections Review Committee,

Related duties as required/requested by Director and Chief Curator.

Definition of Ratings

Lze the following definitions to identify ernpleyee's level of performance when rating factors in Sections If, Il ang IV.
Competent and Effective Performs assigned duties in an acceptable level through demonstrated application of
skills.

Zrceeds Standards

Qutstanding

Development Needed Performance in one or more areas does not meet the requirement for a "Competent
and Effective” rating. Improvement is required if acceplable results are o be

Unacceptable

“Outstanding” rating.

Performs assigned duties in a manner demonstrating mastery at every level of major
“ responsibility.  Resulis achieved are well beyond the level of performance rated

"Exceeds Standards.”

achieved.

Even under close direction, performance doss not demonstrate the ability and/or

willingness to produce required results.

San Francisco Airport Commission / Performance Appraisal Report / Airport 7-04
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Performs assigned duties in a manner indicating exceptionat understanding of
essential functions. Results achieved are often better than expected of performance
rated “Competent and Effective.” but not of such uniqueness as to warrant an




Performance Factors (Required for all employees)

Competent and Effective

]

Exceeds Standards I

Development Nesded

Unacceptable

1.

Attendance and Punctuality

‘Qutstanding ]

Good obsarvance of work
nours; only routine absanca

from work
L]

Very punciual and
dependable

>

Extremely punctuat and
dapendable

0

High rata of lateness and/os
absence from work

L]

Excessive ard persistent
patiern of ialenass and/or
absence from work

2 Knowledge of Job

Wall-informead on imponant
phase of the job

Walk-intformed on all phases
of the job

&

Exceptional knowledge and
understanding of tha job

L]

Lacks knowledge of some
imporiant phases of the job

L]

nsufficient knowledge lo
perform the essantiat job

raquirements

3.

Quantity of Work Pe

rformed

Quantity of work meets
ossential job requirements

[l

Quantity of work oftan
exceeds job requirements

X

Quantity of work consistenily
axceeds job requiremants

L

Quantity of work doas not
mael job requiremants in

some areas

Quantity of work fails to meet
assential jeb requirements

|

4.

Quality of Work Performed

Quality of work meats
assential job requirements

]

Quality of work often
exceeds job requirement

&

Quality of work consistantly
axceeds job requirements

]

Quality of work doses not
maet job requirements in

30ome areas

Cuality of work fails o mest
assential job requiremeants

[

Effectiveness in Working with Others

Work effectively with others

X

Works effactively wilth olhers
under difficult circumstances

Actively pramotes good
relations with others |

O

Occasionally has difficulty In
working with others

O

Sarious inattertion to needs
of others and/or continuad
conflict with others

§.  Adaptation to Work

Situations

Effectively adapts to day-to-
day demands of the job

{l

Perloms well even under
pressurs in difficutt situations

24

Performs effectively in crisis
situations

Performance consistently
declines in other than routine

situations

Does not adapt to routine
damands of the job

U

7.  Use of Materla

Is and Equipmeant

Routinely consarvaes
malteriats andfor maintains

Chbtains maximum utilization
of matarials and/or
equipment

X

Devalops improved
tachnigques for the use of
materials and/or equipment

[

Oceasionally wasteful and/or
careless

01

Unacceptably wasteful
andfor careless

(]

equipmant
8. Safoty

Routinely observes ail safety
practices

L

Identifies and repors safety
hazards

X

Consistertly identiies sataty
hazards and initiates
corrective action

L]

COccasionally disregards
safaly practices

L

Seriously disregards safaty
practices

Ll

Managerial Factors (Required for ail supervisory person.

neil)

Compstent and EHactive

Exceeds Standasrds |

Qutstanding I

Developrent Needed

I

Unacceptable

1. Communlcating

Usuaily communicates
clearly ang produces
effactive leve! of
understanding

Frequently uses language
skills {0 promole oplimal
tavel of clarity and
understanding

&

Consistently uses language
skills to manage
interpersonal problams
efectively

]

Sometimes fails to
communicata clearly
rasulting in
misunderstanding and/or

confusion

Sarious and/or persistant
problems using language

2. Planning

Davalops necessary goals
and plans and evaluales
results

{dentifies potential problems
and develops contingency

plans
J

Plang creatively lo optimize
use of all resources

L

Poor attention to planning
andior inefficient use of
resources

]

skills

Serious inattention to
planning and/cr extramaly
weak in utilizing resources

l

3. Decision Making

Ususlly demonstrates scund
evaluation or factors in
routine matters

Demonsirates excaplional
ability to solve difficult
problems

L

Consistently demonstrates
ablility to seive problems of a
highly complex nature

Semelimes overlooks and/or
misjudges basic factors in
routine matters

Serious inattention 1o
dacision making, Decisions
produce poor rasults

4. Directing and Motivating Employees .

Effectively directs the work of | Molivales amployses to Identifies amployee potentlal Has difficulty in directing Serious inattention to

employees achieve high performance and provides opportunities and/or mativating employaas directing and/or molivating
for optimal performance employeas

5. Training and Developing Employeas

Makes provisions for
employees 10 acquira
necessary job skills and
knowledge

Encouragas employees in
career development

i

Aclively provides amgployes
Iraining and developmant
opportunities

Sometimes fails to provide
needed training or job
irformation to employess

Ll

Serious inattention lo
amployes lraining needs

£l

IV,

Overall Evaluation

Competent and Effective

Exceeds Standards

Qutstanding

Development Needed

Unacceplable

10O




V.

Comments. Must be completed according to instructions.

A.  Facts/Specific Performance Documentation: Adequate and accurate documentation is
required. (Attach additional pages as necessary.}

Ms. Knudsen has been helpful and dedicated with the maintenance and “scrubbing” of the
Airport Museums' newly designed Coflections Database system. Ms, Knudsen has done an
excellent job of maintaining the facility at 670 West Field Road, and has developed and
maintained a good-working relationship with the various departments at FOM.

B. Employee Strengths: Eagerly accepts and completes all assignments and diligently
approaches all tasks that she is responsible for. Ms. Knudsen identifles potential
maintenance issues/repairs at the 670 West Field Road helping to avoid emergency
assistance. She is well connected with the many varied Maintenance departments and
successfully uses those relationships in maintaining the Airport Museums facility.

C. Work Plan for Next Report_ Period: Please see the new 09/10 Appraisal Report.

D. Recommendations:

VI Reporting Manager

1 Name, Work Address
Blake Summers
670 West Field Rd.

2 Class No and Title
0941 Director
Curator

3 Conference Report With

{Manager's Signature
g.2¢1 o }

and Chief

4 Dals of Repor!

29

o7

435

Vil
1 3 1agrea with this repor.
I do not agres with this repor. Section
D I request a conference with the Ravi .

L ot aracnes PLEASE. SEE. PREVIOYS

Employee’s Statement (See Handbook for Statement of Employse Rights)

Number

Interview

2 Date of Coynseli
| cf*?irﬁ

Vill. Reviewer's Certificati

s
[/

1 Name, Work Addruss

=

on

.
F/30/0%
2 Class No and Title 1 3 Date of Conference Initials of
thosa Present
4 Date of Report
p——>

5 B 1 certity | have reviewsd the report
O

| hava taken lhe following action:

108
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TO: Blake Summers; SFAM Director and Chief Curator

FROM: Sonya Knudsen, SFAM Curator in Charge of Administration / Special Projects

DATE: 16 August'2009
RE; rebuttal to be attached to FY08/09 CCSF Performance Evaluation Report

Re our 28 and 30 July 2009 meetings to review and discuss my FY08/09 CCSF Performance Evaluation
Report (PARY), while your overall report rating of “Exceeds Standards” acknowledges my contributions and
value to the San Francisco Airport Museums {SFAM), | do not agree with particular sections noted below
and submit this rebuttal to be attached to my FY08/09 PAR.

Section |, Buties and Responsibilities / Performance Criteria
While FY08/09 duties listed provide indication of facility management responsibilities crucial ts SFAM

operations, there have also been administration and special projects responsibilities. Some examples
include:

- Inaddition to "scrubbing” data in FilemakerPro exhibition and permanent coflection databases, an
essential accomplishment was providing an overall assessment report re the structure, field content and
SFAM staff usage of both databases to aid the outside vendor, Soliant, resulting in a tirme-sensitive,
seamless migration into a new, combined collection management database.

- Acting as liaison and mentor for newly hired Assistant Registrar for San Francisco Art Commission
permanent collection and pertinent SFO personnel, inclusive of Maintenance and Duty Managers.

- Working with SFO Risk Manager to provide Airport Commission packet re recommendation report for
outside assessment and appraisals of San Francisco Art Commission and San Francisco Airport
Museums permanent and exhibition collections, in adherence to CCSF, AAM, and ASA standards.

Sector |l, Performance Factors, #1: Attendance and Punctuality

I have been at SFAM since 1997 and in all my PARs, from the first one in FY97/98 up to FY05/06, the last
one on file, | have always had a rating of “Outstanding” for Attendance and Punctuality. Your initial FY08/09
rating of “Competent and Effective” then was surprising, and your comments indicated that | was marked
down two levels because of FMLA leave absences, refated medical appointments, and once a week

attendance to Burlingame Rotary lunch meetings, comparing my attendance to pre-FMLA and to your own
example of dental appointments scheduled every six months.

FY08/09 attendance criteria then seems to be that | had more absences than in prior years, but reduced
work hours was due to the necessity of CCSF-approved FMLA leave and refated medical appointments.
Aiter | explained that FMLA absences and related medical appointments were not applicable to attendance
criteria, and that | worked hours beyond my compressed schedule to offset medical appointments that could
not be scheduled after hours as well as once-a-week attendance at Burlingame Rotary lunch meetings, you

upgraded my rating to “Exceeds Standards,” a rating | stil think inappropriate, seemingly a demotion from
prior PAR ratings, and not performance based.

Section i, Performance Factors #5: Effectiveness in Working with Others

When | requested an example for the criteria in rating my effectiveness in working with others, you referred
to my involvement with SFAM staff. My core administrative and facility management responsibilities are
more closely tied to you and somewhat independent from SFAM staff, with far more interaction and
collaborations with SFO personnel, e.g., Facilities, Maintenance, Engingering, Risk Management,

Knudsen FY08/09 PAR rebuttal
page 1 of 3, 08/16/09
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- Emergency Operations, Fire, Police, et al. Because | have established and sustained positive and
constructive relationships with SFO personnel, | am able to streamline completion of SFAM projects and
expand peer support. Some examples include: '

- Worked with SFO Storeroom, Pavement and Grounds, and Carpentry department personnei to transfer all
SFAM exhibition, archives and office material due to closure of SFO Spruce warehouse to SFAM West
Field Road facility, expanding into unused building quadrant with shelving installation and seismic
precautions beforehand, accomplished at record and timely pace, the first SFO department to be
completely out of Spruce well before FOM deadline.

- Established consistent HYAC computer and manual monitoring of relative humidity and temperature
levels for ITB exhibition galleries and West Field Road facility, collaborating with SFO Mechanical
Maintenance and FAMSF Conservation re baseline needs, upgrades and improvements.

Saction I, Managerial Factors #3: Decision Making

+hien | requested an example for the criteria in rating my decision making, you referred to the monthly
administrative reports 1 provide to you at the end of each month for submittal to Airport Administration,
saying that ideally you should not have to provide me amendments or edits before forwarding it. | agree but
as mentioned, in preparing these reports for your sign-off, | am dependent on being privy to key information
and communication re SFAM program activities. Since my April 2008 FMLA return, | am no fonger involved
in SFAM exhibition staff meetings and it is time consuming to seek out individuals for information needed,
and to clarify information posted on Excel and FilemakerPro files. This gathered information is often
contradictory or outdated, thus the need on my part to request clarification and definitive word from you as
department head. The same is true re being assigned a project, with direction and expectation that |
complete it as best deemed appropriate with minimal guidance or instruction from you, only then to be told
when well info a project of your requirements or preferences. As we both agreed in our PAR discussion, |
am capable, proactive, goal and results-oriented, without need for excessive direction or instruction in
completion of job responsibilities, but additional communication, interaction, and feedback from you and
SFAM staff will be of benefit to ensure that projects are accomplished in a streamlined, timely manner.

Section V, Comments

As the SFAM Curator in Charge of Administration and Special Projects, | am a responsible, hard-working,
and conscientious professional, continuously seek to improve my work performance, refine and expand my
skills, take initiative to branch out and be of aid with other work and staff needs, with dedication in being an
invaluable and noteworthy employee and contributor to SFAM and SFO. My FMLA-related absences and
medical status does not alter such a commitment, nor are there health concemns that affect my work
performance, contributions, or product, thus mention of such is inappropriate and out of place.

My comprehensive skills, education, and experience can be used to aid and provide you the means of
addressing and realizing core SFAM administrative and operational needs, capitalizing on my public
administration and project management proficiencies, especially those pertaining to SFAM program,
personnel and budget management, as well as community outreach. FY09/10 work plan on file can be
amended accordingly, incorporating as applicable goals suggested in Knudsen memo of 21 July 2009,

Below is a listing of notable FY(8/09 projects accomplished, supplementing those provided above:
- Proofread and edited SFAM exhibition introductory panel and label copy materials provided by curators.
- Assisted Curator in Charge of Registration and Senior Museum Registrar with misc. projects and

assignments pertaining to FilemakerPro and Excel exhibition and permanent collection databases,
schedules, reports, risk management, and logs.

Knudsen FY08/09 PAR rebuttal
page 2 of 3, 08/16/09
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SFAM participant and host in Russel Wright reception for exhibition lenders at Aviation Library and
Museum and Terminal 3 exhibition gallery site, as well as coordinated event set-up with primary Wright
lender, security aspects, and wheelchair accommeodations with TSA / Covenant.

Expanded community outreach and collaborations, e.g., on Board of Directors and Community Service
Chair at Rotary Club of Burlingame; speaking engagements at Burlingame Lyons Club, Rotary Clubs of
SFO, Burlingame and San Carlos; mentored and assisted Burlingame Historical Society re opening of

Burlingame Hillsborough History Museum and establishment of exhibitions and museum collection
management program.

Responsible for ongoing facility and security management and administration re SFAM facilities, storage
and exhibition sites at SFO, Spruce warehouse, and West Field Road facility, collaborating with SFO
personnel, inclusive of FOM, Duty Managers, Electronic Tech, Communications Center, Emergency
Operations, Police and Fire, and outside agencies.

Organized SFO Mechanical Maintenance behind-the-scenes tour of de Young Museum and meeting with
FAMSF Mechanical and Conservation personnel re viewing and discussion re state-of-the-art HVAC
computerized system that is relative humidity based, rather than industry standard temperature.

On emergency cali for after-hour needs, e.g., security alarm calls for SFAM exhibition sites and storage
facilities; San Francisco Art Commission ceiling sculpture leak, coordinating clean-up with SFO Duty
Managers, Custodial, and deinstaltation with SFAM staff, SFO Pavement & Grounds.

Scheduled and supervised SFO Custodial weekend floor cleaning and sealing maintenance at 670 West
Field Road facility

Knudsen FY08/09 PAR rebuttal
* page 3 of 3, 08/16/09 ™ -
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650821 6777 sfo museum . A : 15:56:05 06-02-2011 3/5

. 1
1. Duties and Respuasibilifies / Perforrance Criteria

Curator in Charge of Registration. Respcnsible for the supervision of the registrars

and interns. Responsible for the planning, directing, and management of the

Collection Management activities for the permanent collections {Aviation and

Education). Responsible for all objects on loan for exhibitions; this includes but is not
_limited to loan agreement forms, incoming and outgoing receipts, safety and security

of objects, proper handling, shipping and packing requiraments, condition reports,
" sterage, installation and deinstallation. ;

Liaison with the City Risk Manager.
Liaison with the Fine Arts Museums of San Francisco Conservation Lab.

Consults with the Director and Chief Curator of development of the new collections
database.

As one of the Readers, proofs all label copy for exhibi{ions and brochures,

Respansible for the deaccessioning of collections objects, per the recommendation
of the Collections Review Commitiee.

Works and collaborates with other SFAM staff, intemns, vokinteers, airport personnel,
private collectors, museurns, and cutsice vendors. ‘

A member of the Airport Museumns Senior Staff, the Coliections Review Committee,
and the Operational Scheduling Committee.

Deﬁnition of Ratings

Use the following definitions to identify employee's level of perfformance when rating factors in Sections II, Wi and V.

Competent and Effective Performs assigned duties in an acceptable level through demonstrated application of
skills.
Exceeds Standards Performs assigned duties in a manner ind%céting exceptional understanding of

eszantial functions. Results achieved are often better than expectad of pedformance
rated ~Corpetent and Effective,” but not of such unigueness as o warant an
*Qutstanding” rating.

| Sutstanding Performs assigned duties in a manser demonstrating mastery at every level of major
resporsibility. Resulfs achieved are well beyand the lavei of performance rated
“Exceeds Standards.” )

Davelopment Needed Perforrnance in one or more areas does not meet the reguirement for a “Competent
“and Effective” rating. Improvement is reguired if acceptable results are to be
achieved.

Unacceptable Even under close direction, perfarmance does not demonstrate the ablity and/ot

willingness to produce required resuits.

San Franciscs Airport Commission / Performance Appraisal Report / Ajrport 7’*046 8
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i Performance Fact. . (Reguired for afl employess) i
Competent and Efective | Excouda Standarris T Oulstanding T Davelcpment hasded | Unacceptaple

t, Anendance angd Punctualtty

Good obaervanca of Witk Very puncius and Extramety punsiual snd Hign rate of latansess andiof Excessive and persisisnt
howrs; only rouline absence dependabie dependabie absence from work patiern of latensss and/or
tram wark absance from work,
2 Hnowledge of Job
i iateniormed on importand Welknformed on aii phases Excaptional knowistge and Lucks knowiedge of same Insufficient knowiedge o
pitass of the job ot the b underslanding of the Kb impaniant phases of ihe iob pu'!qnn the essental b
requirements

Ll

b4

0l

L]

]

3. Quantlty of Work Performed

Quantity of wark meets
essential job requirements.

01

Quantity of work olten
exceeds job reduirements

-

Quantity of work consisiently
exceads job requirsmants

O

Cuarty af work dows not
mesl job requirements in

1

Quarhly 3f wark {aHs (0 mes
essantial Kb raquiramants

U

4, Quality of Work Performed

Quality of work meais
asseiThal job requiremants

1

Guatity of wark ollen
pxCESGS [CD MeqUirEmant

X

Quality o wiork consistenty
pxcaads jof requinments

D

Quality of work Jdoas rot
maet job requiredtants in

SOITD Are3s

Quality of work fans i meet
assanbal job requiremants

O

ctiveness In Working with Others

clivaly with othars

=

Works pffactivaly wilh others
under difficulf circumstances

L]

Actively promotes good
rmlations with others

£

Occasionally has dificulty in
working with others

£l

Sencus Nattenilon o neads
of cthers andfor cantinued

corflict with othesy

O

6. Adaptatlon to Work Shuations

EHectively adaps lo doy-tn-
day demands of the job

d

Pertoria well aven under
pressurs in ificst siuations

S

Perforsis efectively in crisis
siluations

O

Parformance consistently
declin=s in other than mutinge

stiuations
L]

Does not adapt o routina

demands of the job

E] .

7.  Use of Materials and Equipment

Rounely conseives
mzlarials ahaior mainialng
aquIprment

8 D

Obtains maximum uliization
of matssials andior
equipment

0

Davelops improved
lechniquas for tha use of
materials anclor equipmeant

careleas -

Gecasionaly wasisful andior I

ol

Unaccaptably wasieful
arkior careless

O

B,  Safety

Routinely observes afl safely

lentifes and raporis safaty

Consisiently xantifies safety

QOcrasionslly disregards

Seribusly cisregards safety

practicas nazardy hazards and iritiales safety prachices pracices
coreclive action
115 Managerial Factors {Required for sil supervisory personnel)
Compstent and Effective 1 Excests Sandards " | Dutstandlng T Oevelopmant Needed | Urisczwptable

Communicating

&y communicates
warly and produces

Frequartly ugas language
%kilis 1o promate opimal

Consisiently usaes fanguage
skills o menege

Somebmas 185 10
comfmunicate clearty

-Serouy and/or persisiEnt
Protéems using language

active faval of iave) of ciarity and imMerpersanal problems resuiling i skills
standing understanding eHeclivaly misundersianding and/or ‘
= 0 [ cosn 0
2, Plamnning

Devalopa necessary goals
and plans and svaluates
results

|geniifies potential problems
and davelops contingercy

plans
0

Plans creatively o oplimize
use of all respurces

Y

Poor atlention 1o panming
andfor inefficient usa of

-1 Vg o]

Senous natlenbon 19

plannng and’or extremaly
weak N LZIing resowrces

O

3 Déclslnn Making

Usuaily demonstratas sound
evalyation or factors in
rouhing matiers

X

Demonstrates mxcapiional
abilily lo scive affici
problamy

£

Ceonsistenlly demonstrales
ability to sotve preblems of 2
nighty complex nalure

Sometimes gvariocks andior
rusudges basic factors in
rounne maltars

Sericus inatientian 1o

decision makirg, Decsiors

produce podr resulls

O

4. Directing and Motivating Employees

Eifectivaly dirgcts the work of
amplayeay

.

Maiivales employeas 10
prhieva high performahcs

&

idantfies smpicyae pofantal
and pravides opporiunities
tor opiimal performance

Has difficulty in directing
andior mouvating employaes

C

Serous inattenton 1o

direcung andior mohvaung

empioyess

O

5, Training and Developing Empioyees

Makns provisions for
amployaees 1o acquire
necessary job skits and

krenwlesdge
i

Encourages Bmolayess N
caraer development

0

Actiyely prowvides employee
traning and deveiopment
oppartunilias

Sameumes lails o provide
needed Uraning or job
yniormaton to employees

.

Senaus inattanhan 19
amployee raning reeds

&

.

Overall Evaluation

Competen and EHacive

]‘ Zxteads Slandards

Outslanding

i Cevalopment Needed

Unacceptable
O

269 -

415
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' A
V. Comments. Must be completed according to instructions.
A. .Facts/Specific Performance Documentation: Adequate and accurate documentation is
required. (Attach additional pages as necessary.)
Despite our inability to fili vacant positions during the last fiscal year Ms Knudsen and her staff have
mariaged to patch together the registration department and continue the program continuity to bring in
objects to keep the exhibition schedule maving ahead.
‘Ms Knudsen has cantinued to focus on her work with the facilities maintenance staff to help oversee the
varous construction projects in the Airport Museums West Field Rd facifity. Some of these projects include
the re-roofing of the building, the replacement of fioor tiles on the mezzanine and the ights for the parking
lot. By daing so Ms Knudsen has minimized the impact on the Aimort Museums statf and expedied the
construction process. Ms Knudsen has also worked on maintaining the Kid's Spot in Terminat 3, by
bringing the Exploritorium staff together with the facilities maintenance staff.
B. Emplayee Strengths:
Ms Knudsen works well independently without my having to micre-manage her time. Sonya is a very hard
worker and will always go the extra mile lo complete the necessary asks. She is very motivated.
C. Work Plan for Next Report Period:
Ms Knudsen should work with the staff and our interns to continue fo update the pamnanent callection
inventory. This is an ongoing process and needs constant upkesp. We shoutd also continue the process of
deaccessioning the ohjects from the permanent coliection as deerned necessary by the collections review
comrmittee.
D. Recommendations:
Vi Reporting Manager
1 Name Work Addrass 2 Class No and Title 3 Conferenca Regon With
Blake Summers 0933 Manager V {Managers Sigrature)
San Francisco Airport © §16/2005 5 sﬁt g\—v
Museums
VIL. Employee's Statement (See Handbook for Statement of Emplayes Rights) :
%l agres with this report, 2 031?7?29?92&'\:1“
E] I do nat agree with itus repost. Section Numbar ﬂ
D | requast a conterance with the Reviewer 3 5q certfies ‘har%
[ Rebuttai Anached. W A
VIl Reviewer's Certification 7
1 Mame, Wark Adgress 2 Ciass No ang Tile V’ 1 Cata of Cornereace imuais af
Blake Summers 0933 Manager V nase Prosant
San Francisco Airport # Dals of Repor oy
. ’ o &
Museums -1y Leew

- A—
5 E | cerlly 1 hava rev.ewed (ne repen , . 6 Sigraire cé [ W

T I have laken the tPowing actor

370
163
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO
DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN RESOURCES

Performance Plan
and
Appraisal Report

i. EMPLOYEE IDENTIFICATION INFORMATION

1. LAST NAME, FIRST NAME, MIDDLE INITIAL | 2. JOB CODE NUMBER AND TITLE 3. STATUS
“nudsen, Sonya 3548 Curator IV PEX
¢4 YWORK LOCATION & DIVISION 5. DEPARTMENT 6. REASON FOR REPQRT
§ 00 Alrport Commission Annual
iuseums
7. REVIEW PERIOD 8. PROBATION START AND END DATE
711/2009 to 6/30/2010
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Il. EXPLANATIONS OF SECTIONS

. EMPLOYEE IDENTIFICATION INFORMATION — Basic information about the employee, his/her status, and
the review period. ‘

iIl. EXPLANATION OF SECTIONS — Basic information about what should be included in each section of the
Performance Pian and Appraisal Report.

lil. PERFORMANCE PLAN: JOB DESCRIPTION — A list of the duties and responsibilities based on the job
description. Comments may inctude clarification of job description items, address mid-year progress, and

appraise the performance of the duties and responsibiiities. If appropriate, the job description may be a
source of Key Objectives for the review period.

IV. PERFORMANCE PLAN: KEY OBJECTIVES - Most important objectives for the review
regarding the appraisal of the performance of the objectives.

V. APPRAISAL REPORT SUMMARY

period and comments

A. Overall Performance Rating — Reporting Supervisor's/Manager's rating of the employee's overall
performance over the appraisal review period. The purpose of the continuum line is to give supervisors a
way to show employees how the supervisor sees their overall performance across the scale.

B. Comments Regarding Overall Performance — Narrative explanation of the rating of overall performance
during the appraisal report review period. '

4+ Demonstration of DHR ¢+ Attendance And ¢+ Effectiveness Of Working
values Punctuality With Others

¢ Overall Performance of ¢+ Quantity Of Work ¢+ Use Of Materials And
Job Description Performed Equipment

¢ Results of Performance + Quality'Of Work ¢+ Safety
Objectives Performed ¢ Performance Plans

¢+ Knowledge Of Job * Adaptability To The Work

¢ Employee's Strengths Situation

¢ Achievements

In addition to the areas above, the following areas may be addressed for supervisors/managers:

¢ Communication ¢ Planning ¢ Decision Making
¢ Directing and Motivating ¢ Training and Developing
Staff Staff

C. Empioyee Guidelines — Guidelines for employees regarding the Performance Plan and Appraisal -
Report. '

VL. SIGNATURE PAGE

A. Performance Plan/Key Objectives Sign-Off — Signatures of the supervisor and the employee, the date
they met to finalize the plan, the signature of the reviewer, and the date of the review.

B. Mid-Period Performance Review Meeting— Signatures of the supervisor and the employee and the date
they met to review progress on the plan.

C. Reviewer's Certification — Information regarding the reviewer of the report. This is the person who
directly supervises the reporting supervisor/manager.

D. Reporting Supervisor/Manager —Information regarding the reviewer of the report. This is the person who
directly supervises the employee's performance.

E. Employee’s Statement — Employee’s opportunity to respond to the PPA Report using a c:hecklist,
signature and date. Signing the report only certifies that the employee has read it. It does not indicate,
unless marked, that the employee agrees with the report.

123
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GITY & COUNTY OF SAN FRAN

-

CISCO + DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN RESOURCES
PEREORMANCE PLAN AND APPRAISAL REPORT

. PERFORMANCE PLAN - JOB DESCRIPTION
REVIEW OF DUTIES & RESPONSIBILITIES BASED ON JOB DESCRIPTION

FUNCTIONAL/WORKING TITLE

Curator in Charge of Administration and Special Projects

1 Handles the routine and daily maintenance of the COMMENTS:
facility at West field Rd. '

2 Monitors the climate conditions at all the exhibition COMMENTS:
and art storage sites through out the Terminals.

3. Write and prosecute the Maintenance scheduling COMMENTS:
requests.

4. Develop the User Manual for the Collections COMMENTS:
Management Database.

5 Work on the data scrub for the Collections COMMENTS:
Management database.

6. Assists the Director in the preparation of routine COMMENTS:
reports and presentations.

7. Prepare Emergency Preparedness Handbook. COMMENTS:
Lead training of staff.

8. COMMENTS:
9. COMMENTS:

L 24

CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO + DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN RESOURCES + PERFORMANCE PLAN AND APPRAISAL REPORT DHR 2008
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CITY & COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO » BEPARTMENT OF HUMAN RESOURCES

PERFORMANCE PLAN AND APPRAISAL REPORT

IV. PERFORMANCE PLAN - KEY OBJECTIVES

for the traveling public, to humanize the Airport, and to create an ambiance in the Airport which reflects
the sophistication and cultural diversity of the City and County of San Francisco and the entire Bay

Area.

1. To assist the Director and Chief Curator in the
preparation of routine reports and presentations.

REVIEW OF PERFORMANCE:

2. To demonstrate good observance of work hours
and attendance, and has shown only routine absence
from work.

REVIEW OF PERFORMANCE:

3. To effectively respond to the time sensitive and
changing demands of the normal workday.

REVIEW OF PERFORMANCE:

Departmental Goal #2: (specify) To apply new technology to exhibition building and
display, as well as record keeping and tracking to remain State-of-the-Art in all aspects of the Museum

field.

I. To review and recommend the implement Bar
Code system for inventory purposes.

REVIEW OF PERFORMANCE:

2. To develop the users manual for the collections
management database.

REVIEW OF PERFORMANCE:

3. To insure the accuracy of the data as entered in the
collections management database.

REVIEW OF PERFORMANCE:

Depar’tmental Goal #3: (SpECify) To provide the required museum infrastructure for the

protection of staff and collections.

1.To monitor the climate conditions in the exhibition
spaces throughout the Airport and at West Field
Rd.

REVIEW OF PERFORMANCE:

2. To keep the San Francisco Airport Museums
facilities on West Field Rd. in good condition and wel)
maintained. ’

REVIEW OF PERFORMANCE:

To prepare the emergency handbook specifically
or the needs of the Airport Museums. Review the
best practices and train the staff for natural disaster.

REVIEW OF PERFORMANCE:
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De partmental Goal #4: (specify) To find Creative uses of digital technology to permit
SFAM to become a highly accessible educational and arts institution.

1. To provide exhibition material for information
booths, personnel, and kiosks.

REVIEW OF PERFORMANCE:

REVIEW OF PERFORMANCE:

\Zlo
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CITY & COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO » DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN RESOURCES
PERFORMANCE PLAN AND APPRAISAL REPORT

V. APPRAISAL REPORT SUMMARY
A. OVERALL PERFORMANCE RATING

The appraisal report on overall performance should include a consideration of all items in the Job Description,

Departmental policies and procedures, and the Performance Plan’s Key Objectives for the review period. Check

the box under the appropriate number on the continuum.

: R : _,:»éé SRR e E a2 3 “'*. S TR :ﬁ :
Performance of job duties needs Péffi)rrned job du"ﬁeS competently ‘ Performed.job duties with
improvement; did not meet'many | and.effectively; met the objectives. exceptional competence and

of majority of objectives: (Meets Competent and Effective effectiveness; exceeded the

o o ‘ B requirement) o : objectives. -
1 —=2 3 4 . LCRETEY ; S 7 ——— 8 g .
0O 0 0. . 0O I I = I s N

B. COMMENTS REGARDING OVERALL PERFORMANCE

C. EMPLOYEE GUIDELINES -- PERFORMANCE PLAN AND APPRAISAL REPORT

1. Employee should review his/her employee organization's Memorandum of Understanding with the City and
County of San Francisco for information that may add to or modify the following list of guidelines.

Employee has the right to read the Performance Plan and Appraisal Report.
Employee has the right to receive a copy o_f the Performance Plan and Appraisal Report.

Employee has the right to discuss the report with the Reporting Supervisor or Manager.

aR W

Employee has the right to attach a rebuttal to the Performance Appraisal Plan and Report. Unless otherwise ,
provided in the collective bargaining agreement that applies to the employee’s Job Code, the rebuttal must be
presented within 5 working days of the report date. The rebuttal should only address the items presented in
the report. The 5 days may be extended at the discretion of the Reviewer for up to 30 days. -

Employee may request a conference, if requested, with the Reviewer (Reporter’s supervisor or rmanager).
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CiTY & COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO + DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN RESOURCES
PERFORMANCE PLAN AND APPRAISAL REPORT

VI. SIGNATURE PAGE

PERFORMANCE PLAN
A. Performance Plan/Key Objectives Sign-Off

1. REVIEWER SIGNATURE 2. REVIEW DATE
b< Zéﬂ,ﬁi 29 -2 7
3. SUPERVISOR SIGNATURE 4. EMPLOYEE SIGNATURE 5. MEETING DATE
% | W [ N il
' v

B. Mid-Period Performance Review Meeting

1. SUPERVISOR SIGNATURE

2. EMPLOYEE SIGNATURE

3. MEETING DATE

PERFORMANCE APPRAISAL REPORT

C. Reviewer’s Certification

1. NAME, WORK ADDRESS

2. JOB CODE NUMBER AND TITLE

3. [ 1 CERTIFY THAT | HAVE REVIEWED THIS REPORT. { PrintType)

4. SIGNATURE & DATE

D. Reporting Supervisor/Manager

1. NAME, WORK ADDRESS
Alrke TomnerS

2.J0B CODE NUMBER AND TITLE

74|

3. DATE OF CONFERENCE WITH
EMPLOYEE
Tt (o

4. SIGNAT

S

E. Employee’s Statement

| /IzﬁGREE WITH THIS REPORT,
[J | HAVE ATTACHED A REBUTTAL.

THE REVIEWER.

O 1 DO NOT AGREE WITH THIS REPORT: SECT NO.

[} 1| HAVE ATTACHED A REBUTTAL AND REQUEST A CONFERENCE WITH

2. CONFERENCE DATE

T AN
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TO: Blake Summers, SFAM Director and Chief Curator

FROM: Sonya Knudsen, SFAM Curator in Charge of Administration / Special Projects

DATE: 16 August 2009 |

RE: . amendment to be attached to FY09/10 CCSF PPAR

Re our brief meeting on 29 July, with follow-up discussion on 30 July, to review and discuss my FY9/10
performance plan, the job description, goals and objectives outlined can be accomplished but | suggest a

broadening of core job responsibilities that would better enrich the SFAM program, and utilize my skills and
talents. Please note the attached Knudsen memo submitted on 13 July 2009 for examples.

+ry inient s two-fold: 1) to contribute, be of value and aid to you and SFAM; 2) to refine and gather more skills
aiid experience for further career promotions and opportunities at SFAM and SFO.

Before you became the SFAM Director and Chief Curator in April 1999 and your most recent May 2009
promotion from Manager V to Manager Vi, you were the Assistant Director of Administration and Special
Projects. In 1999, you promoted me from Curator in Charge of Registration to Curator in Charge of
Administration and Special Projects in name only. At that time, you were hesitant to give me the Assistant
Director fitle and associated monetary adjustment due to budget restraints and your concems as to the
response from the Assistant Director and the Curator in Charge of Aviation, but gave indication that a
promotion would occur. The Assistant Director will always be my superior in seniority and salary. The Curator

in Charge of Aviation and | are both Curator IV. The difference is that | consistently fulfill my job duties and
projects on time.

By means of this memo, | am formally requesting that | be placed on a career pathway for promotion, and
suggest that my duties and responsibilities reflect and include administrative and management functions akin
to your previous Manager V and Assistant Director capacities. With your recent promotion to Manager VI, key
resconsibilities can be delegated to me given my administrative functions and placement within the SFAM
crganizational structure. | am on the CCSF listing, ranked #1 for the Manager V! position, as you are aware., |
a1 qualified and able to do more for the organization, and through your leadership, guidance, and mentorship,
such can be capitalized on to great advantage to you, SFAM, and SFO. '

e
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Sonya Knudsen

rom: Sonya Knudsen
Sent: Friday, August 21, 2009 1:48 PM
To: _ Blake Summers
Cc: . Jacksen Wong
Subject: RE: PAR
Blake,

Re your FY08/09 and FY03/10 PAR update, in our PAR discussion you specifically compared to the difference in my
attendance patterns ta years prior to FY08/09, and your Comment section referred to my medical condition. After our
discussion, the only FY08/09 PAR change made was a one category upgrade in my Attendance rating (still one lower
rating than all other years of employment), and the fact remains that my FMLA status, medical condition, and related

medical appointment needs was your concern and criteria for the rating. At no time in FY08/09 did you give me
indication of attendance concerns.

From our discussion | understood that you were the manager and reviewer of my PAR. Given that you have forwarded
my PAR and attached rebuttal to Jackson Wong, does this mean that Mr. Wong is the PAR reviewer and that { will be
conferring with him? Please advise. Sonya

From: Kathie Smookler On Behalf Of Blake Summers
Sent: Wednesday, August 19, 2009 6:05 PM

To: Sonya Knudsen

Cc: Jackson Wong

Subject: PAR

Sonya,
I am in receipt of your rebuttal to your 08/09 PAR. | am sorry that you misunderstood my comments vis-a-vis
Attendance and Punctuality. | did not consider your FMLA Leave in rating this section when | made that rating. Your

PAR rebuttal has been forwarded to Mr. Jackson Wong, Chief Operating Officer, for his review and signature.

Additionally, {am in receipt of your amendment to thé 09/10 PAR and as discussed during your review, 1| feel the duties
described are adequate; but | am more than willing 1;{9 reassess the goals and objectives at your mid-year review.

Thank you.

Blake

191
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TO: Blake Summers, SFAM Director and Chief Curator

FROM: Sonya Knudsen, SFAM Curator in Charge of Administration / Special Projects
DATE: 21 July 2009

RE: SFAM goals

As discussed on 13 July, as Curator in Charge of Administration and Special Projects my skills and
experience can be used to aid and provide you the means of addressing and realizing core SFAM
needs. In addition to current responsibilities, per your request, the following are suggested

supplemental areas from which can you designate those you would like me o prioritize for FY09/10
«rid future years:

Administration

» Assist you with SFAM budget preparation and monitoring, inclusive of contracts, vendor
coordination, invoice processing.

= Assist you with SFAM succession and promotional planning, staff career training, educational,
peer support, and mentoring opportunities.

= Attend SFO and SFAM Senior Staff and applicable administrative, commission, board,
construction, et al. meetings as your assistant and/or representative.

Bay Area Outreach and Collaborations

= Contact, engage, and foster refationships and collaborations with Bay Area museums, historical
societies, clubs, private collectors for participation and involvement in SFAM program.

= Assist SFAM staff re exhibition management with lenders, e.g., contracts, research and label
copy obligations.

= Assist you re SFAM / SFO website upgrades, brochure and poster projects, in coordination with
SFAM staff, SFO Administration, Marketing and Communications, vendors, et al.

SFAM Promotion

» Expand speaking engagements and involvement with Bay Area clubs and schools, e.g., Rotary,
Lyons, Burlingame-Hillsborough Newcomers Club, non-profits, high schools, universities, work
and school career days, et al.

* Organize and participate in panels and sessions at museum / aviation / facility / management
conferences and seminars, e.g., American Association of Museums, California Association of
Museums, “Aviation” Mutual Concerns, International Facility Management Association, Municipal
Management Association of Northem California, American Management Association, Stanford
and UC Berkeley, et al.

Oversee and manage applicable SFAM receptions, exhibition opening, and outreach events,
acting as ligison with participants and providers, e.g., similar to what was done for Russel Wright
and Model Train exhibitions, potentially for Pacific Coast League Baseball exhibition, et al.

= Provide assistance and host functions, public tours, school events, et al., showcasing SFAM
program, ALM, SFO, et al.

= Host table and participate in SFO Employee Appreciation Day event, and other SFO-organized
events.
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SFAM Goals
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Facility Management

= Continue to establish, sustain, and foster local peer collaborations and information exchange
similar to those of the SFO Mechanical Maintenance deY HVAC behind-the-scenes tour, FAMSF
Conservation and Accounting, et al.

* Provide you assistance re management of ALM facility, events, functions, receptions, et al,,
especially as Gabe will be marrying in October with a related absence.

* Provide you assistance re Terminal 2 construction and refated SFAM exhibition site expansion
and upgrade projects, inclusive of Connector galleries, Kids’ Spots, Aquarium, et al., in
coordination with applicable personnel, e.g., SFAM, SFO, contractors, vendors, CA Academy of
Sciences, Exploratorium, et al.

= Assist you and provide recommendations, coordination, and project management re SFAM's
WFR and SFO site upgrades and expanded and optimized space utilization, e.g., WFR Host
Food Lockers, Garage, Electrical Room, ALM, T3 North Office and Storage.

Risk Management

= Work with you, SFAM staff, and SFO Risk Management on pertinent projects, e.g., permanent
collection and SF Art Commission appraisals, SFAM facilities and sites, insurance brokers,
underwriters, and consultants, et al.

» Attend SFO Safety and Health meetings, disseminate and provide SFAM staff education, ensure
safe working conditions.

Collection Management

* Assist you in preparation and prioritization re SFAM permanent collection inventory and
appraisal, Aviation and Non-Aviation.

= Assist you to establish Master deaccession plan for Non-Aviation permanent collection, in
conjunction with SFO Legal and Bay Area appraisal and public auction firms.

= Work with you to expand volunteer, high school and college intern program, with volunteer and
intern assistance re permanent coflection projects, e.g., inventory, photography, deaccessioning.
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17 August 2009

Dorothy Yee

Manager, EEO Division

Department of Human Resources (DHR)
City and County of San Francisco (CCSF)
"1 South Van Ness Avenue, 4% floor

San Francisco, CA 94103-1233

Re: 17 August 2009 CCSF discrimination complaint vs. Summers, SFAM, re FMLA

Dear Ms. Yee:

By means of this letter and attached City and County of San Francisco (CCSF)
“Department Report of Employment Discrimination Complaint” form, I am filing a
complaint against Mr. Blaké Summers, Director and Chief Curator, San Francisco
Airport Museums (SFAM), San Francisco International Airport (SFO), City and County
of San Francisco (CCSF) regarding FMLA violations and adverse impact.

With CCSF-approved and recognized FMLA and ADA status, I am engaged in activity
protected therein. My employer is aware of this activity but took adverse action against
me. The FY08/09 and F'Y09/10 CCSF Performance Evaluation Reports (PAR) indicate
discrimination and retaliation on my supervisor’s part regarding attendance issues,
affecting PAR rankings, with inappropriate comments related to my FMLA status. There
1s a causal link between the protected activity and the adverse action. Please note the
enclosed:

- CCSF Employment Discrimination Complaint form (two pages)

- Overview (two pages)

FY08/09 PAR with Knudsen 16 August 2009 rebuttal (seven pages)
FY09/10 PAR with Knudsen 16 August 2009 amendment (ten pages)

Sincerely,

Sonya Knudsen

cc: Steve Pi_tocchi, SEIU Local 1021



Department of Human

Resources
Gavin Newsom Micki Callahan
Mayor Human Resources
Director
RECEIPT OF LETTER ALLEGING EMPLOYMENT DISCRIMINATION
August 24, 2009
Sonya Knudsen

ancisco, California 94128
D_ear Ms. Knudsen:

The Department of Human Resources has received your letter alleging employment
discrimination. The City and County of San Francisco takes seriously all allegations of
discrimination. In accordance with the San Francisco Charter, section 10.103, and Civil Service
Commission Rules, your correspondence has been reported to the Human Resources Director.

A professional EEQ investigator will be assigned as soon as possible to review your letter to
determine if the issues and bases of your complaint are within the jurisdiction of the equal
employment opportunity laws of the City and County of San Francisco.

The assigned EEQ investigator will contact you, either in writing or by telephone, to come in for
an ivake interview if it is determined that your charges need to be investigated, or if additional
information is needed.

I an EEO investigator has not contacted you within ten (10) days of this letter, please call our
office at 557-4837 for the name of the investigator assigned to review your letter.

R

o our information, you may also file your complaint of employment discrimination with the
California Department of Fair Employment or the United States Equal Employment Opportunity
Commission.

sincerely,

DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN RESOURCES

‘o (Q)o >
Linda Simon
Acting Manager, EEO Programs

ce: File

Cne South Van NésS*Ave.nue,_San Francisco, CA 94103 - (415) 557-4800 = www.sfgov.org/dhr
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City and County of San Francisco Department of Human Resources

Gavin Newsom
Mayor

Micki Cailahan
Human Resources Director

September 17, 2009

Ms. Sonya Knudsen
D BRI IR
San Francisco, California 94128

Re: Retaliation Complaint — EEQ File No. 1437

Dear Ms. Knudsen:

This letter is to acknowledge that I met with you and your tepresentative, Steven Pitocchi, on today
to discuss your allegations that San Francisco Airport management subjected you to retaliation for
taking leave under the Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA) and for requesting reasonable
accommodation for your disability. As we discussed, City and County of San Francisco policies, -
and federal and state law, prohiibit retaliation in the workplace in connection with any protected
activity.

During our meeting, you did not present facts sufficient to establish a complaint of retaliation for
engaging in protected activity. You indicated a desire to submit additional information in writing
supporting your retaliation claims. In order to ensure timely review and processing of your
complaint, I ask that you provide additional information no later than Monday,

September 28, 2009.

The City and County of San Francisco is committed to ensuting that all employees are provided with
a work envitonment that is free from all forms of discrimmation, to include harassment and/or
tetaltation. Should an employee feel as though they have been discriminated against, 4 formal
complaint of discrimination may be filed with the DHR/EEO Division, the State Department of

Fair Employment and Housing (DFEH) or the U. S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission
(EEOC).

You'may contact me directly at 415.551.8903, should you requite additional time to compile
information in support of your retaliation complaint. However, you should note that the failure to
provide facts sufficient to establish a prima face showing of retaliation may result in the
administrative closure of your complaint.

Thank you for your anticipated cooperation.

Sincerely,

,\_.__u%:&?

Janie White
Assistant Manager, EEO Programs

cc: Steven Pitocchi, SETU — Local 1021
File { gq
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SONYA KNUDSEN

PO Box Z2822®rSem-Francisco, CA 94128

_ phone: 68837

Sk

5 October 2009

_ -Ms. Janie White

Assistant Manager, EEO Division
Department of Human Resources (DHR)
City and County of San Francisco (CCSF),
1 South Van Ness Avenue, 41 floor

San Francisco, CA 94103-1233

re: EEQ file #1437
Sent via email and post
Dear Ms. White:

What follows is an addendum regarding our meeting of 17 September 2009 to discuss my discrimination
filing against my supervisor, Mr. Blake Summers, Director and Chief Curator of San Francisco Airport
Museums (SFAM), San Francisco International Airport (Airport), regarding FMLA violations and disparate
treatment, especially notable in City and County of San Francisco (CCSF) Performance Appraisal Reports
{(PARs) for FY 08 /09 and FY 09/ 10.

Per Airport directives and policies, Airport Commission employees are called upon to commit themselves to
continuously building a team that strives for the highest quality work product and for professionalism and
respect in all dealings with co-workers. In addition, it is the Airport's desire to handle employee concerns
effectively, fairly, and intemally, building a favorable work environment in which employees feel free to bring
their concems to their respective managers or the Airport Commission EEO office.

| filed the above discrimination complaint due to disparate treatment and adverse impact, especially
pertaining to Attendance standards and my position status. Such an attendance rating change is a telling
example, the first time since my career started at SFO in 1997 that | had been marked anything but
“Outstanding,” made more notable in that | had been downgraded by two ratings. The only reason provided
was due to my health condition, related FMLA absences and medical appointments, none of which was
pertinent in the PAR report. Attendance standards being applied to me should be applied to all SFAM staff,
which was not the case.

In our meeting, you noted that it was clear from the FY 08 / 09 PAR that | had ably fulfilled my essential job
responsibilities. You also said that the FY 08 / 09 PAR version #3 had been amended to upgrade my
attendance rating and had dropped any reference to my health condition, superseding FY 08 / 09 PAR
versions #1 and #2. It is disappointing that these corrections required extensive effort on my part and the
necessity of my filing a complaint to affect a change. Although | am appreciative that it has been resolved,
and the FY 08 / 09 PAR has been corrected, a pattem is reoccurring that corrections are done after the fact
and it necessitates and places me in a very uncomfortable position of needing to respond, pursue, and
request remediation.

My supervisor is a department head and a member of Airport Senior Staff. He has had extensive CCSF
management and supervisory training, as | have, and also has ready access to applicable counsel and

110
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“rudsen EEO file #1437
Pg 2 of 2, 5 Qctober 2009

guidance from DHR and SFO HR and EEO departments. As a professional and in a subordinate position, it
is illogical for me to be placed in a situation of having to offer corrections or seek remedy for violations of
CCSF policies and procedures as they apply to FMLA, PARs, attendance standards, etc.

F'am the Airport Museums’ Curator in Charge of Administration and Special Projects, and my position and
skillsats are uniquely suited fo aid my supervisor in operational and program activities, inclusive of

‘ “iration, project and facility management, et al. Since my return from FMLA in April 2008, my job
responsibilities and staff interaction have been altered by my supervisor, a manageriai discretion, That said,
the selections and choices he makes with regard to my job duties are key to future promotional
opportunities. Whep my supervisor suggested | provide a set of goals for FY 09/ 10, and chose not to
incorporates a single one of them, it is indicative of his priorities and outlook, and suggest a continued
pattern and mindset that perpetuates discrimination. Just as 1 was concerned about a health condition
notation and related attendance rating change and how such would negatively impact future career
opportunities, | am far more concemed about narrow administrative responsibilities and staff interaction that
provide limited indication to SFO and CCSF management and outsiders of my experience, gualifications,
and contributions to the worksite, undermining career growth and promotions.

Sincerely,

Sonva Knudsen

Lo Sieve Pitocchi, SEIU Local 1021



_ SONYA KNUDSEN
PO Box%San‘Francrsco CA 94128
phohe: 8568 %]

Overview re FY08/09 and FY09/10 PARs — FMLA discrimination / adverse impact

13 July 2009 :
Knudsen has brief discussion with Summers re how her skills and experience can be used to aid

Summers and provide means of addressing and realizing core San Francisco Airport Museums
(SFAM) needs. Knudsen informed by Summers of need to meet re CCSF Performance Evaluation
Reports (PAR) for FY08/09 and FY09/10, and Knudsen was requested to provide listing of
FY09/10 goals.

21 July 2009
Knudsen provides Summers listing of FY09/10 goals.

s suly 2009 '
Summers meets with Knudsen to review FY08/09 and FY09/10 PARs. Knudsen’s 21 July 2009

listing of FY09/10 goals not incorporated, Summers saying that he had already written PAR
before receiving, and that additional goals could be added once existing listing accomplished.
Knudsen notes in FY08/09 PAR two-step downgrade of Attendance and Punctuality from
“QOutstanding” to “Competent and Effective.”

Knudsen told by Summers attendance downgrade due to notable FY08/09 FMLA absences and
related medical treatment needs due to health condition, with reference made in Comment section
as well. Summers also makes reference to Knudsen absences due to attending Rotary lunch
meetings. Knudsen reminds Summers that the majority of her medical appointments are
scheduled atter hours, and that she works in excess of scheduled hours to offset medical
appointments that-could not be accommodated after hours, as well as the once-a-week Rotary
lunch meetings. Summers then agrees to upgrade Attendance and Punctuality from
“Competent and Effective” to “Exceeds Standards, indicating the matter was closed for
further discussion.

4lso in this discussion, Knudsen requested Summers to remove health condition comment from
FY08/09 PAR as she said FMLA absences did not affect her job performance, and expressed
concern regarding penalty due to her FMLA status and need for ongeing medical treatment.
Knudsen requests that listing of FY08/09 and FY09/10 Job Duties and Responsibilities be more
inclusive of administrative responsibilities, not just an emphasis on facility management

responsibilities. Summers agrees to edit FY08/09 PAR and does not agree to edit or amend
FY09/10 PAR, requesting Knudsen signature. Knudsen signs FY09/10 PAR, and requests copies
of FY08/09 and F'Y09/10 PARs; Summers said copies would be provided by Favis at later time.
See 16 August 2009 Knudsen rebuttal memo for further details.

30 July 2009
Summers requests Knudsen to sign revised FY08/09 PAR, with new order of listing re Duties and

Responsibilities, and an upgrade to Attendance and Punctuality from “Competent and Effective”
to “Exceeds Standards,” but no change re “health condition” reference in Comments.

Knudsen expresses desire to have on record career path for promotion and additional
responsibilities, making note of her past promotion to Curator in Charge of Administration and
Special Projects without associated classification and pay raise, referring to past Summers
commitment to provide such in a future budget cycle. Knudsen refers to FY09/10 administrative

- Knudsen discrimination complaint overview re FY08/09 and FY09/10 PARs and FMLA, page 1 of 2
W2
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PO Box ZEZR&468%m Francisco, CA 94128
phone: FSSERGaRe~

report with promotion track for Manager I and Curator IV positions to Manager Il and Manager I
positions, respectively, saying that it takes time to incorporate promotions within CCSF system,
and that her position upgrade needs to be included in FY09/10.

Knudsen discusses FY08/09 PAR with Summers, saying that she does not agree with report and
will not sign until a rebuttal has been provided. Summers informs Knudsen she has five days to _
do so0, Knudsen responds with understanding that she had ten days. Summers says he will make
inquiry, and later informs Knudsen she has 30 days to respond.

16 August 2009
Knudsen provides Summers FY08/09 rebuttal and FY09/10 amendment.

143
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City and County of San Francisco Depar’tmenf of Human Resources

Micki Callahan
Human Resources Director

Gavin Newsom
Mayor

November 10, 2009

Mt aonya Knudsen

San Franc1sco Cahforma 04128
SUBJECT: Discrimination Complaint, EEO File # 1437
Vs Ma, Kandsen; |

The San Francisco Charter Section 10.103 and Civil Service Commission Rule 103 provide that

- the Human Resources Director shall review and resolve all complaints of employment
discrimination. The purpose of this letter is to inform you of my determination in your
complaint, EEO File #1437, against the City and County of San Francisco, Airport Commission,
San Francisco International Airport and Blake Summers, Director and Chief Curator of San
Francisco Airport Museums.

Summary

On August 19, 2009, the Department of Human Resources, Equal Employment Opportunity
Division (DHR/EEO) received your complaint letter alleging that you were subjected to adverse
employment actions in retaliation for taking leave under the federal Family Medical Leave Act
(FMLA) and for requesting reasonable accommodation under the Americans with Disabilities
Act (ADA). Specifically, you allege that your fiscal year 2008/2009 Performance Plan and
Appraisal Report (PPAR) contained an inappropriate reference to your medical condition that
+.as also reflected in your Attendance rating. You further alleged that your fiscal year 2009/2010
PPAR contains additional indications of discrimination. Currently you are a 3546 Curator IV
assigned to the Airport Commission, Museums Division.

Yeur complaint was assigned to EEO Investigator, Janie White, for review and follow up as
pecessary. Ms. White met with you and your Union Representative on September 17, 2009, to
obtain additional information in support of your retaliation and discrimination claims. During
the meeting, you failed to present facts showing that your 2008/2009 and/or 2009/2010 PPARs
are adverse employment actions. In a letter dated October 5, 2009, you presented additional
information supporting your belief that the PPARs constitute adverse employment actions
requiring remedial action.

Retaliation Standard
()  the complainant engaged in a protected activity;
(2)  the complainant suffered an adverse employment action; and

(3)  there was a causal link between the protected activity and the adverse
employment action.

(|

-1 80. Van Ness Avenue, 47 Floor, San Francisco, CA. 94103.% (415) 557-4800_* www.sfgov.orgfdhr oo o



Sonya Knudsen
November 10, 2009
EEO File # 1437, Page 2 0of4

Disparate Treatment Standard

1) the complainant is a member of a proteci:ed category;
(2) the complainant has suffered an adverse employment action; and
(3) ~  the complainant suffered an adverse employment action because of his or

her membership in a protected category.

Analysis

Ms. White conducted an intake interview with you and your Union Representative to explain
the i mvestigatlve process, standards, and to clarify your charges. You provided information

< hieviev dhat you took leave under the FMLA between 2007 and the present. Taking leave

oo the FMLA is protected activity under federal regulations. You also identified documents
supporting your belief that you have a qualifying disability. Your actual or perceived disability is
a protected category under federal, state and local laws prohibiting discrimination in the :
workplace. However, Ms. White advised you that the information you presented failed to show
. that yon had suffered an adverse employment action in connection with any protected activity

or based on your membership in a protected category.

You acknowledged that prior to your scheduled intake interview, the department amended your
2008/2009 PPAR by removing a reference to your medical condition and upgrading your
attendance rating from “Competent and Effective™ to “Exceeds Standards.” You shared with Ms.
White that Mr. Stummers tends to evaluate subordinates based on recent performance. You also
allege that Mr. Summers appears very busy and does not meet with employees throughout the
performance rating period. You disagreed with Mr. Summers’ review of your achievements
during the review period. In a rebuttal to the PPAR, you cited several achievements during the
‘neriod that you considered noteworthy, which Mr. Summers omitted. This process is
snsistent with Performance Plan and Appraisal guidelines in the City’s Employee Handbook.

At the end of the review period you and your supervisor meet and, after a review
of the draft appraisal report, sign-off on the overall performance ratings and
comments. If you feel that the appraisal does not correctly evaluate your
performance, you may write and attach a rebuttal.

City and County of San Francisco, Employee Handbook, p. 15.

The 2008/2009 PPAR documents show that Mr. Summers rated you Competent and Effective,
or above, in all rating areas. As Ms. White explained, while you believe that Mr. Summers
should have rated you “Outstanding” in several areas, satisfactory performance ratings are not
- adverse employment actions. The standard is based on an objective assessment rather than
personal expectations. : :

You also alleged that goals set in your 2009/2010 PPAR fail to reflect your full range of duties
and deny you opportunities to use your skifls and talents. Ms. White explained to you and your
representative that management has authority to plan and direct the work of subordinates,
including setting goals and expectations. You believe that Mr. Summers’ incomplete statement
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of your job duties is an adverse employment action; however, you could not explain how the
alleged action harmed you. '

In a letter dated September 17, 2009, Ms. White offered you additional time to provide
information in support of your retaliation and discrimination complaint. In order to ensure
timely review of your complaint, Ms. White requested that you provide additional information
not later than September 28, 2009. You requested an extension of time and were granted until
October 6, 2009, to provide additional information showing that Mr. Summers’ sub]ected you to
an adverse employment action.

Tn a letter dated October 5, 2009, you again confirmed that the Afrport Commission had
resolved key issues raised in your August 17, 2009 complaint letter prior to your meeting with
EE ”'ﬂre Nevertheless, you believe that the department subjected you to “disparate
cceqicns and adverse impact” that is part of a pattern of conduct requiring you to “respond,

_ 'puraue and request remediation.” The information you shared suggests that in each instance
where corrective action was required, the Department took appropriate action to protect your
rights under the FMLA and under policies prohibiting discrimination and retaliation in the
workplace.

You further expressed concern that Mr. Summers has used his management discretion to define
your job duties in a manner that undermines your career growth and denies you promotional
opportunities. The SEIU- Local 21, Collective Bargaining Agreement recognizes management’s
right to direct its workforce to achieve critical objectives. Supervisors may support subordinate
employees’ personal development; however, this support should not restrict management’s
ability to achieve operational goals in the workplace. The July 1, 2006 - June 30, 2011 Collective
Bargaining Agreement Between the City and County of San Francisco and SEIU Local 1021, Article 1.C., states
“.. . nothing herein shall be construed to restrict any legal city rights concerning direction of its
work force . .. " You shared with Ms. White that Mr. Summers offered to consider your

P sonal goals alter you had achieved those currently set in your 2009/2010 PPAR. Thus, the
infarmation you provided failed to show that you were subjected to an adverse employment
action in the PPAR process because of a protected category or for engaging in protected activity.

Conclusion

azrec with Ms. White’s recommendation that your retaliation and discrimination complaint
should be administratively closed because you have not presented sufficient facts to make a
prima facie showing of retaliation or disparate treatment. The decision of the Human Resources
Director is final, unless it is appealed to the Civil Service Comimission and is reversed or
modified. A request for appeal must be received by the Civil Service Commission at 25 Van
Ness Avenue, Suite 720, San Francisco, CA 94102, within thirty (30) calendar days from the
postinarked mailing date of this letter.

Fot your information, you may also file a complaint of discrimination with the U.S. Equal

Employment Opportunity Commission or the California Department of Fair Employment and
Housing, Contact these agencies for filing requirements and deadlines.
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Ms. White has also noted that in the past Mr. Summers has served as both the “Reporting
Manager” and the “Reviewer” when evaluating your performance. Currently, Jackson Wong,
Chief Operating Officer, is the designated Reviewer for PPARs prepared by Mr. Summers.
Reviewers in the performance appraisal process can assist with ensuring that evaluations meet
City guidelines and comply with federal, state and local laws. DHR and the Airport
Commission Human Resources Division encourage the use of Reviewers in the PPAR process
 before and after discussing performance related matters with employees. By copy of this
correspondence, the Airport Commission Human Resources Division is asked to share its
recommendations on the use of Reviewers in the PPAR process with Mr. Summers.

We appreciate you bringing theése issues to our attention. You may contact Linda Simon, Acting
EEO Manager, at 557-4837 if you have any questions.

. Sincerely, :

Micki Callahan
Human Resources Director

Copy:  JohnI. Martin, Director
Gloria Louie, EEO Programs Director
Steven Pitocchi, SEIU — Local 1021
EEQ File # 1437 :
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO
DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN RESOURCES

-_P-.e‘rfo'rmance Plan

and

Appralsal Report

I EMPLOYEE IDENTIFICATION INFORMATION

g §. LAST NAME, FIRST NAME, MIDDLE INITIAL
KNUDSEN,SONYA

2. JOB CODE NUMBER AND TITLE
3546 Curator v

3. STATUS
:ﬂPermanent (.PCS)
3 Provisional (TPV)
L] Permanent Exempt (PEX)
0] Temporary Exempt (TEX)
O Temporary Civil Service (TCS)
[J Uimited Tenure (Restricted Use) (TLT)
[ Non Civit Service (Restricted Use) (NGS)

4. WORK LOCATION & DIVISION
Chief Operating Officer-COO-
Museums

5. DEPARTMENT

- 27-airport commission

8. REASON FOR REPORT
L] Annual

‘ EiDept. Review Period
L1 Probationary
O Unscheduled

7. REVIEW PERIOD

} 7/1/2010 to 6/30/2011.

8. PROBATION START AND END DATE
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" CITY & COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO » DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN RESOURCES
, _ PERFORMANCE PLAN AND APPRAISAL RE SORT

1. PERFORMANCE PLAN J.B IESCRIPTI.N

_REVIEW OF DUTIES & RESPONS!BILIT!ES BASED ON JOB DESCRIPTION
FUNCTIONAUWORKING TITLE

Curator in charge of Administration and Special Projects

1. Hand]es the routine and daily maintenance of the famhty ) COMMENTS
{ at West Fle!d Road: :

2. Monitors the climate conditi

te conc | comments:
art storage sites through out the: R

3. Write and prosecute the M'aintenance SCheduling reqlie'éis'-,-"

4. Develop the User. Manugél for the Coliechons Managementr ‘ COMMENTS 0
On Going

5. Work on the data scrub for the Collecnons Management :COMMENTS 1710711
database. : o

, This duty s on going and requ;res constant attentlon .
. Jand malntenance : :

6. Assists the Director in the preparation of the routme 3 C.O,MM_ENTS_: 110/11
reports and presentanons . . B CRREE o

7. Prepare Emergency Preparedness Handbook specifically - COMMENTS: 110/11

for the Alrport Museums; - on going

Lead trammg to staff S !
ls. B o | COMMENTS:
9. -  lcommenrs: -
10 COMMENTS:
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CITY & COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO » DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN RESOURCES

PERFORMANCE PLAN AND APPRAISAL REPORT

COMMENTS:

12 Statement of ]ncompatlble Activities: Fully comply
with the. department s Statement of Incompatible Activities
as approved by the Ethics Commission. Comipliance
includes, but is not limited to: Restrictions on Incompatible
Activities; Restrictions on Use of City Resources, City |
Work-Product.and Prestige; and Prohibition on Gifts for

" Assistance with City Services. -

"COMMENTS:

13. Use of City and County Property for Busmess
Purposes Oniy Al City equipment, devices, and materials
(i.e., photocopier, te]ephones ‘computers, vehicles, -

: statlonery, fax machines, ete. ) must be used only for
Vconductmg Cny business.

1 computer for.over a year on'work of a- personal nature.
~When it came to-my-attention I'wrote a reprimvand to Ms.

COMMENTS: 1/10/11 In October 0f 2010 it came to my |

attention that Ms. Knudsen had been using her office

Knudsen and spoke with her about the situation. Ms.
Knudsen was made aware of the gravity of this
m:sconduct and stated it would never happen agam

14. DSW Preparedness Take all necessary steps to prepare

yourself for an emeérgency, i ,‘“ your capacity as a Disaster
Service Warkers; provide updated personal contact

information to your department so that you can be contacted
in the event of-an- emergency; report in and; respond promptly |

Lo instructions by the City and/or your departmeiit in the

vent of an emergency; participate in any drills or emergency -

-xercises as notified; and carry out dlsaster—related work
assignments as requ]red

; COMMENTS

15. DSW Training: Comp]ete DSW and.Personal :
Preparedness training. Complete NIMS training as assigned.

| commENTS:

CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO » DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN RESOURCES » PERFORMANCE PLAN AND APPRAISAL REPORT DHR 2010
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CITY & COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO «» DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN RESOURCES
PERFORMANCE PLAN AND APPRAISAL REPORT

III PERFORMANCE PLAN - KEY OBJECTIVES
vDepartmental Goal #1 (specn‘y)

1 To assist the Director and Chief Curator in the preparatlon ' EEV]EW OF PERFOﬁhﬁ ANCE- 1710111
.| of routine reports and presentatlons : ' N _

2.To demonstrate good observance of work hours and

. CrVanc: . Ms. Knudsen is observant of her work hours.
| attendance and shéw